File Number S360 (Mod.20)-29 Form C33-6007-1

IBM

Systems Reference Library

IBM System/360 Model 20 Disk Programming System PL/I

This publication provides the information required for writing and running Model 20 PL/I programs that are to be compiled and link-edited using the Model 20 PL/I compiler under control of the IBM System/360 Model 20 Disk Programming System.

Part I, "Model 20 PL/I Language Features", and Part II, "Model 20 PL/I Syntax Rules", are composed of discussions and examples that explain the different features of the language and their interrelationships, their syntax notation and rules. Part III, "Model 20 PL/I as Part of the Disk Programming System", introduces the main components of the Disk Programming System, explains job control, and discusses compilation, linkediting, and execution of a Model 20 PL/I program.

More detailed information about the Disk Programming System can be found in the publications <u>IBM System/360</u> <u>Model 20, Disk Programming System, Control and Service</u> <u>Programs</u>, Form C24-9006, and <u>IBM System/360 Model 20,</u> <u>Guide to the Disk Programming System</u>, Form C33-6000.















DPS

First Edition (December, 1968)

Changes are made from time to time to the specifications herein; before using this publication in connection with the operation of IBM equipment, refer to the latest IBM System/360 Model 20 SRL Newsletter, Form N20-0361 for the editions that are applicable and current.

This publication was prepared for production using an IBM computer to update the text and to control the page and line format. Page impressions for photo-offset printing were obtained from an IBM 1403 printer using a special print chain.

Requests for copies of IBM publications should be made to your IBM representative or to the IBM branch office serving your locality.

A form for reader's comments is provided at the back of this publication. If the form has been removed, comments may be addressed to IBM Laboratories, Programming Publications, 703 Boeblingen/Germany, P.O. Box 210.

• International Business Machines Corporation 1968

Contents

Introduction				7
Reasons for Conceiving PL/I	•	•	•	7
Basic Characteristics of PL/I				7
How to Use this Publication				8
				_
Syntax Notation	•	•	•	9
Part I. Model 20 PL/I Language Features	5			
Basic Characteristics of Model 20 PL/I .	•	٠	•	13
Program Elements				15
Character Sets	•		•	15
Basic Program Structure				18
Simple and Compound Statements .				18
Groups and Procedures	•	•		19
•				
Data Elements	•	•	•	20
Data Types	•	٠	•	20
Problem Data	•	•	•	20
Arithmetic Data	•	•	•	20
Character-String Data	•	•	•	23
Program-Control Data	•	•	٠	24
Label Data	•	•	٠	24
Pointer Data	•	٠	٠	25
Data Organization	•	•	٠	25
Arrays	•	•	•	25
Structures	•	•	٠	27
Respecification of Data		•	٠	28
Initialization of Data	•	•	•	29
Expressions	_			30
Expression Operations				30
Arithmetic Operations			÷	30
Conversion of Operands in Arithm	iet	ic		
Operations				31
Formats of Results of Arithmetic	:			
Operations	•			31
Comfarison Operations	•	•		33
Concatenation Operations	•	•	•	36
Priority of Operators				36
Expressions Containing Function				
References	•	•	•	37
Statement Classification	•	•	•	38
Descriptive Statements	•	•	٠	38
Input/output Statements	•	•	•	20
Statement and computational				<i>u</i> 0
Dragram-Flow Control Statements	•	•	•	40 7/1
Program-flow control statements .	•	•	•	41
Exception-control statements	•	•	•	44
Program-Structure Statements	•	•	•	4.5
Flow of Control and Storage Allocation .	•	•	•	47
The Procedure	•	•	٠	47
Activation of a Procedure	•	٠	•	47
Termination of a Procedure	.•	•	•	47
Program Termination	•	٠	•	48
Storage Allocation	•	٠	•	48
Dynamic Allocation	•	٠	•	48

Static Allocation	;• • •	49 49 49 49 50
Recognition of Names	• • •	51 51 52 52 52
References	•	53
Data Transmission	•	54 54 55
File Attributes	• • •	55 55 57
Files Device Independence of Input and Outpu Statements	t.	58 58
Stream-Oriented Transmission Data Lists	•	59 60 62
Page Layout for Print Files Summary of STREAM I/O Statements Record-Oriented Transmission	• • •	64 65 65
Options of RECORD I/O Statements	•	66 68
Notes on File Organization and Acces. Methods Used With Record-Oriented Fransmission	s	68
Editing and Character-String Handling	•	70
The Assignment Statement		70 70 70
The Picture Specification	•	71 72 72
Handling	•	74
Arguments and Parameters	•	75 76 76
Attributes of Value Returned by Function	•	77 78
Relationship of Arguments and Parameters	•	79 79 80
Exceptional Condition Handling Enabled Conditions and Established		81

Acti	ion			•		•	•	•		•	•	•		•	•	81
Cond	lit	Lon	Prefixe	es	•	•	•	•		•		•	•		•	81
The	ON	Sta	tement	•	•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	82

Based Variables and Pointer Variables					84
Pointer Variables			•	•	84
Based Variables	•	•	•	•	84
Values of Pointer Variables	•		•	•	84
Restrictions ON Pointer Variable	•		•	•	86
Use of Based Storage and Pointers	5	•	•	•	86
Pointer Manipulation	•	•	•	•	87

Part II. Model 20 PL/I Syntax Rules

Picture Specific	ation	Chara	cters	• •			. 90
Digit and Dec	cimal	-Poin	t Spe	cifi	ers		. 91
Zero-Suppress	sion	Chara	cters	5.			. 92
Insertion Cha	aract	ers .					. 93
Numeric Signs	s and	Curr	ency	Symb	01		. 95
Credit, Debit	z, an	d Ove	rpunc	hed-	Sign		
Characters .	• •		••••				. 96
The Exponent	Spec	ifier	Ε.	•••	••	••	. 97
Edit-Directed F	orma	t Items	•				. 98
Data Format 3	Items					• •	• 98
Control Forma	it It	ems .					. 98
Remote Format	: Ite	em		• •	• •		. 99
Alphabetic Li	ist o	of For	mat 1	tems	•	•••	• 99
Built-In Function	ons ai	nd the					
Pseudo-Variab	le SVI	BSTR	• •	• •			.103
Computational	l Bui	lt-In	Func	tion	s.		.103
String Handl:	ing E	uilt-	In Fu	Incti	ons		.103
Arithmetic Bu	iilt-	In Fu	nctic	ns			.1 05
Mathematical	Buil	t-In	Funct	ions	•		.107
Summary of	Math	emati	cal F	unct	ions	•	.108
Other Built-:	In Fu	nctio	ns .				.109
SUBSTR Pseudo	o-Var	iable		ه ا	• •	• •	.109
ON-Conditions			• •				.110
Groups of On-	-Cond	lition	s.				.110
Computational	L Con	ditio	ns				.111
Input/Output	Cond	ition	s.	• •			.112
System Action	n Con	ditio	n.	• •	• •	•••	.113
Attributes			• •	• •			.1 14
Specification	n of	Attri	butes	5.			.114
Factoring of	Attr	ibute	s.	• •			.114
Data Attribut	tes			• •		• •	.114
Problem-Data	Attr	ibute	s.	• •			.114
Program-Cont:	rol D	ata A	ttrib	outes			.115
Entry-Name	Attr	ibute	s.	• •			.115
File Descrip	tion	Attri	butes	5.			.115
Scope Attrib	ites		• •				.115
Storage-Class	s Att	ribut	es .	• •			.116
Alphabetic Li	ist o	of Att	ribut	es	••	•••	.116
Statements	••	• • •	• •	••	•••	•••	.124
Part III. Model	20 PI	./I ac I	Part o	f tha	Niek		

Part III. Model 20 PL/I as Part of the Disk Programming System

PL/I in the Model 20 Disk Programming System. 139 Program - Label Communication 194

System Minim Maxim	CON UM UM	on fig Sys Sys	ur ste	m m	io Co Co	ons onf	ig ig	ur ur	at at	io io	• n n	•	•		• • •	.139 .139 .139 .139
The Mod Monitor Job Con Model 2	el 2 Protro 0 P	0 C ogr 1 F L/3	lis) am Pro C C	gr om	ro am pi	gr le	ап	imi • •	ng	5;	ys: - -	ter • •	n - -		• • •	.141 .141 .142 .142
Job Cont I/O Dev Job-Cont Order of Format	rol ice troi f In of	As LS npu Job	ta t -C	gn te on	ne me tr	nt nt ol	s s	ta		ne		•••5	• • •	• • •	• • •	.143 .143 .143 .144 .144
The Com Input to PL/I So Object I Output : Compile Executal Compile Printed Diagnos Compila Diagnos	pile urca ilea urca Modu fron ble c-Ca Lis tic tic	r he M l O l D l l b j l e b j l e b j l e b j l e b j e t l c a · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· Cod bj od jod rog pa · pa	• pucluping t sb • bi •	·il et et e	•ern Man rulorat •ti	pudd	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	np om a: st: in	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	le O A	a 			.153 .153 .153 .155 .156 .156 .156 .157 .157 .159 .159 .159
Executin	ga	Sin	npl	e F	<u>יר</u>	/I I	Pro	gr	am		•	•	•	•	•	.160
Executin Program Overlay Creating Use of 1 Segments Rules for	ga Cor Exe Fac Ja Seg Filo S. Dr (Sin nsic cil Se gme es	it it it an ng	e H ati y en s d · o	PL/ on te st	d at	Pro Pr ic	gr gan og s	am din rai	ng M rag			• • • •	• • • • •	 	.160 .163 .163 .163 .163 .163 .164 .165
Executin Program Overlay Creating Loading Use of 1 Segment: Rules for Input/Ou File Org Consecut Disk O The ENVI Outions	g a Con Exe Fac J a Sec File S · Or (tput Janit tive Fil IRON	Sin nsic cul sees Jsi Lza Fini Le NME	npl ler itor it gm it gm ng til za Or NT	e H ati yen d. On etiga	PL/ on te St ve Ornitt	/II s] d rl ga zari	Pro Reg Pr ic ay ni tibu	gr gan og S za on te	am din rai to: ti:	ng m ra on	ge i	• • • • •	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	• • • • • • • • •		.160 .163 .163 .163 .163 .164 .165 .166 .166 .166 .172 .175
Executin Practical Program Overlay Creating Use of 1 Segment: Rules for Input/Ou File Org Consecut Disk O INDEXED The ENV: Options File Lal Punched Tape Fil Label-Co Multi-F: Tape Fil Disk Fil	g a Con Exe Fac Sec Sor Cor Cor Cor Cor Cor Cor Cor Cor Cor C	Sin Sin Cullee Js .zeri Leni Sid .olo	aplier tion igminan .til zar	e I yensd. O etga	PL/ on	(II s i d i c i i i i i i i i	Pro Reg Pro ay	gr gan • og • s • za • on te • .					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			.160 .163 .163 .163 .163 .163 .164 .165 .166 .166 .166 .169 .172 .175 .180 .185 .186 .186 .186 .186 .186 .191 .191 .192

Cataloging	Two Programming Examples Example for Scientific Applica Example for Commercial Applica
Deleting a PL/I Program from the Core-Image Library	Appendix A. Definition of Terms
Special Programming Information	Appendix B. Upward Compatibility
Inquiries on the IBM 2152 Printer-Keyboard	Appendix C. Character Sets with EBC and Card-Punch Codes
Use of the IBM 2152 Printer-Keyboard199 Linking PL/I Programs with Assembler	Appendix D. Model 20 PL/I Keyword
Procedures	Appendix E. File Attributes and Optic
The Dyndump Routine	Appendix F. Valid I/O Statements .

Two Programming Examples	•	•	.206
Example for Scientific Application		•	.206
Example for Commercial Application	•	•	.208
Appendix A. Definition of Terms • • • •	•	•	• 2 14
Appendix B. Upward Compatibility	•	•	.225
Appendix C. Character Sets with EBCDIC and Card-Punch Codes	•		.226
Appendix D. Model 20 PL/I Keywords	•	•	.228
Appendix E. File Attributes and Options \cdot	•	•	•230
Appendix F. Valid I/O Statements	٠	•	.231

Reasons for Conceiving PL/I

Throughout the relatively brief history of electronic data processing, computers have been used mainly in two fields of activity - the commercial and the scientific.

Consequently, programmers generally have specialized in one field or the other. High-level languages like COBOL for commercial programming and FORTRAN for scientific programming have emphasized this divergence.

Until recently, this difference presented few problems. Each language was adequate for its use; the commercial programmer dealt with relatively few computations performed upon great amounts of data; the scientific programmer performed complex calculations using small amounts of data.

Now, however, the situation is changing. Business and industry have discovered new uses for the computer. The commercial programmer finds himself concerned with more complex computations in statistical forecasting and in programming for operations research. In science and engineering, the programmer needs a language to simplify the preparation of reports, to sort and edit technical data.

Today's computing systems have been designed to cope with all of these computing problems. They handle commercial and scientific/engineering programs with equal ease, with new power and new speed.

None of the traditional high-level languages, however, can be used with efficiency across the entire range of ability of these new computers.

This is why PL/I was conceived. PL/I is a programming language designed to cover as wide a range of programming applications as possible. It can be used to solve both commercial and scientific/engineering problems. PL/I has been designed so that any programmer, no matter how brief or extensive his knowledge, can use it easily at his own level. It is simple for the beginning programmer, it is powerful for the experienced one.

A programmer need not know everything about PL/I to be able to use it. An experienced programmer can use PL/I to specify almost every detail of every step of a highly complicated program. A beginner can take advantage of the many automatic features of the language to do much of his work for him.

PL/I has also been designed to reduce the cost of programming, including the cost of training programmers who need to be trained in one programming language only. Another factor that contributes to programming cost is the machine dependency of the traditional programming languages, which means that frequently a program must be rewritten, sometimes because the system under which it is used has changed, sometimes because it is to be run on a new machine. Often, rewriting a program costs as much as writing it in the first place.

Basic Characteristics of PL/I

A PL/I <u>program</u> is written in form of <u>state</u>-<u>ments</u> like for example C = A + B. The statements, whose sequence follows the logical flow of the program, are grouped together into blocks called <u>procedures</u>. A procedure defines a section of the program or a complete program. The task of a procedure is the execution of a particular job or part of a job. The same procedure can be used in a number of different programs. Consequently, a change made in one procedure effectively makes a change in all programs that use it.

PL/I provides many options in statements, in descriptions of data or files, giving a lot of flexibility in writing programs. Wherever there are alternatives, the compiler makes an assumption if no choice is stated by the programmer. In each case, the assumption, called default, is the alternative that would be required in the majority of situations. The default concept is an important part of the simplicity of PL/I. In many cases, the beginning programmer need not even know that alternatives exist. PL/I is much less machine dependent than most commonly used programming languages, for example the Assembler Language.

The variety of features provided by PL/I, as well as the simplicity of the concepts underlying them, demonstrate the versatility of the language, its universality, and the ease with which different subsets can be defined to meet the needs of different users.

Model 20 PL/I is a subset of the full language. It is upward compatible with System/360 DOS/TGS PL/I provided the same input/output devices are available. The user can write both scientific/engineering and commercial programs in Model 20 PL/I.

How to Use the Publication

This publication is designed as a reference book for the Model 20 PL/I programmer. Its three-part format allows a presentation of the material in such a way that references can be found quickly.

Part I, which may be read sequentially, describes the different features of the language and their interrelationship. Part II, which is organized purely from the reference point of view, brings rules and syntactic descriptions. Part III discusses the basic features of the Model 20 PL/I compiler, describes program compilation and execution, and brings all information needed to execute a Model 20 PL/I program.

This publication reflects features of the Model 20 PL/I compiler. Consequently, a number of features of the full PL/I language are not described in this publication, because they are not part of Model 20 PL/I.

Language features that are limited against the full PL/I language are described in the light of the limitations. Wherever a description here differs from the full language, it is not to be regarded as a respecification of the language, but merely a description of Model 20 PL/I. The publication is designed to provide all the implementation information needed to write programs in Model 20 PL/I and to run them under the Model 20 PL/I compiler.

Implementation features identified by the phrase "for IBM System/360 implementations ..." apply to all implementations for IBM System/360 computers. Features identified by the phrase "for the Model 20 PL/I Compiler ..." apply specifically to the IBM Model 20 PL/I Compiler under the System/360 Model 20 Disk Programming System.

Syntax Notation

Throughout this publication, wherever a PL/I statement -- or some other combination of elements -- appears in the text, this statement or phrase is written using a uniform system of notation.

This notation is <u>not</u> part of Model 20 PL/I; it is a standardized notation that may be used to describe the syntax -- or construction -- of any programming language. It provides a brief but precise explanation of the general patterns that the language permits. It does not describe the <u>meaning</u> of the language elements, merely their <u>structure</u>; that is, it indicates the order in which elements may (or must) appear, the punctuation that is required, and the options that are allowed.

The following rules explain the use of this notation for any programming language; only the examples apply specifically to Model 20 PL/I.

- A <u>notation variable</u> is the name of a general class of elements in the programming language. A notation variable must consist of:
 - a) Lower-case letters, decimal digits, and hyphens and must begin with a letter.
 - b) A combination of lower-case and upper-case letters. There must be one portion all in lower-case letters and one portion all in uppercase letters, and the two portions must be separated by a hyphen.

All such variables used are defined in the manual either syntactically, that is, this notation, or by giving a verbal definition.

Examples:

- a) digit: This denotes the occurrence of a digit, which may be 0 through 9 inclusive.
- b) filename: This denotes the occurrence of the notation variable named <u>filename</u>.
- c) DO-statement: This denotes the occurrence of a DO-statement. The upper-case letters are used to indicate a language keyword.

 A <u>notation constant</u> denotes the literal occurrence of the characters represented. A notation constant consists either of all capital letters or of a special character.

Example:

DECLARE identifier FIXED;

This denotes the literal occurrence of the word DECLARE followed by the notation variable <u>identifier</u>, followed by the literal occurrence of the the word FIXED and the literal occurrence of the semicolon (;).

- The term <u>syntactic unit</u>, which is used in subsequent rules, is defined as one of the following:
 - a) a single notation variable or notation constant, or
 - b) any collection of notation variables, notation constants, syntax-language symbols, and keywords surrounded by braces or brackets.
- Braces { } are used to denote grouping of more than one element into a syntactic unit.

<u>Example</u>:

identifier
$$\begin{cases} FIXED \\ FLOAT \end{cases}$$

The vertical stacking of syntactic units indicates that a choice is to be made. The above example indicates that the variable <u>identifier</u> must be followed by the literal occurrence of either the word FIXED or the word FLOAT.

5. The vertical stroke | indicates that a choice is to be made.

Example:

identifier {FIXED|FLOAT}

This has exactly the same meaning as the above example. Both methods are used in this publication to display alternatives.

Syntax Notation 9

6. Square brackets [] denote options. Anything enclosed in brackets may appear or may not appear at all in the syntactic unit. Brackets can serve the additional purpose of delimiting a syntactic unit.

<u>Example:</u>

FILE(filename)[KEY(expression)]

This denotes the literal occurrence of the word FILE followed by the notation variable <u>filename</u> enclosed in parentheses and optionally followed by the literal occurrence of the word KEY with its notation variable <u>expression</u> enclosed in parentheses. If, in rule 4, the two alternatives also were optional, the vertical stacking would be within square brackets instead of braces.

7. Three dots ... denote the occurrence of the immediately preceding syntactic unit one or more times in succession.

Example:

[digit]...

The variable <u>digit</u> may or may not occur since it is surrounded by brackets. If it does occur, it may be repeated one or more times. Part I

Model 20 PL/I Language Features

The modularity of PL/I, that is, the ease with which combinations of language features can be used to meet different needs, is one of the most important characteristics of PL/I; in fact, it is the base on which PL/I has been built.

This chapter briefly discusses most of the basic features to give you an overall description of the language. Each feature is treated in more detail in subsequent sections.

Program Structure

A Model 20 PL/I program is constructed of statements that are logically grouped together into one or more blocks called procedures. A program always comprises a main procedure and, usually, a number of other procedures that perform specific functions.

The rules defining the use of procedures, communication between procedures, the meaning of names, and the allocation of storage are fundamental for the understanding of PL/I.

Data Types and Data Description

The characteristic of PL/I that most contributes to the range of applications for which it can be used is the variety of data types that can be represented and manipulated. In our context, data is generally defined as a representation of information in the form of digits and characters that have certain characteristics called attributes. PL/I deals with arithmetic data, character-string data, and program-control data, such as labels and pointers (addresses). It provides you with features to perform arithmetic operations, logical operations (e.g., comparison), and operations and functions for manipulating character strings. In order to be able to perform these operations, data items are usually given names.

The compiler must be able to determine, for every name used in a program, the complete set of attributes associated with that name. You may specify these attributes explicitly by means of a DECLARE statement, or the compiler may determine all or some of the attributes by context or by default if you do not specify them.

Default Assumptions

An important feature of PL/I is its default concept. If you do not specify all the attributes associated with a name, or all the options permitted in a statement, attributes or options may be assigned by the compiler. This default action offers two advantages. First, it reduces the amount of declaration and other program writing required; second, it makes it possible to teach and use levels of the language for which the programmer need not know all possible alternatives, or even that alternatives exist.

Storage Allocation

PL/I provides you with more flexibility in the allocation of main storage than most other programming languages. The storage areas for data in a PL/I program may be assigned statically, that is, when the program is loaded, or dynamically, that is, when the individual procedures are executed.

There are three different storage classes in Model 20 PL/I: STATIC, AUTOMATIC, and BASED. In general, the default storage class in Model 20 PL/I is AUTOMATIC. Storage for data with the storage class attribute STATIC is statically allocated, while for data with the attribute AUTOMATIC or BASED it is dynamically allocated.

Expressions

Calculations in PL/I are specified by expressions. The meaning of an expression in PL/I is similar to that of an expression in elementary algebra. For example the expression.

A + B * C

specifies multiplication of the value of B by the value of C and addition of the value of A to the result. The data used in an expression must be of the same type; that is, there can be no mixing of data types in an expression. For example, a characterstring cannot be added to an arithmetic value.

The results of the evaluation of expressions may be assigned to variables. Variables are names representing data. An example of an assignment statement is: X = A + B * C;

This means: Evaluate the expression on the right and assign it to X. The type of the result of the expression must be consistent with the type of X.

Data Collections

Data variables can be grouped into either arrays or structures. An array is composed of elements of the same characteristics. A structure is a collection of variables, not necessarily alike in characteristics. Individual items of an array are referred to by the subscripted name of the array; individual items of a structure are referred to by names given to them.

Expressions cannot be specified for arrays or structures, but for elementary components of arrays or structures. Consider the following the assignment statement:

A = B + C;

The names used in this assignment statement could be elements of structures or arrays, but not arrays or structures themselves.

Input/Output

Input/output (I/O) is the transmission of data from an external storage medium to internal (main) storage and vice-versa. There are two classes of I/O in PL/I: stream-oriented and record-oriented I/O.

Stream-oriented I/O is almost completely machine-independent. On input, data items are selected one by one from what is assumed to be a continuous stream of characters and are converted automatically to conform, in main storage, to the attributes of the variables to which they are assigned. Similarly, on output, data items are converted one by one to external character form and are added to a conceptually countinuous stream of characters. For printing, the output stream may be considered to be divided into lines and pages. An output stream file may be declared to be a print file with a certain line size and page size. PL/I provides you with the facilities to detect the end of a page and to specify the beginning of a line or a page.

Record I/O is machine dependent. It deals with collections of data, called records, and transmits these a record at a time without any data conversion. The external representation is an exact copy of the internal representation. Because the record is treated as a whole, and because no conversion is performed, this form of I/O is potentially more efficient than stream-oriented I/O, although the actual efficiency of each class will, of course, depend on the type of problem to be solved.

Stream-oriented input and output usually sacrifices efficiency for ease of handling. Each data item is transmitted separately and is examined to determine if data conversion is required. Record-oriented input and output, on the other hand, provides faster transmission by transmitting data as entire records, without conversion.

Interrupt Activities

Modern computing systems provide facilities for interrupting the execution of a program whenever an exceptional condition arises. Further, they allow the program to deal with the exceptional condition and to return to the point at which the interrupt occurred.

PL/I has facilities for detecting a variety of exceptional conditions. It allows you to specify the conditions for which, should they arise, you want an interrupt to occur, and also the action to be taken when such interrupt does occur.

Program Elements

In most programming languages, the length of an individual instruction or statement is limited by the size of a single punch card. If a statement exceeds the size of one card, a notation must be made, usually with a punch in some particular card column, to indicate that the statement is continued on the following card.

PL/I has no such artificial limitation. There is no fixed-length format for input although the Model 20 PL/I compiler reserves some card columns: the first column of every card in a program must be blank, and columns 73 through 80 of these cards are ignored and can contain any information, for example, card sequence numbers.

Within the available card area, you can write your program without considering special coding forms and without having to ensure that each statement begins in a specific column. As long as each statement is terminated by a semicolon, the format is completely free. Each statement may begin in the next column or position after the end of the previous statement, or any number of blanks may intervene.

Character Sets

You may write your programs in one of two character sets; either a 60-character set or a 48-character set. The choice between the two sets is optional. In practice, this choice will depend upon the available equipment.

60-Character Set

The 60-character set is composed of digits, alphabetic characters, and special characters. There are ten digits: the decimal digits 0 through 9. There are 29 alphabetic characters, beginning with the currency symbol (\$), the number sign (#), and the commercial "at" sign (@), which precede the 26 letters of the English alphabet in the IBM System/360 collating sequence in Extended Binary-Coded-Decimal Interchange Code (EBCDIC). For use with languages other than English, the three alphabetic characters \$, #, and @ can be used to cause the printing of letters that are not included in the standard English alphabet.

There are 21 special characters. They are as follows:

<u>Name</u>	<u>Character</u>
Blank	
Equal or assignment	=
symbol	
Plus sign	+
Minus sign	-
Asterisk or multiply	*
symbol	
Slash or divide symb	ol /
Left parenthesis	(
Right parenthesis)
Comma	
Point or period	•
Single quotation mar	k '
or apostrophe	
Percent symbol*	%
Semicolon	;
Colon	:
"Not" symbol	7
"And" symbol*	3
"or" symbol	(used only in
_	Model 20 PL/I in
	combination with
	a second "or"
	symbol () as
	concatenation
	operator)
"Greater than" symbo	1 >
"Less than" symbol	<
Break Character ¹	_
Question mark*	?

*not used in Model 20 PL/I

Special characters are combined to create other symbols. For example,<= means "less than or equal to ", 1= means "not equal to". The combination ** denotes exponentiation (X**2 means X²). Blanks are not permitted in such composite symbols.

The rules for PL/I sometimes specify that an "alphameric" character must be used in certain coding. The term alphameric refers to any of the 29 alphabetic characters and the 10 digits, but not to the 21 special characters.

<u>Note</u>: The question mark, at present, has no specific use in the PL/I language, even though it is included in the 60-character set. The percent symbol and the "And" symbol have no meaning in Model 20 PL/I, although they do have a meaning in the full PL/I language used with higher System/360 models.

¹The break character is the same as the typewriter underline character. It can be used with a name, such as GROSS_PAY, to improve readability.

The restrictions for this character set are described in <u>Appendix C. Character</u> <u>Sets With EBCDIC and Card-Punch Codes</u>.

<u>48-Character Set</u>

The 48-character set is composed of 48 characters of the 60-character set. In all but five cases, the characters of the reduced set can be combined to represent the missing characters of the larger set. For example, the semicolon (;) is not included in the 48-character set, but a comma followed by a point (,.), without intervening blanks, can be used to represent it. The five characters that cannot be represented are the commercial "at" sign, the number sign, the break character, the question mark, and the percent symbol.

The restrictions and changes for this character set are described in <u>Appendix C</u>. <u>Character Sets with EBCDIC and Card-Punch</u> <u>Codes</u>.

Using the Character Sets

All elements that make up a PL/I program are constructed exclusively from the PL/I character sets, with two exceptions: character-string constants and comments may contain any character in the EBCDIC character set.

Certain characters perform specific functions in a PL/I program. For example, many characters are used as operators.

There are three types of operators: arithmetic, comparison, and string operators.

The <u>arithmetic</u> operators are:

- + denoting addition or prefix plus
- denoting subtraction or prefix minus

- * denoting multiplication
- / denoting division
- ****** denoting exponentiation

The <u>comparison</u> operators are:

- > denoting "greater than"
- a> denoting "not greater than"
- >= denoting "greater than or equal to"
- = denoting "equal to"
- n = denoting "not equal to"
- <= denoting "less than or equal to"
- < denoting "less than"
- 1< denoting "not less than"</pre>

The <u>string</u> operator is:

|| denoting concatenation

Figure 1 shows some of the functions of other special characters.

<u>Identifiers</u>

In a PL/I program, you give names or labels to data, statements, files, and procedures. In creating a name or label, you must observe the syntactic rules for creating the identifier.

An identifier is a single alphabetic character or a string of up to 31 alphameric and break characters, not contained in a comment or constant, and preceded and followed by a blank or some other delimiter (which may be an operator or a special character (except a decimal point)); the

Name	Character	<u>Use</u>
comma	ø	separates elements of a list
period		indicates decimal point
semicolon	;	terminates statements
assignment symbol	==	indicates assignment of values ¹
colon	3	connects prefixes to statements
blank		separates elements of a statement
apostrophe	y .	encloses string constants
parentheses 	()	enclose lists; specify information associated with various key- words; in conjunction with operators and operands, delimit por-
1		tions of an operational expression
1 ¹ The charact	er = can be	used as an equal sign and as an assignment symbol.

Figure 1. Some Functions of Special Characters

initial character of the string must be alphabetic.

Language keywords are also identifiers. A keyword is an identifier that, when used in proper context, has a specific meaning to the compiler. A keyword can specify such things as the action to be taken, the nature of data, the purpose of a name. For example, READ, DECIMAL, and ENDFILE are keywords. A complete list of keywords and their use is contained in <u>Appendix D.</u> <u>Model 20 PL/I Keywords</u>.

<u>Note</u>: Only when using the 48-character set, some PL/I keywords are reserved words. Keywords are recognized as keywords by the compiler only when they appear in their proper context. In other contexts they may be used as programmer-defined identifiers. (Those keywords that are reserved are given in the section <u>Recognition of Names</u>.

An identifier must not exceed 31 characters in length. For the Model 20 PL/I compiler, some identifiers, as discussed in later sections, must not exceed six characters in length; this limitation applies to certain names, called external names, that may be referred to by other procedures.

The following are examples of identifiers you could use for names or labels:

A FILE2 LOOP_3 RATE_OF_PAY #32

The third and the fourth example illustrate the use of the break character to improve readability of an identifier, since blanks are not permitted in identifiers.

Examples of illegal identifiers are:

/*ABC 23AC A*B BEG IN

An identifier must not contain special characters; it must not start with a digit; and it must not contain embedded blanks.

The Use of Blanks

You may use blanks freely throughout a PL/I program. You may or may not use them before and after operators and most other delimiters. In general, any number of blanks may appear wherever one blank is allowed, such as between words in a statement.

One or more blanks must be used to separate identifiers and constants that are not separated by some other delimiter or by a comment. However, identifiers, constants (except character-string constants) and composite operators (for example, 1=) must not contain blanks.

Other cases that require or permit blanks are noted in the text where the feature of the language is discussed. See Figure 2 for examples.

Comments

Frequently you may want to insert comments into your programs to clarify the action that is taken at a given point. These comments enable someone unfamiliar with the program to follow your line of thought, and they are helpful to you when looking back over program sections that were written earlier.

Comments are permitted wherever blanks are allowed in a program. You may insert them between statements or in the middle of a statement without affecting the compilation of your program.

The character pair, /*, indicates the beginning of a comment. The same characters reversed, */, indicate its end. No blanks or other characters must separate these two characters; the slash and the asterisk must be immediately adjacent. The comment itself may contain any characters except the */ combination, which would be interpreted as terminating the comment.

/* THIS WHOLE SENTENCE COULD BE INSERTED
 AS A COMMENT!*/

/*SO COULD +#\$c%&-THIS!*/

		یہ جو جے ختم ہے۔ کو جند جے این خان کے تیل ہور طلخ جنے کے حال میں خط جار	
AB+BC	is	equivalent to	AB + BC
TABLE(10)	is	equivalent to	TABLE (10)
FIRST,SECOND	is	equivalent to	FIRST, SECOND
ATOB	is	<u>not</u> equivalent to	A TO B
L			

Figure 2. Examples of the Use of Blanks

In comments you may use any characters recognized by the system hardware. This includes characters that are not in the PL/I character set, such as the cent sign in the second example above.

<u>Note</u>: The length of a single comment must not exceed 5 cards. However, any number of comments may occur consecutively.

Basic Program Structure

A PL/I program is made up of basic program elements called statements. There are two types of statements: simple and compound. These statements make up larger program elements called DO-groups and procedures.

SIMPLE AND COMPOUND STATEMENTS

There are three types of simple statements in PL/I: keyword, assignment, and null statements, each of which is terminated by a semicolon.

A <u>keyword statement</u> has a keyword to indicate the function of the statement. For example:

GOTO LOOP; (GOTO is a keyword; a blank between GO and TO is optional.

The <u>assignment statement</u> contains the assignment symbol (=) and does not have a keyword. For example:

```
A = B + C; (This is an assignment state-
ment; it does not contain a
keyword).
```

The <u>null statement</u> consists of a semicolon only and indicates that no operation is to be performed. The null statement may be used in connection with interrupts.

; (Null statement)

A <u>compound statement</u> is a statement that contains more than one simple statement. It is terminated by the semicolon of the last simple statement.

There are two compound statements: the IF statement and the ON statement. Examples of compound statements are:

This compound statement is terminated by the semicolon of the simple statement A = B + C;. The IF statement may be nested which means that it may contain other compound statements. 2. ON UNDERFLOW GOTO UNFIX;

The ON compound statement is always composed of only two simple statements terminated by a semicolon.

Statement Prefixes

Both simple and compound statements may have one or more prefixes. We have two types of prefixes in PL/I: the label prefix and the condition prefix.

A <u>label prefix</u> is used to identify a statement so that it can be referred to at some other point in a program. A label prefix is an identifier that precedes the statement and is connected to the statement by a colon. Most statements may have one or more labels. If you specify more than one label, you may use them interchangeably to refer to the statement. For example:

LABEL1:LABEL2:A=B;

PROCEDURE statements, however, must have one and only one label. The label prefix of a PROCEDURE statement is known as an <u>entry name</u>. The label prefix of any other statement is known as a statement label. DECLARE statements must not be preceded by any prefix.

A <u>condition prefix</u> is used to specify whether or not program interrupts are to result from the occurrence of the named conditions. Condition names are language keywords, each of which represents an exceptional condition that might arise during the execution of a program. In Model 20 PL/I only PROCEDURE statements may have condition prefixes. An example is OVER-FLOW. The OVERFLOW condition arises when the exponent of a floating-point value exceeds the maximum allowed (representing a maximum value of about 10⁴⁹).

A condition name in a condition prefix may be preceded by the word NO to indicate that, effectively, no interrupt is to occur if the condition arises. There must not be any blanks between the NO and the condition name.

A condition prefix consists of a list of one or more condition names, separated by commas and enclosed in parentheses. Only one condition prefix must be attached to the PROCEDURE statement, and the parenthesized list must be followed by a colon. A condition prefix precedes the entire PROCEDURE statement, including the entry name for the PROCEDURE statement.

Example:

(CONVERSION, NOOVERFLOW): PROGM1: PROCEDURE:

The condition prefix indicates that an interrupt is to occur if the CONVERSION condition arises, but that no interrupt is to occur if the OVERFLOW condition arises. Note that the condition prefix precedes the entryname PROGM1.

Since intervening blanks between a prefix and its associated statement are ignored, it is often convenient to punch the condition prefix into a separate card that precedes the card into which the statement is punched. Thus, after debugging, you can easily remove the prefix.

Example:

(CONVERSION, NOOVERFLOW): PROGM1: PROCEDURE;

If no condition prefix precedes a procedure statement, or if not all possible conditions are explicitly stated, the compiler assumes default values.

Condition prefixes are discussed in the section entitled <u>Exceptional Condition</u> <u>Handling</u>.

GROUPS AND PROCEDURES

A group, also called a DO-group, is a sequence of statements headed by a DO statement and terminated by a corresponding END statement, as follows: [label:]DO;

END;

DO-groups are used for control purposes and, in general, they can appear wherever single statements can appear. One DO-group may contain another DO-group; that is, a DO-group may be nested. DO-groups normally are used to specify an iterative process and/or in the IF compound statement.

A procedure is a sequence of statements headed by a PROCEDURE statement and terminated by an END statement, as follows:

label: PROCEDURE;

END:

With Model 20 PL/I, a procedure may contain any statement except another PROCEDURE statement. Thus, unlike DO-groups, procedures cannot be nested.

The label preceding a procedure statement is called the <u>entry name</u> of the procedure, or the <u>procedure name</u>. A procedure is <u>invoked</u> (activated) by a <u>procedure</u> <u>reference</u>, that is, a special reference to the procedure name. The point at which the procedure reference appears in a program (for example: CALL PROGM1;), is called the <u>point_of_invocation</u>; the procedure containing the procedure reference is called the <u>invoking_procedure</u>.

Data Elements

Data is generally defined as a representation of information.

In PL/I, you refer to a data item, arithmetic or character-string, by using either a variable or a constant (the terms are not exactly the same as in general mathematical usage).

A <u>variable</u> is a symbolic name having a value that may change during execution of a program. The characteristics of a variable are not immediately apparent from the name. Since these characteristics, called attributes, must be known, certain keywords and expressions may be used to specify the attributes of a variable in a DECLARE statement. The attributes you may use to describe data are discussed briefly in this section. A complete discussion of each attribute appears in Part II of this manual, under <u>Attributes</u>.

A <u>constant</u> (which is not given a symbolic name) has a value that cannot change.

A constant does more than state a value; it demonstrates various characteristics of the data item. For example, 3.1416 shows that the data type is arithmetic and that the data item is a decimal number of five digits and that four of these digits are to the right of the decimal point.

The following statement has both variables and constants:

AREA = RADIUS**2*3.1416;

AREA and RADIUS are variables; the numbers 2 and 3.1416 are constants. The value of RADIUS is a data item, and the result of the computation will be a data item that will be assigned as the value of AREA. The number 3.1416 in the statement is itself a data item.

If the number 3.1416 is to be used in more than one place in the program, it may be convenient to represent it as a variable to which the value 3.1416 has been assigned. Thus, the above statement could be written as:

PI = 3.1416; AREA = RADIUS**2*PI;

In the second statement, only the digit 2 is a constant.

In preparing a PL/I program, you must be familiar with the types of data that are permitted, the ways in which data can be organized, and the methods by which data can be referred to. The following paragraphs discuss these features.

Data Types

The data you may use in a PL/I program fall into two categories: problem data and program-control data. Problem data is used to represent values to be processed by a program. It consists of the arithmetic and character-string data types. Programcontrol data is used to control the execution of the program. Statement labels and pointers are types of program-control data.

PROBLEM_DATA

The types of problem data available in Model 20 PL/I are arithmetic and character-string.

ARITHMETIC DATA

An arithmetic data item is one with a numeric value, that is, a number. It may be a <u>decimal constant</u>, like for example 215.8, or it may be the <u>value of a variable</u>, for example, 2.158 assigned to a variable. In Model 20 PL/I, all arithmetic data items must be written as decimal, either fixeddecimal or float-decimal data items.

Arithmetic data items have the characteristics of base, scale, and precision. For data items represented by an arithmetic variable, the characteristics have to be specified by attributes declared for the variable name, or they are assumed by default.

<u>Base</u>. The base of an arithmetic data item in Model 20 PL/I is <u>decimal</u>, that is ten.

<u>Scale</u>. The scale of an arithmetic data item is either fixed-point or floatingpoint. A decimal fixed-point data item is a decimal number in which the position of the decimal point is fixed. It is specified either by its appearance in a constant or by a scale factor declared for a variable. A floating-point data item is a decimal number followed by an integer exponent that may or may not be signed. The exponent specifies the assumed position of the decimal point, relative to the position in which it actually appears. <u>Precision</u>. The precision of an arithmetic data item is the total number of digits the data item can have in the case of fixedpoint, or the minimum number of digits (excluding the exponent) in the case of floating-point. For decimal fixed-point data items, precision can also specify the assumed position of the decimal point relative to the rightmost digit of the number.

Base and scale of arithmetic variables are specified by keywords; DECIMAL for base and FIXED and FLOAT for scale. Precision is specified by decimal integer constants enclosed in parentheses.

Whenever you assign a data item to a fixed-point variable, the precision you have declared for that variable is maintained. The assigned item is aligned on the assumed decimal point of the variable. Leading zeros are inserted if the assigned decimal item contains fewer integer digits than declared; trailing zeros are inserted if an assigned decimal item contains fewer fractional digits than declared. Truncation on the left or right may occur if the so aligned value has too many digits to the left or right of the assumed decimal point.

Decimal_Fixed-Point_Data

A decimal fixed-point data item consists of one or more decimal digits. A decimal point may be included. If no decimal point appears, the point is assumed to be immediately to the right of the rightmost digit. In most cases a sign may optionally precede a decimal fixed-point constant.

Examples of fixed-point decimal constants as you may write them in a program are:

3.141593 -5280 455.3 .00003 234. 234

The keywords for decimal fixed-point variables are DECIMAL and FIXED. Precision is stated by two unsigned decimal integer constants, separated by a comma and enclosed in parentheses. The first specifies the total number of digits; the second, the scale factor, specifies the number of digits to the right of the decimal point. If the variable is to represent integers, the scale factor and its preceding comma can be omitted. The attributes may appear in any order, but the precision specification must follow either DECIMAL or FIXED.

To define PI (which should assume the value 3.141593) in this way, we could use the following statement:

DCL PI FIXED DECIMAL (7,6);

This defines the identifier or variable PI as a fixed-point decimal item of not more than seven digits, six of which are to the right of the decimal point. In this declaration, of course, no value has yet been assigned to PI. This could be done later in the program with the following assignment statement:

PI = 3.141593;

The value could also be assigned in the DCL statement, specifying the INITIAL attribute, as follows:

DECLARE PI FIXED DECIMAL (7,6) INITIAL (3.141593);

This not only defines the identifier PI but gives it an <u>initial value</u> of 3.141593. The value may be retained throughout the program, as is probable in this case, or it may be changed during execution by an assignment statement.

The maximum number of decimal digits allowed in Model 20 PL/I is 15. Default precision, assumed when no specification is made, is 5,0. The internal form of decimal fixed-point data is packed decimal. Packed decimal is stored in two digits to the byte, with a sign indication in the rightmost four bits of the rightmost byte. Consequently, a decimal fixed-point data item is always stored as an odd number of digits, even though the declaration of the variable may specify the number of digits as an even number. Any such extra digit is in the high-order position (that is, to the left of the leftmost decimal digit), and it participates in any operations performed upon the data item, such as in a comparison operation. Note, however, that this extra digit is disregarded when evaluating the precision of arithmetic expressions.

The fixed-decimal values that can be represented in Model 20 PL/I are in the range of 10^{-50} to 10^{49} , even though the declared scale factor must lie in the range of 0 to 15. Note, however, that not only the individual values, but also the values resulting from the evaluation of expressions must be within that range.

Decimal_Floating-Point_Data

A decimal floating-point constant is written as one or more digits, with an optional sign and decimal point, referred to as the mantissa, followed by the letter E, followed by a decimal integer exponent that specifies a power of ten. The mantissa has the same format as a decimal fixed-point constant. Both, mantissa and exponent, may be preceded by a plus or minus sign.

Data Elements 21

Consider the following example in which the decimal number 312.5 10-17 would be written as:

+312.5E-17

The digits preceding the letter E are the mantissa preceded by an optional plus sign. The digits following the letter E are the exponent preceded by a minus sign.

Other examples of decimal floating-point constants as you may write them in a program are:

15E-23 15E23 4E-3 48333E44 438E0 5.E-12 314159E-6 .00314159E2

The last two examples represent the same value, namely 0.314159.

The keyword attributes that describe decimal floating-point variables are DECIMAL and FLOAT. Precision is stated by a decimal integer constant enclosed in parentheses. It specifies the number of digits to be maintained preceding the E. If an item assigned to a variable has a <u>field_width</u> larger than the declared precision of the variable, truncation may occur on the right. The least significant digit is the first that is lost. Attributes may appear in any order, but the precision specification must follow DECIMAL or FLOAT.

Consider the following declaration of a decimal floating-point variable:

DECLARE LIGHT_YEARS DECIMAL FLOAT (5);

This statement specifies that LIGHT_YEARS is to represent decimal floating-point data items with an accuracy of five significant digits.

The maximum precision allowed for decimal floating-point data items in Model 20 PL/I is 15; the exponent must not exceed two digits. The value V that can be expressed is in the range of $10^{-51} \le V < 10^{49}$, and V=0. The default precision is 6. The internal representation of decimal floating-point data may be in either short or long floating-point form. If the declared precision is less than or equal to 6, short floating-point form, otherwise long floating-point form is used.

The internal representation of decimal floating-point data is based on the representation of decimal numbers by mantissa and exponent. The first byte contains the exponent incremented by 50 as a two-digit decimal number without sign (but assumed to be positive). The following four, respectively 8 bytes (depending on whether short or long floating-point form is used) contain the mantissa without any leading zeros as a seven-digit or 15-digit decimal number, respectively, with the decimal point assumed to the left of the leftmost digit. Floating-point numbers in internal representation are normalized, i.e., the leftmost digit of the mantissa is not zero. The (normalized) value zero is represented in a special notation having zeros in all digit positions of characteristic and mantissa.

Note that all variables that have not been explicitely declared and whose names do not start with any of the letters I to N are assumed to be arithmetic decimal floating-point variables of six digits. (An identifier starting with any of the letters I to N must be explicitly declared).

Numeric-Character Data

A numeric-character data item (also known as a numeric-field data item) is the <u>value</u> of a <u>variable</u> that has been declared with the PICTURE attrtlyibute and a numeric picture specification. The format is:

DECLARE identifier PICTURE 'picture-specification'

The picture specification is a string of <u>picture characters</u> (e.g., 9 and V) used to represent a decimal fixed-point or floating-point value. The basic form of a numeric-picture specification is the picture character 9 specified one or more times and the optional picture character V, which is used to indicate the assumed location of a decimal point. The picture specification must be enclosed in apostrophes. An example of declaring a picture variable is:

DECLARE PRICE PICTURE '999V99'

This example specifies that any value assigned to PRICE is to be maintained as a string of five decimal digits in character form, with a decimal point assumed to precede the rightmost two digits.

In some cases it might be convenient to use repetition factors in numeric-picture specifications. A repetition factor is a decimal integer constant, enclosed in parentheses, that indicates how often the immediately following picture character is to be repeated. For example, the following picture specification would result in the same field as the example shown above:

DECLARE PRICE PICTURE '(3) 9V(2) 9'

In Model 20 PL/I, numeric-character data is stored in zoned decimal format. If it is to be used in arithmetic computations it is automatically converted to coded arithmetic.

Although numeric-character data is in character form like a character string, and although it is aligned on the decimal point like packed decimal data, it is processed differently from the way either packed decimal items or character strings are pro-Editing characters (like the point cessed. and the dollar sign) can be specified for insertion into a numeric-character data item, and such characters are actually stored within the data item. Consequently, when the data item is assigned to a character string, the editing characters are included in the assignment. If, however, a numeric-character item is assigned to another numeric-character or arithmetic variable, the editing characters will not be included in the assignment; only the actual digits and the location of the assumed decimal point are assigned. (Note that character-string data cannot be assigned to numeric-character variables). Consider the following example:

```
DECLARE PRICE PICTURE '$99V.99',

COST CHARACTER(6),

VALUE FIXED DECIMAL(6,2);

PRICE = 12.28;

COST = '$12.28';
```

In the picture specification for PRICE, the currency symbol (\$) and the decimal point (.) are editing characters. They are stored as characters in the data item. They are not, however, a part of its arithmetic value. After execution of the second assignment statement, the actual internal character representation of PRICE and COST can be considered identical. If they were assigned to character strings, which were then printed, they would look exactly the same. They do not, however, always function in the same may. For example, look at the following assignment statements:

```
VALUE = PRICE;
COST = PRICE;
VALUE = COST;
PRICE = COST;
```

After the first two assignment statements have been executed, the value of VALUE would be 001228 (with an assumed decimal point before the last two digits) and the value of COST would be '\$12.28'. In the assignment of PRICE to VALUE, the currency symbol and the decimal point are considered to be editing characters, and they are not part of the assignment; after the assignments, the arithmetic value of PRICE is contained in VALUE in packed decimal form. In the assignment of PRICE to COST, however, the assignment is to a character string, and the editing characters of a numeric-picture specification always participate in such an assignment. The third and fourth assignment statements are invalid. The value of COST cannot be assigned to VALUE because a character string cannot be converted to packed decimal form. The value of COST cannot be assigned to PRICE because, in Model 20 PL/I, a character string cannot be converted to numericcharacter format.

Other editing characters (including zero suppression characters) and insertion characters (like, for example, an asterisk), can be used in numeric-character specifications.

<u>Note</u> that the number of possible digit positions in the fixed part of a picture declaration must range between 1 and 15, inclusively. The total length of a picture, including editing characters, must not exceed 30 characters. The V character, however, does not count since it represents only an assumed, not an actual point. A picture or editing character preceded by an repetition factor (n) counts n times.

For complete discussions of picture characters, see Part II, the section <u>Pic-</u> <u>ture Specification Characters</u> and the discussion of the PICTURE attribute in the section <u>Attributes</u>.

CHARACTER-STRING DATA

You may think of a character string as a connected sequence of characters that is treated as a single data item. The length of the string is the number of characters it contains.

A character string can include any digit, letter, or special character that is contained in the EBCDIC-character set. Any blank included in a character string is considered an integral character of the data item and is included in the count of the length. Comments cannot be inserted in a character string. The comment, as well as the comment delimiters (/* and */), will be considered to be part of the characterstring data.

When writing a program, you have to enclose character-string constants in apostrophes. If an apostrophe is a character in a string, it has to be written as two apostrophes with no intervening blank. The length of a character string is the number of characters between the enclosing apostrophes. If two apostrophes are used within the string to represent apostrophes, they are counted as a single character.

Data Elements 23

Consider the following examples of character-string constants:

```
'LOGARITHM TABLE'
'PAGE 5'
'SHAKESPEARE''S ''''HAMLET'''''
'AC438-19'
(2) 'WALLA '
```

The third example actually indicates SHAKESPEARE'S ''HAMLET'' with a length of 24. In the last example, the parenthesized number is a <u>repetition factor</u> which indicates repetition of the characters that follow. This example specifies the actual constant 'WALLA WALLA ' (the blank is included as one of the characters to be repeated). The repetition factor must be an unsigned decimal integer constant, enclosed in parentheses. The repetition factor may range between 1 and 255.

The keyword attribute for declaring a character-string variable is CHARACTER which may be abbreviated as CHAR. The length of the character-string variable is declared by a decimal integer constant, enclosed in parentheses. The length specification must follow the keyword CHARACTER or CHAR. For example:

DECLARE NAME CHARACTER (15);

This DECLARE statement specifies that the identifier NAME is to represent a character-string data item that is 15 characters long. The values of this variable, that is, different character strings, are to be assigned during the execution of the program. Most data items, however, can also be given an initial value by declaring the name with the INITIAL attribute and listing the initial value. For example:

DECLARE NAME CHARACTER (15) INITIAL ('JOHN DOE');

Although the declared length is 15, the length of the string assigned by the INI-TIAL attribute contains only 8 characters. Blanks are added automatically to the right to fill out the length. The first character assigned is always left-adjusted, and, if necessary, blanks are added on the right. In this case, the string would be stored as the characters JOHN DOE, followed by 7 blanks.

A character string is assigned from left to right. If the actual string is longer than the declared length, the string is truncated on the right, that is, the rightmost characters are lost.

<u>Note</u>: If truncation occurs, there will be no interrupt. There is no ON-condition in Model 20 PL/I to deal with character-string truncation. Character-string data in System/360 implementations is maintained internally in character format, that is, each character occupies one byte of main storage. The maximum length allowed by the Model 20 PL/I Compiler for variables declared with the CHARACTER attribute is 255. The maximum length allowed for a character-string constant after application of repetition factors is also 255. The minimum length in either case is one.

PROGRAM-CONTROL_DATA

The types of program-control data in Model 20 PL/I are label and pointer data.

LABEL DATA

A statement label is an identifier written as a prefix to a statement so that, during execution, program control can be transferred to that statement through a reference to its label. A colon separates the label from the statement, as follows:

ABCDE: DISTANCE = RATE*TIME;

In this example, ABCDE is the statement label. The statement can be executed either by normal sequential execution of instructions or by transferring control to this statement from some other point in the program by means of a GO TO statement, as shown in the following example:

ABCDE: DISTANCE = RATE*TIME;

GOTO ABCDE:

ABCDE, as it is used above, can be classified as a <u>statement-label constant</u>. A <u>statement-label variable</u> is a variable to which statement-label constants can be assigned in the program. Consider the following example:

LBL_A:	<pre>statement;</pre>
	•
	•
	•
LBL_B:	statement;
	•
	•
	•
	$LBL_X = LBL_A;$
	•
	•
	•
	GO TO LBL_X;
	•
	•
	•

LBL_A and LBL_B are statement-label constants because they are prefixed to statements. LBL_X is a statement-label variable. By assigning LBL_A to LBL_X, the statement GO TO LBL_X causes a transfer to the LBL_A statement. Elsewhere, the program may contain a statement assigning LBL_B to LBL_X. Then, any reference to LBL_X would be the same as a reference to LBL_B. This value of LBL_X is retained until another value is assigned to it.

A statement-label variable must be declared with the LABEL attribute, as follows:

DECLARE LBL_X LABEL;

POINTER DATA

A pointer variable is the name of a pointer which is used to point to a location in storage. A pointer is, in effect, the address of data in storage.

The keyword attribute for declaring pointer variables is POINTER. For information on the use of pointer variables, refer to the sections <u>Data Transmission</u>, and <u>Based Variables and Pointer Variables</u>.

Data Organization

In PL/I, we have single data elements or collections of data elements, called arrays or structures, depending on their composition. A variable that represents a single element is called an <u>element variable</u>. A variable that represents a collection of data elements is either an <u>array variable</u> or <u>structure variable</u>.

ARRAYS

An array is a named table of data elements all of which have identical attributes. Only the array itself is given a name. An individual element of an array is referred to by its relative position within the array. The relative position is specified by a subscript (enclosed in parentheses) following the array name, with or without intervening blanks.

Assume TABLE has been declared to be an array of 12 elements. TABLE(1) refers to the first data element in the array, TABLE(2) to the second, TABLE(3) to the third, etc. Each of the numbers, (1), (2), or (3), is a <u>subscript</u> that gives the relative position, within TABLE, of a particular data element. TABLE(1), TABLE(2), and TABLE(3) all refer to single elements and are element variables. The entire array is referred to by the unsubscripted name TABLE. TABLE is an array variable.

An array variable is declared in a DECLARE statement by giving its name, the number of elements in the array, and the attributes of the items. Consider the following example:

DECLARE TABLE (12) DECIMAL FIXED (2);

This specifies that TABLE refers to an array of 12 data elements, each of which will have a value that can be represented by two decimal digits. TABLE, as declared above, might look as follows:

<u>Element_Value</u>	<u>Reference</u>
31	TABLE (1)
43	(2)
42	(3)
57	(4)
64	(5)
73	(6)
79	(7)
79	(8)
69	(9)
58	(10)
49	(11)
40	(12)

Thus, TABLE(1) would refer to the data item 31, TABLE(6) to 73, TABLE(12) to 40. The expression TABLE(7) + TABLE(1) would yield a value of 110.

Assume that the values assigned to TABLE represent the average temperature of the months of a particular year. TABLE(1) is the January average, etc. As TABLE was declared in the previous DECLARE statement, the data items could be referred to singly or as a whole.For various reasons, you may want to consider the year as divided into quarters; it might be convenient to be able to use one reference to the average temperatures of a quarter of a year and another to specify months in a quarter. For this purpose, TABLE may be declared as follows:

DECLARE TABLE (4,3) DECIMAL FIXED (2);

In this statement, TABLE is declared to be a two-dimensional array of 12 data items; that is, TABLE is considered to consist of four lists of three items each. It has two dimensions, one with a bound of four, one with a bound of three. The data might be recorded in storage in exactly the same way as with the first declaration, but conceptually it is ordered differently. The upper <u>bound</u> of the dimension is the end of it, 4 and 3 in this case; the lower bound or the beginning of a dimension is always assumed to be 1. The <u>extent</u> of the dimension is the number of integers between and including the specified end. Thus, the terms bound and extent, while conceptually different, have the same value in Model 20 PL/I.

Note the difference between a subscript and the dimension-attribute specification. The latter, which appears in the declaration of an array, specifies the dimensioning and the number of elements in an array. Subscripts are used in other references to identify specific elements within the array.

Following are two different ways in which the arrangement might be conceptually illustrated. The first shows TABLE as consisting of four consecutive lists of three items each; the second shows it as a matrix of four rows and three columns.

Element31) 43 43	<u>Value</u>	<u>Reference</u> TABLE(1,1) (1,2) (1,3)	
57 64 73		(2,1) (2,2) (2,3)	
79 79 69		(3,1) (3,2) (3,3)	
49		(4,1) (4,2) (4,3)	
<u>TABLE</u> (1, m) (2, m) (3, m) (4, m)	<u>(n,1)</u> 31 57 79 58	<u>(n,2)</u> 43 64 79 49	<u>(n,3)</u> 42 73 69 40

You may refer to an element of the above described TABLE by a subscripted name with two parenthesized subscripts, separated by a comma. For example, TABLE(2,1) would specify the first element in the second list or row, in this case, the data item 57.

The Model 20 PL/I Compiler allows a maximum of three dimensions to be declared for an array. The above described TABLE could, in fact, also be declared as a three-dimensional array with the following DECLARE statement:

DECLARE TABLE (2,3,2) DECIMAL FIXED (2);

Note that the number of specifications, separated by commas, is the same as the number of dimensions, and that the product of the numbers is equal to the number of items in the array: (12), (4,3), (2,3,2). Using the same data, TABLE (2,3,2) might be illustrated as follows:

<u>Element_Value</u>	Reference
311)	TABLE $(1, 1, 1)$
435	(1,1,2)
4215	(1,2,1)
57 ((1,2,2)
64 2	(1,3,1)
735)	(1,3,2)
791)	(2, 1, 1)
795	(2, 1, 2)
692	(2, 2, 1)
585	(2, 2, 2)
491	(2,3,1)
405)	(2, 3, 2)

<u>TABLE</u>	<u>(1, n, m)</u>	<u>(1, n, 1)</u>	<u>(1, n, 2)</u>
	(1, 1, m)	31	43
	(1, 2, m)	42	57
	(1, 3, m	64	73
TABLE	(2,1,m) (2,2,m) (2,3,m)	<u>(2, n, 1)</u> 79 69 49	<u>(2,n,2)</u> 79 58 40

The dimension attribute (2,3,2) specifies that TABLE represents a list of 12 data items and that the list will be referred to as if it consists of two sublists, each of which is further divided into three sub-lists of two items each.

The examples of arrays shown in this section are arrays of arithmetic data. Character strings and statement labels may also be collected into arrays. Note, however, that pointers may not be collected into arrays.

Expressions as Subscripts

The subscripts of a subscripted name need not be constants as shown in the above examples. Subscripts are frequently expressed as variables or expressions. We could, for example, use TABLE(I,J*K) to refer to the different elements of TABLE by varying the values of I, J, and K.

Note that, although a subscript can be an expression, each bound of a dimensionattribute declaration must be an unsigned decimal integer constant and that the value of a subscript must lie within the extent of the corresponding dimension. If the result of a subscript expression (such as J*K above) is not a fixed-decimal integer, it is converted to FIXED DECIMAL (5,0) in Model 20 PL/I. Note also that the number of subscripts in a reference must agree with the number of dimensions in the declaration.

STRUCTURES

A structure is a collection of data elements that need not have identical characteristics, but that have a logical relationship to one another.

Like an array, the entire structure is given a name that can be used to refer to the entire collection of data. Unlike in an array, however, each element and groups of elements of a structure also have names. A structure is a hierarchical collection of names referring to elements. These elements, each of which may be a single data item or an array are at the bottom of the hierarchy. At the top of the hierarchy is the structure name, which represents the entire collection of elements.

Consider a program to calculate a weekly payroll. One employee, John J. Doe, whose man-number is 68584, works 40 hours of regular time and five hours of overtime. He is paid \$4.00 per hour for regular time and \$6.00 for overtime.

His weekly pay record, with all the above information, is read and assigned to a structure named PAYROLL. The information could be ordered:

DOE JOHN J 68584 40 05 400 600

If this data were referred to merely by the name PAYROLL, it might be treated as a character string; but, if the data were declared as a character string, it would be difficult to get to individual items within the string, and arithmetic operations would involve conversion. However, a name can also be given to each element. The names for John Doe's pay record and the data each name represents might, conceptually, look like this:

	/ LASTNAME	DOE
	/ FIRSTNAME	JOHN
	MIDDLENAME	J
PAYROLL	MAN_NO	68584
	REGLHOURS	40
	OVTMHRS	05
	STRATE	400
	∖ OVRTMRATE	600

Thus, we could refer to the entire collection of data items by the name PAYROLL, or we can refer to an individual item by an individual name.

It is often convenient to subdivide the entire collection into smaller logical collections, to be able to refer collectively to more than one, but not all, of the variables in a structure. In a structure, such subdivisions are also given names. The above example might be subdivided as follows:

(NAME MAN_NO	{LAST FIRST MIDDLE	DOE JOHN J 68584
PAYROLL <	HRS	REGLR	40
(RATE	STRATE OVRTM	400

The major structure, PAYROLL, contains the substructures, NAME, HRS, and RATE. MAN_NO is not a substructure but an elementary name because it represents only a single data item.

Note that the hierarchy of names can be considered to have different <u>levels</u>. At the first level is the <u>major-structure</u> <u>name</u>; at a deeper level are the substructure names, called <u>minor-structure name</u>; and at the deepest level are only <u>elemen</u>: <u>tary names</u>. An elementary name can represent an array, in which case it is not an element variable, but an array variable.

When a structure is declared, the level of each name is indicated by a <u>level num-</u> <u>ber</u>. The major-structure name, at the first level, is always given the level number 1. Each name at a deeper level is given a greater number to indicate the level depth. The above structure could, for example, be declared as follows:

DECLARE 1 PAYROLL, 2 NAME, 3 LAST, 3 FIRST, 3 MIDDLE, 2 MAN_NO, 2 HRS, 3 REGLR, 3 OVTM, 2 RATE, 3 OVTM; 3 OVTM;

Note that the fattern of indention is used only for readability. The statement could be written in a continuous string as DECLARE 1 PAYROLL, 2 NAME, 3 LAST, etc.

The order of appearance of names in a DECLARE statement, along with their level numbers, determines the structuring. Except for the major-structure name, which must be declared with the level number 1, any number up to 255 may be used in Model 20 PL/I. Note, however, that only a maximum of 8 physical structure levels may be specified in structure declarations.

A structure is specified by declaring the major structure name and following it with the names of all contained elements. Each name is preceded by a level number, which is a non-zero decimal integer con-

Data Elements 27

stant. A major structure is always at level 1 and all elements contained in a structure (at level <u>n</u>) have a level number that is numerically greater than <u>n</u>, but they need not necessarily be at level n + 1, nor need they all have the same level number.

A minor structure at level <u>n</u> contains all following items declared with level numbers greater than <u>n</u> up to but not including the next item with a level number less than or equal to <u>n</u>. A major structure description is terminated by the declaration of another item at level one, by the declaration of an item having no level number, or by the end of a declaration list.

The level numbers of the above example might have been declared as follows:

DECLARE 1 PAYROLL, 8 NAME, 20 LAST, 20 FIRST, 9 MIDDLE, 6 MAN_NO, 2 HRS, 3 REGLR, 3 OVTM, 2 RATE, 255 STRATE, 255 OVRTM;

Exactly the same structuring would result.

When a structure is declared, attributes may be specified for each of the <u>elementary</u> <u>names</u>. For example:

```
DECLARE 1 PAYROLL,

2 NAME,

3 LAST CHARACTER (12),

3 FIRST CHARACTER (8),

3 MIDDLE CHARACTER (8),

2 MAN_NO CHARACTER (1),

2 MAN_NO CHARACTER (5),

2 HRS,

3 REGLR FIXED DECIMAL (2),

3 OVTM FIXED DECIMAL (2),

2 RATE,

3 STRATE FIXED DECIMAL (3,2),

3 OVRTM FIXED DECIMAL (3,2);
```

Note: Level numbers are specified with structure names only in the DECLARE statement. In references to the structure or its elements, no level numbers are used. Only structures can be declared with level numbers; a level number cannot be declared with any other identifier.

Qualified Names

All names within a single procedure must be unique. But within structures, it is often convenient to be able to use the same identifier for related names. In the above structure, for example, it would be convenient to refer to the items in HRS and RATE as "regular hours" and "regular rate" and "overtime hours" and "overtime rate". In fact, the elements can be given the same names. The last portion of the structure might be declared:

2	HRS	5,
	З	REGLR,
	3	OVRTIM,
2	RAT	СЕ,
	3	REGLR,
	2	OUD OT M.

The use of a <u>qualified_name</u> in referring to the individual item avoids ambiguity. A qualified name is a substructure or element name that is made unique by qualifying it with one or more names of a higher level. The individual names within a qualified name are separated by a period. A qualified name must not contain embedded blanks or comments. The above items could be referred to by the following qualified names:

HRS.REGLR RATE.REGLR HRS.OVRTIM RATE.OVRTIM

None of the names in PAYROLL, except PAYROLL itself, need be unique within the procedure in which it is declared. Each of them could be qualified. For example:

PAYROLL.NAME PAYROLL.NAME.LAST or NAME.LAST or PAYROLL.LAST

Qualification need go only so far as necessary to make the name unique. Thtermediate gualifying names can be omitted. The name PAYROLL.LAST is a valid reference to the name PAYROLL.NAME.LAST.

<u>Note</u>: The length of qualified names must not exceed 2 cards.

RESPECIFICATION OF DATA

The DEFINED attribute specifies that the name of a data element, a structure, or an array is to refer to the same storage area as the name given to other data. For example, in the declaration

DECLARE LIST (20,20), LIST_A (20,20) DEFINED LIST; LIST is a 20 by 20 two-dimensional array. LIST_A is an identical array referring to the same storage area as LIST. The reference to the same storage area is achieved by using the DEFINED attribute. The effect is that a reference to an element in LIST_A is the same as a reference to the corresponding element in LIST, and vice versa. Thus, a change to an element in LIST_A will at the same time, be an identical change to the corresponding element of LIST. This use of the DEFINED attribute is called <u>simple_defining</u>.

The DEFINED attribute can also be used for so-called <u>string-overlay defining</u>. This type of defining specifies that the <u>defined_item</u> (the item having the DEFINED attribute; e.g., LIST_A above) is to refer to all or part of the storage area occupied by the <u>base_identifier</u> (the identifier following the keyword DEFINED; e.g., LIST above). For example:

DECLARE 1 P, 2 Q CHARACTER (25), 2 R CHARACTER (50), PSTRING1 CHAR (60) DEFINED P;

In this example, PSTRING1 is a character string of length 60 defined on the structure P. The first character of Q through the last character in R can be considered as one string of 75 characters in length. PSTRING1 refers to the first 60 characters of that string, that is, the 25 characters of Q effectively concatenated with (that is, connected to) the first 35 characters of R.

Initialization of Data

The INITIAL attribute, which may be abbreviated as INIT is used to specify an initial value for a variable. The initial value is assigned to the variable at the time storage is allocated to it. For example:

DCL NAME CHARACTER (10) INITIAL ('JOHN DOE'); DCL PI FIXED DECIMAL (5,4) INIT (3.1416);

When storage is allocated to NAME, the character string 'JOHN DOE' (padded with blanks on the right up to ten characters) will be assigned to it. When storage is allocated to PI, it will be initialized to the value of 3.1416. The initial value of a variable may be retained throughout the program, or it may be changed during execution.

For a STATIC variable, that is, a variable for which storage remains allocated throughout the entire execution of a program, any value specified in an INITIAL attribute is assigned only once. For AUTO-MATIC variables, that is, variables for which storage is allocated whenever the declaring procedure is activated, any INI-TIAL values will be assigned at each activation. INITIAL values cannot be declared for BASED variables, DEFINED variables, STATIC label variables, and POINTER variables. In a structure declaration, the INITIAL attribute can only be used in the declaration of elementary names.

The INITIAL attribute may be specified for element variables and arrays. Note, however, that is cannot be specified for arrays of the storage class AUTOMATIC.

An array can be fartly initialized or fully initialized. For example:

DECLARE A (15) CHARACTER (13) INITIAL ('JOHN DOE', 'RICHARD ROW', 'MARY SMITH') STATIC, B (10,10) DECIMAL FIXED (5) STATIC INITIAL ((25)0, (25)1, (50)0);

In the first example, only the first three elements of A are initialized; the remainder of the array is not. The array B is fully initialized, with the first 25 elements initialized to 0, the next 25 to 1, and the last 50 to 0. The parenthesized numbers (25, 25, and 50) are <u>iteration fac-</u> tors that specify the number of elements to be initialized with the same value.

Note that the depth of nested iteration factors in an INITIAL attribute is restricted to 3.

The iteration factor should not be confused with the character-string <u>repetition</u> <u>factor</u>. Consider the following example:

DECLARE TABLE (50) CHARACTER (10) INITIAL ((10) 'A',(25)(10) 'B', (24)(1) 'C');

This INITIAL attribute contains both iteration factors and repetition factors. It specifies that the first element of TABLE is to be initialized with a string consisting of 10 A's, each of the next 25 elements is to be initialized with a string consisting of 10 B's, and each of the last 24 elements is to be initialized with the single character C. In the INITIAL attribute specification for a character-string array, a single parenthesized factor preceding a character-string constant is assumed to be a string-repetition factor (as in (10)'A'). If more than one appears, the one immediately preceding the character string is the string-repetition factor, while all factors preceding this repetition factor are iteration factors.

Data Elements 29

Expressions

An expression is a representation of a value. An expression may be a <u>single_con-</u> <u>stant</u> or an <u>element_variable</u>, a function reference, or a combination of them, including operators and other delimiters. An expression that contains operators is an <u>operational_expression</u>. The constants and element variables of an operational expression are called <u>operands</u>.

In the examples below, assume that the variables have been declared as follows:

DECLARE A (10,10) DECIMAL FIXED (15), B (10,10) DECIMAL FIXED (15), 1 RATE, 2 PRIMARY DECIMAL FIXED (4,2), 2 SECONDARY DECIMAL FIXED (4,2), 1 COST, 2 PRIMARY DECIMAL FIXED (4,2), 2 SECONDARY DECIMAL FIXED (4,2), C DECIMAL FIXED (8), D DECIMAL FIXED (8);

Examples of expressions are:

C * D A (3,2) + B (4,8) RATE. PRIMARY - COST. PRIMARY A (4,4) * C RATE. SECONDARY / 4 A (4,6) * COST. SECONDARY C A (10,10)

All except the last two examples are operational expressions. The last two are element variables. Note that the expression A(10,10) is not the same as A(10,10) in the DECLARE statement. In the DECLARE statement, (10,10) is a dimension attribute specifying a two-dimensional array of 100 element variables. In the expression A(10,10), (10,10) is a subscript referring to the last element of the array A.

A single operational expression may contain a number of arithmetic operations, as shown in the following example:

A(4,4) + B(3,3) - C * (D/(B(2,2) - A(1,1))) * *C

Parentheses within an expression indicate that the parenthesized portion is considered as a single value in relation to its surrounding operators. The parenthesized portion of an operational expression is evaluated first, with the innermost parenthesized portion taking precedence. In the above example, the expression (B(2,2)-A(1,1)) is evaluated first, before the value of D is divided by the result of the subtraction. Although an operational expression may contain more than one data item, it represents a single value that may appear in a number of different PL/I statements. The most common occurrence of operational expressions is in the form of assignment statements. Such as:

C = A + B;

In this example, all of the three operands are element variables. The assignment symbol (=) indicates that the value of the expression on the right (A + B) is to be assigned to the variable C on the left.

Expression Operations

An operational expression can specify one or more single operations. The class of operation depends on the class of operator specified for the operation. There are three classes of operations: <u>arithmetic</u>, <u>comparison</u>, and <u>concatenation</u>.

ARITHMETIC_OPERATIONS

An arithmetic operation is represented by one or two operands in combination with one of the following operators:

+ - * / **

The plus and the minus sign can appear either as <u>prefix operators</u> (for example +A or -A) or as <u>infix operators</u> (that is, between operators, such as A + B or A - B). The other arithmetic operators can appear only as infix operators. All operands of an arithmetic operation must be arithmetic (for example, a character-string variable in combination with an arithmetic operator will lead to an error).

An expression may contain a number of arithmetic operations. Note that prefix operators can precede and be associated with any of the operands of an infix operation. For example, in the expression A*-B, the minus sign preceding the variable B indicates that the value of A is to be multiplied by the negative value of B.

A single variable may have more than one prefix operator. More than one positive prefix operator will have no cumulative effect, but two consecutive negative prefix operators will have the same effect as a single positive prefix operator. For example:

- -A The single minus sign has the effect of reversing the sign of the value that A represents.
- --A One minus sign reverses the sign of the value that A represents. The second minus sign again reverses the sign of the value, thus restoring it to the original arithmetic value of A.
- ---A Three minus signs reverse the sign of the value three times, thus giving the same result as one minus sign.

CONVERSION OF OPERANDS IN ARITHMETIC OPERATIONS

The two operands of an arithmetic operation may differ in type, precision, and scale. The necessary conversions are performed automatically according to the rules listed below.

Type

Numeric-character operands (digits recorded in character form as in the PICTURE specification) are converted to coded arithmetic form. The result of an arithmetic operation is always in coded arithmetic form. Note that type conversion is the only conversion that can take place in an arithmetic prefix operation.

<u>Precision</u>

If only precisions differ, no conversion takes place.

<u>Scale</u>

If the scales of the two operands differ, the fixed-point operand is converted to floating-point scale. The exception to this rule is in the case of exponentiation if the first operand is of floating-point scale and the second operand (the exponent of the operation) is fixed-point with a scale factor of zero, that is, a fixedpoint integer constant or a variable with the precision (p,0). In such a case, no conversion is necessary, but the result will be floating-point.

Consider the following example:

DECLARE A FLOAT, B FIXED DECIMAL (5,0), C FLOAT;

The result of A ** B will be in floating-point form and will be assigned to the variable C. The exponentiation is, however, executed with the FIXED value of B.

If both operands of an exponentiation operation are fixed-point, conversions may occur, as follows:

 Both operands are converted to floating-point if the exponent has a precision other than (p,0). For example:

```
DECLARE A FIXED DECIMAL,
B FIXED DECIMAL (5,2),
C FLOAT;
.
.
.
.
.
```

The precision of the value of B has a scale factor of two. Since it is not an integer, both operands are converted to floating-point form.

- 2. The first operand is converted to floating-point unless the exponent is an unsigned fixed-point integer.
- 3. The first operand is also converted to floating-point if precisions indicate that the result of the fixed-point exponentiation would exceed the maximum number of digits allowed (i.e., 15 decimal digits).

FORMATS OF RESULTS OF ARITHMETIC OPERATIONS

The "result" of an arithmetic operation, as used in the following text, can refer to a final result or to an intermediate result if the operation is only one of several operations specified in a single operational expression. An intermediate result may require further conversion if it is used as an operand of a subsequent operation or if it is assigned to a variable with different attributes.

After the required conversions have taken place, the arithmetic operation is performed. If the maximum precision has been exceeded, the result is truncated, that is, digits are lost regardless of the scale of the operands. In some cases involving fixed-point data, high-order

Expressions 31

digits may be lost when scale factors are such that decimal-point alignment does not allow for the declared number of digits. In floating-point operations low-order digits may be lost even when the maximum precision has not been reached. The scale and precision of the result depend upon the operands and the operator involved.

For prefix operations, the result has the same scale and precision as the converted operand (for example. (+5.0 has the same scale and precision as (-5.0)).

For infix operations, the result depends on the scale of the operands, as described in the following sections.

Floating-Point Operands

If the converted operands of an infix operation are of floating-point scale, the result is of floating-point scale. The precision of the result is the greater of the precisions of the two operands. For example:

```
DECLARE A FLOAT (5),
B FLOAT (7);
```

The precision of the value of (A+B) will be 7. Note that even though the maximum precision of 15 has not been reached, loworder digits may be lost due to different exponents in A, B, and A+B.

<u>Fixed-Point Operands</u>

If the converted operands of an infix operation are of fixed-point scale, the result is of fixed-point scale. The precision of a fixed-point result varies according to the type of operation performed.

The symbols used in the formulas for computing the precision of the fixed-point results are as follows:

- p represents the total number of digits
 of the result
- q represents the scale factor of the
 result
- p1 represents the total number of digits
 of the first operand
- q1 represents the scale factor of the first operand
- p2 represents the total number of digits of the second operand
- q2 represents the scale factor of the second operand
- 32 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

<u>Addition and Subtraction</u>. The total number of digits in the result is equal to one plus the number of integer digits of the operand with the greater number of integer digits, plus the number of fractional digits of the operand with the greater number of fractional digits. The total number of positions cannot exceed the maximum number of digits allowed (15 decimal digits). The scale factor of the result is equal to the larger scale factor of the two operands.

Formulas:

p = 1 + maximum (p1 - q1, p2 - q2) + maximum (q1, q2)

q = maximum (q1, q2)

Consider the following example in which, for explanation purposes, the variables have been broken into parts:

p1			E	2	
\sim	<u> </u>		\sim	\sim	
	<q1></q1>		•	<q2></q2>	
12354.	2385	+	222.	11111	
A	В		С	D	

The <u>total number</u> of digits (p) in the result would be equal to 1 plus the number of digits in A (p1-q1) plus the number of digits in D (maximum (q1,q2)). The scale factor of the result would be equal to the number of digits in D. The precision of the result would be (11,5).

<u>Multiplication</u>. The total number of digits in the result is equal to one plus the number of digits in the first operand, plus the number of digits in the second operand. The total number of digits cannot exceed the maximum number of digits allowed for the implementation (that is, 15). The scale factor of the result is the sum of the scale factors of the two operands.

Formulas:

p = 1 + p1 + p2

q = q1 + q2

Consider the following example:

345.432 * 22.45 A B C D

The total number of digits in the result would be equal to 1 plus the sum of the number of digits in parts A, B, C, and D. The scale factor of the result would be the sum of the number of digits in B and D. The precision of the result would be (11,5). Division. The total number of digits in the quotient is always 15 (maximum allowed). The scale factor of the quotient depends on the number of integer digits of the dividend (A in the example below), and the number of fractional digits of the divisor (D in the example below). The scale factor is equal to the total number of digits of the result (always 15) minus the sum of A and D.

Formulas:

p = 15 $\bar{q} = 15 - ((p1 - q1) + q2)$ Consider the following example:

432.432 / 2 A B C D

The total number of digits in the guotient would be 15 (the maximum allowed). The scale factor would be 15 minus the sum of 3 (A, the number of integer digits in the dividend) and zero (D, the number of fractional digits in the divisor). The precision of the quotient would be (15,12).

Note that any change in the number of integer digits in the dividend or any change in the number of fractional digits in the divisor will change the precision of the quotient, even if all additional digits are zeros. Also note from the above formulas that the result of a fixed-point division can have a scale factor greater than zero even though the operands might have a scale factor of zero, and that the result of fixed-point division can have a negative scale factor even though negative scale factors cannot be explicitly declared in Model 20 PL/I.

Examples:

00432.432 / 2 432.432 / 2.0000

The precision of the quotient of the first example would be (15,10); the scale factor is equal to 15 - (5+0). The precision of the quotient of the second example would be (15,8); the scale factor is equal to 15-(3+4).

Caution: In the use of fixed-point division operations, take care that declared precision of variables and apparent precision of constants will not give a result with a scale factor that can force the result of this or a subsequent operation to to be left-truncated by exceeding the maximum number (15) of digits allowed.

Exponentiation. If the second operand (the exponent) is a positive decimal integer constant, the total number of digits in the result is one less than the number of digits in the first operand plus 1 multiplied by the <u>value</u> of the second operand (the exponent). The scale factor of the result is equal to the scale factor of the first operand multiplied by the value of the second operand (the exponent).

<u>Note</u>: In the exponentiation operation x**y, some special cases are defined as follows:

- 1. If x = 0 and y > 0, the result is 0.
- 2. If x = 0 and $y \le 0$, the ERROR condition is raised.
- 3. If $x \neq 0$ and y = 0, the result is 1.
- 4. If x < 0 and y is not fixed-point with precision (p,0), the ERROR condition is raised.

Formulas:

```
p = (p1 + 1) * (value-of-exponent) - 1
q = q1 * (value-of-exponent)
```

- Consider the following example:
 - 32 ** 5

The total number of digits in the result would be 14. We arrive at this number by multiplying one plus the number of digits in the first operand (1 + 2) by the value of the exponent (5) and subtracting one. The scale factor of the result would be zero (0 * 5, scale factor of the first operand multiplied by the value of the exponent).

Figures 3 through 6 show the results of arithmetic operations.

COMPARISON OPERATIONS

In PL/I, we specify a comparison operation by combining operands with one of the following operators:

- < (less than)
- 1< (not les than)</pre> <= (less than or equal to)
- = (equal to)
- $\eta = (not equal to)$
- >= (greater than or equal to)
 > (greater than)
 1> (not greater than)

There are three types of comparisons:

- 1. <u>Algebraic</u> comparison, that is, the comparison of signed arithmetic values in coded arithmetic form. If operands differ in scale and precision, they are converted according to the rules for arithmetic operations. Numericcharacter data is converted to coded arithmetic format before comparison.
- 2. <u>Character comparison</u>, which is a leftto-right, character-by-character comparison of character data according to the System/360 collating sequence.
- 3. <u>Pointer comparison</u>, for which only the operators = and _= are allowed. Both operands must be valid pointer expressions, since there is no conversion of program-control data.

The operands of a comparison operation must be of the same type; that is, both must be arithmetic or both must be character strings. If operands of a characterstring comparison are of different lengths, the shorter operand is extended on the right with blanks. The result of the comparison operation always is a "truth" value in Model 20 PL/I; the value is 'true' if the relationship is true, and 'false' if the relationship is not true.

The only occurrence of comparison operations is in the IF statement, as shown in the following example:

```
IF A + C = B
THEN action-if-true
ELSE action-if-false
```

The evaluation of the expression A + C = B yields either 'true' or 'false'. Depending on the result, either the THEN portion or the ELSE portion of the IF statement is executed. Note that the comparison operations in IF statements can involve only element values; arrays or structures are not permitted.

Only comparison operations of "equal" and "not equal" are valid for comparisons of pointer-variable operands. Labels must not be compared.

	First Operand		
	DECIMAL FIXED (p1,q1)	DECIMAL FLOAT (p1)	
IS DECIMAL e FIXED c (p2,q2) o n d	DECIMAL FIXED (p,q) p= 1+MAX (p1-q1,p2-q2) +MAX (q1,q2); q=MAX (q1,q2)	DECIMAL FLOAT(F) p=MAX(p1,p2)	
O DECIMAL PIFLOAT lei(p2) li a in d	DECIMAL FLOAT (p) p=MAX(p1,p2)	DECIMAL FLOAT (p) p=MAX(p1,p2)	

Figure 3. Attributes of Results of Addition and Subtraction Operations

	First Operand		
	DECIMAL FIXED (p1,q1)	DECIMAL FLOAT (p1)	
IS DECIMAL e FIXED c (p2,q2) o n d	DECIMAL FIXED(p,q) p=p1+p2+1 q=q1+q2 	DECIMAL FLOAT(p) p=MAX(p1,p2)	
O DECIMAL p FLOAT e (p2) r a n d	DECIMAL FLOAT (p) p=MAX(p1,p2) 	DECIMAL FLOAT (p) p=MAX (p1,p2)	

Figure 4. Attributes of Result of Multiplication Operations

	First Operand	
	DECIMAL FIXED (p1,q1)	DECIMAL FLOAT (p1)
IS DECIMAL e FIXED c (p2,q2) o n d	DECIMAL FIXED(p,q) p=15 q=15-((p1-q1)+q2) 	DECIMAL FLOAT(p) p=MAX(p1,p2)
O DECIMAL p FLOAT (p2) e r a n d	DECIMAL FLOAT(p) p=MAX(p1,p2) 	DECIMAL FLOAT(p) p=MAX(p1,p2)

Figure 5. Attributes of Results of Division Operations

First Operand	Second Operand (Exponent)	Target Attributes of Result
FIXED DECIMAL (p1,q1) 	Unsigned integer constant with value n	FIXED DECIMAL (p,q) [provided p ≥ 15] p = (p1+1) * n - 1 q = q1*n
FIXED DECIMAL (p1,q1) or FLOAT DECIMAL (F1)	FIXED DECIMAL (p2,q2) FLOAT DECIMAL (p2)	FLOAT DECIMAL (p) (unless the case above is applicable) p = MAX (p1,p2) p = MAX (p1,p2)

Figure 6. Attributes of Results of Exponentiation Operations

CONCATENATION OPERATIONS

.

A concatenation operation is specified by combining operands with the concatenation symbol ||.

The symbol signifies that the operands, which must be character strings or numericcharacter data, are to be joined in such a way that the last character of the operand to the left will immediately precede the first character of the operand to the right, with no intervening characters. Numeric-character data items are converted to character strings before concatenation takes place. The result of a concatenation operation is a character string whose length is equal to the sum of the lengths of the two character-string operands.

For example, if A represents the character string '010234', B the character string '101', C the character string 'XY,Z', and D the character string 'AA/BB', then

PRIORITY OF OPERATORS

In the evaluation of expressions, priority of the operators is as follows:

** prefix+ prefix-	(highest)
* /	1
infix+ infix-	1
11	V
<pre>< 1 < <= = 1 = >= > 1 > </pre>	(lowest)

If two or more operators of the highest priority appear in the same expression, the order of priority of those operators is from right to left; that is, the rightmost exponentiation or prefix operator has the highest priority. Each succeeding exponentiation or prefix operator to the left has the next lower priority.

For all other operators, if two or more operators of the same priority appear in the same expression, the order of priority is from left to right.

Note that in Model 20 PL/I only one comparison operation can appear in one expression. In case there is a comparison operation, it can appear only in the expression immediately following the IF in the IF statement. The order of evaluation of the expression in the IF statement:

IF $A * B + D_{1} = C$ THEN . . .

is according to the priority of the operators. It is as if various elements of the expression were enclosed in parentheses as follows:

(A) * (B)(A * B) + (D)(A * B + D) = (C)

The order of evaluation (and, consequently, the result) can be changed through the use of parentheses. The above expression, for example, might be written as follows:

IF A * (B + D) $_1$ = C THEN . . .

In such an expression, the expression enclosed in parentheses is evaluated first and reduced to a single value, before it is considered in relation to the surrounding operators. In case two parenthesized expressions are surrounding an operator there is, however, no rule within the language that specifies which of the parenthesized expression would be evaluated first.

In other words, the priority of the operators is defined only within a string consisting of operands and operators only. It does not necessarily hold true for an entire expression. Consider the following example:

(A - B) * (C + D * E)

The priority of the operators specifies, in this case, only that the exponentiation will occur before the addition. It does not specify the order of operation in relation to the evaluation of the other operand (A - B).

Any operational expression (except a prefix expression) must eventually be reduced to a final single infix operation. The operands and operator of that operation determine the attributes of the result of the entire expression.

In general, unless parentheses are used within the expression, the operator of lowest priority determines the operands of the final operation. For example:

A + B * C > D ** E - F

In this case, the operators indicate that the final operation will be:

(A + B * C) > (D * * E - F)

36 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I
Sub-expressions can be analyzed in the same way. The two operands of the expression can be defined as follows:

(A + (B * C)) > ((D * * E) - F)

It is undefined in the language which of the two outer parentheses is evaluated first.

Expressions Containing Function References

In Model 20 PL/I, an operand of an expression is usually a constant or an element variable. An operand can, however also be an expression representing a value which is the result of a computation.

Consider the following example:

A = B * SQRT(C);

In this example, the expression SQRT(C) represents a value which is equal to the square root of C. Such an expression is called a <u>function_reference</u>.

A function reference consists of a name and, usually, a parenthesized list of one or more variables, constants, or other expressions. The name is the name of a procedure written to perform specific computations on the data contained in the list and to substitute the computed value for the function reference.

Assume, in the above example, that C has the value 16. The function reference SQRT(C) causes the execution of the procedure SQRT, which would compute the square root of 16 and replace the function reference with the value 4. In effect, the assignment statement would become:

A = B * 4;

The procedure represented by the name in the function reference is called a <u>func-</u><u>tion</u>. The function SQRT is one of the PL/I <u>built-in functions</u>. Built-in functions, which provide a number of different operations, are a part of the PL/I language. (A complete discussion of all built-in functions of Model 20 PL/I appears in Part II, under <u>Built-in Functions</u>.) You may also write your own functions for specific purposes (as described under <u>Arguments and</u> <u>Parameters</u>) and use the names of those functions in function references.

<u>Note</u>: Besides returning a value, a function may change the value of any variable in the expression containing the function reference. In this case, the result of the expression is undefined and compatibility with other System/360 compilers is not guaranteed.

The use of function references is not limited to operands of operational expressions. A function reference is, in itself, an expression and can be used wherever an expression is allowed. It must, however, not be used in place of a variable representing a receiving field, such as to the left of the assignment statement.

There is, however, one built-in function that can be used as a <u>pseudo-variable</u>, i.e., in a receiving field: the SUBSTR function. The SUBSTR pseudo-variable is the SUBSTR built-in function name used in a receiving field.

Consider the following example:

DECLARE A CHARACTER (10), B CHARACTER (30); SUBSTR (A, 6, 5) = SUBSTR (B, 20, 5);

In this assignment statement, the builtin function name SUBSTR is used both in a normal function reference and as a pseudo-variable.

The SUBSTR built-in function (on the right side of the assignment symbol) extracts a substring of specified length from the named string. The pseudo-variable SUBSTR (to the left of the assignment symbol) indicates the location, within a named string, that is the receiving field, i.e., it replaces a substring of specified length in the named string.

In the above example, a substring five characters in length, beginning with the 20th character of the string B, is to be assigned to the last five characters of the string A. That is, the last five characters of A are to be replaced by the 20th through the 24th characters of B. The first five characters of A remain unchanged, as do all characters of the string B.

<u>Note</u>: None of the functions you may write for specific purposes can be used as a pseudo-variable.

The built-in function SUBSTR is discussed in Part II, under <u>Built-In</u> <u>Functions</u>.

Statement Classification

This section describes the statements available in Model 20 PL/I, their functions and purpose. Examples of their use are also shown.

A more detailed description of each statement may be found in Part II, under <u>Sta-</u> <u>tement</u>, and in the section <u>Data_Transmis-</u> <u>sion</u> which shows examples.

The statements used in Model 20 PL/I can be grouped into the following six classes:

- descriptive statements,
- input/output statements,
- data-movement and computational statements,
- program-flow control statements,
- exception-control statements, and
- program-structure statements.

The names of the classes are merely descriptive, they have no fundamental significance in the language. Some statements are included in more than one class, since they can have more than one function.

Descriptive Statements

When a PL/I program is executed, it may manipulate many different types of data. Each data item, except a constant, is referred to in the program by a name. Model 20 PL/I requires that the names and characteristics or attributes of data items referred to must be known at the time the program is compiled, that is, translated into machine language.

The DECLARE Statement

With the DECLARE statement you specify the attributes of the data assigned to each variable. But although it is the characteristics of the <u>data</u> you describe with the attributes, it is the data <u>name</u> with which the declared attributes are associated. Consequently, when a value is assigned to a name (or variable) whose attributes describe characteristics that are different from the attributes of the data, the value will be converted where possible so that it will have the characteristics of the variable to which it is assigned. For example, when fixed-point data is assigned to a variable that has the FLOAT attribute the data item is converted to floating-point representation. If conversion is not possible, a diagnostic message is given by the compiler.

A variable for which a complete set of attributes has not been specified, is given default attributes by the compiler.

You always need DECLARE statements for fixed-point decimal variables, characterstring variables, filenames, entry names pointer variables, label variables, arrays and structures, data with the EXTERNAL STATIC, BASED, DEFINED or INITIAL attribute, all data with the PICTURE attribute and the built-in function DATE. A RETURNS attribute declaration must be made for the name of any function that returns a value with attributes different from the default attribute FLOAT DECIMAL (6) which is applicable if the name of the function starts with a letter other than I through N. You find a complete discussion of the RETURNS attribute in the section <u>Arguments and</u> <u>Parameters</u>.

DECLARE statements may be an important part of the documentation of a program; consequently, make liberal use of declarations, even when default attributes apply or when a contextual declaration is possible. Because there are no restrictions on the number of DECLARE statements, separate DECLARE statements can be used for different groups of names. This can make modification easier and the interpretation of diagnostics clearer. Note, however, that a structure must be completely declared in <u>one</u> DECLARE statement.

The FORMAT Statement

The FORMAT statement may be thought of as describing the layout of data on an external medium, for example on a page or on an input card. You will find a complete discussion of the FORMAT statement in Part II, under <u>Statements</u>, and in the section <u>Data</u> <u>Transmission</u>.

Input/Output Statements

Input/output statements cause a transfer of data between main storage and an external storage medium, such as disk, tape, or card. In the following list, the statements that cause a transfer of data are grouped into two classes, Record I/O and Stream I/O:

Record I/O Transfer Statements:

READ WRITE REWRITE LOCATE

Stream I/O Transfer Statements:

GET PUT

There are two important differences between RECORD transmission and STREAM transmission. In STREAM transmission, the file on the external medium is considered a continuous stream of data items, in character form. On input, the data items are assigned from the stream to variables; on output they are transferred from variables into the stream. In RECORD transmission, the file is considered to be a collection of physically separate records that are transmitted as an entity to or from variables. STREAM transmission implies conversion. All of the items in the stream are in character form. On input, they are converted automatically to conform to the attributes of the variables to which they are assigned; on output, data items are converted, if necessary, to characters. In RECORD transmission, there is no conversion; data is transmitted, exactly as it is recorded either internally or on the external medium.

Record transmission is mainly used for processing large files that are written in an internal representation, such as packeddecimal. Stream transmission may be used for processing keypunched data and for producing readable output, such as lists or tables, where editing is required. Record transmission is faster because no conversion is involved.

<u>RECORD_I/O_Transfer_Statements</u>

The READ statement causes a transfer of data (records) from the external medium to main storage. The WRITE statement causes a transfer of records from main storage to the external medium. The LOCATE statement causes the creation of new records by making space available in a buffer in which the record may be built. The REWRITE statement replaces a record in an UPDATE file that has been read from disk.

STREAM I/O Transfer Statements

STREAM transmission is always sequential and can be performed only by means of GET and PUT statements. The GET statement causes a transfer of data from the external medium to main storage, and the PUT statement from main storage to the external medium. In STREAM transmission, data is considered to be a stream of individual data items. Record boundaries are generally ignored, but synchronization with record boundaries is possible.

<u>Note</u>: GET and PUT statements can also be used for internal data movement in connection with the STRING option. The GET and PUT statements with the STRING option are discussed under <u>Data Movement and Computational Statements</u> in this section.

Input/Output_Control_Statements

Other I/O statements that affect the transfer of data are input/output control statements. They are:

OPEN CLOSE

The OPEN statement associates a filename (as declared in your program) with a file (the actual data recorded on an external medium) and prepares the file for processing.

An OPEN statement need not always be written for STREAM transmission. Execution of a GET or PUT statement with the name of an unopened file specified will result in the automatic (implicit) opening of the file before data transmission takes place. However, the OPEN statement can be used to force opening of a file at a specific time during program execution, e.g., after issuing a message to mount a specific tape. For RECORD transmission, the OPEN statement must always be present.

The CLOSE statement dissociates a file from the file declaration used in the program and terminates processing of the file. All files are automatically closed at the termination of a program, so that a CLOSE statement is not always required. It may be used, for example, when the same device on which a file resides is to be used for another file in the course of the program.

The DISPLAY Statement

The DISPLAY statement is used to display a one-byte message on the CPU console, usually to the operator. It is used, with the REPLY option, to allow the operator to communicate with the program by returning a one-byte message. Execution of the program is suspended until the operator acknowledges the message. An example of the use of the DISPLAY statement is shown in Part III, under Linking PL/I Programs With Assembler Procedures.

Data Movement and Computational Statements

Internal data movement involves the assignment of the value of an expression to a specified variable. The expression may be a constant or a variable, or it may be an operational expression.

The most commonly used statement for internal data movement as well as for specifying computations is the assignment statement. The GET and PUT statements with the STRING option can also be used for internal data movement. The PUT statement can, in addition, specify computations to be performed.

The Assignment Statement

The assignment statement, which has no keyword, is identified by the assignment symbol (=). It generally has one of two forms:

 $\begin{array}{rcl} A &= & B;\\ A &= & B + & C; \end{array}$

The first form is used purely for internal data movement. The value of the variable (or constant) to the right of the assignment symbol is assigned to the variable on the left. The second form includes an operational expression (B + C), whose value is to be assigned to the variable to the left of the assignment symbol (A). The second statement specifies both computations and data movement.

Since the attributes of the variable on the left may differ from the attributes of the result of the expression (or of the variable or constant), the assignment statement can also be used for conversion and editing, because the result of the computation to the right of the assignment symbol is converted to conform to the attributes of the variable to the left of the assignment symbol.

In the assignment statement A = B + C, the variable on the left must be an element variable or an array; it must not be a structure. The expression on the right must only contain single constants and/or element variables as operands. Thus, this form of the assignment statement can be used only to assign single items to element variables or arrays. In the assignment statement, A = B, the variables to the left and right may either be both array names or both structure names or an array name on the left side and an element variable or constant on the right side.

If they are array names, both arrays must have identical dimensions and bounds. If they are structure names, both structures must have identical structuring and the attributes (including arithmetic attributes) of all corresponding variables in the two structures must be identical.

```
Example:
```

DECLARE

A1(10,10) FLOAT, A2(10,10) FIXED, A3(100) FIXED, A4(5,5) FLOAT, V1 FIXED, 1 S1, 2((E1,E2) CHAR(10), F FIXED(7,2)), 1 S2, 2(E CHAR(20), F FIXED(7,2)), 1 S3, 2((E1,E2) CHAR(10), F FIXED(7,2));

Valid assignment statements are:

A1 = A1(5, 1); A1 = A2; A1 = V1;S1 = S3;

Invalid assignment statements are:

A 1	=	A3;	Dimensions not identical.
A 1	=	A4;	Bounds not identical.
A 1	=	A1 + A2;	Right side is an opera- tional expression, not a
s1	=	s2;	Structuring not identical.

The GET STRING and PUT STRING Statements

If the STRING option appears in a GET or PUT statement in place of a FILE option, execution of the statement will result only in internal data movement; neither input nor output is involved.

Assume that NAME is a string of 30 characters and that FIRST, MIDDLE, and LAST are character-string variables. Consider the following example:

GET STRING (NAME) EDIT (FIRST, MIDDLE, LAST) (A(12),A(1),A(17));

This statement specifies that the first 12 characters of NAME are to be assigned to the variable FIRST, the next character to the variable MIDDLE, and the remaining 17 characters to the variable LAST.

The PUT statement with the STRING option specifies the reverse operation, that is, the values of the specified variables are to be concatenated into a character string and assigned to the string named in the STRING option. For example:

```
PUT STRING (NAME) EDIT
(FIRST,MIDDLE,LAST)
(A(12),A(1),A(17));
```

This statement specifies that the first 12 characters of FIRST, the first character of MIDDLE, and the first seven characters of LAST are to be concatenated in that order, and assigned to the string variable NAME. If FIRST or LAST are shorter than 12 or 17 characters, respectively, then blanks are added at the end of FIRST or LAST until the specified length of 12 or 17, respectively, has been reached.

Computations to be performed can be specified in a PUT statement by including operational expressions in the data list. Assume, for the following example, that the variables A, B, and C represent arithmetic data and BUFFER represents a character string:

```
PUT STRING (BUFFER) EDIT
(A * 3, B + C)
(F(15),F(15));
```

This statement specifies that the character string assigned to BUFFER is to consist of the character representations of the value of A multiplied by 3 and the value of the sum of B and C. Note that while arithmetic to character-string and character-string to arithmetic conversions are not allowed in Model 20 PL/I, they can be effectively achieved by the GET STRING and PUT STRING operations, respectively; however, note also that this can be inefficient because of the amount of execution time and main storage that is required.

Operational expressions in the data list of a PUT statement are not limited to PUT statements with the STRING option. They can also appear in PUT statements that specify output of a file.

Program-Flow Control Statements

Statements in a PL/I program, in general, are executed sequentially unless the flow of control is modified by an interrupt or the execution of one of the following statements:

GO TO IF DO CALL RETURN END

The GO TO Statement

The GO TO statement is most frequently used as an unconditional branch. If you specify destination of the GO TO statement by a label variable, you may then use it as a switch by assigning label constants to the label variable.

If you use subscripted label variables, that is, labels grouped into an array, you can control the switch by varying the subscript. Usually, however, simple programflow control statements are the most efficient.

<u>Note</u>: The keyword GO TO may be written either as two separate words or as a single word, GOTO.

<u>The IF Statement</u>

The IF statement provides the most common conditional branch and is used with a simple comparison expression following the word IF. For example:

IF A = B THEN action-if-true ELSE action-if-false

If the comparison is true, the THEN clause (the "action-if-true") is executed. After execution of the THEN clause, control branches around the ELSE clause (the "action-if-false"), and execution continues with the next statement. Note that the THEN clause can contain a GO TO statement or some other program-flow control statement that would result in a different transfer of control.

If the comparison is not true, control branches around the THEN clause, and the ELSE clause is executed. Control then continues normally.

The IF statement might be as follows:

IF A = BTHEN C = D; ELSE C = E;

If A is equal to B, the value of D is assigned to C, and control branches around the ELSE clause. If A is not equal to B, control branches around the THEN clause, and the value of E is assigned to C.

Either the THEN clause or the ELSE clause can contain some other program-flow control statement that causes a branch, either conditional or unconditional. If the THEN clause contains only a GO TO statement, for example, there is normally no need to specify an ELSE clause. Consider the following example:

IF A = B THEN GO TO LABEL_1; next statement;

If A is equal to B, the GO TO statement of the THEN clause causes an unconditional branch to LABEL_1. If A is not equal to B, control branches around the THEN clause to the next statement, whether or not it is an ELSE clause associated with the IF statement.

Statement Classification 41

<u>Note</u>: If the THEN clause does not cause a transfer of control and if it is not followed by an ELSE clause, the next statement will be executed whether or not the THEN clause is executed.

The expression following the keyword IF cannot contain more than one comparison operation. However, <u>nested</u> IF statements can be used to test for more than one condition. Consider the following example:

```
IF A = B
THEN IF A = C
THEN D = E;
ELSE F = G;
ELSE F = A;
GO TO LABEL_1;
```

In the example, E is assigned to D only if A is equal to both B and C. If A is equal to B, but not to C, then G is assigned to F. If A is not equal to B, then A is assigned to F. If either the innermost THEN clause (D = E) or the innermost ELSE clause (F = G) is executed, control skips to the GO TO statement following the final ELSE clause.

In a series of nested IF statements, each ELSE clause is paired with an IF, starting at the innermost level. IFcondition tests in nested IF statements are made in the order from autermost to innermost IF. As soon as a test is reached that is not true, the checking stops, and the matching ELSE clause is executed. Control is then transferred to the statement following the entire series of IF statements, unless it is directed otherwise by a GOTO statement in the ELSE clause.

In the nesting of IF statements, an associated ELSE clause may or may not appear for the outermost IF. But every nested IF must have an associated ELSE clause when any IF statement at a higher level requires an associated ELSE clause.

Assume that a programmer writing the above nested IF statements does not want to provide a second alternative for the innermost IF statement. If A is equal to B but not equal to C, he wants to go to the statement labelled LABEL_1. To achieve this, he would have to insert a null statement, as follows:

```
IF A = B
THEN IF A = C
THEN D = E;
ELSE;
ELSE F = A;
GOTO LABEL_1;
```

An ELSE with a null statement as its clause is called a <u>null_ELSE</u>.

In this example, if A is equal to B but is not equal to C, the second alternative of the innermost IF is chosen. Since it is a null ELSE, control is transferred out of the entire nest to the next statement, which is GOTO LABEL_1.

The examples have illustrated the nesting of IF statements only to the second level. Deeper nesting is, however, allowed. In Model 20 PL/I, the number of IF and DO statements in one nest must not exceed 20. Any IF statement, at any level, may have a DO group as either or both of its alternative actions.

The DO Statement

The most common use of the DO statement is to specify that a group of statements is to be executed and re-executed one or more times while a control variable is incremented each time control passes through the loop. Such a group might have the form:

```
DO COUNTER = 1 TO 10;
.
.
END;
```

A DO group is delimited by the DO and END statements. In this example, the DO statement specifies that the statements between the DO and END statements are to be executed, as a group, ten times before con-trol passes to the next statement. The variable COUNTER is used to control the number of times the group is executed. When the DO group is executed for the first time, COUNTER is assigned the value 1. Then the group of statements is executed. When the END statement is reached, COUNTER is incremented by one, and control is transferred back to the beginning of the group where COUNTER is tested to see whether it does not exceed ten. This looping continues until the value of COUNTER exceeds 10, then control passes to the statement following the loop. The above example is exactly equivalent to the following:

Note that since the test is made <u>after</u> COUNTER is incremented, its value at the end of the loop will be one incrementation larger than the number of times the loop is executed. In this case, the value of COUNTER will be 11 when execution of the loop is terminated.

The variable COUNTER, either as used in the DO statement or as used above, would have to be declared to represent values as great as 11; e.g., DECIMAL FIXED (2).

In the preceding example, the value of COUNTER is increased by 1 each time the DO statement is executed. An incrementation of one is assumed unless some other specification is made. Consider the following example:

DO COUNTER = 2 TO 10 BY 2;

This DO statement causes the initial value of COUNTER to be set to two. Each time the DO statement is executed thereafter, the value is increased by two. Thus, the statements of the DO group would be executed five times, and the final value of COUNTER would be 12.

The control variable of a DO statement can be used as a subscript in statements within the DO-group, so that each repetition deals with successive elements of a table or array. For example:

DO COUNTER = 1 TO 10; ARRAY (COUNTER) = COUNTER; END;

In this example, each element of ARRAY is set to 1, 2, 3,...10, respectively.

<u>Note</u>: The control variable of a DO group, in our example COUNTER, must not be changed during execution of the DO group by its appearance on the left side of an assignment statement or in a data list of a GET statement or indirectly through a procedure that has been called in the DO group.

DO groups, like IF statements, may be nested. Consider the following example:

```
DO I = 1 TO 10;

statement 1

statement 2

statement 3

DO J = 1 TO 10;

statement 1a

statement 2a

statement 2a

END;

statement 4

statement 5

statement 6

END;
```

The statements of the outer DO group the outer DO-END and statements 1 through 6 - would be executed ten times. The statements of the inner DO group - the inner DO-END and statements 1a to 3a - would be

executed 100 times, ten times for each execution of the outer DO group. When the first DO statement is executed the first time, the counter variable I is assigned the value 1. Then statements 1 through 3 are executed. When control reaches the second DO statement, the variable J is assigned the value 1, and the inner loop is executed ten times. Control then passes on to statements 4, 5, and 6. When the final END statement is reached, control returns to the first DO statement. The counter I is incremented to 2, and execution proceeds through statements 1 through 3. When the second DO statement is reached for the second time, the counter J is reset to 1, and the inner DO group again is executed ten times before control passes to statement 4 for its second execution. The process is repeated until the outer DO group has been executed ten times. The inner DO group goes through its entire looping process immediately following each execution of statement 3.

The example shows nesting only to the second level. In Model 20 PL/I, the maximum number of DO statements allowed in one nest is 12.

The Non-Iterative DO Statement. The DO statement need not specify repeated execution of a DO group. You can use a simple DO statement in conjunction with a DO group, as follows:

DO; . . END:

The use of the simple DO statement in this manner merely indicates that the DO group is to be treated logically as a single statement. It can be used to specify a number of statements to be executed in the THEN or ELSE clause of an IF statement. For example:

```
IF A = B
THEN DO;
.
.
END;
ELSE DO;
.
.
END;
```

The CALL, RETURN, and END Statements

A procedure (except the main procedure of a program) or a function is invoked (or activated) by a CALL statement that names the entry point of the procedure. Control is returned to the invoking (or activating) procedure when a RETURN statement is executed in the called procedure or when the execution of the END statement terminates the called procedure.

The RETURN statement with a parenthesized expression is used to return a value to a function reference. This form can be used only to return from a procedure that has been invoked by a function reference. The RETURN statement without a parenthesized expression cannot be used in this case.

A program normally is terminated by the execution of the END or RETURN statement of the main procedure, either of which returns control to the Monitor program.

Consider the following example:

FIRST: PROCEDURE OPTIONS (MAIN);

```
CALL SECOND;
```

•

.

END;

SECOND: PROCEDURE:

.

IF A 1=B THEN RETURN; C = A ** 3 + PRODCT(X,Y,Z); END; PRODCT: PROCEDURE (A, B, C);

> IF A>B + C THEN RETURN (0); ELSE RETURN (A-B*C); END;

In the above example, FIRST is the name of the main procedure in the program which consists of the three procedures FIRST, SECOND, and PRODCT. During program execution, the procedure SECOND is invoked by the CALL statement CALL SECOND in the main procedure FIRST. When SECOND is executed, the IF statement is encountered. Depending on the result of the comparison operation, control is either returned to the statement immediately following the CALL statement in the invoking procedure FIRST, or the statement containing the function reference PRODCT (X,Y,Z) is executed invoking PRODCT. When PRODCT is executed, another IF statement is encountered and a test is made. Depending upon the result of the comparison operation, one of the two RETURN statements is executed returning control together with the evaluated result of an expression to SECOND. At the termination of SECOND, control is passed back to the main procedure.

Exception-Control Statements

The statements discussed in the preceding section alter the flow of control whenever they are executed. Another way in which the sequence of execution can be altered is by the occurrence of a program interrupt caused by an exceptional condition.

In general, an exceptional condition is the occurrence of an unexpected action, such as an overflow, or of an expected action, such as an end of file, that occurs at an unpredictable time. A detailed discussion of the handling of these conditions appears in this part of the manual, under <u>Exceptional Condition Handling</u>.

<u>The_ON_Statement</u>

The ON statement is used to specify the action to be taken when a program interrupt occurs due to a specific condition. ON statements can be used with a number of different conditions. For each of these conditions, a standard system action is specified as part of the Model 20 PL/I, and if no ON statement for a condition has been executed and is in force at the time an interrupt occurs, the standard system action will be taken. For most conditions, the standard system action is to print a message and terminate execution.

The ON statement is a compound statement that contains a GOTO or null statement. For example:

ON UNDERFLOW GO TO ERROR;

In the above statement, GO TO ERROR is the contained statement, or the ON-unit. ERROR is the label of a statement or of the first of several statements that specify what action is to be taken, whether to try to recover from the error or to note the error and continue with other computations. If the standard system action is to be taken if an interrupt occurs, the keyword SYSTEM is used in place of the ON-unit, as follows:

ON UNDERFLOW SYSTEM;

The ON-unit can also be the null statement. The example

ON UNDERFLOW;

specifies that when an interrupt occurs as the result of an underflow condition, the interrupt is to be ignored and execution is to continue from the point at which the interrupt occurred. If an ON statement for UNDERFLOW was not in force at the time of an interrupt, the standard system action would be taken.

<u>Note</u>: If the condition of the ON statement is CONVERSION, ENDFILE, or KEY, the action must not be the null statement.

The effect of the ON statement, either standard system action or any other action specified by the programmer, can be changed within a procedure by the execution of another ON statement naming the same condition with either another ON-unit or with the word SYSTEM, which re-establishes standard system action. The action in effect at the time another procedure is activated is passed to the activated procedure and remains in effect in that procedure and in other procedures activated by it, unless another ON statement for the same condition is executed. When control returns to an activating procedure, actions are reestablished as they existed in that procedure.

FIRST:	PROCEDURE OPTIONS (MAIN);
	•
	•
011.	•
ONT:	ON FIXEDOVERTLOW GOTO LI;
	•
	•
	CALL SECOND:
	•
	END;
SECOND:	PROCEDURE;
	•
	•
0.10	
ON2:	ON FIXEDOVERFLOW GO TO L2;
	•
	•
013.	ON FIXEDOVERFLOW SYSTEM:
01.0.	·
	•
	•
	END:

Until statement ON1 is executed the standard system action is taken in the case of a FIXEDOVERFLOW condition. After execution of the statement ON1, control goes to a statement with the Label L1 when a FIXE-DOVERFLOW condition occurs. After calling the procedure SECOND, the program still branches to the same statement L1 when the FIXEDOVERFLOW condition is raised, even though the Label L1 may not be known in the procedure SECOND, until the statement ON2 is executed. Then control branches to statement L2 declared in SECOND instead of L1 declared in FIRST in the case of FIXEDOVER-FLOW. After executing the statement ON3, the standard system action is taken in the case of FIXEDOVERFLOW. After returning from procedure SECOND, the action of statement ON1 is reestablished, i.e., branching to L1.

<u>Note</u>: In this example it is assumed that the statement of each of the two procedures are executed sequentially. If this is not the case due to a GO TO statement or DOgroup with iteration, the same ON-statement may be executed more than once during the time of activity of a procedure.

Program-Structure Statements

Program-structure statements are those statements used to divide a program into procedures and DO-groups. These statements are the PROCEDURE statement, the END statement, and the DO statement.

<u>The PROCEDURE Statement</u>

A program may consist of a single procedure or of several separate procedures. Each procedure in a program is headed by a PRO-CEDURE statement and ended by an END statement, as follows:

FIRST: PROCEDURE;

END;

Each procedure must have a name, that is, each PROCEDURE statement must be labelled. In the example above, FIRST is the label of the PROCEDURE statement. The procedure name specifies the entry point through which control can be passed to the procedure.

Control does not pass automatically from one procedure to another. Each procedure to be executed, except the first, must be invoked, or called, from some other procedure. This may be done with either the CALL statement or by the appearance of a procedure name in an expression. If it appears in an expression, the procedure is called a function. A function reference causes a single value to be computed and returned to the function reference for use in the evaluation of the expression.

Communication between two procedures is achieved by

- passing <u>arguments</u> (that is, expressions) from an invoking procedure to the invoked procedure,
- 2. returning values from the invoked procedure, and
- referring to names that are known within both procedures (that is, names declared as EXTERNAL in both procedures).

<u>The DO Statement</u>

Another kind of program structure is provided by the DO-group, which is delimited by a DO statement and the associated END statement. See the DO statement as discussed above under the heading <u>Program-Flow</u> <u>Control_Statements</u>.

Flow of Control and Storage Allocation

This section discusses how control passes within a program from one procedure to the next, how procedures are activated and terminated, and how storage may be allocated for data within procedures.

The Procedure

As we have already stated, a procedure is headed by a PROCEDURE statement and ended by an END statement, as follows:

label: PROCEDURE;

END;

Each procedure must have a name, that is a label. The label denotes the entry point through which control can be passed to the procedure.

The division of a program into several procedures is a feature of PL/I that provides a special convenience to programmers. The procedures can be written separately, compiled separately or together, and executed as a single program. A long program can be divided into logical blocks (or procedures); special procedures can be written for special purposes. The division of a program into procedures also provides great economy in the use of main storage space.

ACTIVATION OF A PROCEDURE

Control does not pass automatically from one procedure to the next. Each procedure, except the first, must be invoked, or called, from some other procedure, where the entry name of the procedure to be invoked must appear

- after the keyword CALL in the <u>CALL sta-</u> tement or
- as a <u>function reference</u> (see the section <u>Arguments and Parameters</u> for details).

When a CALL statement or a function reference is executed, the procedure with the specified entry name is activated or <u>invoked</u>. Control is transferred to the specified entry point. The point at which the procedure reference occurs, is called the <u>point of invocation</u>. The procedure in which the reference is made is called the <u>invoking procedure</u>. The invoking procedure remains active even though control is transferred from it to the procedure it invokes. Whenever a procedure is invoked, execution begins with the first executable statement in the invoked procedure.

The first procedure in a program, called the <u>initial</u> or <u>main</u> procedure, can only be activated by the Monitor program of the DPS. The main procedure must always have the OPTIONS (MAIN) attribute specified in its PROCEDURE statement, as follows:

FIRST: PROCEDURE OPTIONS (MAIN);



In this example, FIRST is the initial procedure that invokes other procedures in the program.

Following is a summary of rules that apply to the activation of procedures.

- A <u>program</u> becomes active when the initial procedure is activated by the Monitor program.
- Except for the initial procedure, all procedures contained in a program are activated by a reference to them, either in a CALL statement or in a function reference.
- A procedure cannot be invoked while it is active.
- The initial procedure remains active for the duration of the program.
- All activated procedures remain active until they are terminated (see below).

TERMINATION OF A PROCEDURE

In general, a procedure is terminated when one of the following conditions occurs:

 Control reaches a RETURN statement within a procedure. The execution of a RETURN statement causes control to be returned to the point of invocation in the invoking procedure. If the point of invocation is a CALL statement, execution in the invoking procedure is resumed at the statement immediately following the CALL statement. If the point of invocation is a function reference, execution of the statement containing the reference will be resumed.

- Control reaches the END statement of the procedure. Effectively, this is equivalent to the execution of a RETURN statement.
- 3. A GO TO statement causes the termination of one or more procedures by branching back to one of the series of invoking procedures. In this case, the destination of the GO TO must be specified by a label variable. If one of the terminated procedures has been invoked as a function reference in an expression, the evaluation of the expression is discontinued.

PROGRAM TERMINATION

A program is terminated when one of the following conditions occurs:

- Control reaches a RETURN statement or the final END statement in the main procedure. This is the normal termination of a program.
- 2. An error condition arises from which the system cannot recover. In this case, the standard system action results in a return of control to the Monitor program.

Storage Allocation

Any name (or variable) that represents a data item, actually represents the location in main storage where that data item is recorded. The compiler analyzes the attributes of a variable to determine the length of the storage area that is needed and <u>when</u> it will have to be available.

When a location in main storage has been associated with a variable, the storage is said to be <u>allocated</u> to the variable. <u>Allocation</u> for a given variable may take place <u>dynamically</u>, that is, during execution of a procedure, or <u>statically</u>, that is, before execution of a program.

DYNAMIC ALLOCATION

The fact that certain variables are used in one procedure of a program and not in others, makes it possible to allocate storage dynamically, that is, to allocate the same storage space, at different times, to different variables.

We have, in Model 20 PL/I, two types of dynamic storage, <u>automatic</u> and <u>based</u>.

<u>Automatic Storage</u>

If during execution of a single procedure, but nowhere else in the program, a 100character field is required for the variable TABLE, the space need not actually be allocated until execution of that procedure begins. If the value of TABLE is not needed when the procedure is invoked again, there is no need to keep the space reserved after execution of the procedure is completed. The storage area can be used for other purposes.

Such dynamic use of main storage is called automatic allocation. Variables of the automatic storage class are declared with the AUTOMATIC attribute. They are allocated storage space when the procedure is invoked and this storage space is freed when the procedure is completed. Once a storage area is freed, the value of the corresponding variable is lost.

All variables that have not been explicitly declared with a storage class attribute are assumed to have the AUTOMATIC attribute, with one exception: any variable that has the EXTERNAL attribute is assumed to have the STATIC attribute.

Based Storage

A variable of the based storage class is declared with the BASED attribute; you associate a based variable with storage by means of a READ or LOCATE statement with the SET option or by means of the ADDR built-in function. This causes the attributes of the <u>based variable</u> to be applied to the main storage area "pointed to" by a <u>pointer variable</u> associated with the based variable.

The pointer variable can be manipulated so that the attributes of the based variable apply to different storage areas. That is, the value of the pointer variable (which represents an address) can be changed so that the storage area pointed to by the old pointer value is no longer associated with the based variable. The attributes of the based variable now apply to the storage area pointed to by the new value of the pointer variable.

You will find a complete discussion of this topic in the section <u>Based Variables</u> <u>and Pointer Variables</u>.

STATIC_ALLOCATION

Whenever the value of a variable must be saved between different invocations of the same procedures, storage for that variable has to be allocated statically, that is, storage is allocated before execution of the program and remains allocated throughout the entire duration of the program. For a detailed description of the EXTERNAL attribute, refer to the following section <u>Recognition of Names</u>).

<u>Static Storage</u>

All variables of the static storage class have the STATIC attribute. Variables with the EXTERNAL attribute must always be of the static storage class. For such variables, STATIC is the default storageclass attribute and need not be explicitly declared.

Consider the following example:

```
CNTRL: PROCEDURE OPTIONS (MAIN):
       DECLARE X FIXED (5,0) INIT (1)
                     STATIC,
                Y FIXED (5,0) INIT (1)
STATIC EXTERNAL,
                 Z FIXED (5,0) INIT (1)
                     STATIC:
           .
        CALL OUTP:
        END;
OUTP:
       PROCEDURE;
        DECLARE X FIXED (5,0) INIT (1)
                     STATIC EXTERNAL,
                 Y FIXED (5,0) INIT(1) STATIC
                     EXTERNAL:
           .
        X = X + 1;
       END:
```

Before execution of the program begins, all static variables are allocated main storage space. Thus, in the above example, X, Y, and Z are allocated storage and initialized to 1 when the program is loaded into main storage. Note that X in CNTRL and X in OUTP are different variables, because they have not been declared EXTERNAL in both, while Y in CNTRL and Y in OUTP refer to the same variable. Before execution of OUTP is terminated, X is increased by 1. If OUTP is invoked a second time, X has the value 2. Note that even though OUTP could be activated and terminated several times, X, being STATIC, retains its value between each termination and re-activation of OUTP. The storage

space associated with X remains allocated to X throughout the duration of the program.

INITIAL DATA

Variables, whether main storage space is allocated to them dynamically or statically, may be given <u>initial values</u> at the time of storage allocation.

Static variables are <u>initialized</u> only once, that is, before execution of a program begins. Automatic variables are reinitialized at each activation of the declaring procedure.

<u>Note</u>: The INITIAL attribute may be specified only for element variables, elementary names in structures, and arrays. If specified for arrays, however, these must not belong to the AUTOMATIC storage class. It cannot be specified for STATIC label variables.

Prologues and Epilogues

Each time a procedure is activated, certain activities must be performed before control reaches the first executable statement in the procedure. These activities are called a <u>proloque</u>. Similarly, when a procedure is terminated, certain activities must be performed before control can be transferred out of the procedure. These activities are referred to as an <u>epiloque</u>.

Prologues and epilogues are set up by the compiler and not by the programmer. They are discussed here because knowledge of them may assist you in improving the performance of your programs.

PROLOGUES

A prologue is a routine set up by the compiler and logically attached to the beginning of a procedure. It is executed as the first step after activation of the procedure. The main activities performed by a prologue are:

- Allocation of main storage for automatic variables.
- Establishment of the inherited ON-units.
- Allocation of storage for dummy arguments (which are discussed in the section <u>Arguments and Parameters</u>) that may be passed at the time another procedure is invoked.

EPILOGUES

An epilogue is a routine set up by the compiler and logically appended to the end of a procedure. It is executed as the final step before termination of the procedure. The main activities performed by an epilogue are:

.

- Re-establishment of the ON-units as they existed before the procedure was activated.
- Release of all main storage that has been allocated to automatic variables in the procedure.

A PL/I program consists of a collection of identifiers, constants, and special characters used as operators or delimiters. Identifiers may be either keywords or names with a meaning specified by the programmer. The PL/I language is constructed in such a way that the compiler can usually determine from context whether or not an identifier is a keyword, so that there are very few reserved words i.e., words that you may not use as identifiers in your programs (see note below). Any identifier that is not a reserved word may be used as a name; the only restriction is that at any point in a procedure a name can have one and only one meaning. For example, the same name cannot be used in the same procedure for both a file and a floating-point variable.

<u>Note</u>: With the 60-character set there are no reserved words. When using the 48character set, you may not use the following operators as identifiers in your program: GT, GE, NE, LE, LT, NG, NL, CAT, NOT, OR, AND, and PT (even though the last four identifiers are not used as keywords in Model 20 PL/I). These are fully reserved. No other keywords are reserved.

It is not necessary for a name to retain the same meaning throughout a program. A name declared within a procedure has a meaning only within that procedure. Outside the procedure it is unknown unless it has been declared with the EXTERNAL attribute and has also been declared in another procedure with the same attributes including the EXTERNAL attribute.

That part of a program in which the meaning of a declared name is known, is called the <u>scope of a name</u>. A name in a Model 20 PL/I program can be declared by

- explicit declaration
- contextual declaration, or
- implicit declaration.

Explicit Declaration

A name is explicitly declared if you specify it:

- in a DECLARE statement,
- in a parameter list (that is, the parenthesized list that follows the keyword PROCEDURE in a PROCEDURE statement,

as a statement label, or

 as the label of a PROCEDURE statement (that is, an entry name).

The appearance of a name in a parameter list has the same effect as a DECLARE statement for that name following the PROCE-DURE statement in which the parameter list occurs (though the same name may also appear in a DECLARE statement in the same procedure). The default assumptions for parameters are the same as for other variables.

The appearance of a statement label constitutes an explicit declaration equivalent to the declaration of a variable in a DECLARE statement.

The scope of an explicitly declared name is the procedure in which the name has been declared.

Contextual Declaration

When an identifier that has not been explicitly declared appears

- to the left of the assignment symbol in an assignment statement, or
- to the left of the assignment symbol in a DO statement (or in a repetitive specification in a data list), or
- in the data list of a GET statement,
- as a built-in function name,

the identifier is said to be contextually declared. However, a name can only be contextually declared if its name does not start with one of the letters I to N. In Model 20 PL/I, a contextually declared identifier is always a scalar arithmetic variable with the default attributes FLOAT DECIMAL (6) AUTOMATIC INTERNAL. This rule is illustrated by the example below:

Recognition of Names 51

The names PAR, N, LBL, and P are declared explicitly by their appearance in a parameter list, a DECLARE statement, and as a statement or procedure label, respectively. A and B are declared contextually by their appearance on the left side of the assignment symbol and in the data list of a GET statement, respectively. FL1 must be declared in another DECLARE statement (not shown in this example) in the same procedure, since file names cannot be declared contextually in Model 20 PL/I.

Built-In_Functions

The name of a built-in function, that is, a procedure that is part of the compiler and that is invoked by means of a function reference, is contextually declared by its appearance in the function reference. It must not be explicitly declared by means of a DECLARE statement.

Exception: The DATE built-in function must be explicitly declared in the invoking procedure by means of a DECLARE statement and with the attribute BUILTIN.

<u>Note 1</u>: The name of a built-in function may be used in a procedure to describe an item other than that function. In this case, it must not appear in a function reference in that procedure. Consider the following statements:

DCL SIN(10);

X=SIN(5);

In this example, SIN is explicitly declared to be an array of 10 data elements. When the statement X=SIN(5); is evaluated the array element and not the built-in function SIN is taken. The explicit declaration takes recedence over the contextual declaration.

Implicit Declaration

If a name appears in a program and is not explicitly or contextually declared, it is said to be implicitly declared. The scope of an implicit declaration is INTERNAL, and it is by default an arithmetic variable with the attributes FLOAT DECIMAL(6) AUTO-MATIC. Note, however, that the name of an implicitly declared variable must not start with any of the letters I to N.

An implicitly declared variable can only obtain a value if it appears as an argument in a procedure invocation. There is no other way for an implicitly declared variable to obtain a value. Consider the following example:

```
ALPHA: PROCEDURE;

D = E;

CALL BETA(C);

A = C + 1;

.

END;

BETA: PROCEDURE(X);

DCL X FLOAT DECIMAL(6);

X = 52;

.

END:
```

In the above example, E in procedure ALPHA is an implicitly declared variable that cannot assume any value. The variable C which appears as an argument in the CALL invoking BETA, is also an implicitly declared variable. In BETA, however, the argument C, represented by the parameter X, is explicitly declared and given a value. Thus, when BETA returns control to ALPHA and the instruction A = C + 1 is executed, C has been given a value, since both C and X refer to the same data item in main storage.

<u>Note</u>: The attributes associated with a name comprise those explicitly, contextually, or implicitly declared, as well as those assumed by default. The default for each attribute is given in Part II under <u>Attributes</u>.

INTERNAL and EXTERNAL Names

The scope of a name declared with the $\underline{INTERNAL}$ attribute is the procedure in which it is declared. A declaration of that name in another procedure refers to a different item with a different scope.

A name with the <u>EXTERNAL</u> attribute may be declared more than once in the same program, in different procedures. All declarations of the name that specify the EXTERNAL attribute refer to the same item. The scope of the name is the sum of the scopes of its individual declarations within the program.

Since these declarations all refer to the same thing, they must have the same set of attributes. It may be impossible for the compiler to check this, since the declarations appear in different procedures; therefore, take care to ensure that different declarations of the same name with the EXTERNAL attribute have matching attributes (including the INITIAL attribute, if present). In Model 20 PL/I, the length of a name with the EXTERNAL attribute is restricted to six characters. This restriction also applies to names that are EXTERNAL by default, such as file names and entry names of procedures.

Multiple Declarations and Ambiguous References

Two or more declarations of the same identifier within the same procedure constitute a <u>multiple declaration</u>, unless all but one of the identifiers is declared within structures in such a way that name qualification can be used to make the names unique.

Two or more declarations anywhere in a program of the same identifier with different attributes and with the EXTERNAL attribute constitute a multiple declaration, that is, a name declared with the EXTERNAL attribute in different procedures must have identical attributes in all procedures in which it is declared EXTERNAL.

Multiple declarations are errors.

A name need have only enough qualification to make the name unique. An <u>ambiguous</u> <u>reference</u> is a name with insufficient qualification to make the name unique.

The following examples illustrate both multiple declarations and ambiguous references:

DECLARE 1 A, 2 C, 2 D, 3 E; DECLARE 1 B, 2 A, 3 C, 3 E; A.C = D.E;

In this example, A.C refers to C in the first declaration because C in the second declaration has another complete name qualification B.A.C; A.C is a unique qualified reference; D.E refers to E in the first declaration.

DECLARE 1 A, 2 B, 2 B, 2 C, 3 D, 2 D;

In this example, B has been multiply declared. A.D refers to the second D, since A.D is a complete qualification of only the second D; the first D would have to be referred to as A.C.D.

DECLARE 1 A, 2 B, 3 C, 2 D, 3 C;

In this example, A.C is ambiguous because neither C is completely qualified by this reference.

DECLARE 1 A, 2 A, 3 A;

In this example, A refers to the first A, A.A refers to the second A, and A.A.A refers to the third A.

DECLARE X; DECLARE 1 Y, 2 X, 3 Z, 3 A, 2 Y, 3 Z, 3 A;

In this example, X refers to the variable declared in the first DECLARE statement. A reference to Y.Z is ambiguous; Y.Y.Z refers to the second Z; and Y.X.Z refers to the first Z. PL/I provides input and output statements, which cause data to be transmitted between main storage and an external storage medium. Transmission of data from an external storage medium to main storage is called <u>input</u>, and transmission of data from main storage to an external storage medium is called <u>output</u>.

In order to understand the basic concepts of input and output, it is necessary to define the following terms: <u>file</u>, <u>volume</u>, <u>block</u>, <u>record</u>, and <u>filename</u>.

A <u>file</u> is a collection of data on an external storage medium.

Files can be stored on a variety of external storage media, such as punched cards, reels of magnetic tape, and packs of magnetic disks. Despite their variety, external storage media have many common characteristics that permit standard methods of collecting, storing, and transmitting data. For convenience, thus, we use the general term <u>volume</u> to refer to a unit of external storage, such as a reel of magnetic tape or a disk pack, without regard to its specific physical composition.

The data items within a file are arranged in distinct physical groupings called <u>blocks</u>. These blocks allow the file to be transmitted and processed in portions rather than as a unit. For processing purposes, each block consists of one or more logical parts called <u>records</u>, each of which can contain one or more data items.

A block is also called a <u>physical</u> <u>record</u>, because it is the unit of data that is physically transmitted to and from a volume. To avoid confusion between a physical record and its logical parts, the logical subdivisions are called <u>logical</u> <u>records</u>.

When a physical record contains two or more logical records, the records are said to be <u>blocked</u>. Blocking of records often permits more compact and efficient use of external storage. Consider how data is stored on magnetic tape: the data between two successive interrecord gaps is one block, or physical record. If several logical records are contained within one block, the number of interrecord gaps is reduced, and much more data can be stored on a full length of tape. For example, on a tape with a density of 800 characters/ inch and interrecord gaps of 0.6 inches, a card image of 80 characters would take up 0.1 inches. If the records were unblocked, each record would require 0.1 inches, plus 0.6 inches for the interrecord gap, making a total of 0.7 inches. 100 records would therefore take up 70 inches of tape. If the records were blocked, however, at, say, 10 records to a block, each block of 10 records would take up 1 inch, plus 0.6 inches for the gap, which would be a total of 1.6 inches. Thus, 100 records would now occupy 16 inches of tape only; this is less than 25 percent of the amount needed for unblocked records.

Most data processing applications are concerned with logical records rather than physical records. Therefore, the input and output statements of PL/I generally refer to logical records; this allows the programmer to concentrate on the data to be processed, without being directly concerned with its physical organization in external storage.

To be able, now, to deal with the data items of a file, that is, to read them into main storage or to write them onto the external storage media, a <u>filename</u> has to be associated with a <u>file</u>. You do this in your program.

A <u>filename</u> is the symbolic reference, within a program, to a file stored on an external medium.

You associate a filename with a file by declaring the filename for the file in your program and by specifying attributes that describe the file and the manner in which it will be handled. For example, the INPUT attribute specifies that a file is to be read; OUTPUT specifies that a file is to be written. Unlike a file, however, a filename has significance only in a program; it does not exist external to the program. For example, if you use the same file again, you may specify a different filename and partly different attributes for it.

Types of Data Transmission

There are two types of data transmission you can use in a PL/I program, streamoriented transmission and record-oriented transmission.

In <u>stream-oriented transmission</u>, the data in the file is considered to be a continuous stream of data items in character form. Consequently, characters in the input stream are interpreted and converted where necessary to the specified internal format. Whether conversion is to take place is determined by the attributes of the variable to which a data item is assigned. On output, data items in internal format are converted where necessary to character form and added to the output stream. The statements GET and PUT are the data-transmission statements used in stream-oriented transmission. Variables, to which input data items are assigned, and expressions from which output data items are transmitted, are generally specified in a <u>data list</u> contained in each GET and PUT statement.

Although data in the file is in record format, in stream transmission such organization is ignored within the program and the data is treated as though it actually were a continuous stream of individual data items.

In <u>record-oriented transmission</u>, data in the file is considered to be a collection of discrete logical records, recorded in any format acceptable to the computer. No data conversion is performed during record transmission; on input, it is transmitted exactly as it is recorded in the file; on output, it is transmitted exactly as it is recorded internally.

The input and output statements used for record-oriented transmission are READ, WRITE, REWRITE and LOCATE. The READ, WRITE, and REWRITE statements cause a single logical record to be transmitted to or from a data variable or, in the case of READ with the SET option, to an intermediate work area in main storage, called a buffer, which can be accessed by the program. The LOCATE statement allocates an area in a buffer to which data for an output record can be assigned.

Note that although records may be blocked, in which case actually the physical record is transmitted to or from the file as an entity, each data transmission statement in record I/O is concerned with a logical record. Blocked records are deblocked automatically.

The following discussion of filenames and file attributes will be of particular interest to a programmer using recordoriented transmission. File handling is simpler when using stream-oriented transmission, and fewer attributes are applicable to files read or written by streamoriented transmission.

File Declarations

To allow a source program to deal primarily with the logical aspects of data rather than with its physical organization in a file, PL/I employs a symbolic representation of a file, the filename.

PL/I requires a filename to be declared and allows the characteristics associated with that filename to be described by keywords called <u>file attributes</u>. The DECLARE statement specifying the filename and the associated attributes is referred to as <u>file declaration</u>.

FILE ATTRIBUTES

The following lists show file attributes that are applicable to each type of data transmission:

<u>Record Transmission</u>	<u>Stream Transmission</u>
FILE	FILE
RECORD	STREAM
INPUT	INPUT
OUTPUT	OUTPUT
UPDATE	PRINT
SEQUENTIAL	ENVIRONMENT
DIRECT	
KEYED	
BACKWARDS	
ENVIRONMENT	

A detailed description of each of these attributes appears in Part II, <u>Attributes</u>. Following is a brief description of each attribute and its use in a file declaration.

The FILE Attribute

The FILE attribute states that the identifier (or name) associated with FILE is a filename. For example, MASTER is declared to be a filename in the following statement:

DECLARE MASTER FILE

The FILE attribute must be explicitly declared for every filename, and it must always be the first attribute declared in a file declaration.

ALTERNATIVE AND ADDITIVE ATTRIBUTES

The attributes associated with the FILE attribute fall into two categories: alternative attributes and additive attributes. An <u>alternative attribute</u> is one that is chosen from a group of attributes. If no explicit or implicit declaration is given for one of the alternative attributes of a group and if one of the alternatives is required, a default attribute is assumed in most cases.

Group	Alternatives	Default
Transmission	STREAM RECORD	STREAM
Function	INPUT OUTPUT UPDATE	no default
Access	SEQUENTIAL DIRECT	SEQUENTIAL

Figure 7. Groups and Default Attributes for Alternative File Attributes

PL/I provides three groups of alternative file attributes. Each group is discussed individually. The groups and the default for each alternative file attribute is shown in Figure 7.

<u>Note</u>: No default is applied for the function attributes; one of them must be specified in each file declaration. The scope of a filename must always be EXTERNAL. The EXTERNAL attribute can be explicitly declared in a file declaration. If it is not declared, it is assumed by default.

An <u>additive attribute</u> is one that must be stated explicitly or is implied by another explicitly stated attribute. The ENVIRONMENT attribute must be declared explicitly with every filename. An additive attribute can never be applied by default. The additive attribute KEYED is implied by the DIRECT attribute.

The additive attributes are:

PRINT BACKWARDS KEYED ENVIRONMENT

The STREAM and RECORD Attributes

The STREAM and RECORD attributes describe the type of data transmission (streamoriented or record-oriented) to be used in input and output operations for the file.

The STREAM attribute causes the file associated with the filename to be treated as a continuous stream of data items recorded in character format.

The RECORD attribute causes the file associated with the filename to be treated as a sequence of logical records, each record consisting of one or more data items recorded in any format.

DECLARE MASTER FILE RECORD DECLARE DETAIL FILE STREAM

The INPUT, OUTPUT, and UPDATE Attributes

The function attributes determine the direction of data transmission. The INPUT

attribute applies to files that are to be read only. The OUTPUT attribute applies to files that are to be created or extended, and hence are to be written only. The UPDATE attribute describes a file that can be used for both input and output; it allows records to be inserted into an existing file and other records already in that file to be altered.

DECLARE

DETAIL FILE RECORD INPUT REPORT FILE STREAM OUTPUT MASTER FILE RECORD UPDATE

The SEQUENTIAL and DIRECT Attributes

The access attributes are used only in conjunction with the RECORD attribute and describe how the records in the file are to be accessed, sequentially or directly. STREAM transmission is always sequential.

The <u>SEQUENTIAL attribute</u> specifies that physically or logically successive records in the file are to be accessed sequentially.

DCL PAYROLL FILE RECORD INPUT SEQUENTIAL

The <u>DIRECT attribute</u> specifies that a record in a file is to be accessed on the basis of its location in the file and not on the basis of its physical or logical position relative to the record previously read or written. The location of the record is determined by a key; therefore, the DIRECT attribute implies the KEYED attribute. The associated file must be read from or written on a direct-access device, for example, a disk drive.

DCL MASTER FILE RECORD UPDATE DIRECT [KEYED]

The PRINT Attribute

The PRINT attribute applies only to files with the STREAM and OUTPUT attributes. It indicates that the file is eventually to be printed, that is, the data is to appear on printed pages, although it may first be written on some other medium. The PRINT attribute specifies that the print lines are to be created with the first character position reserved for a printer-control character, which is inserted automatically.

DCL OUT_F FILE STREAM OUTPUT PRINT

The BACKWARDS Attribute

The BACKWARDS attribute indicates that a file is to be accessed in reverse order, beginning with the last logical record and ending with the first logical record. The BACKWARDS attribute can be used only in connection with the RECORD SEQUENTIAL, and INPUT attributes and only with files on magnetic tape.

DCL IN_FLE FILE RECORD INPUT SEQUENTIAL BACKWARDS

The KEYED Attribute

The KEYED attribute is used only in connection with INDEXED files. It indicates that each record in the file has a key and can be accessed using one of the key options (KEY or KEYFROM) of data transmission statements.

DCL REPORT FILE INPUT DIRECT KEYED

The use of keys is discussed in detail in Part III, under $\underline{Input/Output}$.

The ENVIRONMENT Attribute

The ENVIRONMENT attribute specifies information about the physical organization of the file associated with a filename. These characteristics are indicated in a parenthesized <u>option_list</u> in the ENVIRONMENT attribute specification. They are not part of the PL/I language, but are defined to be recognized by a specific compiler. The option list for the Model 20 PL/I Compiler is discussed in Part III, under <u>Input/Output</u>.

DCL OUTPUT FILE STREAM OUTPUT PRINT ENVIRONMENT (option-list);

<u>Note</u>: As stated earlier in this section, each file must be explicitly declared; the FILE attribute and the ENVIRONMENT attribute must appear in every file declaration.

Opening and Closing Files

Before the data of a file can be transmitted by input or output statements, certain preparative actions must be taken, such as checking for the availability of the external storage medium, and positioning the medium. Such activity is known as opening a file. Also, when processing is completed, the file must be closed. Closing a file involves releasing the facilities that were used during the opening of the file.

Model 20 PL/I provides two statements, OPEN and CLOSE, to perform these functions. All files for which RECORD transmission has been specified must be explicitly opened before any data can be transmitted. However, files for which STREAM transmission has been specified, need not be opened explicitly. If you do not specify an OPEN statement for such a file, the file is opened automatically when the first GET or PUT is executed; this form of opening is referred to as implicit opening. Automatic preparation is exactly the same as if an explicit OPEN had been executed before the GET or PUT. With both STREAM and RECORD transmission, all files that have not been closed before completion of a program will be closed automatically upon completion of the program. With the exception of INDEXED files, all files that have been explicitly closed may be reopened.

The following discussions show the effect of OPEN and CLOSE statements.

The OPEN Statement

Execution of an OPEN statement causes one or more files to be opened explicitly. The OPEN statement has the following basic format:

```
OPEN FILE (filename) [option-list]
[, FILE(filename) [option-list]]...;
```

The OPEN statement is executed by routines that are loaded dynamically by the system at the time the OPEN statement is executed.

For a file that has to be opened explicitly, the OPEN statement must be executed before any I/O statements are executed for the same file.

The CLOSE Statement

The basic format of the CLOSE statement is:

CLOSE FILE (filename) [,FILE(filename)]...;

Executing a CLOSE statement dissociates the specified filename from the file with which it became associated when the file was opened for, say, input. When using the same file again for, say output, another file declaration has to be made for it before it can be accessed.

<u>Note</u>: Closing an already closed file or opening an already opened file has no effect.

Environmental Considerations for Data Files

The PL/I object program produced by the Model 20 PL/I compiler is designed to be executed under control on the Model 20 Disk Programming System (DPS). The DPS provides data management facilities that control the organization, location, storage, and retrieval of files. The PL/I program calls upon these facilities when it is being executed. The following discussions describe the relationship between the input and output statements of a PL/I program and the various files organizations supported by the data-management facilities of the DPS.

DEVICE_INDEPENDENCE_OF_INPUT_AND_OUTPUT STATEMENTS

The input and output statements of a Model 20 PL/I program are concerned with the logical organization of a file and not with its physical characteristics.

Some of the detailed information ultimately required by the PL/I program to process a file -- information such as I/O unit numbers and recording density -- does not appear in the PL/I program at all. It is supplied by means of DPS job-control statements at the time the PL/I object program is executed. (Job-control statements are described in Part III of this publication under Job Control). This means that the PL/I program need not be recompiled when changes to this information are made.

Other information, such as the I/O device tyle to be used and the organization of a file to be read or written, is noted in the PL/I program in the ENVIRONMENT attribute of the file declaration. Hence, changes to this type of information only affect this attribute. They require no changes to the actual I/O statements in the PL/I program. However, if changes to the ENVIRONMENT attribute have been made, the PL/I program must be recompiled before it can be executed in accordance with the new information.

I/O statements are <u>device-independent</u> to a large extent. This characteristic of PL/I allows you to write a program without any specific knowledge of the I/O devices that will be used for its execution.

The ENVIRONMENT_Attribute

The ENVIRONMENT attribute provides information about the physical organization of the associated file. This information allows the compiler to determine the method of accessing the file. For the Model 20 PL/I Compiler, the ENVIRONMENT attribute has the following general form:

```
CONSECUTIVE
ENVIRONMENT ( L INDEXED
(F (blocksize [,recordsize]))
 V
   (maxblocksize)
U (maxblocksize)
 [BUFFERS ({ 1 | 2 }) ]
  MEDIUM (symbolic-device-address,
              device-type)
[CTLASA]
[LEAVE]
[NOTAPEMK]
 NOLABEL ]
 VERIFY]
[KEYLENGTH (decimal-integer-constant)]
[EXTENTNUMBER (decimal-integer-constant)]
[OFLTRACKS (decimal-integer-constant)]
[KEYLOC (decimal-integer-constant)]
[ALTTAPE]
[NOWRITE]);
```

The individual options of the ENVIRON-MENT attribute must be separated by at least one blank. They are discussed in detail in Part III of this publication, in the section <u>Input/Output</u>. Examples of complete file declarations can be found in Part III, under <u>Two_Complete_Programming</u> <u>Examples</u>.

Stream-Oriented and Record-Oriented Data Transmission

As we have discussed earlier in this section, PL/I provides two types of data transmission, stream-oriented and record-oriented.

With <u>stream-oriented transmission</u>, a file is considered to be a continuous stream of data items in character format. Data items are transferred from the stream to program variables or from program variables (or expressions) into the stream, with appropriate conversion from or to character format. Stream-oriented transmission statements ignore the boundaries between records.

With <u>record-oriented transmission</u>, a file is treated as a collection of logical records, each of which consists of one or more data items. The data items can have any representation, internal or external, that is acceptable to the computer, and there is no data conversion. Each logical record is transmitted as a unit to or from either a program variable or a buffer.

STREAM transmission uses only two input and output statements, GET and PUT, which get the next series of data items from the stream, or put a specified set of data items into the stream. In RECORD transmission, the corresponding statements are READ and WRITE, which read a logical record from the file or write a specified logical record into the file. Other record-oriented transmission statements are REWRITE and LOCATE.

The same file can be processed at one time by STREAM transmission and at another time by RECORD transmission; however, the file would have to be in character format to be acceptable for stream transmission.

You specify the method of transmission for a file by declaring the associated filename with either the STREAM or the RECORD attribute.

STREAM-ORIENTED_TRANSMISSION

The Model 20 PL/I language provides only one mode of stream transmission: the <u>edit-</u> <u>directed_mode</u>.

Edit-directed transmission uses the

GET and PUT

statements for input and output. These statements require the following information:

- The filename associated with the file from which data is to be obtained or in which data is to be written.
- A list of program variables which are to receive data items during input or from which data items are to be obtained during output. This list is called a <u>data_list</u>. On output, the data list can include constants and expressions.
- 3. A list containing the format of each data item in the stream. This list is called a <u>format_list</u>.

<u>Note</u>: For PRINT OUTPUT files, you may specify the option PAGE or SKIP instead of or in addition to the data list and format list.

For edit-directed transmission, the general format of the GET and PUT statements is as follows:

```
GET FILE (filename) EDIT (data-list)
(format-list);
```

```
PUT FILE (filename)
    { EDIT (data-list) (format-list)
    option
    option EDIT(data-list) (format-list)
    ;
```

whereby option may either be PAGE or SKIP.

The <u>data_specification</u> consists of two parts: the <u>data_list</u> and the <u>format_list</u>. Each must be enclosed in parentheses.

On input, the data list contains one or more variables. Values whose format is described in the format list are assigned to these variables. On <u>output</u>, the data list may, in addition to variables, also contain constants and other expressions. For each item in the data list, the external format that it is to assume is described in the format list of the PUT statement.

The format list contains one or more <u>format_items</u>. There are three types of format items:

- <u>data_format_items</u>, which describe whether data items in the stream are characters or arithmetic values in character form:
- <u>control format items</u>, which describe page-control, line-control, and spacing operations;
- remote format items, which specify the label of a separate statement that contains the format list to be used.

(Format lists and format items are discussed in more detail in <u>Format Lists</u>, below).

For input, data in the stream is considered to be a continuous string of characters not separated into individual data items. The number of characters to be assigned to a variable is specified by the corresponding format item in the format list. The format item also specifies how the associated data item is to be stored internally in character format or as an arithmetic value.

For output, the value of each item in the data list is converted to a format specified by the associated format item and placed in the stream.

For either input or output, the first data-format item in the format list is associated with the first item in the data list, the second data-format item with the second item in the data list, and so forth. If the format list contains fewer format items than there are items in the associated data list, the format list is reused; if there are excessive format items, they are ignored. Suppose a format list contains five data format items and its associated data list specifies ten items to be transmitted, then the sixth item in the data list will be associated with the first data format item, and so forth. Suppose a format list contains ten data format items and its associated data list specifies only

Data Transmission 59

five items, then the sixth through the tenth format items will be ignored.

٠

An array variable in a data list is equivalent to \underline{n} data items in the data list, where \underline{n} is the number of data items in the array. Each of the data items in the array will be associated with a separate use of the data format item (consider the third example below).

Names of major and minor structures must not appear im a data list in Model 20 PL/I.

If a data list is associated with a format list that contains <u>control format</u> <u>items</u>, the control format action is executed before the next data item is paired with the next <u>data format_item</u>. For example, on output, lines or pages are skipped before the next item is printed.

The specified data transmission is complete when the last item in the data list has been processed with its corresponding format item. Subsequent format items, including control format items, are ignored.

On output, each data item occupies precisely the field length specified by its corresponding format item in the format list.

<u>Note</u>: Data in STREAM files is actually transferred in blocks. Thus, when a STREAM file is closed, the last block is transferred regardless of whether or not it is completely filled with data. This may lead to unpredictable results since, in this case, the end of the data may not coincide with the end of the file. You must therefore ensure that the end of the data is clearly identified.

Consider the following examples:

- 2. PUT FILE (OUTPUT) EDIT
 ('INVENTORY='||INUM,INVCODE)
 (A(20), F(5));
- 3. GET FILE (MASTER) EDIT (ARRAY, DATA, SALARY) (20(A(8)),A(6), F(6,2));

The first example specifies that the first 20 characters in the stream are to be treated as a character string (the format item A identifies characters) and assigned to the variable NAME. The next two characters are to be skipped (this is specified by the skipping format item X). The next six characters are to be assigned to DATA in character format; and the next six characters are to be considered as an optionally signed decimal fixed-point constant and assigned to SALARY. F is the data format item for fixed-point arithmetic variables.

The second example specifies that the character string 'INVENTORY=' is to be concatenated with the value of character string INUM and placed in the stream in a field whose width is the length of the resultant string. Then the value of INVCODE is to be treated as an optionally signed decimal fixed-point integer constant and placed in the stream right-adjusted in a field with a width of five characters (leading characters are blank). Note that operational expressions can appear in output data lists only.

Assume that, for the third example, ARRAY has been declared as follows:

DECLARE ARRAY (4,5) CHARACTER (8);

The example specifies that the first 160 characters in the data stream are to be assigned to the variable ARRAY in character format.

DATA LISTS

Edit-directed GET and PUT statements require a data list to specify the data items to be transmitted. The general format of the data list is as follows:

(element [,element]...)

The nature of the elements depends upon whether the data list is used for input or for output. The following rules apply:

- On input, a data-list element can be one of the following: an <u>element vari-</u> <u>able</u> or an <u>array variable</u>, or the <u>SUBSTR pseudo-variable</u>.
- On <u>output</u>, a data list element can be one of the following: an <u>expression</u>, an <u>array variable</u>.
- The elements of a data list must be of arithmetic or character-string data type.
- As shown in the general format, a data list must always be enclosed in parentheses.

<u>Repetitive Specifications in a Data List</u>

Data lists may contain repetitive specifications. Repetitive specifications in a data list are used for the transmission of arrays. The general format of a data list containing reletitive specifications is as follows:

where specification has the following format:

expression_1 [TO expression_2] [BY expression 3]

<u>Note 1</u>: If both options, TO and BY, are present in a data list, TO must occur first. Note also that the control variable must be an arithmetic element variable.

<u>Note_2</u>: Repetitive specifications in data lists may be nested.

The expressions in the specification, which are the same as in a DO statement, are described as follows:

- a) Each expression in the specification is an expression.
- b) In the specification, expression_1 represents the starting value of the control variable. Expression_3 represents the increment to be added to the control variable after each repetition of the DO-group. Expression_2 represents the terminating value of the control variable.

Consider the following example:

DO I = 1 TO 10 BY 2

In this expression, I is the control variable, 1 is the starting value of the control variable (expression_1), 10 is is the terminating value of the control variable (expression_2), and 2 is the increment to be added to the control variable after each repetition (expression_3).

Repetitive specifications in data lists may be nested. Each DO portion must be delimited on the right with a right parenthesis (with its matching left parenthesis added to the beginning of the list element to be repeated).

When repetitive specifications are nested, the <u>rightmost DO</u> is at the <u>outer</u> <u>level of nesting</u> (DO I = 1 TO 2 in the example below).

Consider the following example:

DCL A (2,5,10);

GET FILE(INPUT) EDIT
 ((((A(I,J,K) DO K = 1 TO 10 BY 5)
 DO J = 1 TO 5) DO I = 1 TO 2))
 (format-list);

In this example, every fifth element of a three-dimensional array of 100 elements in main storage is filled with a data item from the input stream. Note the four sets of parentheses: The outermost set is required by the data list; the second set is required by the outer repetition, the third by the second repetition etc. The sequence of elements transmitted is equivalent to the sequence of elements that would be transmitted if following nested DO group were executed:

```
DO I = 1 TO 2;

DO J = 1 TO 5;

DO K = 1 TO 10 BY 5;

GET FILE (INPUT) EDIT

(A(I,J,K)) (format-list);

END;
```

END;

This nested DO-group gives values to the elements of the array A in the following order:

A(1,1,1), A(1,1,6), A(1,2,1), A(1,2,6), ...

<u>Note</u>: Although the DO keyword is used in the data list, a corresponding END statement is not allowed. Note also that a nest of repetitions in a GET or PUT statement must not contain more than three repetitions.

If a data list element is an array name (that is, a name without subscripts), the elements of that array are transmitted beginning with the first element in the array and proceeding until the last element has been transmitted.

Consider the following example:

GET FILE(INPUT) EDIT (A) (format-list);

If we consider A to be declared as above, data items from the stream are transmitted to the elements of A in the following order:

A (1, 1, 1), A (1, 1, 2), A (1, 1, 3), ... A (1, 1, 10), A (1, 2, 1)... A (1, 5, 10), A (2, 1, 1), A (2, 1, 2), ... A (2, 5, 10)

If, in a data list used in an input statement for edit-directed transmission, a variable is assigned a value, this new value is used if the variable appears in a later reference in the data list. For example:

GET FILE(INPUT) EDIT
 (N,X,J,SUBSTR(NAME,J,5))(format-list);

When this statement is executed, data is transmitted and assigned in the following order (assuming X is a two-by-two array):

Data Transmission 61

- 1. A new value is assigned to N.
- Elements are assigned to the array X in the order X(1,1), X(1,2), X(2,1), and X(2,2).
- 3. A new value is assigned to J.
- A substring of length 5 is assigned to the string variable NAME beginning at the Jth character.

FORMAT LISTS

Each edit-directed data list requires its own format list. The format list immediately follows its associated data list in the GET or PUT statement and has the following general format:

```
GET FILE (filename)EDIT
  (data-list) (format-list);
```

where <u>format list</u> is defined as:

(item)	[,item]
<pre>{n item ></pre>	,n item
(n(format-list))	,n(format-list)

In the general format, <u>item</u> represents a format item of any of the types described below. The letter <u>n</u> represents an iteration factor, which must be an unsigned decimal integer constant. A blank or left parenthesis must separate the constant and the following item or format list, respectively. The iteration factor specifies that the associated, that is, the immediately following format item or format list is to be used <u>n</u> successive times.

There are three types of format items: data format items, control format items, and the remote format item.

<u>Data format items</u> specify whether data in the stream are characters or arithmetic values in character format.

<u>Control format items</u> specify pageskipping, line-skipping, and spacing operations. The page-skipping format item (PAGE) can only be used for files having the PRINT attribute. The line-skipping and spacing format items (SKIP and X, respectively) can be used for both PRINT and non-PRINT files, including input files.

<u>Note</u>: For files having the attribute PRINT, the PAGE and SKIP format items can also be used outside the format list as an option of the PUT statement. (See the description of the PUT statement in Part II, <u>Statements</u>). The <u>remote format item</u> allows reference to format items specified in a separate FORMAT statement elsewhere in the procedure.

Detailed discussions of the various types of format items appear in Part II of this publication, in the section <u>Edit-</u> <u>Directed Format Items</u>. The following discussions show how you may use format items in edit-directed data specifications.

<u>Data_Format_Items</u>

On input, each data-format item specifies the <u>number of characters</u> to be associated with the data item and whether to interpret the external data as <u>arithmetic</u> or character-string data. The data item is assigned to the associated variable named in the data list, with necessary conversion to conform to the attributes of the variable (arithmetic data in the stream is in character representation and is converted to fixed-point or floating-point representation where applicable). On output, the value of the associated element in the data list is converted, where necessary, to the character representation specified by the format item and is inserted into the data stream.

There are three <u>data-format items</u>:

- the F-item for fixed-point data,
- the E-item for floating-point data, and
- The A-item for character-string data.

The specifications used with the format items are discussed in detail in Part II, in the section <u>Edit-Directed Format_Items</u>.

The following examples discuss the use of format items:

1. GET FILE (INPUT) EDIT (ITEM) (A(20));

This statement causes the next 20 characters in the file called INPUT to be assigned to ITEM, which must be a character-string variable. If it is not a character-string variable, an error results.

2. PUT FILE (MASKFL) EDIT (TOTAL)
 (F(6,2));

Assume TOTAL has the attributes FIXED (4,2); then the above statement specifies that the value of TOTAL is to be converted to the character representation of a fixed-point number and written into the output file MASKFL. A decimal point is to be inserted before the last two numeric characters. The number will be right-adjusted in a

62 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

field of six characters. Leading zeros more than one digit to the left of the decimal point will be changed to blanks, and, if necessary, a minus sign will be placed to the left of the first numeric character. If a minus sign appears, it will replace one leading blank. Consequently, the F(6,2) specification will always allow all digits, the point, and a possible sign to appear.

3. GET FILE (A) EDIT (ESTIMATE) (E(10,6));

This statement obtains the next ten characters from the file called A and interprets them as a floating-point decimal number. A decimal point is assumed before the rightmost six digits of the mantissa. An actual point within the data will override this assumption. The value of the number is converted to the attributes of ESTIMATE and assigned to this variable.

4. GET FILE (A) EDIT (NAME, TOTAL) (A(5), F(4,0));

When this statement is executed, the first five characters read are assigned to the variable NAME. The next four characters containing possible leading and/or trailing blanks, are then assigned to the variable TOTAL.

<u>Control_Format_Items</u>

Control-format items comprise the following types:

- the spacing format item \underline{X} ,
- the <u>PAGE</u> format item, and
- the <u>SKIP</u> format item.

The spacing format item X specifies relative spacing in the data stream. It can be used with PRINT and non-PRINT files, in GET as well as PUT statements.

The printing format item PAGE can be used only for PRINT files and, consequently, appear only in PUT statements. It specifies that printing is to continue on a new page.

The format item SKIP can be used with PRINT and non-PRINT files, in GET as well as PUT statements. For <u>output</u>, it specifies that printing is to continue on a new line (or, with non-PRINT files, output has to start with a new logical record). For <u>input</u>, it specifies that the remainder of a logical record (the size of which is specified in the file declaration) is to be skipped and reading is to continue at the beginning of the next one. The format items X and SKIP generally include decimal integer constants, which specify the width of the field to be spaced over, or the number of lines or records to be skipped.

The following examples illustrate the use of the control format items:

> This statement treats the next 15 characters from the input file IN as follows: the first five characters are assigned to NUMBER, the next five characters are spaced over and ignored, and the following five characters are assigned to REBATE.

2. PUT FILE (OUT) EDIT (PART, COUNT) (A (4), X (2), F (5));

> This statement places in the file named OUT four characters that represent the value of PART, then two blank characters, and finally five characters that represent the integer value of COUNT.

- The following example shows the combined use of control format items in an output file.
 - PUT FILE (OUT)EDIT
 ('QUARTERLY STATEMENT')
 (PAGE, SKIP(2), A(19));
 - PUT FILE (OUT) EDIT
 (ACCT#, BOUGHT, SOLD, PAYMENT,
 BALANCE)
 (SKIP (3), A (6), X (7), F (7, 2), X (8),
 F (7, 2), X (7),
 F (7, 2), X (7), F (7, 2));

The first PUT statement specifies that the heading QUARTERLY STATEMENT is to be written starting with the first character position on line three of a new page in the file OUT. The second statement specifies that two lines are to be skipped (that is, "skip to the third following line") and the value of ACCT# is to be written, beginning at the first character position of the sixth line; the value of BOUGHT is to be written in the same line after skipping 7 character positions; the value of SOLD after skipping 8 character positions, beginning at character position 29, etc.

<u>Note</u>: The number of lines specified in the SKIP format item must not exceed 3.

 The following statements show the use of the SKIP and X format items in a GET statement.

Data Transmission 63

GET FILE(IN) EDIT (PART, SEQUENCE) (SKIP,X(1),A(71),A(8));

GET FILE(IN) EDIT (DETAIL) (X(19),F(15,2));

The SKIP format item in the first GET statement specifies that reading is to continue with the next record. The X(1) format item specifies that the first character of this record is to be skipped and that characters 2 to 72 are to be assigned to the variable PART, and characters 73 to 80 to the variable SEQUENCE.

The second GET statement specifies that the first 19 characters of an input record are to be skipped, and that the next 15 characters are to be assigned to the variable DETAIL.

<u>Note</u>: Control format items are executed at the time they are encountered in the format list. Any control-format item that appears in the format list but has not yet been processed when the data list is exhausted, will have no effect.

<u>Remote_Format_Item</u>

The remote format item (R) specifies the label of a FORMAT statement (or a label variable whose value is the label of a FORMAT statement) located elsewhere; the FORMAT statement and the GET or PUT statement specifying the remote format item must appear in the same procedure. The FORMAT statement contains the remotely situated format items. This facility permits the choice of different format specifications at execution time, as illustrated by the following example:

```
DECLARE SWITCH LABEL;
GET FILE(IN) EDIT (CODE) (F(1));
IF CODE = 1
THEN SWITCH = L1;
ELSE SWITCH = L2;
GET FILE(IN) EDIT (W,X,Y,Z)
(R(SWITCH));
L1: FORMAT (4 F(8,3));
L2: FORMAT (4 E(12,6));
```

SWITCH has been declared to be a label variable. The first GET statement reads a code. This code is tested and, depending on the result, the label variable SWITCH is assigned the value L1 or L2. Thus, the second GET statement can use either of the two FORMAT statements, depending on the current value of SWITCH and, hence, depending on the code that has been read by the first GET.

Another advantage of the remote format item is that it allows many GET/PUT statements to share the same format list.

64 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

<u>Note</u>: If the format list contains a remote format item that is contained in a replication nest, the remote format item must not be at a depth greater than 2.

PAGE LAYOUT FOR PRINT FILES

The overall layout of a page in a file that has the PRINT attribute is controlled by means of the PAGESIZE option of the OPEN statement.

For example:

DECLARE REPORT FILE OUTPUT PRINT ENVIRONMENT (option-list);

OPEN FILE (REPORT) PAGESIZE (55);

The specification PAGESIZE(55) indicates that each page should contain a maximum of 55 lines. An attempt to write on a page after 55 lines have already been written (or skipped) will raise the ENDPAGE condition. The standard system action for the ENDPAGE condition is to skip to a new page, but the programmer can establish his own action through use of the ON statement.

The ENDPAGE condition is raised only once per page. Consequently, printing can be continued beyond the specified PAGESIZE after the ENDPAGE condition has been raised. This can be useful, for example, if a footing is to be written at the bottom of a page. Consider the following example:

```
ON ENDPAGE (REPORT) GO TO FOOT;

.

FOOT: PUT FILE(REPORT) SKIP EDIT

(FOOTING) (A);

PUT FILE (REPORT) PAGE;

N = N + 1;

PUT FILE(REPORT) EDIT ('PAGE ',N)

(A,F(3));

PUT FILE(REPORT) SKIP (3);

GO TO NEXT;
```

Assume that REPORT has been opened with PAGESIZE (55), as shown in the previous example. When an attempt is made to write on line 56 (or to skip beyond line 55), the ENDPAGE condition will arise, and the GO TO FOOT statement will be executed. The first PUT statement specifies that a line is to be skipped, and the value of FOOTING, a character string, is to be printed on line 57 (when ENDPAGE arises, the current line is always PAGESIZE + 1). The second PUT statement causes a skip to the next page and the ENDPAGE counter is automatically reset for the new page. The page number (N) is incremented, and the character string 'PAGE ' and the new page number N are printed. Note that a blank is included as part of the character string to separate the word from the page number. The F(3) is a format item and allows the page number to go as high as 999. (Format items are discussed in Part II, under <u>Edit-Directed For-</u><u>mat_Items</u>). The final PUT statement causes two lines to be skipped, so that the next printing will be on line 4. The GO TO NEXT; statement transfers control to the statement labeled NEXT.

The maximum number of characters to be printed on each line (i.e., the line size) is equal to the fixed-length record size specified in the ENVIRONMENT attribute for the file minus one. If you try to write more than the maximum number of characters specified in one line, i.e., without skipping to a new line or page, the excess characters will automatically be placed on the next line.

The PAGESIZE option can be specified only for a file with the PRINT attribute, and it can be specified only in the OPEN statement. The default value for PAGESIZE is 60 lines.

SUMMARY OF STREAM I/O STATEMENTS

The following is a summary of the I/O statements used with STREAM transmission, along with their options, according to file attributes (the statements are discussed individually in detail in Part II, under <u>Statements</u>).

STREAM INPUT:

GET FILE (filename) EDIT (data-list) (format-list);

STREAM_OUTPUT:

PUT FILE(filename)EDIT
 (data-list)(format-list);

STREAM_OUTPUT_PRINT:

PUT FILE (filename) (EDIT(data-list)(format-list) PAGE SKIP(n) PAGE EDIT(data-list)(format-list) SKIP(n) EDIT(data-list)(format-list)

Format lists may contain the following format items:

- A, E, F which may be used for any STREAM file
- PAGE which may be used only with STREAM OUTPUT PRINT files

- SKIP,X which may be used with any STREAM file
- R which may be used with any STREAM file

RECORD-ORIENTED TRANSMISSION

Files that contain discrete records or which are to be created as a collection of discrete records, may be manipulated with record-oriented input/output statements. These statements are READ, WRITE, REWRITE, and LOCATE.

A general description of these statements is contained in this section. They are described completely in Part II, in the section <u>Statements</u>.

Each record obtained from a file or transferred to a file is defined in terms of data attributes of a variable (usually a structure). For input, the record is obtained from the input file and assigned, without conversion, to the variable. For <u>output</u>, the data is transmitted without conversion to the output file.

The variable whose value is transmitted from or to a file can be

- (1) an element variable that is
 - not part of an array or structure,
 not a label or pointer variable;
- (2) a structure of level 1, i.e., a major structure.

RECORD I/O STATEMENTS

There are four RECORD I/O statements you can use for data transmission. They are:

READ WRITE REWRITE LOCATE

These I/O statements can be used only in combination with options. The options are: for the READ statement FILE, INTO, SET, and KEY; for the WRITE statement FILE, FROM and KEYFROM; for the REWRITE statement FILE, FROM and KEY; for the LOCATE statement FILE and SET. Each option, its use and its purpose in the pertinent I/O statement, is individually discussed below.

The type of I/O statement and option(s) that you select to transmit a record depends on

Data Transmission 65

- (1) the form in which the file is organized on the external medium (CONSECUTIVE or INDEXED);
- (2) the method you want to use to access the file (SEQUENTIAL or DIRECT);
- (3) the type of activity for which you want to use the file (INPUT, OUTPUT, or UPDATE);
- (4) the area in main storage which is to be allocated to the variable containing the record (an I/O buffer set aside by the compiler as a result of the BUFFERS option in the ENVIRONMENT attribute, or a separate area elsewhere in main storage).

The READ statement with the INTO option causes a record to be transmitted from the file to a variable allocated in STATIC or AUTOMATIC storage. You can use it with any INPUT or UPDATE file. In case of blocked records, the READ statement provides for automatic deblocking, so that in your program, you are always concerned with logical records only.

The READ statement with the SET option is used to read a record from a CONSECUTIVE INPUT or UPDATE file if it is desired to operate upon input data in a buffer. This saves main-storage space. The record is made accessible within the buffer by use of a pointer which is set automatically by the SET option to point to the desired logical record in the buffer. For further details, refer to the <u>SET option</u> below.

The WRITE statement causes a record to be transmitted from main storage to the file. It can be used with any OUTPUT file, and with DIRECT UPDATE, but <u>not</u> with SEQUENTIAL UPDATE. For blocked records, the WRITE statement causes a logical record to be placed into a buffer. Only when the blocking of the record is complete, is there actual physical output.

The REWRITE statement causes a record to be replaced in an UPDATE file on a directaccess storage device. For SEQUENTIAL UPDATE files, the REWRITE statement specifies that the last record read from the file is to be rewritten in place. For DIRECT UPDATE files, the REWRITE statement must specify a key; consequently, any record can be rewritten whether or not it has first been read.

The LOCATE statement, which must always have the SET option specified, is used to create an output record in a buffer. The logical record to be created in the output buffer is accessed by means of a pointer that is automatically set by the SET option. For further details refer to the <u>SET Option</u> in this section. The LOCATE statement with the SET option can be used only with CONSECUTIVE OUTPUT files.

OPTIONS OF RECORD I/O STATEMENTS

The options you may use in RECORD I/O statements differ according to the attributes of the associated file and the purpose of the statement. A list of all the allowed combinations for each type of file is given later in this section.

Each option consists of a $\underline{keyword}$ followed by a parenthesized specification.

The_FILE_Option

The FILE option (also called the FILE specification) specifies the name of the file upon which the operation is to take place. It must appear as the first option in every RECORD I/O statement, and consists of the keyword FILE, followed by the filename enclosed in parentheses. An example of the FILE option is shown in each of the statements in this section.

<u>The_INTO_Option</u>

The INTO option specifies a variable to which the logical record is to be assigned. It can be used in the READ statement for any type of INPUT or UPDATE file. The variable can be a based variable, if the associated pointer variable has a value. Consider the following statement:

READ FILE (DETAIL) INTO (RECORD_1);

This specifies that the next sequential record is to be assigned to the variable RECORD_1.

The SET Option

The SET option sets a pointer variable so that it points to a logical record in a buffer. It can be used with the READ statement for CONSECUTIVE INPUT or UPDATE files. It is also used with the LOCATE statement for CONSECUTIVE OUTPUT files. Note that it cannot be used with KEYED files. Consider the following examples:

DECLARE REC_ID POINTER; DECLARE 1 MASTER_RECORD BASED (REC_ID), 2 IDENTIFICATION CHARACTER (10), 2 NAME CHARACTER (30), 2 ADDRESS, 3 STREET CHARACTER (15), 3 CITY CHARACTER (15), 3 STATE CHARACTER (15), 3 ZIP CHARACTER (5); READ FILE (MASTER) SET (REC_ID);

66 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

This example specifies that the next record from the file MASTER is to be read and that the pointer variable REC_ID is to be set (automatically) to point to that record in the I/O buffer. If the logical record is part of a record block and is not the first record in the block, the actual result of the statement will be merely to set the value of the pointer to point to the next logical record in the block. The value of REC_ID must be associated with a BASED variable, so that the fields of the record can be accessed.

The name MASTER_RECORD is the based variable that is used to describe a record located in a buffer. Fields of the record must conform to the attributes declared for MASTER_RECORD. REC_ID is the pointer variable that identifies the position of MASTER RECORD within the buffer. The pointer variable is declared explicitly.

After reading a record from the file MASTER, the structure declaration MASTER_RECORD is "overlaid" on the buffer so that you can access the data in it and process them by using the names declared in the based structure. The statements

LOCATE MASTER_RECORD FILE (PAYROLL) SET (REC_ID); MASTER_RECORD=PAYRECORD;

specify that the based variable MASTER_RECORD is to be allocated storage in a buffer and that its location is to be assigned to the pointer variable REC_ID, which must have been declared as the pointer to the based variable as shown above. If the record MASTER_RECORD is part of a record block, the next LOCATE statement may only allocate storage in the buffer to the next logical record in the same block. The record is actually written when the block is completed by a LOCATE or WRITE statement, or by a following CLOSE statement regardless of whether or not the block is complete.

After setting the jointer in the LOCATE statement, you have to assign to the associated based variable the data items in the record which is to be stored in the output buffer, as shown in the second statement above.

The pointer REC_ID is set to point to the location of the based variable MASTER_RECORD in the output buffer. Then the data items that are to be transmitted are assigned to the based variable in the assignment statement.

Both MASTER_RECORD and PAYRECORD must have identical structuring and attributes.

Based variables may be element variables, structure variables, or array variables.

<u>The_FROM_Option</u>

The FROM option must be used in the WRITE statement for any OUTPUT file and in the WRITE or REWRITE statement for a DIRECT UPDATE file. You may also use it in the REWRITE statement for a SEQUENTIAL UPDATE file. The FROM option specifies the variable from which the record is to be written. Consider the following statements.

WRITE FILE (MASTER) FROM (MAS_REC); REWRITE FILE (MASTER) FROM (MAS_REC);

Both statements specify that the value of the variable MAS_REC is to be written into the file MASTER. In the case of the WRITE statement, it specifies a new record in a SEQUENTIAL OUTPUT file.

The REWRITE statement specifies that MAS_REC is to replace the last record read from a SEQUENTIAL UPDATE file.

The KEY Option

The KEY option applies only to files of INDEXED organization. The "key" is the control field in the record i.e., the field according to which the file is organized. The KEY option must be used in the READ and REWRITE (or WRITE) statements for DIRECT files with the INPUT or UPDATE attribute. You may use the KEY option in the READ statement of SEQUENTIAL files with the INPUT or UPDATE attribute and INDEXED organization. Any file for which the KEY option is used must have the KEYED attribute.

If a REWRITE is executed for an INDEXED file you must ensure that the key portion of the record is not changed.

If an INDEXED file is being read sequentially, the KEY option can be used to position the file at a specific record. Subsequent READ statements without the KEY option will cause sequential reading to continue from that point in the file.

Keys for INDEXED SEQUENTIAL OUTPUT files must be in ascending sequence.

The KEY option consists of the keyword <u>KEY</u> followed by a parenthesized expression, which is a <u>source key</u> that identifies a particular record. The expression must be a <u>character string</u> whose length is adjusted to the length specified in the KEYLENGTH option of the ENVIRONMENT attribute. The source key must exactly match the <u>recorded</u> <u>key</u> in the file. The recorded key is embedded in the data part of each logical record. The key location within the record

Data Transmission 67

must be specified in the KEYLOC(n) option of the ENVIRONMENT attribute.

The expression in the KEY option must result in a valid key. Consider the following statements:

READ FILE (MASTER) INTO (PAY_REC) KEY (NAME); REWRITE FILE (MASTER) FROM (PAY_REC) KEY (NAME);

The first statement specifies that the record of the file MASTER with a key identical to the value of the variable NAME is to be read into the variable PAY_REC.

The second statement specifies that the record of the file MASTER with a key identical to the value of the variable NAME is to be updated.

The KEYFROM Oftion

The KEYFROM option is used only for files of INDEXED organization. You may use it in a WRITE statement to create or extend an INDEXED OUTPUT file or to add new records to an INDEXED UPDATE file. Consequently, it can appear in a WRITE statement for an INDEXED SEQUENTIAL OUTPUT file or for an INDEXED DIRECT UPDATE file. It cannot be used for files with the CONSECUTIVE attribute. Any file for which the KEYFROM option is specified must have the KEYED attribute.

If a WRITE is executed for a file with INDEXED organization, the key value specified in the KEYFROM option is moved automatically to the position in the record specified by KEYLOC (in the ENVIRONMENT attribute).

The KEYFROM option specifies the logical location, within the file, where the record is to be written. It specifies the recorded key, whose value is used to determine the location. It is written with the keyword KEYFROM followed by a parenthesized expression. The expression always has to result in a character string. The length of the recorded key has to be specified in the KEYLENGTH option of the ENVIRONMENT attribute. Consider the following example:

WRITE FILE (PAYROLL) FROM (PAY_REC) KEYFROM (NAME||ADDRESS);

This statement specifies that the value of PAY_REC is to be written into the location specified by the value of the character-string variable NAME concatenated with the character-string variable ADDRESS. The <u>source_key</u> is to be a concatenation of the value of NAME and the value of ADDRESS, and is to be written as the <u>recorded_key</u>. SUMMARY OF RECORD I/O STATEMENTS AND ASSOCIATED OPTIONS

This section provides a summary of the allowed RECORD I/O statements, along with their options, according to file attributes.

CONSECUTIVE_INPUT:

READ FILE (filename)INTO(variable); READ FILE (filename)SET(pointer-variable);

CONSECUTIVE_OUTPUT:

WRITE FILE (filename)FROM (variable); LOCATE variable FILE (filename) SET(pointer-variable);

CONSECUTIVE UPDATE:

READ FILE(filename) INTO(variable); READ FILE(filename)SET(pointer-variable); REWRITE FILE(filename); REWRITE FILE(filename)FROM(variable);

INDEXED_SEQUENTIAL_INPUT:

READ FILE (filename) INTO (variable) [KEY (expression)];

```
INDEXED_SEQUENTIAL_OUTPUT:
```

WRITE FILE(file-name)FROM(variable) KEYFROM(expression);

INDEXED_SEQUENTIAL_UPDATE:

READ FILE (filename) INTO (variable) [KEY (expression)];

REWRITE FILE (filename) FROM (variable);

INDEXED_DIRECT_INPUT:

READ FILE(filename) INTO(variable)KEY(expression);

INDEXED_DIRECT_UPDATE:

- READ FILE (filename) INTO (variable) KEY (expression);
- REWRITE FILE (filename) FROM (variable) KEY (expression);
- WRITE FILE(filename) FROM (variable)KEYFROM (expression);

NOTES ON FILE ORGANIZATION AND ACCESS METHODS USED WITH RECORD-ORIENTED TRANSMISSION

The following points cover the salient environmental factors in the use of RECORD transmission:

- <u>SEQUENTIAL</u> specifies that the accessing, creation, or modification of the records in a file is performed in a particular order, that is, from the first record of the file to the last (or from the last to the first if the BACKWARDS attribute has been specified).
- 2. <u>DIRECT</u> specifies that the accessing or modification of the records in a file is performed in random order. The particular record to be operated upon is identified by a specified key.
- 3. A file of INDEXED organization that is accessed, created, or modified by the SEQUENTIAL access method has recorded keys. The keys may be ignored while accessing sequentially. The way to create a file containing recorded keys is as an INDEXED SEQUENTIAL OUTPUT file. It is then written in INDEXED organization and can later be accessed by either the SEQUENTIAL or the DIRECT method.
- 4. INDEXED SEQUENTIAL INPUT and INDEXED SEQUENTIAL UPDATE files may be positioned to a particular record within the file by a READ operation that specifies the key of the desired record. Thereafter, successive READ statements without the KEY option will cause sequential reading to continue from that point in the file. This kind of accessing may be used only if the KEYED attribute is specified in the file declaration.

- 5. Existing records of a SEQUENTIAL UPDATE file can be rewritten, modified, or ignored, but the number of records cannot be increased or decreased. An existing record in an UPDATE file is replaced through the use of a REWRITE statement.
- 6. The FROM option in a REWRITE statement for a SEQUENTIAL UPDATE file must name the variable from which the data is to be rewritten.
- 7. If the READ INTO option is used with a CONSECUTIVE UPDATE file and the next REWRITE statement does not make use of the FROM option, the record in the file is not updated.
- 8. A WRITE statement adds a new record to a file, while a REWRITE statement replaces an existing record. Thus, WRITE statement may be used with OUTPUT files and INDEXED DIRECT UPDATE files, but a REWRITE statement may be used with UPDATE files only. Moreover, for INDEXED DIRECT UPDATE files, a REWRITE statement uses the KEY option to identify the existing record to be replaced; a WRITE statement uses the KEYFROM option, which not only specifies where the record is to be written in the file, but also specifies an identifying key to be recorded in the file.

Editing and Character-String Handling

The data manipulations that can be performed by arithmetic, comparison and the concatenation operations are extended in PL/I by a variety of character-string handling and editing features. These features are specified by data attributes, statement options, built-in functions, and the pseudo-variable SUBSTR.

Following is a general description of each feature, along with illustrative examples.

Editing by Assignment

The most fundamental form of editing performed by assignment is the conversion of the value assigned to a field to a form that agrees with the attributes of the receiving field. By making the assigned value conform to the attributes of the receiving field, the type, precision, or length of the assigned value may be changed. Such alteration can involve the addition of digits or characters to, and the deletion of digits or characters from the converted item.

THE ASSIGNMENT STATEMENT

A simple assignment statement can be used for the type of "editing" described above.

Type_Conversion

Consider the following example:

```
DCL A DECIMAL FIXED (5,2),
PROD DECIMAL FLOAT (8);
```

Assume that PROD has obtained a value in a statement preceding the assignment statement. This value would then be stored in PROD according to the attributes declared for PROD. The assignment statement causes the value of PROD to be converted to a fixed-decimal value and to be stored in A.

<u>Altering the Length of Character-String</u> <u>Data</u>

When a character-string value is assigned to a character-string variable, it is, if necessary, truncated or extended on the right to conform to the declared length of the receiving variable. For example, assume SUBJECT has the attribute CHARACTER(10), indicating a character string of ten characters. Consider the following statement:

SUBJECT = 'TRANSFORMATIONS';

The length of the string on the right is fifteen characters; therefore, the string will be truncated on the right so that the last five characters are lost when it is assigned to SUBJECT. This is equivalent to executing:

SUBJECT = 'TRANSFORMA';

If the assigned string is shorter than the length declared for the receiving character-string variable, the assigned string is extended on the right with blank characters. Assume that SUBJECT still has the attribute CHARACTER (10). Then the following two statements assign equivalent values to SUBJECT:

SUBJECT = 'PHYSICS'; SUBJECT = 'PHYSICSbbb';

The letter <u>b</u> indicates a blank character.

OTHER FORMS OF ASSIGNMENT

In addition to the assignment statement, PL/I provides two other ways of assignment that involve editing. Both of them use GET and PUT statements. In one of them actual input and output operations are performed, while in the other data movement is entirely internal.

Assignment_by_STREAM_I/O

STREAM I/O operations can be treated as a form of assignment, although transmission occurs between the internal and external storage facilities of the computer.

Stream-oriented I/O operations provide a variety of editing functions that are applied when data items are read or written. These editing functions are similar to those of the assignment statement, except that any data conversion always involves character type: conversion from character type on input, and conversion to character type on output.

<u>Note</u>: Record-oriented I/O operations do not cause any data conversion of items in a logical record when it is transmitted. Required editing of the record must be per-

A = PROD;

formed within internal storage either before the record is written or after it is read.

<u>Assignment_by_Using_the_STRING_Option_in</u> the_GET_and_PUT_Statements

With the STRING option in the GET and PUT statements you can cause transmission of data between main storage locations rather than between the main storage and external storage facilities. In GET and PUT statements, the FILE option, specified by FILE (filename), is replaced by the STRING option, as shown in the following general format:

GET STRING (character-string-variable) EDIT (data-list) (format-list);

PUT STRING (character-string-variable) EDIT (data-list) (format-list);

The <u>GET_statement</u> specifies that data items to be assigned to variables in the data list are to be obtained from the specified character-string variable. The <u>PUT</u> <u>statement</u> specifies that data items of the data list are to be assigned to the specified character-string variable.

The STRING option is used with editdirected transmission, which considers the character-string variable to be a continuous string of characters. This option permits data gathering or scattering operations to be performed with a single statement, and it allows stream-oriented processing of character strings that are transmitted by record-oriented statements.

Consider the following statement:

PUT STRING (RECORD) EDIT (NAME, PAY#, HOURS*RATE) (A (12), A (7), F (8));

This statement specifies that the character-string value of NAME is to be assigned to the first (leftmost) 12 character positions of the string named RECORD, and that the character-string value of PAY# is to be assigned to the next seven character positions of RECORD. The value of HOURS is then multiplied by the value of RATE, and the product is to be handled like F-format output and assigned to the next eight character positions of RECORD.

Frequently, it is necessary to read records of different formats, each of which carries with it an indication of its format in the form of a code. The STRING option provides an easy way to handle such records; for example:

READ FILE (INPTR) INTO (TEMP); GET STRING (TEMP) EDIT (CODE) (F(1)); IF CODE $_{1}=1$ THEN GO TO OTHER_TYPE; GET STRING (TEMP) EDIT(X,Y,Z) (X(1), 3 F(10,4));

The READ statement reads a record from the input file INPTR. The first GET statement uses the STRING option to extract the code from the first byte of the record and to assign it to CODE using an F-format item. The code is tested to determine the format of the record. If the code is 1, the second GET statement then uses the STRING option to assign the items in the record to X, Y, and Z. Note that the second GET statement specifies that the first character in the string TEMP is to be ignored (the X(1) format item in the format list). Each GET statement with the STRING option always specifies that the scanning is to begin at the first character of the string. Thus, the character that is ignored in the second GET statement is the same character that is assigned to CODE by the first GET statement.

In a similar way, the PUT statement with a STRING option can be used to create a record within main storage. In the following example, assume that the file OUTPRT is eventually to be printed.

The X(1) in the format list of the PUT statement specifies that the first character assigned to the character-string variable RECORD is to be a blank, which means "skip two lines", when the file eventually is printed. Following that, the values of the variables NAME and PAY# and of the expression HOURS * RATE are assigned. The format list specifies that ten blank characters are to be inserted between NAME and PAY# and between PAY# and the expression value. The WRITE statement is used to write the record into the file OUTPRT.

The PICTURE Specification

The editing capabilities associated with data assignment, namely, conversion to a specified data type with accompanying truncation and/or padding, can be extended by use of the picture specification. A picture specification consists of a sequence of character codes (picture characters) that specify editing operations to be performed on numeric character values. (A detailed discussion of each picture character, together with examples of its use, appears in Part II of this publication, in the section <u>Picture-Specification Characters</u>. The following discussions are concerned with general principles that govern the use of the picture specification).

A picture specification is used to describe <u>numeric-character data</u>, which is data that represents a numeric value. It is therefore also referred to as a numericcharacter variable.

A picture specification is always enclosed in apostrophes and is used with a PICTURE attribute in a DECLARE statement:

DECLARE PAYMT PICTURE '\$999V.99';

In addition to the picture character 9 (which is used to represent a digit), picture specifications can contain other picture characters that are used to edit numeric-character data. The general functions performed by these additional picture characters are described in <u>Editing</u> <u>Numeric-Character Data</u> below.

As opposed to character-string variables, for which assignment is always from left to right and padding and truncation are on the right, assignment to a numeric-character variable depends upon the location of the assumed decimal point (specified by the picture character V). Values assigned to numeric-character variables are always <u>point-aligned</u>.

VALUES OF NUMERIC-CHARACTER VARIABLES

The value of a numeric-character variable can be interpreted in two ways, either as an arithmetic value or as a characterstring value.

For a numeric-character variable described with a picture specification that contains only the picture character 9 (one or more times), the arithmetic value is the value expressed by the character string, that is, a decimal integer.

If, however, editing characters are included in the picture specification, the arithmetic value and the character-string value are usually different. Editing characters are actually stored internally in the specified positions of the variable. The editing characters then are considered to be part of the character-string value of the variable; they are not, however, a part of its <u>arithmetic value</u>, which involves only decimal digits, the assumed location of a decimal point, and the sign (if present).

If the value of a numeric-character variable is assigned to another numericcharacter variable or to a coded arithmetic variable, only the arithmetic value is assigned. In the assignment to a coded arithmetic variable (or in the appearance of a numeric-character variable in an arithmetic-expression operation), conversion to coded arithmetic is performed.

If the value of a numeric-character variable is assigned to a character-string variable, no actual conversion is necessary, and any specified editing characters are included in the assignment.

An ordinary character-string variable (specified with the CHARACTER attribute) can be defined on a numeric-character variable, using the DEFINED attribute specification. Any reference to the characterstring variable then is a reference to the character-string value of the numericcharacter variable. For example:

```
DECLARE A PICTURE '$999V.99',
B CHARACTER (7) DEFINED A,
C DECIMAL FIXED (5,2);
A = 128.76;
C = A;
```

After the constant is assigned to A, its <u>arithmetic value</u> is <u>128.76</u>. This is the value that is assigned to C (after conversion to internal coded arithmetic). The <u>character-string value</u> of A, however, is <u>§128.76</u>; if it were assigned to a character-string variable with a length of 7 or greater, this is the value that would be assigned. The same value, \$128.76, is the value of B, since a character string defined on a numeric-character variable represents the character-string value of the numeric-character variable.

No arithmetic variable (except another identical numeric-character variable) can be defined on a numeric-character variable without causing an error.

EDITING_NUMERIC-CHARACTER_DATA

The basic picture character of a numericcharacter field is 9. Consider the following example:

DECLARE COUNT PICTURE '99999';

Although COUNT is a string of five characters, it can only contain numeric digits; it is a numeric-character variable whose value can be interpreted as a fivedigit unsigned fixed-point decimal integer. Unless specified otherwise (with the picture character V), a decimal point is always assumed to be at the right end of a numeric-character variable. Assume, for example, that COUNT as declared above appears in the following assignment statement:

COUNT = 123.45;

72 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I
When the assignment is performed, the decimal point of the constant is aligned on the assumed point declared for the numericcharacter variable, and the two rightmost digits are lost. Two zero digits are then inserted on the left side. The effect of the above assignment therefore, is equivalent to that of the following statement:

COUNT = 00123;

With the ficture character V, you can specify an assumed decimal point to be anywhere in a numeric-character variable:

DECLARE TOTAL PICTURE '999V99';

Here the value of TOTAL is interpreted as a string of five characters representing a five-digit unsigned fixed-point decimal number with two fractional digits. The decimal point of a value assigned to TOTAL will be aligned between the third and fourth digit positions as specified by the picture character V. Consequently, the following two assignment statements are equivalent:

TOTAL = 123; TOTAL = 123.00;

Note, however, that TOTAL contains only five characters. The picture character V does not specify an actual character position in the numeric-character field; it is used only to align decimal points. And if TOTAL were converted to a character string and then printed, no decimal point would appear in the printed field; its characterstring value does not include a decimal point.

A picture specification can contain a decimal-point insertion character (.). It merely indicates that a point is to be included in the character representation of the value. Therefore, the decimal point is part of the character-string value. It does, however, not cause decimal-point alignment during assignment, since it is not part of the arithmetic value. Only the picture character V causes alignment of the decimal point. For example:

DECLARE SUM PICTURE '999V.99';

SUM is a numeric-character variable representing numbers of five digits with a decimal point assumed between the third and fourth digits. The actual point specified by the decimal-point insertion character is not part of the arithmetic value; it is, however, part of the character-string value. The decimal-point insertion character can appear on either side of the character V. (See Part II, <u>Picture-</u> <u>Specification_Characters</u>). The following two statements assign the same value to SUM:

```
SUM = 123;
SUM = 123.00;
```

In the first statement, two zero digits are added to the right of the digits 123.

Note the effect of the following declaration:

DECLARE RATE PICTURE '9V99.99';

Let RATE be used as follows:

RATE = 7.62;

When this statement is executed, decimal-point alignment occurs on the character V and not on the decimal-point insertion character that appears in the picture specification for RATE. If RATE were interpreted as a character string and then printed, it would appear as 762.00, but its arithmetic value would be 7.6200.

Unlike the character V, which can appear only once in a picture specification, the decimal-point insertion character can appear more than once; this allows digit groups within the numeric-character data item to be separated by points, as is common in Dewey decimal notation and in the numeric notations of some European countries.

In addition to the decimal-point insertion character, PL/I provides two other insertion characters: comma (,) and blank (B), which are used in the same way as the decimal-point insertion character. Consider the following statements:

DECLARE RESULT PICTURE '9.999.999,V99'; RESULT = 1234567;

The character-string value of result would be '1.234.567,00'.

Note that decimal-point alignment occurs before the two rightmost digit positions as specified by the character V. If RESULT were assigned to a coded arithmetic field, the value of the data converted to arithmetic would be 1234567.00.

Besides supplying insertion characters, PL/I also provides replacement characters that allow zeros in specified positions to be replaced by blanks or asterisks. One such character is the character Z, which is used to replace leading (leftmost) zeros with blanks:

DECLARE TALLY PICTURE 'ZZZ9'; TALLY = 0012; The character-string value of TALLY is equivalent to the character-string constant 'bb12' (where the letter <u>b</u> indicates a blank character).

Other picture characters control the appearance of signs and the currency symbol (\$) in specified positions of the numericcharacter data item. For example, a dollar sign can be inserted to the left of a numeric-character item, as indicated in the following statements:

DECLARE PRICE PICTURE '\$99V.99'; PRICE = 12.45;

The character-string value of PRICE is equivalent to the character-string constant '\$12.45'. Its arithmetic value, however, would be 1245 with a precision of (4,2), or 12.45.

The picture specification can also specify floating-point formats. These formats are discussed in Part II, <u>Picture-</u> <u>Specification Characters</u>.

Purpose of Numeric-Character Variables

The principal purpose of a picture specification is to edit data that is to be printed. For example, in a payroll application, the digits representing an employee's salary might be 0017250. These digits would be much more meaningful on a paycheck in an edited form, such as \$**172. 50; the asterisks might be used to discourage an attempt to alter the amount. This could be done, for example, with the specification '\$****9.99'.

If specified in an arithmetic expression, the value of a numeric-character data item is converted to coded arithmetic. Note, however, that this conversion will require the compiler to insert extra coding. Note also that any editing characters in the picture specification will be disregarded in the conversion. Consider the following example:

DECLARE RESULT FIXED DECIMAL (3,2), COST PICTURE '\$9V.99'; COST = 1.10; RESULT = 2 * COST; The character-string value of COST is \$1.10. The editing characters (\$ and .) are present in the item. However, when the expression 2 * COST is evaluated, the arithmetic value of COST is converted to coded arithmetic. When the value of the expression is assigned to RESULT, the value of RESULT will be 2.20 (i.e., 220 with precision (3,2)). If RESULT is printed, neither the \$ symbol nor the decimal point will be printed.

Built-In Functions for Character-String Handling

PL/I provides a number of built-in functions for character-string handling that add power to the string-handling facilities of the language. One of these functions, SUBSTR, can also be used as a pseudovariable. Following are brief descriptions of the functions (more detailed descriptions <u>appear in Part II, Built-In Functions</u> and the Pseudo-Variable SUBSTR).

The <u>CHAR built-in function</u> converts a specified data item to a character string. The built-in function allows you to specify the length of the converted string and thus override the length that would result from the standard rules of data conversion.

The <u>SUBSTR</u> <u>built-in</u> <u>function</u>, which can also serve as a <u>pseudo-variable</u> representing a receiving field, allows a specific substring to be extracted from (or assigned to, in the case of a pseudo-variable) a specified string value.

The <u>HIGH_built-in_function</u> provides a string of a specified length that consists of releated occurrences of the highest character in the collating sequence. For the IBM System/360, the character is hexadecimal FF.

The <u>LOW built-in function</u> provides a string of a specified length that consists of repeated occurrences of the lowest character in the collating sequence. For the IBM System/360, the character is hexadecimal 00.

Arguments and Parameters

Data can be referred to in a procedure only if the names identifying that data are known within that procedure, that is, if the procedure lies within the scope of the names. The scope of a name is usually the procedure in which it is declared. The scope can, however, be extended in one of two ways:

- by specifying the <u>EXTERNAL attribute</u> for the name, or
- by <u>passing</u> the name as an <u>argument</u> to a procedure that is to be activated (or invoked).

The type of argument you can pass to an invoked procedure may either be a <u>variable</u> <u>name</u> or an <u>expression</u> in Model 20 PL/I. File names, labels, and entry names cannot be passed as arguments.

Arguments are passed in a parenthesized list, called an <u>argument list</u>, contained in the invoking statement, which may be a CALL statement or a function reference. Different names or expressions in an argument list are separated by commas.

Arguments passed to an invoked procedure must be accepted by that procedure. This is done by the explicit declaration of one or more parameters in a parenthesized list in the PROCEDURE statement of the invoked procedure. A parameter is a name used within the invoked procedure to represent another name or expression that is passed to the procedure as an argument. Each parameter in the parameter list of the invoked procedure has a <u>corresponding</u> argument in the <u>argument list</u> of the invoking statement. This correspondence is from left to right; the first argument corresponds to the first parameter, the second argument corresponds to the second parameter, and so forth. In general, any reference to a parameter within the invoked procedure is treated as a reference to the corresponding argument. The number of arguments and parameters must be the same. Note that, although an argument and the corresponding parameter refer to the same storage area, they may have different names.

The example below illustrates how parameters and arguments may be used:

```
ALPHA: PROCEDURE;

DCL BETA ENTRY;

DCL NAME CHAR (20),

ITEM CHAR (5);

.

CALL BETA (NAME, ITEM);

.

END;

BETA: PROCEDURE (FIELD, OBJECT);

DCL FIELD CHAR (20),

OBJECT CHAR (5);

.

.

.

PUT FILE (OUT) EDIT (FIELD, OBJECT)

(A(20), X(10), A(5));

END;
```

In the procedure ALPHA, NAME is declared as a string of 20 characters, ITEM as a string of five characters. The CALL statement in ALPHA invokes the procedure BETA, and the parenthesized list included in this procedure reference contains the two arguments being passed to BETA. The PROCEDURE statement defining BETA declares two parameters, FIELD and OBJECT. When BETA is invoked, NAME is associated with FIELD and ITEM with OBJECT. Each reference to FIELD in BETA is treated as a reference to NAME, and each reference to OBJECT is treated as a reference to ITEM. Therefore, the PUT statement causes the values of NAME and ITEM to be written in the file named OUT.

<u>Note</u>: The entry name of the invoked procedure (in the example, BETA) must appear in a DECLARE statement with the ENTRY attribute in the invoking procedure. Excepted from this rule are built-in functions, which are discussed later in this section.

The passing of arguments usually involves the passing of names and not merely of the values represented by these names. Storage allocated for a <u>variable</u> before it is passed as an argument is not duplicated in the invoked procedure. Any change of value specified for a parameter in the invoked procedure actually is a change in the value of the argument in the invoking procedure. Such changes remain in effect when control is returned to the invoking procedure.

A parameter can be thought of as <u>indirectly</u> representing the value that is <u>directly</u> represented by an argument. Thus, since both the argument and the parameter represent the same value, the attributes of a parameter and its corresponding argument must be the same. For example, the program is in error, if a parameter has the attribute FIXED and the corresponding argument has the attribute FLOAT.

A name is explicitly declared to be a parameter by its appearance in the parameter list of a PROCEDURE statement. However, its attributes, unless the default attributes apply, must be explicitly stated within that procedure in a DECLARE statement.

Through the specification of arguments and parameters, <u>procedures</u> and <u>functions</u> can be used throughout a program to perform the same operations upon many different data items whose names may be known only within the invoking procedure.

The difference between a normal procedure and a procedure referred to as a function is that a function usually returns a value to the invoking procedure, whereas a normal procedure does not return any value to the invoking procedure. Functions and procedures are invoked by function and procedure references, respectively, that may or may not contain arguments.

<u>Note</u>: An exception is the main procedure of a program which initially is invoked by the system and cannot be called by any other procedure in a program.

Passing Arguments to Procedures

Arguments are passed to a procedure in the invoking <u>CALL statement</u>, which is known as <u>procedure reference</u>. The general format of the procedure reference is as follows:

CALL entry-name (argument [, argument...]);

Whenever a procedure is invoked, the arguments in the invoking statement are associated with the parameters of the entry point, and control is then passed to the invoked procedure. The invoked procedure is thus activated, and execution begins.

Upon termination of an invoked procedure, control normally is returned to the invoking procedure. An invoked procedure can be terminated in any of the following ways:

- 1. Control reaches a GOTO statement that transfers control to an external label.
- Control reaches the final <u>END statement</u> of the procedure. Execution of this statement causes control to be returned

to the first executable statement following the statement that invoked the procedure. This is considered to be the normal return.

- 3. Control reaches a <u>RETURN statement</u> in the invoked procedure. This causes the same normal return as is caused by the END statement.
- 4. An error condition encountered in an invoked procedure abnormally terminates execution of that procedure and of the entire program if the error cannot be recovered.

The following example illustrates how an invoked procedure interacts with the procedure that invokes it:

```
A: PROCEDURE;
     DCL READCM ENTRY;
     DCL RATE FIXED (10,3),
         TIME FIXED (5,2),
         DISTANCE FIXED (15,5);
     CALL READCM (RATE, TIME, DISTANCE);
     END;
READCM: PROCEDURE (W,X,Y);
           DCL W FIXED (10,3),
X FIXED (5,2),
                Y FIXED (15,5);
        GET FILE (INPUT) EDIT (W,X,Y)
                   (F(10,3),F(5,2),F(15,5));
          ٠
          •
        Y = W * X;
        IF Y > O THEN RETURN;
        ELSE PUT FILE (OUTPUT) EDIT
              ('ERROR READCM') (A(12));
        END:
```

The arguments RATE, TIME, and DISTANCE are passed to the parameters W, X, and Y. Consequently, in the invoked procedure, a reference to W is the same as a reference to RATE, X the same as TIME, and Y the same as DISTANCE. This means that any change to the values of W, X, or Y in procedure READCM is a change to the values of RATE, TIME, or DISTANCE, respectively, in procedure A.

Passing Arguments to Functions

A function is a procedure that usually requires arguments to be passed to it when it is invoked. Unlike a procedure, which is invoked by a CALL statement, a function is invoked by the appearance of the function name (and associated arguments) in an expression. Such an appearance is called a <u>function reference</u>. Like a procedure, a function can operate upon the arguments passed to it and upon other known data. But unlike a procedure, a function is written to compute a <u>single value</u> which is returned, together with control, to the point of invocation, the function reference. This single value can be an <u>arithmetic, character-string, picture</u>, or <u>pointer value</u>. An example of a function reference is contained in the following procedure:

In this procedure, the assignment statement

X = Y * * 3 + SPROD (A, B, C);

contains a reference to a function called SPROD. The parenthesized list following the function name contains the arguments that are being passed to SPROD. Assume that SPROD has been defined as follows:

When SPROD is invoked by MAINP, the arguments A, B, and C are associated with the parameters U, V, and W, respectively. Since attributes have not been explicitly declared for the arguments and parameters, and neither their names nor the name of the invoked function (SPROD) start with any of the letters I through N, the default attributes of FLOAT DECIMAL (6) are applied to each argument and parameter. Hence, the attributes are consistent, and the association of the arguments with the parameters produces no error.

During the execution of SPROD, the IF statement is encountered and a test is made. If U is greater than V + W, the statement associated with the THEN clause is executed; otherwise, the statement associated with the ELSE clause is executed. In either case, the executed statement is a RETURN statement. The <u>RETURN statement</u> usually terminates a function and returns control to the invoking procedure. Its use in a function differs somewhat from its use in a procedure; <u>in a function</u>, not only does it return <u>control</u>, but it also returns a <u>value</u> to the point of invocation. The general format of the RETURN statement, when it is used in a function, is as follows:

RETURN (expression);

The expression must be present and must represent a <u>single value</u>.

It is this value that is returned to the invoking procedure at the point of invocation. Thus, for the above example, SPROD returns either 0 or the value represented by U * V * W, along with control to the invoking expression in MAINP. The returned value then effectively replaces the function reference, and evaluation of the invoking expression continues.

ATTRIBUTES OF VALUE RETURNED BY FUNCTION

You may declare the attributes of the value to be returned by a function in two ways:

- 1. You can declare them by default.
- You can declare them <u>explicitly</u> following the parameter list in the function PROCEDURE statement.

Note that the value of the expression in the RETURN statement is converted within the function, wherever necessary, to conform to the attributes specified by one of the two methods above.

In the previous examples of MAINP and SPROD, the PROCEDURE statement of SPROD contains no attributes declared for the value it returns. The default attributes FLOAT DECIMAL(6) are therefore applied, since the name of the name of the invoked procedure (SPROD) does not start with any of the letters I through N. Since FLOAT DECIMAL(6) are the attributes that the returned value is expected to have, no conflict exists.

The following example gives you an illustration of how you can declare attributes for the returned value in the PROCEDURE statement. Assume that the PROCEDURE statement for SPROD has been specified as follows:

SPROD: PROCEDURE (U,V,W) RETURNS (FIXED DECIMAL);

With this declaration, the value returned by SPROD will have the attributes FIXED and DECIMAL. These attributes differ

Arguments and Parameters 77

from the ones that would be assigned by default. To avoid possible error conditions, you would have to specify this difference in the invoking as well as the invoked procedure. You can do this with the <u>RETURNS_attribute</u>.

The RETURNS Attribute

The RETURNS attribute has to be specified when a function returns a value that has attributes other than the default attributes FLOAT DECIMAL (6). It appears in the invoking as well as the invoked procedure.

For the <u>invoking procedure</u>, you specify it in a DECLARE statement which must contain the <u>entry name</u> of the function to be invoked and an <u>attributes list</u>. The attributes list specifies the attributes of the value returned by that function. In the invoking procedure the RETURNS attribute appears in the following general form:

DECLARE entry-name RETURNS (attributes-list);

The RETURNS attribute specifies that within the invoking procedure the value returned from the named function is to be treated as though it had the attributes given in the attributes list. The word <u>treated</u> is used because no conversion is performed in an invoking procedure upon any value returned to it. Therefore, if the attributes of the returned value do not agree with those in the attributes list of the RETURNS attribute, an error will probably result.

Thus, in order to specify to the compiler that in MAINP the value returned by SPROD is to be handled as a FIXED DECI-MAL value, the following declaration must be given within MAINP:

DECLARE SPROD [ENTRY] RETURNS (FIXED DECIMAL);

The ENTRY attribute may or may not be specified together with the RETURNS attribute.

For the <u>invoked procedure</u>, you have to specify the RETURNS attribute in the PROCE-DURE statement, following the parameter list. In the invoked procedure, the RETURNS attribute appears in the following general form:

entry-name: PROCEDURE (parameter-list) RETURNS (attributes-list);

The RETURNS attribute in the PROCEDURE statement of the invoked procedure specifies that the value returned has to have the attributes specified in the attributes list. Thus, the PROCEDURE statement of

SPROD would have to look as already shown above:

SPROD: PROCEDURE (U,V,W) RETURNS (FIXED DECIMAL);

<u>Conclusively</u>, let us state again <u>when</u> and <u>where</u> the RETURNS attribute has to be specified. It has to be specified

- a) in the <u>invoking procedure</u> in the DECLARE statement together with the entry name of the invoked procedure and the attributes list for the value to be returned;
- b) in the <u>invoked procedure</u> (which can only be a function) in the PROCEDURE statement.

It is important to note some of the things that are implied in the above discussion. Principally, you should remember that during compilation of the invoking procedure, there is no way for the compiler to check a function procedure to determine the attributes of the value it returns. In the absence of explicit information, the compiler can only assume that the values returned will have the default attributes DECIMAL FLOAT (6) unless the initial letter of the entry name is I through N, in which case the RETURNS attribute has to be specified. No conversion is performed for values returned by a function. Therefore, the attributes of the value to be returned must be the same in the invoking as well as in the invoked procedure. The RETURNS attribute must be declared for a function that returns any value with attributes not consistent with default attributes.

BUILT-IN_FUNCTIONS

Similar to function procedures which you can write yourself, is a comprehensive set of pre-defined functions called <u>built-in</u> <u>functions</u>.

The set of built-in functions is an intrinsic part of PL/I. It includes not only the commonly used arithmetic functions but also other necessary or useful functions related to language facilities, such as functions for manipulating character strings. Built-in functions are invoked the same way programmer-defined functions are invoked. Like programmer-defined functions they can only return <u>element_values</u> in Model 20 PL/I.

<u>Note</u>: Some built-in functions actually are compiled as <u>in-line code</u> (that is, as though the code of the built-in function actually appeared within the source program) rather than as procedure invocations. Built-in functions can only be referred to in a source program by function references. Neither the ENTRY attribute nor the RETURNS attribute can be specified for any built-in function name. The name appearing in a function reference is recognized without the need for any further identification; attributes of values returned by built-in functions are known by the compiler.

Built-in function names are PL/I keywords. They are not reserved. You can use any built-in-function name in your program as a name to refer to any data you have defined.

The ENTRY Attribute

The ENTRY attribute specifies that the associated identifier is an <u>entry name</u>.

The general format of the ENTRY attribute is as follows:

DECLARE entry-name ENTRY;

You <u>must specify</u> the ENTRY attribute for each entry name appearing in

- a) a <u>CALL statement</u>,
- b) a <u>function reference</u> referring to a function which returns a value with the default attributes FLOAT DECIMAL(6), that is, a function for which the RETURNS attribute has not been specified.

You <u>must not specify</u> the ENTRY attribute for any <u>built-in function</u>.

Consider the following example, which illustrates the use of the ENTRY and RETURNS attributes:

```
A: PROCEDURE:
      DCL B ENTRY,
           FUNCTN ENTRY,
           C RETURNS (FIXED DECIMAL);
      DCL V DECIMAL FIXED (4),
          W DECIMAL FIXED (3);
       •
    CALL B;
    X = FUNCTN (Y,Z);
       .
    U = C(V, W);
    D = SQRT(U);
    END:
B: PROCEDURE;
       ٠
       ....
```

In this example, the procedure A invokes three other procedures (B, FUNCTN, and C) and the built-in function SQRT. B is a normal procedure which returns control to A when its END statement is executed. No arguments are passed to it, and no values are returned. Only the ENTRY attribute has to be specified for it. FUNCTN is a func-tion which is referred to in a function reference (X = FUNCTN(Y,Z)). Since no attributes are declared for the arguments and their corresponding parameters, and their names do not start with any of the letters I to N, they are assumed to have the default attributes. Only the ENTRY attribute has to be specified. The func-tion C (invoked in the function reference U = C(V,W)) returns values not having the default attributes. This means, that the RETURNS attribute has to be specified in both the invoking procedure (A) and in the invoked function (C). The ENTRY attribute may or may not be specified in the invoking procedure. The built-in function SQRT must not be declared with any attributes; it is recognized by the compiler as a built-in function; the attributes of the value returned by SQRT are known to the compiler.

Relationship of Arguments and Parameters

When a function or procedure is invoked, a relationship is established between the arguments of the invoking statement or expression and the parameters of the invoked procedure. This relationship is dependent upon whether or not <u>dummy arguments</u> are created.

DUMMY ARGUMENTS

In the introductory discussion of arguments and parameters it was pointed out that the name of an argument and not its value is passed to a procedure or function. However, there are times when an argument has no name. A constant, for example, has no name; nor does an operational expression. But the mechanism that associates arguments with parameters cannot handle such values directly. Therefore, the compiler must allocate storage for such values and assign an internal name for each. These internal names are called <u>dummy arguments</u>. You cannot access these <u>dummy arguments</u> in the compiler, but you should be aware of their existence because any change to a parameter will be reflected only in the value of the dummy argument and not in the value of the original argument from which it was constructed.

A dummy argument is always created for the following cases:

- If an argument is a constant. For example:
 - CALL X(7.5);

 If an argument is an expression involving operators. For example:

CALL X(A+B); CALL X(+A);

 If an argument is itself a function reference containing arguments. For example:

CALL X (SIN(Y));

 If an argument is an expression in parentheses. For example:

CALL X((A));

You may enclose an argument in parentheses, as shown in this example, if you want to pass an argument to a procedure, but do not want to change the value of the argument in the invoked procedure.

In all other cases, the argument name is passed directly. The parameter becomes identical with the passed argument; thus changes to the value of a parameter will be reflected in the value of the original argument only if a dummy argument is not created.

ARGUMENT AND PARAMETER TYPES

In general, an argument and its corresponding parameter may be of any type, with the following <u>exceptions</u>: file names, entry names and labels. An argument may be a pointer provided that the corresponding parameter is also a pointer; it may be a character string provided that the corresponding parameter is also a character string, etc. However, not all argument/ parameter relationships are so clear-cut. Some need further definition. Such cases are given below.

If a parameter is an <u>array name</u>, the argument must be an <u>array name</u>. The data attributes of the argument must agree with those of the parameter. The bounds of the array argument must agree with the bounds of the array parameter.

If a parameter is a <u>structure name</u>, the argument must be a <u>structure name</u>. The relative structuring of the argument and the parameter must be the same; the level numbers need not be identical. The data attributes of the elements of the structure argument must match those of the corresponding elements of the parameter.

If a parameter is an <u>element variable</u>, i.e., a variable that is neither a structure name nor an array name, the argument must be an <u>extression</u>. If the argument is a <u>subscripted variable</u>, the subscripts are evaluated before the subroutine or function is invoked and the name of the specified element is passed.

A parameter has no storage class and therefore cannot be declared with any storage-class attribute. All arguments must be either STATIC or AUTOMATIC; they cannot be BASED.

Note that the scale and precision of an arithmetic constant passed as an argument must be the same as that of its corresponding parameter. Similarly, the length of a character-string constant passed as an argument must be the same as that of its corresponding parameter. When a PL/I program is executed, a large number of exceptional conditions are monitored by the system. These conditions are automatically detected whenever they arise. Exceptional conditions may be <u>errors</u>, such as underflow or an input/ output transmission error, or they may be <u>conditions that are expected</u> but infrequent, such as the end of file or the end of a page when output is being printed.

Each of the conditions for which a test may be made has been given a name in PL/I. You can use these names to control the handling of exceptional conditions. The condition names are keywords of the PL/I language. For keywords and descriptions of all exceptional conditions, see Part II <u>ON_Conditions</u>.

Enabled Conditions and Established Action

A condition that can occur and cause an interrupt and that is being monitored by the system, is said to be <u>enabled</u>. Any action specified to take place when such an enabled condition arises and causes an interrupt, is said to be <u>established</u>.

The conditions are checked automatically, and when they occur, the system will take control and perform some standard action specified for the condition. All conditions are enabled by default, and the standard system action is established for them.

The most common condition is the ERROR condition. A large number of different errors may cause this condition to arise. Standard system action for the ERROR condition is to terminate the program.

You may specify in your programs whether or not you want some conditions to be enabled, that is, whether or not you want them to cause an interrupt when they arise. If a condition is <u>disabled</u>, occurrence of the condition will not cause an interrupt.

All input/output conditions and the ERROR conditions are always enabled and cannot be disabled. All of the computational conditions may be enabled or disabled. You have to explicitly disable them if you do not want them to cause an interrupt when they occur.

Condition Prefixes

Enabling and disabling can be specified for certain conditions by a condition prefix. A condition prefix is a list of one or more condition names, enclosed in parentheses and separated by commas, and prefixed to a procedure-statement label by a colon. The condition prefix always precedes the procedure-statement label. A condition name in a prefix list indicates that the corresponding condition is enabled within the scope of the procedure to whose label it is prefixed. The condition names can be preceded by the word NO, without a separating blank or other delimiter, to indicate that the corresponding condition is disabled.

Condition prefixes are effective during the execution of all statements within one procedure including the END statement. However, they are not in effect during the execution of any other procedures which may be invoked by that procedure.

```
Consider the following example:
```

(NOCONVERSION, NOFIXEDOVERFLOW):
A: PROCEDURE;
.

CALL B; END; (NOCONVERSION): B: PROCEDURE;

END;

In this example, the condition prefix NOCONVERSION disables that condition for procedure A; it is repeated for procedure B. Although B is invoked by A, the condition prefixes have to be repeated if they are to apply to B as well. The condition prefix NOFIXEDOVERFLOW specifies that the condition FIXEDOVERFLOW is to be disabled in A, that is, no interrupt is to occur when that condition arises; however, during execution of B, FIXEDOVERFLOW (as well as all other conditions except CONVERSION) is enabled by default, since NOFIXEDOVERFLOW is not specified in the condition-prefix list to B.

The ON-Statement

A system action exists for every condition, and if a condition arises, the system action will be performed unless an ON statement has been executed specifying an alternative action for that statement. With the ON statement you can establish the action to be taken when an interrupt results from an exceptional condition that has been enabled, either by default or by a condition prefix.

<u>Note</u>: The action specified in an ON statement will not be executed if the condition has been disabled in a condition prefix.

The form of the ON statement is:

ON condition-name {SYSTEM; |ON-unit}

(For a full description, see Part II, <u>Statements</u>).

The keyword SYSTEM specifies standard system action whenever an interrupt occurs:

ON FIXEDOVERFLOW SYSTEM:

It reestablishes standard system action for a condition for which some other action has previously been established. In the statement

ON FIXEDOVERFLOW GO TO ERROR;

GOTO ERROR is the <u>ON-unit</u>. You can use the ON-unit to specify an alternative action to be taken whenever an interrupt occurs. In the above example, ERROR is the label of a statement or the first of several statements that specify the action to be taken, for example to try to recover from the error or to register the error and continue processing.

An ON-unit must either be the <u>null_sta-</u> <u>tement</u> or a GO TO statement. A null statement effectively causes the interrupt to be ignored and, in general, causes control to be returned to the point logically following the point at which the interrupt occurred. Thus, the effect of a null ONunit is to say: "When an interrupt occurs as a result of this condition, do nothing except continue". The above example with a null statement would look as follows:

ON FIXEDOVERFLOW;

The semicolon (;) is the null statement.

The use of the null statement is not the same as disabling a condition, for two reasons: a) a null statement can be specified for any condition (except ENDFILE, KEY, and CONVERSION), but not all conditions can be disabled; b) disabling a con-

82 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

dition, if possible, may save time by avoiding any checking for this condition. If a null ON-unit is specified, the system must still check for the condition, transfer control to the ON-unit whenever an interrupt occurs, although, in the ON-unit, no action other than returning control is taken.

<u>Note</u>: The specific point to which control returns from a null ON-unit varies for different conditions. In most cases, control returns to the point that immediately follows the operation in which the condition arose. The section <u>ON-Conditions</u> in Part II gives the point of return for all conditions for which a null ON-unit can be specified. Return from a null ON-unit is a normal return.

If an ON-unit is a GO TO statement, control is, when an interrupt occurs for the specified ON-condition, transferred to the label specified in the GO TO statement, as described above. Linkage to the point at which the interrupt occurred is thus lost and a normal return cannot occur.

<u>Scope_of_the_ON-Statement</u>

The ON-statement specifies that a specific action is to be taken for a named condition, that is, the ON-statement associates a condition with a specific action. Once this association is established, it remains in effect until it is overridden by another ON-statement specifying the same condition, or until the procedure in which it appears is terminated.

An <u>established_interrupt_action</u> (established by an ON-statement, not a condition prefix) passes from a procedure to any procedure it invokes, and the action remains in force for all subsequently activated procedures unless it is overridden by the execution of another ON-statement for the same condition. If it is overridden, the new action, extablished in an invoked procedure, remains in force only until that procedure is terminated. When control returns to the activating procedure, all interrupt actions that were established at the point of invocation, are reestablished. This makes it impossible for an invoked procedure to alter the interrupt action established for the invoking procedure.

If more than one ON-statement for the same condition appears in the same procedure, each subsequently executed ONstatement overrides the previously established action. Re-establishment is only possible through the execution of another ON-statement (for example, by transferring control to an overridden ON-statement).

```
Consider the following example:
                                                       The ON-statement in procedure A estab-
                                                   lishes the action to be taken for the
A: PROCEDURE:
                                                   FIXEDOVERFLOW error occurring within A.
   ON FIXEDOVERFLOW GOTO A_ERR;
                                                    (Note that FIXEDOVERFLOW is enabled by
                                                    default and therefore does not require a
                                                   condition prefix to enable it).
   CALL B;
      ...
                                                       The action specification made in A is
      .
                                                    carried over into procedure B, because B is
                                                    invoked by A. Within B, however, the action established in A is overridden by
   END;
B: PROCEDURE:
   ON FIXEDOVERFLOW GOTO B_ERR;
                                                    another action specification. When proce-
                                                    dure C is called, the action established in
                                                    B for FIXEDOVERFLOW remains active until it
      .
                                                    is overridden by the first action specifi-
cation which, in turn, is overridden by the
   CALL C;
                                                    second action specification in procedure B.
      ٠
      ...
      ...
   END;
                                                   When C returns control to B, the action specified for the FIXEDOVERFLOW error in B
C: PROCEDURE:
   ON FIXEDOVERFLOW GOTO C_ERR;
                                                    is re-established (ON FIXEDOVERFLOW GOTO
                                                    B_ERR;). When B returns control to A, the
                                                    action specified in A is re-established
   ON FIXEDOVERFLOW GOTO D ERR;
                                                    (ON FIXEDOVERFLOW GOTO A_ERR;). Standard
                                                    system action is taken for all other condi-
                                                    tions enabled by default.
   END:
```

Based Variables and Pointer Variables

For each identifier you use in your PL/I programs, the compiler must be able to determine the associated attributes in order to generate correct code.

In addition to determining the type of operation, the compiler must be able to <u>determine the address</u> of each operand. In some cases, the compiler must generate code that will determine the address when the program is executed. The storage class of a variable determines the way in which the address is obtained. There are three distinct classes:

- <u>Static Storage</u>: The address of an identifier is determined when the program is loaded.
- 2. <u>Automatic Storage</u>: The address is determined upon entry to the procedure.
- 3. <u>Based Storage</u>: The address is contained in a pointer variable. The contents of this pointer variable may change during program execution, so that the same identifier can have different addresses at different times.

It is the third class, based storage, with which this section is concerned.

Pointer Variables

A special type of variable, the pointer variable, is used to locate data in storage; that is, the data in storage is "pointed to" by the pointer variable. Consequently, a pointer variable may be thought of as an <u>address</u>.

Based Variables

A based variable is a <u>description of data</u> that can be applied to different locations in storage, depending upon the value of the associated pointer variable.

Based variables and pointer variables are used with <u>record-oriented input/output</u>. They allow you to operate upon records in a buffer without allocating storage in addition to the buffers.

With the <u>pointer variable</u>, you can

 explicitly specify the address of a record to be operated upon in the buffer, and locate, in the buffer, the record that is to be transmitted by record-oriented input/output.

With the <u>based variable</u>, you describe the record pointed to by the pointer variable; that is, the record in the buffer pointed to by the pointer variable is treated as if it had the <u>attributes</u> of the associated based variable.

When a based variable is declared, it must be associated with a pointer that has been explicitly declared. The form of the declaration is:

DECLARE identifier BASED (pointer-variable); DECLARE pointer-variable POINTER;

For example:

DECLARE P POINTER; DECLARE A BASED (P);

Whenever a reference is made to A, the address of A will be the value of the associated pointer variable, P in this case. For example:

A = A + 1;

In this statement, the pointer used to determine the address of A will, in both cases, be P.

So long as an associated pointer variable has a valid value, any reference to the based variable will always refer to the location in storage identified by the pointer variable.

A restriction imposed by the Model 20 PL/I compiler is that the pointer name used in the declaration of a based variable must be an unsubscripted, unqualified element variable. Pointer variables must not be elements of structures nor of arrays.

Values of Pointer Variables

Before a reference can be made to a based variable, a value must be given to the pointer associated with it. This can be done in any of four different ways:

- with the SET option of a READ statement,
- 2. with the SET option of a LOCATE statement,
- 84 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

- by assignment of the value of another pointer,
- 4. by assignment of the value returned by the ADDR built-in function.

<u>READ and SET</u>

READ FILE (file-name) SET (pointer);

The READ statement with a SET option which can be used only for CONSECUTIVE files, causes a record to be read into a buffer and the specified pointer variable to be set to point to the record in the buffer. A based variable, declared with the same pointer, can then be used to refer to different fields of the record.

A <u>based variable</u> is not a variable for which main storage is reserved, but a pattern which will be overlaid on data in main storage pointed to by the associated pointer variable; that is, if the based variable is a structure variable, the data pointed to by the associated pointer is treated as if it had the same structuring as the based variable. A reference to an element of the based variable has the same effect as if the record had been read directly into the structure described by the based variable.

When records are <u>blocked</u>, the first execution of a READ statement with the SET option causes the transmission of a block of physical records to a buffer and the pointer to be set to point to the beginning of the first logical record. The second execution of the READ statement causes the pointer variable to be set to point to the location of the second logical record in the block already in the buffer.

When records are <u>unblocked</u>, each execution of a READ statement with the SET option causes actual data transmission from the file to the buffer. In this case, the pointer always has the same value.

LOCATE and SET

LOCATE variable FILE (filename) SET (pointer);

The LOCATE statement, which must always have the SET option and can only be used for CONSECUTIVE files, allocates storage for a based variable in an output buffer. The action is similar to that of a READ and SET, in that the based variable is, in effect, overlaid on the buffer. The LOCATE statement sets the pointer variable to point to the location that a logical record will have in an output buffer after it has been assigned to the associated based variable.

When records are <u>blocked</u>, physical transmission from an output buffer to an

output file occurs only after the entire block is in the buffer. Therefore, for blocked records, a LOCATE statement is executed repeatedly before actual data transmission occurs; and for each execution of a LOCATE statement, a pointer variable is set to point to the location of the next logical record to be constructed in the buffer.

Assignment of Pointer Value

pointer-variable = pointer-variable;

The value of a pointer variable can be assigned to another pointer variable by a simple assignment statement. Assume that Q and P are pointer variables and that P has a valid pointer value.

Q = P;

In this statement, Q would point to an input buffer if P had been set by a READ statement, or to an output buffer if P had been set by a LOCATE statement.

Assignment of the ADDR Function Value

The general form in which an ADDR built-in function appears in a statements is:

pointer-variable = ADDR (variable);

The value returned to an ADDR function reference is a valid pointer value that specifies the location of a data variable named as the argument of the function reference. For example:

P = ADDR(A);

Execution of this assignment statement will give the pointer variable P a value so that it points to the location of the data variable A. The value of an ADDR function reference can be assigned to a pointer variable only.

The argument of the ADDR function reference can be a variable that represents an element, an array, an element of an array, a major structure, a minor structure, or an element of a structure.

Since the ADDR function can be used to set a pointer to point to a nonbased variable, this facility allows the use of a based variable to refer to the <u>value</u> of a nonbased variable.

The data thus pointed to may then be referred to by means of the pointer value and based variable, provided the attributes of the based variable are compatible with that of the variable identified by the pointer. The rules for the relation between an argument and a parameter also

Based Variables and Pointer Variables 85

apply to the relation between a variable identified by a pointer and the based variable used to refer to it.

Example:

```
DECLARE ARRAY (10,10) STATIC EXTERNAL
FIXED, (P,Q,R) POINTER,
VALUE BASED (P) FIXED,
1 GROUP AUTOMATIC,
2 GROUP1,
3 A FIXED,
3 B CHARACTER (2),
2 GROUP2,
3 C CHAR (1),
3 D FLOAT,
1 DESCRIPTION BASED (Q),
2 A FIXED,
2 B CHARACTER (2),
SWITCH CHAR (1) BASED (R);
```

P = ADDR (ARRAY (I,J));

This statement assigns a value to the pointer P so that it will point to the location of the (I,J)th element of ARRAY. When using the based variable, VALUE it will be overlaid on the (I,J)th element of ARRAY.

P = ADDR (GROUP.A);

Provides for the use of the based variable VALUE in referring to GROUP.A.

Q = ADDR (GROUP.GROUP1);

Provides for the use of the based variable DESCRIPTION in referring to the minor structure GROUP.GROUP1.

R = ADDR (GROUP.C);

Provides for the use of the based variable SWITCH in referring to GROUP.C.

Restrictions on Pointer Variables

Because a pointer is very closely related to an address, its value is strongly dependent upon the implementation in which it is used. In order to reduce implementation dependence, some restrictions are made on the use of pointer variables.

- 1. Pointer variables must not be elements of structures or arrays.
- Pointer variables must not be operands of any operations except the comparison operations specified by the operators = and 1=.

- The value of a pointer variable can be assigned only to another pointer variable.
- 4. Pointer variables cannot be used for STREAM input and output. When used in RECORD input and output, a pointer value written as output cannot be assumed to point to the same data if it is read back in.

Use of Based Storage and Pointers

The based storage and pointer handling facilities provided by the Model 20 PL/I compiler are primarily intended to permit processing of records in input and output buffers. This can result in a significant saving of storage, particularly when many different record types exist in the same file.

Many different declarations of based variables can be associated with the same pointer. The effect of this is that once the pointer has been given a value, say by a READ statement with a SET option, then any of the record descriptions associated with the pointer may be used to refer to the record in the buffer. For example:

```
DECLARE P POINTER;

DECLARE 1 ISSUE BASED(P),

2 CODE CHAR(1),

2 PART_NO PIC '(7)9',

2 OTY PIC '9999',

2 JOB_NO PIC '(4)9',

1 RECEIPT BASED (P),

2 CODE CHAR(1),

2 PART_NO PIC '(7)9',

2 QTY PIC '9999',

2 SUPPLIER PIC '(5)9';
```

READ FILE (TRANS) SET (P); IF ISSUE.CODE = 'R' THEN GOTO RL1; IF SUPPLIER>1000 THEN GOTO INHS1;

In this example, the two record descriptions ISSUE and RECEIPT are associated with the same pointer. Once a record has been read and P has been set, the record code (CODE) is tested to determine whether a record with the structure of ISSUE or that of RECEIPT has been read. Depending on the result, either record type is processed. The records do not require working storage, since the pointer refers to a position within the buffer.

The records can also contain variables other than character strings and numeric character fields. Any number of records can be associated with the same pointer. When the pointer is given a value, all of the records will refer to the same storage area and will effectively be overlaid. Such overlaying of record descriptions can be machine detendent and should be used with care.

Pointer Manipulation

Important for the manipulation of pointer variables is the ADDR built-in function, which has already been briefly discussed. It requires one argument, the name of a variable, and it returns a value that points to the variable. It can be used to find the address of an element variable, an array variable, an element of an array, a major structure, a minor structure, or an element of a structure.

The argument in the ADDR function reference may be the name of a nonbased or based variable.

When using the ADDR function with arrays and structures, it is important to note that the ADDR of the first element of an array or structure is the same as the ADDR of the array or structure itself.

For example, given the following declarations:

DECLARE P POINTER; DECLARE B (10, 10) BASED (P), A (10, 10);

ADDR(A(1,1)) is the same as ADDR(A), and with the following assignment:

P = ADDR(A);

B(1,1) will refer to the first element of A.

When writing your programs, it is entirely your responsibility to ensure that such references do access meaningful storage locations, which must have been allocated in some other way and whose attributes are correct. .

Part II

Model 20 PL/I Syntax Rules

Picture specification characters appear in a <u>PICTURE attribute</u>. You can use them to specify the editing operations to be performed on the associated data item. A discussion of the concepts of picture specifications appears in Part I, in the section <u>Editing and Character-String Handling</u>.

In Model 20 PL/I, a ricture specification always describes a <u>numeric-character</u> <u>variable</u>. In the statement

DCL NUMBER PICTURE '999V.99';

NUMBER is the numeric-character variable described by the picture specification '999V.99', which means that NUMBER may consist of 5 decimal digits and a decimal point to the left of the rightmost two digits. Arithmetic data associated with a picture specification can consist only of decimal digits, an (assumed) decimal point and, optionally, a plus or minus sign. Other characters generally associated with arithmetic data, such as currency symbols, can also be specified. However, these characters are not part of the arithmetic value of the numeric character variable, although the characters are stored with the digits and are considered to be part of the character string value of the variable. The <u>picture specification</u> can contain any of the picture specification characters listed in Figure 8.

You can use the picture characters in these groups in various combinations. These combinations depend upon the type of data being described by the specification. A detailed discussion of these types and how they can be described follows below.

A <u>numeric-character variable</u> can be considered to have two different types of value, depending upon its use. They are

- 1) its arithmetic value and
- 2) its character-string value.

Category	Specification	Reiresenting
Digit and decimal-point specifiers	9 V	any decimal digit assumed decimal point and subfield delimiter
Zero suppression characters	Z *	digit or blank digit or *
Numeric signs and currency symbol (these are also drifting zero suppression characters)	\$ S -	digit, \$, or blank digit, ± sign, or blank digit, -, or blank
Insertion characters	, B	comma decimal point blank
Credit, Debit, and Overpunched signs	CR DB T R	CR if field<0 DB if field>0 digit overpunched by sign digit overpunched by - if field<0
Exponent Specifier	E	E (start of exponent)

Figure 8. Picture-Specification Character

The <u>arithmetic value</u> is the value expressed by the decimal digits of the data item, the assumed location of a decimal point, and possibly a sign. The arithmetic value of a numeric-character variable is used whenever the variable appears in an arithmetic operation or in an assignment to a variable with either the FIXED or FLOAT attribute. In such cases, the arithmetic value of the numeric-character variable is converted to internal coded-arithmetic representation. The arithmetic value is also used in an assignment to another numeric-character variable.

The <u>character-string value</u> is the value expressed by the decimal digits of the data item, as well as all of the editing and insertion characters appearing in the picture specification. The character-string value does not, however, include the assumed location of a decimal point as specified by the picture character V. The character-string value of a numericcharacter variable is used whenever the variable appears in a character-string operation or in an assignment to a character-string variable, or wherever a reference is made to a character-string variable that is defined on the numericcharacter variable.

A picture specification can be made for fixed-point or floating-point data. The picture specification for a <u>fixed-point</u> <u>value</u> contains only one field, and this field can consist of two subfields: an integer subfield describing the digits to the left of the decimal point in the fixedpoint value, and a fractional subfield describing the digits to the right of the decimal point.

DCL NUMBER PICTURE '999V.99';

A major requirement of the picture specification for numeric-character data is that field must contain at least one picture character that specifies a digit position. This picture character, however, need not be the digit character 9. Other picture characters, such as the zero suppression characters (Z and *), also specify digit positions.

The picture specification for a <u>floating-point_value</u> consists of two fields: a mantissa field and an exponent field. The mantissa field describes a

fixed-point value, which when multiplied by ten raised to the power of the value described by the exponent field gives the actual value represented by the floatingpoint notation; the mantissa field is specified in the same way that a fixed-point field is specified. The exponent field describes a signed or integer power of ten.

DCL NUMBER PIC '9V.9999ES99';

For further details about picture specifications for floating-point values refer to <u>The Exponent Specifier E</u> in this section.

Digit and Decimal-Point Specifiers

The picture characters 9 and V are the simplest form of numeric-character specifications you can use to represent fixedpoint decimal values.

- 9 specifies that the associated field position is to contain a decimal digit.
- V specifies that a decimal point is assumed at this position in the associated data item. However, it does not specify that an actual decimal point is to be inserted. The integer and fractional parts of the assigned value are aligned on the V character; therefore, an assigned value may be truncated or extended with zero digits at either end. Note that if significant digits are lost on the left, the result will be undefined. If no V character appears in the picture specification of a fixed-point decimal value or in the mantissa field of a picture specification of a floating-point decimal value, a V is assumed at the right end of the field specification. This causes the assigned value to be truncated, if necessary, to an integer. The V character cannot appear more than once in a picture spe-The V is considered to be a cification. <u>subfield delimiter</u> in the picture speci-fication; that is, the portion preceding the V and the portion following it (if any) are each a subfield of the specification.

Figure 9 gives examples of numericcharacter specifications using the picture characters 9 and V.

Source Attributes	Source Data (in constant form)	Picture Specification	Character-String Value ¹
FIXED (5)	12345	99999	12345
FIXED(5)	12345	999997	12345
FIXED (5)	12345	999799	345002
FIXED(5)	12345	v99999	000002
FIXED(7)	1234567	99999	345672
FIXED(3)	123	99999	00123
FIXED (5,2)	123.45	999799	12345
FIXED(7,2)	12345.67	979	562
FIXED (5,2)	123.45	99999	00123
¹ The arithmetic value is the value expressed by the digits and the actual or assumed location of the V in the specification. ² In this case, PL/I does not define the result since significant digits have been lost on the left; the result shown, however, is that given for System/360 implementations.			

Figure 9. Pictured Numeric-Character Examples

Zero-Suppression Characters

The zero-suppression picture characters specify <u>conditional_digit_positions</u> in the character-string value. You may use them to cause leading zeros to be replaced by asterisks or blanks. <u>Leading_zeros</u> are those that

- occur in the leftmost digit positions of fixed-point numbers,
- 2) are to the left of the assumed position of a decimal point, and
- are not preceded by any of the digits 1 through 9.

The leftmost non-zero digit in a number and all digits, zeros or not, to the right of it represent significant digits.

- 2 specifies a conditional digit position and causes a leading zero in the associated data position to be replaced by a blank character. When the associated data position does not contain a leading zero, the digit in the position is <u>not</u> replaced by a blank character. The picture character Z cannot appear in the same subfield as the picture character *, nor can it appear to the right of a drifting picture character or any of the picture characters 9, T or R in a field.
- * specifies a conditional digit position and is used the way the picture charac-

ter Z is used, except that leading zeros are replaced by asterisks. The picture character * cannot appear with the picture character Z in the same subfield, nor can it appear to the right of a drifting picture character or any of the picture characters 9, T, or R in a field.

Note_1: If one of the picture characters Z or * appears to the right of the picture character V, then all fractional digit positions in the specification, as well as all integer digit positions, must employ the Z or * picture character, respectively. When all digit positions to the right of the picture character V contain zerosuppression picture characters, fractional zeros of the value will be suppressed only if all positions in the fractional part contain zeros and all integer positions have been suppressed. The entire character-string value of the data item will then consist of blanks or asterisks. No digits in the fractional part will be replaced by blanks or asterisks if the fractional part contains any significant digit.

<u>Note_2</u>: Zero-suppression characters must not appear in pictures for floating-point data.

Figure 10 gives examples of the use of zero-suppression characters. In the figure, the letter <u>b</u> indicates a blank character.

Source Attributes	Source Data (in constant form)	Picture Specification	Character-String Value ¹
FIXED (5)	12345	ZZZ99	12345
FIXED (5)	00100	ZZ Z99	bb100
FIXED (5)	00000	ZZZ99	bbb00
FIXED (5)	00100	Z Z Z Z Z	bb100
FIXED (5)	00000		bbbbb
FIXED (5,2)	1 123.45	ZZZ99	bb123
FIXED (5,2)	001.23	ZZZV99	bb123
FIXED (5)	1 12345	ZZZV99	345002
FIXED (5)	00000		bbbbb
FIXED (5)	00100	****	l *∗100
FIXED (5)	00000	****	****
FIXED (5,2)	000.01	I ***∀**	/ / ***01
¹ The arithmetic value is the value expressed by the digits and the actual or assumed location of the V in the specification.			

/ 2In this case, PL/I does not define the result since significant digits have been lost/ / on the left; the result shown, however, is that given for System/360 implementations./

Figure 10. Examples of Zero Suppression

Insertion Characters

The picture characters <u>comma</u> (,), <u>point</u> (.), and <u>blank</u> (B) are insertion characters; they cause the specified character to be inserted in the associated position of the numeric-character data. They do not indicate digit positions, but are inserted between digits. Each does, however, actually represent a character position in the <u>character_string_value</u>, whether or not the character is suppressed. The comma and point are <u>conditional insertion characters</u>; within a string of zero suppression characters, they, too, may be suppressed. The blank (B) is an <u>unconditional insertion</u> <u>character</u>; it specifies that a blank is to appear in the associated position.

<u>Note</u>: Insertion characters are applicable only to the character-string value. They have no influence on the arithmetic value of the data item.

, causes a <u>comma</u> to be inserted in the associated position of the numericcharacter data when no zero suppression occurs. If zero suppression does occur, the comma is inserted only when an unsuppressed digit appears to the <u>left</u> of the comma position, or when a V appears immediately to the left of it and the fractional part contains any significant digits. In all other cases where zero suppression occurs, one of three possible characters is inserted in place of the comma. The choice of character to replace the comma depends upon the first picture character that both precedes the comma position and specifies a digit position:

- If this character is an asterisk, the comma position is assigned an asterisk.
- If this character is a drifting sign of a drifting currency symbol (discussed later), the drifting string is assumed to include the comma position, and the action taken is the same as that for drifting characters.
- If this character is not an asterisk or a drifting character, the comma position is assigned a blank character.
- is used the same way the comma picture character is used, except that a <u>point</u> (.) is assigned to the associated position. This character never causes point

alignment in the picture specifications of a fixed-point decimal number and is not a part of the arithmetic value of the data item. That function is served solely by the picture character V. Unless the V actually appears, it is assumed to be to the right of the rightmost digit position in the field, and point alignment is handled accordingly, even if the point insertion character appears elsewhere.

B specifies that a <u>blank character</u> is to be inserted in the associated position of the character-string value of the numeric-character field.

You can use the point (or the comma) in conjunction with the V to cause insertion of the point (or comma) in the position that delimits the end of the integer portion and the beginning of the fractional portion of a fixed-point (or floatingpoint) number, as you may desire it in printing, since the V does <u>not</u> cause printing of a point. In this case, the point must immediately precede or immediately follow the V. If the point precedes the V, it will be inserted only if a significant digit appears to the left of the V, even if all fractional digits are significant. If the point immediately follows the V, it will be suppressed if all digits to the right of the V are suppressed, but it will appear if there are <u>any</u> fractional digits (along with any intervening zeros).

The insertion characters B, comma, and point must be preceded by a digit position in the same field.

Figure 11 gives examples of the use of insertion characters. In the figure, the letter \underline{b} indicates a blank character.

Source Attributes	Source Data (in constant form)	Picture Specification	Character-String
FIXED (4)	1234	9 ,9 99	1,234
FIXED(6,2)	1234.56	9,9997.99	1,234.56
FIXED(4,2)	12.34	ZZ.VZZ	12.34
FIXED(4,2)	00.03	ZZ.VZZ	bbb03
FIXED(4,2)	00.03	ZZV.ZZ	bb.03
FIXED(4,2)	12.34	ZZV.ZZ	12.34
FIXED (4,2)	00.00	ZZV.ZZ	bbbbb
FIXED(4,2)	67.89	9,999,999.099	0,000,067.89
FIXED(7,2)	12345.67	** , 999V.99	12,345.67
FIXED(7,2)	00123.45	**,999V.99	***123.45
FIXED(9,2)	1234567.89	9.999.9997,99	1.234.567,89
FIXED(6)	123456	99.999.9	12.345.6
FIXED(6)	001234	22,22,22	bbb12,34
FIXED(6)	000000	ZZ,ZZ,ZZ	bbbbbbbb
FIXED(6)	000000	**,**,**	*****
FIXED(6)	123456	99B99B99	12b34b56
FIXED(3)	123	9BB9BB9	1bb2bb3
¹ The arithmetic value is the value expressed by the digits and the actual or assumed location of the V in the specification.			

Figure 11. Examples of Insertion Characters

Numeric Signs and Currency Symbol

The picture characters S and - specify <u>signs</u> in numeric-character data. The picture character \$ specifies a <u>currency sym-</u> <u>bol</u> in the character-string value of numeric-character data.

You may use these icture characters in either a static or a drifting manner. A <u>drifting</u> character is similar to a zerosuppression character in that it can cause zero suppression. However, a single drifting character is always inserted (unless the entire field is suppressed) in the position specified by the end of the drifting string or in the position immediately to the left of the first significant digit.

The <u>static</u> use of these characters specifies that a sign, a currency symbol, or a blank (in the case of a minus sign character if the data value is less than or equal to zero) <u>always</u> appears in the associated position. The drifting use specifies that leading zeros are to be suppressed. In this case, the rightmost suppressed position associated with the picture character will contain a blank, a sign, or the \$ currency symbol.

A drifting character is specified by <u>multiple</u> use of that character in a picture field. Thus, if the field contains one currency symbol, it is interpreted as static; if the field contains more than one currency symbol, it is interpreted as drifting. The drifting character must be specified in each digit position through which it may drift.

Drifting characters must appear in strings. A string is a sequence of the same drifting character, optionally containing a V and one of the insertion characters comma, point, or B. Any of the insertion characters comma, point, or B following the last drifting symbol of the string is considered part of the drifting string. However, a following V terminates the drifting string and is not part of it. A field of a picture specification can contain only one drifting string. A drifting string cannot be preceded by a digit position, insertion characters, or a V. If a drifting string exists in a field, zero suppression characters (Z or *) must not appear in the same field.

The position in the data associated with the characters comma, point, and B appearing in a string of drifting characters will contain one of the following:

• comma, point, or blank if a significant digit has appeared to the left;

- the drifting symbol, if the next position to the right contains the leftmost significant digit of the field;
- blank, if the leftmost significant digit of the field is more than one position to the right.

If a drifting string contains the drifting character <u>n</u> times, then the string is associated with <u>n</u> - 1 conditional digit positions. The rosition associated with the leftmost drifting character can contain only the drifting character or blank, never a digit. If a drifting string is specified for a field, the other potentially drifting characters can appear only once in the field, i.e., the other character represents a static sign or currency symbol.

Only one type of sign character can appear in each field. An S or a minus (-) used as a static character can appear to the left of all digits in the mantissa and exponent fields of a floating-point specification and either to the right or left of all digit positions of a fixed-point specification.

If a drifting string contains a V within it, the V delimits the preceding portion as a subfield, and all digit positions of the subfield following the V must also be part of the drifting string.

In the case in which all digit positions after the V contain drifting characters, suppression in the subfield will occur only if all of the integer and fractional digits are zero. The resulting edited data item will then be all blanks. If there are any significant fractional digits, the entire fractional portion will appear unsuppressed.

- \$ specifies the currency symbol. If this character appears more than once, it is a drifting character; otherwise it is a static character. The static character specifies that the character is to be placed in the associated position. The static character must appear either to the left of all digit positions in a field of a specification or to the right of all digit positions in a specification. See details above for the drifting use of the character.
- S specifies the plus sign character (+) if the data value is equal to or greater than zero, otherwise it specifies the minus-sign character (-). The character may be drifting or static. The rules are identical to those for the currency symbol.
- specifies the minus-sign character (-) if the data value is less than zero,

Source Attributes	Source Data (in constant form)	Picture Specification	Character-String Value ¹
FIXED (5,2)	123.45	\$9997.99	\$123.45
FIXED (5,2)	001.23	\$ ZZ Z V.9 9	\$bb1.23
FIXED (5,2)	000.00	\$ ZZZV.Z Z	bbbbbbb
FIXED (5,2)	123.45	\$ \$\$9 V.99	\$123.45
FIXED (5,2)	001.23	\$ \$\$9 V.99	bb\$1.23
FIXED (5,2)	012.00	99\$	12\$
FIXED(2)	12	\$\$\$,999	bbb\$012
FIXED(4)	1234	\$\$\$,999	b\$1,234
FIXED(5,2)	123.45	S999V.99	+123.45
FIXED(5,2)	-123.45	\$999 V.9 9	-123.45
FIXED (5,2)	-123.45	-9997.99	-123.45
FIXED (5,2)	123.45	-9997.99	b123.45
FIXED (5,2)	123.45	9990.995	123.45+
FIXED (5,2)	001.23	 -9 v.9 9	bbb1.23
FIXED (5,2)	-001.23	SSS9V.99	bb-1.23
¹ The arithmetic value is the value expressed by the digits and the actual or assumed location of the V in the specification.			

Figure 12. Examples of Numeric Signs and the Currency Symbol in Picture Specifications

otherwise it specifies a blank. The character may be drifting or static. The rules are identical to those for the currency symbol.

<u>Note</u>: \$, S, and - cannot be drifting characters in floating-point picture specifications.

Figure 12 gives examples of the use of numeric signs and the currency symbol as picture characters. In the figure, the letter b indicates a blank character.

Credit, Debit, and Overpunched-Sign Characters

The character pairs CR (credit) and DB (debit) specify the signs of fixed-point numeric character data items and usually appear in business report forms.

Any of the picture characters T or R specifies an overpunched sign in the associated digit losition of a fixed-point numeric-character data item. An overpunched sign is a 12-punch (for plus) or an 11-punch (for minus) punched into the <u>same</u> column as a digit. It indicates the sign of the arithmetic data item. Only one overpunched sign can appear in a specification for a fixed-point number. The overpunch character can appear only in the <u>last</u> <u>digit_position</u> within a field.

- CR specifies that the associated positions will contain the letters CR if the value of the data is less than zero. Otherwise, the positions will contain two blanks. The characters CR can appear only to the right of all digit positions of a field.
- DB is used the same way that CR is used except that the letters DB appear in the associated positions.
- T specifies that the associated position, on input, will contain a digit overpunched with the sign of the data. It also specifies that an overpunch is to be indicated in the character-string value.

Source Attributes	Source Data (in constant form)	Picture Specification	Character-String Value ¹
FIXED (3)	-123	\$Z.99CR	\$1. 23CR
FIXED (4,2)	12.34	\$ZZV.99CR	\$12.34bb
FIXED (4,2)	- 12.34	\$ZZV.99DB	\$12.34DB
FIXED (4,2)	12.34	\$ZZV.99DB	\$12.34bb
FIXED(4)	- 1021	Z99R	102Ј
FIXED(4)	1021	999T	102A
¹ The arithmetic value is the value expressed by the digits and the actual or assumed location of the V in the specification.			

Figure 13. Examples of CR, DB, T, and R Picture Characters

R specifies that the associated position, on input, will contain a digit overpunched with - if the value is smaller than zero; otherwise, it will contain the digit with no overpunching. It also specifies that an overpunch is to be indicated in the character-string value if the data value is smaller than zero.

<u>Note</u>: You cannot use the picture characters CR, DB, T, and R with any other sign characters in the same field.

Figure 13 gives examples of the CR, DB, and overpunch characters. In the figure, the letter \underline{b} indicates a blank character.

The Exponent Specifier E

The picture character E delimits the exponent field of a numeric-character specification that describes <u>floating-point</u>

<u>decimal numbers</u>. The exponent field is always the last field of a numericcharacter floating-point picture specification.

E specifies that the associated position contains the letter E, which indicates the beginning of the exponent field.

The value of the exponent is adjusted (that is, it is varied) in the characterstring value so that the first significant digit of the first field (the mantissa) appears in the position associated with the first digit specifier of the specification (see the first two examples of Figure 14).

<u>Note</u>: Drifting and zero-suppression characters are not allowed in floating-point pictures. Exponent-field pictures are restricted to the only format ES99.

Figure 14 gives examples of the use of exponent delimiters.

Source Attributes	Source Data (in constant form)	Picture Specification	Character-String
FLOAT (5)	.12345E06	9V.99999ES99	1.23450E+05
FLOAT (5)	.12345E-06	9 v. 99999ES99	1.23450E-07
FLOAT (5)	-123.45E12	S999 V. 99ES99	-123.45E+12
FLOAT (5)	001.23E04	S99V.99ES99	+12.30E+03
¹ The arithmetic value is the value expressed by the digits and the actual or assumed location of the V in the specification.			

Figure 14. Examples of Floating-Point Picture Specifications

Edit-Directed Format Items

This section contains a description of each of the edit-directed format items that can appear in the format list of a GET, PUT or FORMAT statement.

There are three categories of format items:

- data format items,
- control format items, and
- remote format item.

The three categories are discussed separately and the format items are listed under each category. The remainder of the section contains detailed discussions of each of the format items.

Data Format Items

A data-format item describes the external format of a single data item.

For input, the data in the stream is considered to be a continuous string of characters. Each data-format item in a GET statement specifies the number of characters to be obtained from the stream and describes the way those characters are to be interpreted, whether as characters or as arithmetic values.

For output, the data in the stream takes the form specified by the format list. Each data-format item in a PUT statement specifies the width of the field into which the associated data item in character form is to be placed and describes the format that the value is to take.

Leading blanks are not inserted automatically to separate data items in the output stream. Character-string data is leftadjusted in the field whose width is specified. Arithmetic data is right-adjusted. Leading blanks will not appear in the stream unless the specified field width allows for them. Truncation due to inadequate field-width specification is on the <u>left</u> for arithmetic items, on the <u>right</u> for character-string items.

Figure 15 shows all data format items and their formats.

Category	Data Format Item
Fixed-point Floating-point	F(W,[d,[p]]) E(W,d[,s])
Character-string	A[(w)]

Figure 15. Data Format Items

Control Format Items

The control-format items apply to input and output files. They specify formatting of the data items coming from or going to the external medium.

Figure 16 shows all control format items and their formats.

A control format item has no effect unless it is encountered before the data list is exhausted.

The PAGE and SKIP format items have the same effect as the corresponding options of the PUT statement, except that the format items are executed only when they are

	Control Format Item		
l category	for PRINT files	for non-PRINT files	
Paging	PAGE		
Line skipting	SKIP [(w)]	 	
Record skipping	 	SKIP [(w)]	
Spacing	X (w)	X (W)	

Figure 16. Control Format Items

encountered in the format list, while the options of the PUT statement are executed before any data is transmitted.

Remote Format Item

The remote format item specifies the <u>label</u> of a FORMAT statement: This statement contains a format list which replaces the remote format item in the GET or PUT statement.

The remote format item is:

R (statement-label-designator)

The statement-label designator is a label constant or an unsubscripted element label variable.

Alphabetic List of Format Items

The A Format Item

The A format item is:

For input: A (w) For output: A [(w)]

where \underline{w} is the <u>number of characters</u> to be transmitted.

The <u>character-string</u> format item describes the external representation of a string of characters. You must use it only for character strings. Character strings cannot be transmitted by any other format item. No conversion is performed.

General Rules:

- The letter <u>w</u> must be a decimal integer constant, unsigned and greater than zero, but less than 256. It specifies the number of characters to be transmitted.
- On <u>input</u>, the specified number of characters is obtained from the data stream and assigned to the associated variable in the data list. For input, you must always specify <u>w</u>. If apostrophes appear in the stream, they are treated as characters in the string.
- 3. On <u>output</u>, <u>w</u> need not be specified; in this case, the length of the associated string is used, and the data item completely fills the field. Enclosing apostrophes are not inserted.

<u>The_E_Format_Item</u>

The E format item is:

For input: E (w,d)
For output: E (w,d[,s])

where w is the <u>field-width</u>, <u>d</u> the <u>number of</u> <u>fractional digits</u>, and <u>s</u> the <u>number of significant_digits</u>.

The <u>floating-point</u> format item E describes the external representation of decimal arithmetic data in floating-point format.

General Rules:

- The letters w, d, and s must be <u>unsigned_decimal_integer_constants</u>. The integer w specifies the <u>total</u> number of characters in the field. It must be less than 33. The integer d specifies the number of fractional digits, that is, the number of digits following the decimal point in the mantissa: specifies the number of digits that <u>must</u> appear in the <u>mantissa</u>.
- On <u>input</u>, the data item in the stream is the character representation of an optionally signed decimal floatingpoint or fixed-point constant located <u>anywhere</u> within the specified field. If the data item is a fixed-point number, an exponent of zero is assumed.

The external form of the <u>number</u> is:

[±] mantissa $\left\{ \begin{bmatrix} E \end{bmatrix} \{ \pm \} \\ E[\pm] \right\}$ exponent

The mantissa must be a fixed-point decimal constant.

The number can appear anywhere in the specified field; blanks may appear before and after the number in the field. If the entire field is blank, the CONVERSION condition is raised. When no decimal point appears, the number of fractional digits (d) specifies the number of character positions to the right of the <u>assumed</u> decimal point of the mantissa. If a decimal point actually does appear in the data, it overrides <u>d</u>.

The value expressed by \underline{w} includes trailing blanks, the exponent position(s), the position for the optional plus or minus sign, the position for the optional letter E, and the position for the optional decimal point in the mantissa.

Edit-Directed Format Items 99

The <u>exponent</u> must be a decimal integer constant that does not exceed two significant digits. Leading zeros are allowed. Whenever the exponent and a preceding sign or the letter E are omitted, a zero exponent is assumed.

- 3. On <u>output</u>, the internal data is converted, if necessary, to floating-point numeric-character representation, and the external data item in the specified field has the following general form:
 - [-]{s-d digits}.{d digits}E{+}-}exponent

The <u>exponent</u> is a two-digit decimal integer constant, which may be two zeros. The exponent is automatically adjusted so that the leading digit of the mantissa is non-zero (provided that the mantissa is not zero, of course).

If the above form of the number does not fill the specified field on output, the number is right-adjusted and extended on the left with blanks. the number of significant digits is not specified, it is taken to be 1 plus the number of fractional digits. For the Model 20 PL/I Compiler, the field width for negative or non-negative values of the data item must be greater than or equal to 6 plus the number of significant digits (although the sign of a positive digit is not written, it must be accounted for). However, if the number of fractional digits is zero, the decimal point is not written, and the above figure for the field width is reduced by 1.

When the internal data is converted to the output format, it is rounded as follows: if truncation causes a digit to be lost on the right and this digit is greater than or equal to 5, then 1 is added to the digit to the left of the lost digit.

Example:

- DCL (A,B,C) FLOAT (15); A = -1234567 B = -1.2345678E-10C = 1.2345678E+1
- PUT FILE (OUT) EDIT (A,B,C) (E15,6),E(15,6,8),E(15,8)
- When A,B and C are pointed, they will look as follows:
- bb-1.234567E+06b-12.345678E-11 b1.23456780E+01

<u> Ihe_F_Format_Item</u>

The F format item is:

F (w[,d[,p]])

where w is the <u>field_width</u>, <u>d</u> the <u>number_of</u> <u>fractional_digits</u>, and <u>p</u> the <u>scale_factor</u>.

The <u>fixed-point</u> format item describes the external representation of a decimal arithmetic data item in fixed-point format.

General Rules:

- The letters w, d, and p must be decimal integer constants. Only p can be signed; the others must be unsigned; w must be less than 33 and must, for output, account for the sign, even if it is blank.
- On <u>input</u>, the data item in the stream is the character representation of an optionally signed decimal fixed-point constant located anywhere within the specified field. Blanks may appear before and after the number in the field. If the entire field is blank, it is interpreted as zero.

If \underline{d} is not specified, the number of fractional digits is assumed to be zero.

If p is not specified and no decimal point appears in the field, <u>d</u> specifies the number of fractional digits, that is, the number of digits to the right of the <u>assumed</u> decimal point. If a decimal point actually does appear in the data, it overrides the specification d.

If p is specified, it effectively multiplies the value of the data item in the stream by 10 raised to the power of the value of L. Thus, if p is positive, the number is treated as though the decimal point appeared p positions to the right of its given position. If p is negative, the number is treated as though the decimal point appeared <u>p</u> positions to the left of its given position. The given position of the decimal point is that indicated either by an actual point, if it appears, or by the specification for the number of fractional digits, in the absence of an actual point.

3. On <u>output</u>, the internal data is converted, if necessary, to fixed-point, and the external data is the character representation of a decimal fixed-point number, right-adjusted in the specified field.

If only \underline{w} is specified in the format item, only the integer portion of the number is written; no decimal point appears.

If both \underline{w} and \underline{d} are specified, both the integer and fractional portions of the number are written, and if \underline{d} is greater than zero a decimal point is inserted before the leftmost \underline{d} digits. Trailing zeros are supplied when the actual number of fractional digits is less than \underline{d} (the value \underline{d} must be less than the field width (w)). Suppression of leading zeros is applied to all digit positions (except the first) to the left of the decimal point.

When the internal data is converted to the output format, it is rounded as follows: if truncation causes a digit to be lost on the right and this digit is greater than or equal to 5, then 1 is added to the digit to the left of the lost digit.

When \underline{p} is specified, the value of the associated element in the data list is effectively multiplied by 10 raised to the power of \underline{p} before it is converted to its external character representation. When the number of fractional digits is zero, only the integer portion of the number is used.

If the value of the fixed-point number is less than zero, the external character representation is preceded by a minus sign. If it is greater than or equal to zero, a blank appears. Therefore, for all values of the fixed-point number, \underline{w} must account for both the sign and a possible decimal point (the decimal point will not appear if there are no fractional digits).

The PAGE Format Item

The PAGE format item is:

PAGE

The paging format item PAGE specifies that printing is to continue on a new page.

General Rules:

The PAGE format item implies that printing is to continue on line 1 of the new page. <u>The R Format Item</u>

The R format item is:

R (statement-label-designator)

The remote format item allows the use of format items specified in a FORMAT statement.

General Rules:

- The statement-label designator is a label constant or a label variable whose value is the statement label of a FORMAT statement. The FORMAT statement includes a format list that is taken to replace the format item. The statement-label designator cannot be subscripted.
- The R format item and the specified FORMAT statement must be contained within the same procedure.
- 3. A FORMAT statement must not contain an R format item.

<u> The SKIP Format Item</u>

The SKIP format item is:

SKIP [(w)]

where \underline{w} specifies that writing or reading is to continue at the beginning of the <u>w</u>th line or record (for non-PRINT files) following the one just being written or read.

The skipping format item SKIP can be used with both PRINT and non-PRINT files, in GET as well as PUT statements. When used in a PUT statement for a PRINT file, it specifies that printing is to continue on a new line. When used in a GET statement, it specifies that a new record is to be read.

General Rules:

- The letter <u>w</u> must be an unsigned decimal integer constant between 0 and 3 for PRINT files and 1 and 3 for non-PRINT files (SKIP(0) is not allowed for non-PRINT files). If <u>w</u> is not specified, 1 is assumed.
- If w is greater than or equal to 1, w-1 blank lines or records will be inserted for output, or w-1 complete records will be skipped for input.
- 3. If SKIP(0) is specified for PRINT files, the effect is that of carriage return without line skipping. Characters previously written will be overprinted by the new characters. For

Edit-Directed Format Items 101

example, underscoring can be done in this form.

- 4. If the SKIP format item is not specified at the end of a line or record, SKIP(1) is assumed, that is, printing continues at the beginning of the following line (single spacing), or reading continues at the beginning of the following record.
- 5. If, for PRINT files, the specified line lies beyond the limit set by default (which is 60) or by the PAGESIZE option of the OPEN statement, the ENDPAGE condition is raised.

<u>The_X_Format_Item</u>

The X format item is:

X (W)

where w is the field width.

The spacing format item controls the relative spacing in the data stream. It can be used in GET as well as PUT statements.

General Rules:

- 1. The letter \underline{w} must be an unsigned decimal integer constant less than 256.
- On <u>input</u>, <u>w</u> specifies the number of characters to be spaced over in the data stream, i.e., not to be transmitted to the program.
- 3. On <u>output</u>, the specified number of blank characters is inserted in the data stream.

Built-In Functions and the Pseudo-Variable SUBSTR

This section contains a description of the built-in functions and the pseudo-variable SUBSTR available in Model 20 PL/I. These features are discussed in the following order:

1. Computational Built-In Functions

- a) String-handling built-in functions
- b) Arithmetic built-in functions
- c) Mathematical built-in functions
- 2. Other Built-In Functions
- 3. The Pseudo-Variable SUBSTR

The <u>computational built-in functions</u>, as shown above, provide string handling, arithmetic operations (absolute value, truncation, etc.), mathematical operations (trigonometric functions, square root, etc.).

The computational built-in functions are:

<u>String_Handling</u>: CHAR HIGH LOW

SUBSTR

<u>Arithmetic</u>: ABS CEIL FLOOR MAX

> MIN ROUND TRUNC

<u>Mathematical</u>: ATAN COS EXP LOG SIN SQRT TAN TANH

<u>Other_built-in_functions</u> are: ADDR DATE

The section on the <u>pseudo-variable</u> <u>SUBSTR</u> gives a short discussion of the pseudo-variable. You find a more complete description in the discussion of the corresponding built-in function. The built-in functions and the pseudovariable are presented in alphabetical order under their proper headings.

Computational Built-In Functions

STRING HANDLING BUILT-IN FUNCTIONS

You may use the functions described in this section for manipulating character strings. The arguments you may use must be <u>expressions</u>.

CHAR_Built-In_Function

<u>Definition</u>: CHAR is used to control the size of a character-string expression. In Model 20 PL/I, it is mainly used to convert a picture variable to a character string.

<u>Reference</u>: CHAR (expression [,size])

Arguments: The argument <u>expression</u> may be:

a. a character-string expression, or

b. a numeric-character expression

The argument <u>size</u>, when specified, must be a <u>decimal_integer_constant</u> giving the length of the result. If size is not specified, the length resulting from the character-string expression or numericcharacter expression is taken.

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by this function is <u>expression</u> converted to a character string. The length of this character string is determined by <u>size</u>, as described above.

Example:

DCL X PIC'**9V.99'; . . PUT FILE(OUT)EDIT (CHAR(X))(A);

HIGH_Built-In_Function

<u>Definition</u>: HIGH forms a character string of a specified length. Each character in the constructed string is the highest character in the collating sequence. For System/360 implementations, this character is stored as <u>hexadecimal_FF</u>.

Reference: HIGH (i)

Built-In Functions and the Pseudo-Variable SUBSTR 103

<u>Argument</u>: The argument \underline{i} must be an unsigned decimal integer constant specifying the length of the string that is to be formed.

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by this function is a character string of length \underline{i} each character in the string is stored as hexadecimal FF.

Figure 17 illustrates the use of the built-in function HIGH.

Two sequential files with ascending keys shall be merged. When the first file is exhausted its key is set 'high'. Thus, only the records of the non-exhausted file will be copied.

MERGE: PROCEDURE OPTIONS (MAIN); DCL 1 S1 BASED (P1), 2 KEY CHAR (5) , 1 S2 BASED (P2), 2 KEY CHAR(5),.... 1 S3 BASED(P), 2 KEY.... (P,P1,P2) POINTER, LBL LABEL INIT (START), F1 FILE SEQUENTIAL INPUT F2 FILE SEQUENTIAL INPUT FO FILE SEQUENTIAL OUTPUT /*FILE ACTIVATION*/ OPEN FILE(F1), FILE(F2), FILE(F0); ON ENDFILE (F1) GO TO EOF1; ON ENDFILE (F2) GO TO EOF2; READ1: READ FILE (F1) SET (P1); GO TO LBL; START: LBL = COMP; READ2: READ FILE(F2) SET(P2); COMP : IF S1, KEY>=S2.KEY THEN P=ADDR (S2); ELSE P=ADDR(S1); WRITE FILE(FO) FROM(S3); IF P=ADDR(S2) THEN GO TO READ2; GO TO READ1; EOF1 : IF S2.KEY=HIGH(5) THEN GO TO FINIS; S1.KEY=HIGH (5); GO TO COMP; EOF2 : IF S1.KEY=HIGH (5) THEN GO TO FINIS; S2.KEY=HIGH(5); GO TO COMP; FINIS: END;

Figure 17. Example for the Usage of a Built-in Function (HIGH)

Low Built-In Function

<u>Definition</u>: LOW forms a character string of specified length from the lowest character in the collating sequence which, for System/360 implementations, is <u>hexadecimal</u> <u>00</u>. Each character in the constructed string will be stored as hexadecimal 00.

Reference: LOW (i)

<u>Argument</u>: The argument <u>i</u> must be an unsigned decimal integer constant specifying the length of the string to be formed. <u>Result</u>: The value returned by this function is a character string of length \underline{i} each character in the string is the lowest character in the collating sequence which, for System/360 implementations, is hexadecimal 00.

Example: LOW(3) has the value X'000000'

SUBSTR_Built-In_Function

<u>Definition</u>: SUBSTR extracts a substring of defined length from a given string and returns the substring to the point of invocation. (SUBSTR can also be used as a pseudo-variable).

Reference: SUBSTR (string,i,j)

<u>Arguments</u>: The argument <u>string</u> represents the string from which a substring will be extracted. This argument can be:

- a character string expression, or
- a numeric-character expression

The argument \underline{i} represents the starting point of the substring relative to the beginning of the specified string, and the argument \underline{j} represents the length of the substring. Argument \underline{i} must be an expression that allows conversion to an integer; \underline{j} must be a decimal integer constant.

Assuming that the length of <u>string</u> is \underline{k} , the arguments \underline{i} and \underline{j} must satisfy the following conditions:

- 1. j must be less than or equal to \underline{k} and greater than or equal to 1.
- 2. <u>i</u> must be less than or equal to <u>k</u> and greater than or equal to 1.
- 3. The value of i + j 1 must be less than or equal to <u>k</u>.

Thus, the substring as specified by \underline{i} and \underline{j} must lie within <u>string</u>. Note that condition 1 is checked by the compiler; conditions 2 and 3 are not.

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by this function is a substring of length j beginning with the <u>i</u>th character of <u>string</u>.

Example: If AAA is a character string of length 8, the statements:

DCL AAA CHAR (8) INIT ('ABCDEFGH')

ITEM = SUBSTR(AAA, 3,5);

will cause a 5-character substring to be extracted from AAA. The extracted string is then returned to the point of invocation, after which it is assigned to ITEM (assuming ITEM is a character-string variable). It will have the following form:

CDEFG

ARITHMETIC BUILT-IN FUNCTIONS

All values returned by the arithmetic built-in functions are in coded arithmetic form. The arguments of these functions should also be in that form. If an argument is not coded arithmetic, then it is converted to coded arithmetic before the function is invoked. Note, therefore, that in the function descriptions below, a reference to an argument always means the converted argument, if conversion was necessary.

The argument of an arithmetic built-in function may only be an expression. Unless specifically stated otherwise, the scale and precision of the returned value are determined according to the conversion rules for expression operands as given in Part I, under <u>Expressions</u>.

In many of these built-in functions, the symbol \underline{N} is used. This symbol represents the maximum precision that a value may have. It is defined, for System/360 im_lementations, as follows:

N = 15 for FIXED and FLOAT DECIMAL values.

<u>ABS_Built-In_Function</u>

<u>Definition</u>: The absolute value of a number is the number with the sign removed. Thus, the absolute values of 1.5 and -1.5 are the same, namely, 1.5.

ABS finds the absolute value of a given quantity and returns it to the point of invocation.

<u>Reference</u>: ABS (x)

<u>Argument</u>: \underline{x} represents the value whose absolute value is to be found.

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by this function is the absolute value of \underline{x} . The scale and precision are the same as those of \underline{x} .

Example: To jet the absolute value of a
variable A, write

Since the built-in function SQRT allows only positive arguments, it is advisable to write:

SQRT (ABS(A))

if you are not sure that A is positive.

CEIL_Built-In_Function

<u>Definition</u>: CEIL determines and returns the next integer above <u>x</u> unless <u>x</u> is an integer, in which case it returns the value of x itself to the point of invocation.

Reference: CEIL (x)

<u>Argument</u>: \underline{x} represents the value whose ceiling value is to be found.

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by this function is the smallest integer that is greater than or equal to \underline{x} . The scale and precision are the same as those of \underline{x} with one exception: if \underline{x} is a fixed-point value of precision (p,q), the precision of the result is defined as:

(MIN (N, MAX (p-q+1, 1)), 0)

Examples:

CEIL (12.345) = 13CEIL (345.99) = 346CEIL (43.001) = 44CEIL (-2.4) = -2CEIL (0056.34E02) = 0056.34E02CEIL (0012.37E-03) = 1000.00E-03CEIL (000.01E-02) = 100.00E-02CEIL (-00.1E00) = 00.0E00CEIL (000.01E-04) = 100.00E-2

FLOOR Built-In Function

<u>Definition</u>: FLOOR determines and returns the next integer below \underline{x} unless \underline{x} is an integer, in which case it returns the value of \underline{x} itself.

<u>Reference</u>: FLOOR (x)

<u>Argument:</u> \underline{x} represents the value whose floor value is to be found.

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by this function is the largest integer that does not exceed <u>x</u>. The scale and precision of this value are the same as those of <u>x</u>, with one exception: if <u>x</u> is a fixed-point value of precision (p, y), the precision of the result is:

(MIN(N, MAX(p-q+1, 1)), 0)

ABS(A)

Built-In Functions and the Pseudo-Variable SUBSTR 105

<u>Examples</u>:

```
FLOOR (12.345) = 12

FLOOR (345.99) = 345

FLOOR (43.001) = 43

FLOOR (-2.4) = -3

FLOOR (0056.34E20) = 0056.34E02

FLOOR (0012.37E-03 = 0000.00E00

FLOOR (000.01E-02) = 000.00E00

FLOOR (-000.1E0) = -001.0E00
```

MAX_Built-In_Function

<u>Definition</u>: MAX finds the expression with the highest value from a given set of two or more expressions and returns its value to the point of invocation.

Reference: MAX (x1, x2, ..., xn)

<u>Arguments</u>: Two or more arguments must be given. They must have identical scale and precision.

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by MAX is the value of the maximum-valued argument. The scale and precision is the same as of the arguments.

Example: Assume the following parameter list specified for MAX:

MAX (003.200, 042.356, NUMBER)

with NUMBER having the value 102.000. Then MAX returns the value 102.000.

MIN_Built-In_Function

<u>Definition</u>: MIN finds the lowest-valued expression from a given set of two or more expressions and returns the value of this expression to the point of invocation.

<u>Reference</u>: MIN $(x1, x2, \ldots, xn)$

<u>Arguments</u>: Two or more arguments must be given. They must have identical scale and precision.

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by MIN is the value of the lowest-valued argument. The scale and precision of the result is the same as that of the argument.

ROUND Built-In Function

<u>Definition</u>: ROUND rounds a given value at a specified digit position to the right of the decimal point and returns the rounded value to the point of invocation.

<u>Reference</u>: ROUND (extrassion, n)

<u>Arguments:</u> <u>expression</u> must be of fixeddecimal type. It is an expression representing the value to be rounded: <u>n</u> must be an unsigned decimal integer constant. It specifies the fractional digit position (to the right of the decimal point) at which the value of <u>expression</u> is to be rounded.

<u>Result</u>: <u>ex,ression</u> is rounded at digit position <u>n</u> to the right of the decimal point. Stare digit positions are padded with zeros. The precision of the result is:

(MIN(p+1,N),q)

Note that if <u>expression</u> is negative, its <u>absolute value</u> is rounded. Its sign remains unchanged.

Example: If R is a fixed-point decimal variable of precision (7,5) containing the value 36.24976, and X, Y and Z are fixedpoint decimal variables of precision (6,4), then after execution of the following statements:

```
X = R;

Y = ROUND (R,3);

Z = ROUND (R,4);
```

the value of X is 36.2497 (normal truncation due to precision deviation), the value of Y is 36.2500, and the value of Z is 36.2498.

TRUNC Built-In Function

<u>Definition</u>: TRUNC truncates a given value to an integer as follows: First, it determines whether a given value is positive, negative, or equal to zero. If the value is negative, TRUNC returns the smallest integer that is greater than that value (ceiling): if the value is positive or equal to zero, TRUNC returns the largest integer that does not exceed that value (floor).

Reference: TRUNC (x)

 $\underline{\text{Argument:}}$ x represents the value to be truncated.

<u>Result</u>: If <u>x</u> is less than zero, the value returned by TRUNC is CEIL(x). If <u>x</u> is greater than or equal to zero, the value returned by TRUNC is FLOOR(x). In either case, the scale of the result is the same as that of <u>x</u>. If <u>x</u> is floating-point, the precision remains the same. If <u>x</u> is a fixed-point value of precision (p,q), the precision of the value is:

(MIN(N, MAX(p-q+1)), 0)

MATHEMATICAL_BUILT-IN_FUNCTIONS

All arguments passed to the mathematical built-in functions should be in coded arithmetic form and in floating-point scale. Any argument that does not conform to this rule is converted to coded arithmetic and floating-point before the function is invoked. Note, therefore, that in the function descriptions below, a reference to an argument always means the converted argument, if conversion was necessary.

An argument to a mathematical built-in function must be an expression. All of the mathematical built-in functions return coded arithmetic floating-point values. The precision of these values is always the same as those of the arguments.

Figure cc provides a survey of the mathematical built-in functions available in Model 20 PL/I.

ATAN_Built-In_Function

<u>Definition</u>: ATAN finds the arctangent of a given value and returns the result, expressed in radians, to the point of invocation.

Reference: ATAN (x[,y])

<u>Arguments</u>: The argument \underline{x} must always be specified; the argument \underline{y} is optional. If \underline{y} is omitted, \underline{x} represents the value whose arctangent is to be found.

If \underline{y} is specified, then the value whose arctangent is to be found is taken to be the expression x/y. In this case, \underline{x} and \underline{y} must not be equal to 0 both at the same time.

<u>Result</u>: When \underline{x} alone is specified, the value returned by ATAN is the arctangent of \underline{x} expressed in radians, where:

-pi/2<ATAN(x)<pi/2

If both \underline{x} and \underline{y} are s_iecified, the possible values returned by this function are defined as follows:

- For y > 0 and any x, the value is AFAN (x/y).
- 2. If x > 0 and y = 0, the value is (pi/2).
- 3. If $x \ge 0$ and y < 0, the value is (pi+ ATAN (x/y)).
- 4. If x < 0 and y = 0, the value is $(-\nu i/2)$.

- 5. If x < 0 and y < 0, the value is (-pi+ATAN(x/y)).
- 6. If x = 0 and y = 0, the ERROR condition is raised.

COS_Built-In_Function

<u>Definition</u>: COS finds the cosine of a given value, which is expressed in radians, and returns the result to the point of invocation.

Reference: COS (x)

<u>Argument</u>: The value whose cosine is to be found is given by \underline{x} ; this value must be expressed in radians.

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by this function is the cosine of \underline{x} .

EXP_Built-In_Function

<u>Definition</u>: EXP raises \underline{e} (the base of the natural logarithm system) to a given power and returns the result to the point of invocation.

Reference: EXP (x)

<u>Argument</u>: The argument \underline{x} specifies the power to which \underline{e} is to be raised. It must not be greater than 112.8.

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by this function is \underline{e} raised to the power of \underline{x} .

LOG Built-In Function

<u>Definition</u>: LOG finds the natural logarithm (i.e., base \underline{e}) of a given value and returns it to the point of invocation.

Reference: LOG (x)

<u>Argument</u>: The argument \underline{x} is the value whose natural logarithm is to be found; it must not be less than or equal to 0.

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by this function is the natural logarithm of x.

SIN_Built-In_Function

<u>Definition</u>: SIN finds the sine of a given value, which is expressed in radians, and returns it to the point of invocation.

Reference: SIN (x)

<u>Argument</u>: The argument \underline{x} is the value whose sine is to be found; it must be expressed in radians.

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by this function is the sine of \underline{x} .

Built-In Functions and the Pseudo-Variable SUBSTR 107

<u>SQRT Built-In Function</u>

<u>Definition</u>: SQRT finds the square root of a given value and returns it to the point of invocation.

Reference: SQRT (x)

<u>Argument</u>: The argument \underline{x} is the value whose square root is to be found; it must not be less than 0.

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by this function is the positive square root of \underline{x} .

TAN Built-In Function

<u>Definition</u>: TAN finds the tangent of a given value, which is expressed in radians, and returns it to the point of invocation.

Reference: TAN (x)

<u>Argument</u>: The argument, \underline{x} , represents the value whose tangent is to be found; \underline{x} must be expressed in radians.

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by this function is the tangent of \underline{x} .

TANH_Built-In_Function

<u>Definition</u>: TANH finds the hyperbolic tangent of a given value and returns the result to the point of invocation. Reference: TANH (x)

<u>Argument</u>: The argument, \underline{x} , represents the value whose hyperbolic tangent is to be found.

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by this function is the hyperbolic tangent of \underline{x} .

SUMMARY OF MATHEMATICAL FUNCTIONS

Figure 18 summarizes the mathematical built-in functions. In using it, you should be aware of the following:

- All arguments must be coded arithmetic and floating-point scale, or such that they can be converted to coded arithmetic floating-point.
- 2. The value returned by each function is always floating-point.
- 3. The error conditions are those defined by the PL/I language. Additional error conditions detected by the Model 20 PL/I compiler can be found in Part III, under <u>Practical Considerations Regarding Program Execution</u>.

Function Reference	Value Returned	Error Conditions
ATAN (x)	arctan(x) in radians -(pi/2) <afan(x)<(pi 2)<="" td=""><td>-</td></afan(x)<(pi>	-
ATAN (x,y)	see function description	error if x=0 and y=0
COS(x) <u>x</u> in radians	cosine(x)	-
EXP (x)	e ^x	error if x>112.8
LOG(X)	log _e (x)	error if x≤0
SIN(x) <u>x</u> in radians	sine(x)	-
SQRT (x)	γx	error if x<0
TAN (x) <u>x</u> in radians	tangent(x)	-
TANH (x)	tanh (x)	-

Figure 18. Mathematical Built-In Functions
Other Built-In Functions

ADDR_Built-In_Function

<u>Definition</u>: ADDR finds the location in main storage which has been allocated to a given variable and returns a pointer value to the point of invocation. This pointer value identifies the location allocated to the variable.

Reference: ADDR (x)

<u>Argument</u>: The argument, \underline{x} is the variable whose location is to be found. It can be an element variable, an array variable, a structure variable, an element of an array, or an element of a structure. It can be of any data type and storage class.

<u>Result</u>: ADDR returns a pointer value identifying the main storage location allocated to \underline{x} . If \underline{x} is a parameter, the returned value identifies the corresponding argument (dummy or otherwise). If \underline{x} is a based variable, the returned value is determined from the pointer variable declared with \underline{x} ; if this pointer variable contains no value, the value returned by ADDR is undefined. For an example of the ADDR function refer to the example illustrating the HIGH builtin function in this section.

DATE_Built-In_Function

 $\underline{\text{Definition}}$: DATE returns the current data to the point of invocation.

Reference: DATE

Argument: None

<u>Result</u>: The value returned by this function is a character string of length six, in the form <u>yymmdd</u>, where: yy is the current year $\underline{m}\underline{m}$ is the current month $\underline{d}\underline{d}$ is the current day

<u>Example</u>: If the current date is February 29, 1970, execution of the statement

X = DATE;

will cause the character string '700229' to be returned to the point of invocation.

<u>Note</u>: If the DATE built-in function is used, DATE has to be declared with the BUILTIN attribute in a DECLARE statement.

The Pseudo-Variable SUBSTR

<u>Reference</u>: SUBSTR (string, i, j)

<u>Description</u>: SUBSTR represents a substring of <u>string</u>. The value being assigned to SUBSTR is assigned to the substring of <u>string</u>, starting at the <u>i</u>th position of <u>string</u> and extending over a length of <u>j</u> positions as defined for the built-in function SUBSTR. The remainder of <u>string</u> remains unchanged.

Example:

DCL NAME CHAR (10) INIT 'JOHN SMITH'; SUBSTR (NAME,2,6) = 'ACK KE';

After execution of the assignment statement, NAME will contain the character string 'JACK KEITH'.

ON-Conditions

The ON-conditions are those exceptional conditions for which you can make an action specification by means of an ON-statement. If a condition is <u>enabled</u>, the occurrence of the condition will result in an interruption of the program and in the execution of the current action specification for that condition. If an ON-statement for that condition is not in effect, the current action specification is the standard system action for that condition. If an ON-statement for that condition is in effect, the current action specification as given in that statement is either SYSTEM, in which case the standard system action for that condition is taken, or an ON-unit, in which case you have supplied your own action to be taken for that condition (i.e., either a null statement or a GO TO statement).

If a condition is not enabled (i.e., if it has been disabled), and the condition occurs, an interrupt will not take place, and errors may result.

ON-conditions are always enabled unless they have been explicitly disabled by condition prefixes.

Some of the ON-conditions can be disabled by a condition prefix specifying the condition name preceded by NO without intervening blanks. Thus, one of the following names in a condition prefix will disable the respective condition:

NOCONVERSION NOFIXEDOVERFLOW NOOVERFLOW NOUNDERFLOW NOZERODIVIDE

Such a condition prefix renders the corresponding condition disabled throughout the scope of the prefix; the condition remains enabled outside this scope (see Part I, <u>Exceptional Condition Handling</u> for a discussion of the scope of condition prefixes).

The following conditions are always enabled and remain so for the duration of the program:

ENDFILE ENDPAGE ERROR KEY RECORD TRANSMIT

Groups of ON-Conditions

This section presents each condition in its logical grouping, and in alphabetical order within that grouping. In general, the following information is given for each condition:

- <u>General format</u> -- given only when it consists of more than the condition name.
- <u>Description</u> -- a discussion of the condition, including the circumstances under which the condition can arise.
- 3. <u>Result</u> -- the result of the operation that caused the condition to occur. This applies when the condition is disabled as well as when it is enabled. In some cases, the result is not defined; that is, it cannot be predicted. This is stated wherever applicable.
- 4. <u>Standard_system_action</u> -- the action taken by the system when an interrupt occurs and an ON-unit to handle that interrupt has not been specified.
- 5. <u>Normal return</u> -- the point to which control is returned as a result of a null ON-unit. A GO TO statement ONunit is an abnormal ON-unit termination. Note that the conditions ENDFILE, KEY, and CONVERSION cannot have the null statement associated with them and, therefore, a normal return can never be made for these conditions.

The conditions are grouped as follows:

 <u>Computational conditions</u> -- those conditions associated with data handling, expression evaluation, and computation. They are:

> CONVERSION FIXEDOVERFLOW OVERFLOW UNDERFLOW ZERODIVIDE

 Input/Output conditions -- those conditions associated with data transmission. They are:

> ENDFILE ENDPAGE KEY RECORD TRANSMIT

3. <u>System-action condition</u> -- the condition (i.e., ERROR) that provides facilities to extend the standard system action that is taken after the occurrence of a condition.

Computational Conditions

The CONVERSION Condition

<u>Description</u>: The CONVERSION condition occurs whenever an illegal conversion is attempted. This attempt may be made internally or during an input/output operation.

All conversions of character-string data are carried out character-by-character in a left-to-right sequence and the condition occurs for the first illegal character. When such a character is encountered, an interrupt occurs (provided, of course, that CONVERSION has not been disabled by means of the condition prefix NOCONVERSION) and the current action specification for the condition is executed.

<u>Result</u>: When CONVERSION occurs, the contents of the entire result field are undefined.

<u>Standard System Action</u>: In the absence of an ON-unit, the system prints a message and raises the ERROR condition.

<u>Normal Return</u>: A null ON-unit cannot be specified for this condition.

Example:

On input, an attempt is made to convert data that has been mispunched as

10R-01

to the floating-point format specified in the following GET statement:

GET FILE (CARD) EDIT (Y) (E(8,2));

The CONVERSION condition is raised, since 10R-01 does not have a valid floating-point format.

The FIXEDOVERFLOW Condition

<u>Description</u>: The FIXEDOVERFLOW condition occurs when the length of the result of a fixed-point arithmetic operation exceeds <u>N</u>. For System/360 implementations, <u>N</u> is 15 for decimal fixed-point values.

FIXEDOVERFLOW can be disabled by the condition prefix NOFIXEDOVERFLOW.

<u>Result</u>: The result of the invalid fixedpoint operation is undefined. <u>Standard System Action</u>: In the absence of an ON-unit, the system prints a message and raises the ERROR condition.

<u>Normal Return</u>: If a null ON-unit is specified for this condition, control returns to the point immediately following the point of interrupt.

The_OVERFLOW_Condition

<u>Description</u>: The OVERFLOW condition occurs when the magnitude of a floating-point number exceeds the permitted maximum. For Model 20 PL/I, a floating-point number or intermediate result must be less than 10⁴⁹. OVERFLOW can be disabled by the condition prefix NOOVERFLOW.

<u>Result</u>: When OVERFLOW has occurred, the value in the affected floating-point field is undefined.

<u>Standard System Action</u>: In the absence of an ON-unit, the system prints a message and raises the ERROR condition.

<u>Normal Return</u>: If a null ON-unit is specified for this condition, control returns to the point immediately following the point of interrupt.

The UNDERFLOW Condition

<u>Description</u>: The UNDERFLOW condition occurs when the absolute value of a floating-point number is smaller than the permitted minimum. For Model 20 PL/I, the absolute value of a floating-point value must not be less than 10-51, except that it may be zero.

UNDERFLOW does not occur when equal numbers are subtracted (often called significance error).

UNDERFLOW can be disabled by the condition prefix NOUNDERFLOW.

<u>Result</u>: The invalid floating-point value is set to 0.

<u>Standard System Action</u>: In the absence of an ON-unit, the system prints a message and continues execution from the point at which the interrupt occurred.

<u>Normal Return</u>: If a null ON-unit is specified for this condition, control returns to the point immediately following the point of interrupt.

The ZERODIVIDE Condition

<u>Description</u>: The ZERODIVIDE condition occurs when an attempt is made to divide by zero. This condition is raised for fixedpoint and floating-point division.

ON-Conditions 111

ZERODIVIDE can be disabled by the condition prefix specifying NOZERODIVIDE. However, in this case, division by zero results in a Model 20 hardware stop.

<u>Result</u>: The result of a division by zero is undefined.

<u>Standard_System Action</u>: In the absence of an ON-unit, the system prints a message and raises the ERROR condition.

<u>Normal Return</u>: If a null ON-unit is specified for this condition, control returns to the point immediately following the point of interrupt.

Input/Output Conditions

The input/output conditions are always enabled and cannot appear in condition prefixes; they can be specified only in ONstatements.

The ENDFILE Condition

<u>General Format:</u> ENDFILE (filename)

<u>Description</u>: The ENDFILE condition can be raised during a GET or READ operation; it is caused by an attempt to read past the end-of-file record of the file named in the GET or READ statement.

After ENDFILE has been raised, the file should be closed.

<u>Standard_System Action</u>: In the absence of an ON-unit, the system prints a message and raises the ERROR condition.

Normal Return: A null ON-unit cannot be specified for this condition.

The ENDPAGE Condition

General Format: ENDPAGE (filename)

The <u>filename</u> must be the name of a file having the PRINT attribute.

<u>Description</u>: The ENDPAGE condition is raised when a PUT statement results in an attempt to start a new line beyond the maximum default page length (60 lines) or the page length specified in the PAGESIZE option of the OPEN statement for the file. The attempt to exceed the limit may be made during data transmission (including any format items specified in the PUT statement), or by the SKIP option. ENDPAGE is raised only once per page.

When ENDPAGE is raised, the current line number is one greater than that specified

by the PAGESIZE option (or the default) so that it is possible to continue writing on the same page.

After ENDPAGE has been raised, a new page can be started by executing a PAGE option or a PAGE format item. If a new page is not started, the current line number may increase indefinitely.

<u>Standard System Action</u>: In the absence of an ON-unit, the system starts a new page.

<u>Normal Return</u>: If ENDPAGE is raised during data transmission, then, on return from a null ON-unit, the data is written on the current line. If ENDPAGE results from a SKIP option, then, on return from a null ON-unit, the action specified by SKIP is ignored.

<u>The KEY Condition</u>

<u>General Format</u>: KEY (filename)

<u>Description</u>: The KEY condition can be raised only during operations on keyed records. It is raised in any of the following cases:

- The keyed record cannot be found for a READ or REWRITE statement. In this case, the contents of the variable into which data is to be read is unpredictable.
- An attempt is made to add a duplicate key by a WRITE statement.
- 3. The keys of a KEYED SEQUENTIAL OUTPUT file are not in ascending order.
- 4. No space is available to add the keyed record.

<u>Standard System Action</u>: In the absence of an ON-unit, the system prints a message and raises the ERROR condition.

<u>Normal_Return</u>: A null ON-unit cannot be specified for this condition.

The RECORD Condition

<u>General_Format:</u> RECORD (filename)

<u>Description</u>: The RECORD condition can be raised only durin, a READ, WRITE, REWRITE, or LOCATE operation. It is raised in either of the following cases:

- 1. The size of the record is greater than the size of the variable.
- 2. The size of the record is less than the size of the variable.

If the size of the record is greater than the size of the variable, the excess data in the record is lost on input and is unpredictable on output. If the size of the record is less than the size of the variable, the excess data in the variable is not transmitted on output and is unaltered on input. Note that an ON-unit can only be specified for <u>tape_input_files</u>.

<u>Standard System Action</u>: In the absence of an ON-unit, the system prints a message and raises the ERROR condition.

<u>Status</u>: RECORD is always enabled; it cannot be disabled.

<u>Normal Return</u>: Upon execution of a null ON-unit, execution continues with the statement immediately following the READ statement for which RECORD occurred. An ONunit can only be specified for tape input files; in all other cases, the standard system action is executed.

The TRANSMIT Condition

<u>General Format:</u> TRANSMIT (filename)

<u>Description</u>: The TRANSMIT condition can be raised during any input/output operation. It is raised by a permanent transmission error and, as a result, any data transmitted is potentially incorrect. During input, the condition is raised after assignment of the potentially incorrect data item or record. During output, the condition is raised after the transmission of the potentially incorrect data item or record has been attempted.

<u>Standard System Action</u>: In the absence of an ON-unit, the system prints a message and raises the ERROR condition.

<u>Normal Return</u>: Upon execution of a null ON-unit, processing continues with the next data item for STREAM I/O, or with the next statement for RECORD I/O.

System Action Condition

The ERROR Condition

<u>Description</u>: The ERROR condition is raised under the following circumstances:

- As a result of the standard system action for an ON-condition for which that action is to "print an error message and raise the ERROR condition".
- As a result of an error (for which there is no ON-condition) occurring during program execution (for example, taking the SQRT of a negative value).

<u>Standard System Action</u>: In the absence of an ON-unit, a message is printed and control is returned to the DPS Monitor program.

<u>Normal Return</u>: Upon execution of a null ON-unit, control is returned to the DPS Monitor program.

Attributes

A name appearing in a PL/I program may have one of many different meanings. It may, for example, be a variable referring to arithmetic data items; it may be a file name; it may be a variable referring to a character string, or it may be a statement label or a variable referring to a statement label.

Properties, or characteristics, of the values a name represents (for example, arithmetic characteristics of data items represented by an arithmetic variable) and other properties of the name itself (such as scope, storage class, etc.) together make up the set of <u>attributes</u> that can be associated with a name.

The attributes enable the compiler to assign a unique meaning to the identifier specified in a DECLARE statement. For example, if the variable is an arithmetic data variable, the scale and precision attributes must be associated with the name. Associated attributes are those which you specifiy in a DECLARE statement or which are assumed by default.

This section discusses the different attributes. The attributes are grouped by function. Detailed discussions follow, in alphabetic order, showing the rules, default, and format for each attribute.

SPECIFICATION_OF_ATTRIBUTES

Attributes specified in a DECLARE statement must be separated by blanks. However, in case of dimension, length, and precision attributes, blanks are not necessary. Except for the dimension, length, FILE, and precision attributes, they may appear in any order. The dimension attribute must immediately follow the array name; the length attribute must follow the CHARACTER attribute, and the precision attribute must follow the base or scale attribute; the FILE attribute must be the first attribute in every file declaration. A comma must follow the last attribute specification for a particular name (or the name itself, if no attributes are specified with it), unless it is the last name in the DECLARE statement, in which case the semicolon is used. For example:

DCL MASTER FILE RECORD INPUT SEQUENTIAL other-attributes, A(10,10) FIXED DECIMAL, B DECIMAL FIXED (4,2), C CHAR(5) INIT('JOHN ');

FACTORING OF ATTRIBUTES

Factoring is achieved by enclosing the names in parentheses, and following this by the set of attributes which apply. Names within the parenthesized list are separated by commas. All factored attributes must apply to all of the names. No factored attribute can be overridden for any of the names by a separate specification, but any name within the list may be given other attributes so long as there is no conflict with the factored attributes.

Except for the <u>dimension, INITIAL</u>, and <u>file-description attributes</u>, you can factor any attributes common to several names in a declaration to eliminate repeated specification of the same attribute for many identifiers. Note, however, that in Model 20 PL/I, a pair of factorization parentheses cannot contain more than 60 declarations and that factoring can be nested to a level of eight. (See the fourth example below for an illustration of nesting.)

<u>Note</u>: If elements of structures are factored, their level numbers must also be factored by preceding the parenthesized list. (See the third example below.)

<u>Examples</u>:

DECLARE (A,B,C) DECIMAL FIXED (4,2); DECLARE (Y DECIMAL (6),F CHARACTER (10)) STAFIC; DECLARE 1 A, 2 (B,C,D) FIXED DECIMAL (4,2); DECLARE ((A,B) FIXED (10), C FLOAT (5)) EXTERNAL;

Data Attributes

PROBLEM-DATA_ATTRIBUTES

Attributes for problem data are used to describe arithmetic and character-string variables. An arithmetic variable has attributes that specify the base, scale and precision of the data item. A characterstring variable has attributes that identify it as a character-string variable and specify its length.

The <u>arithmetic-data attributes</u> are:

DECIMAL FIXED|FLOAT (precision) PICTURE

The <u>string-data attributes</u> are:

CHARACTER (length)

You can also declare other attributes for data variables. With the DEFINED attribute you can specify that the data variable is to occupy the same main-storage area as some other data variable. The storage class and scope attributes also apply to data. With the INITIAL attribute you specify initial values for data variables.

An attribute that applies only to array variables, is the dimension attribute. It specifies the number of dimensions and the bounds of an array.

PROGRAM-CONTROL DATA ATTRIBUTES

Program-control data are labels and pointers. You can use them to control the execution of your program. The associated attributes are LABEL and POINTER.

ENTRY-NAME ATTRIBUTES

An entry name is a special type of label, namely, the label identifying a PROCEDURE statement. With the entry-name attributes you specify that the associated name is an entry name and describe features of that entry point.

The <u>entry name attributes</u> are:

ENTRY RETURNS BUILTIN

All entry names of procedures that are invoked within a procedure must be declared in the invoking procedure with the ENTRY or RETURNS attribute. The RETURNS attribute has to be specified for a function returning a value that does not have the default attributes. It has to appear in both the invoking and the invoked procedure (function). In the function, the attributes of the value to be returned must be specified in the RETURNS attribute in the PROCEDURE statement. The PROCEDURE statement of a function is the only place where an attribute may appear outside a DECLARE statement. The BUILTIN attribute must be specified for the DATE built-in function.

File Description Attributes

The file-description attributes establish an identifier as a file-name and describe characteristics for that file, for example, how the data of the file is to be transmitted, what the characteristics of the file are, etc. If the same filename is declared in more than one procedure, the file attributes must not conflict. A filename must always have the EXTERNAL attribute, either explicitly or by default. For file-description attributes see also <u>Appendix E. File Attributes and Options</u>.

The <u>file-description attributes</u> are:

FILE STREAM | RECORD INPUT | OUTPUT | UPDATE PRINT SEQUENTIAL | DIRECT BACKWARDS ENVIRONMENT (option-list) KEYED

Scope Attributes

With the scope attributes you specify whether or not a name declared in a procedure is to be known only within or also beyond the scope of that procedure.

The <u>scope_attributes</u> are:

EXTERNAL INTERNAL

For a discussion of the scope of names, see Part I, <u>Recognition of Names</u>.

All external declarations of the same identifier in a program are considered as declarations of the same variable. The scope of the variable name is the union of the scopes of all the external declarations of this name.

In all of the external declarations of the same identifier, the attributes declared must be consistent, since the declarations all involve a single variable. For example, it would be an error if the identifier ID were declared as an EXTERNAL filename in one procedure and as an EXTERNAL entry name in another procedure in the same program.

The INTERNAL attribute specifies that the declared name is not known in any procedure other than the one in which it is declared. INTERNAL cannot be specified for a file or entry name.

You can declare the same identifier with the INTERNAL attribute in more than one procedure without regard to whether the attributes given in one procedure are consistent with the attributes given in another procedure, since such declarations refer to different variables.

Attributes 115

Storage Class Attributes

The storage-class attributes are used to specify the class of storage to be allocated to a data variable.

The storage-class attributes are:

STATIC AUTOMATIC BASED (pointer-variable)

Alphabethic List of Attributes

Following is a list of attributes along wiht a detailed description of each attribute. Alternative attributes are discussed together, with the discussion listed in the alphabetic location of the attribute whose name is the lowest in alphabetic order. A cross-reference to the combined discussion appears wherever an alternative appears in the alphabetic listing.

AUTOMATIC, STATIC, and BASED (Storage-Class Attributes)

You use the storage-class attributes to specify the type of main-storage allocation for data variables.

<u>AUTOMATIC</u> specifies that storage is to be allocated upon each entry to the procedure in which the declaration has been made (either explicitly or by default). The storage area is freed (released) upon exit from the procedure.

<u>STATIC</u> specifies that storage is to be allocated when the program is loaded and is not to be released until program execution has been completed.

The <u>BASED</u> (<u>pointer-variable</u>) attribute specifies a variable that is a description of data that can be applied to different locations in a storage.

General Format:

STATIC | AUTOMATIC | BASED (pointer-variable)

General Rules:

- 1. AUTOMATIC and BASED variables can have INTERNAL scope only. STATIC variables may have either INTERNAL or EXTERNAL scope.
- You must not specify storage-class attributes for entry names, file names, members of structures, DEFINED data items, or parameters.
- For a <u>structure_variable</u>, you can stering a storage-class attribute only for the <u>major-structure_name</u>. The attri-

bute then applies to all elements of the structure.

- The following rules govern the use of <u>based_variables</u>:
 - a) The <u>pointer variable</u> must be explicitly declared with the POINTER attribute. The pointer variable must be an element variable; it cannot be an element of a structure, and it cannot have the BASED attribute.
 - b) When reference is made to a <u>based</u> <u>variable</u>, the data attributes assumed are those of the based variable, while the associated pointer variable identifies the location of data.
 - c) You can use a based variable to identify and describe existing data or to obtain storage in a buffer by use of the LOCATE statement.
 - d) You cannot specify the EXTERNAL attribute with a based variable, but you can use a based variable with an EXTERNAL pointer variable.

Assumptions:

- If no storage-class attribute is specified and the scope is INTERNAL, AUTO-MATIC is assumed.
- If no storage-class attribute is specified and the scope is EXTERNAL, STATIC is assumed.
- If neither the storage class nor the scope is specified, AUTOMATIC is assumed.

BACKWARDS (File-Description Attribute)

With the BACKWARDS attribute you specify that the records of a SEQUENTIAL INPUT file on magnetic tape are to be accessed in reverse order, i.e., from the last record to the first record.

General Format:

BACKWARDS

General Rules:

- The BACKWARDS attribute applies to RECORD files only; you may not specify it for STREAM files.
- The BACKWARDS attribute applies to tape files only.
- 3. The BACKWARDS attribute cannot be specified for variable-length records.

BASED_(Storage-Class_Attribute)

See AUTOMATIC.

BUILTIN (Entry Attribute)

In Model 20 PL/I, the BUILTIN attribute must be specified with the DATE built-in function. For the other built-in functions it may be specified, but is not necessary.

General Format:

BUILTIN

General Rule:

The BUILTIN attribute has to be specified with the DATE built-in function. It must be the only attribute specified for the built-in function.

For example:

DCL DATE BUILTIN;

<u>CHAR_or_CHARACTER_(Character-String_Data</u> <u>Attribute)</u>

The CHARACTER attribute (abbreviated CHAR) is used to specify character-string variables. Together with the CHARACTER attribute you have to specify the length attribute.

General Format:

```
 \left\{ \begin{array}{c} CHARACTER \\ CHAR \end{array} \right\} (length)
```

General Rules:

- With the length attribute you specify the length of the declared string. It must be a decimal integer constant, unsigned and greater than zero. The maximum length specification is 255.
- 2. The length attribute must immediately follow the CHARACTER attribute at the same factoring level, with or without intervening blanks.

DECIMAL (Arithmetic-Data Attribute)

With the DECIMAL attribute you specify that the base of the data item represented by an arithmetic variable is decimal. In Model 20 PL/I, arithmetic variables can only have the DECIMAL base.

General Format:

DECIMAL

General Rule:

The DECIMAL attribute cannot be specified with the PICTURE attribute.

Assumptions:

Identifiers that are not $ex_{\rm E}$ licitly declared (or identifiers declared only with dimension, storage class, and scope attributes) are invalid if they begin with any of the letters I to N. If they begin with any other alphabetic character, they are assumed to be arithmetic variables with the default attributes FLOAT DECIMAL (6).

<u>DEF_or_DEFINED_(Data_Attribute)</u>

The DEFINED attribute (abbreviated DEF) specifies that the variable being declared is to represent part or all of the same storage area as that assigned to another variable. The DEFINED attribute can be declared for element, array, or majorstructure variables.

General Format:

{DEFINED base-identifier DEF

The <u>base_identifier</u> is an unsubscripted variable whose location in main storage (or part of it) is also to be represented by the variable being declared.

Rules for Defining:

- 1. You cannot specify INITIAL, storageclass, and scope attributes for the <u>defined_variable</u>. Note that although the base identifier can have the EXTERNAL attribute, the <u>defined_vari-</u> <u>able</u> always has the INTERNAL attribute and cannot be declared with any scope attribute. If the base identifier is external, it will be known in all procedures in which it has been declared external, but the name of the defined variable will not. However, the value of the defined variable will be changed if the value of the base identifier is changed in any procedure. The defined variable cannot be a minor structure or an element of a structure.
- The <u>base_identifier</u> must always be known within the block in which the defined variable is declared. The base identifier cannot have the DEFINED attribute; it cannot be a based variable, a pointer variable or a parameter.
- The base identifier cannot be a minor structure or an element of a structure. However, it can be a major structure, and it can also be an array.

Attributes 117

There are two types of defining: <u>simple</u> <u>defining</u> and <u>string-overlay defining</u>. Simple defining is given if both the defined variable and the base identifier have identical formats. String-overlay defining is given when the formats are not identical.

Simple Defining

Simple defining means that a reference to an element of the defined variable is interpreted as a reference to the corresponding element of the base identifier.

Corresponding structures must have the same structuring. Corresponding arrays must have the same number of dimensions and bounds. The elements of the base identifier and the elements of the defined item must have the same description.

<u>String-Overlay Defining</u>

String-overlay defining means that the defined variable is to occupy part or all of the storage area allocated to the base identifier. In this way, changes to the value of either variable may be reflected in the value of the other. String-overlay defining is permitted between

a) character-string variables,

b) numeric-character variables, and

c) aggregates consisting of items a and b.

The extent of the defined variable must not be larger than the extent of the base identifier. The extent is calculated by summing the lengths of the elements of a variable, e.g., all individual elements of an array.

<u>Dimension (Array Attribute)</u>

With the dimension attribute you specify the number of dimensions of an array and the bound of each dimension.

General Format:

(bound[,bound[,bound]])

General Rules:

- The number of bounds specifies the number of dimensions in an array. As shown by the general format, the maximum number of dimensions allowed in Model 20 PL/I is <u>three</u>.
- Each bound must be an unsigned decimal integer constant greater than zero. This number specifies the upper bound of the corres; onding dimension. The

lower bound is always assumed to be 1. Therefore, this number also specifies the extent of the corresponding dimension. For example, if a bound is 8, the extent of that dimension is 1, 2, \dots , 8.

 The dimension attribute must immediately follow the array name. Intervening blanks are optional. The dimension attribute cannot be factored.

Example:

DECLARE ARRAY (2,5,10);

The numbers 2, 5, and 10 are the bounds of a three-dimensional array of 100 elements. You obtain the number of elements in an array by multiplying the bounds with each other.

DIRECI_and_SEQUENTIAL_(File=Description Attributes)

With the DIRECT and SEQUENTIAL attributes you specify the manner in which the records of a RECORD file are to be accessed. SEQUENTIAL specifies that the records are to be accessed according to their logical sequence in the file. DIRECT specifies that the records are to be accessed by use of a key. Each record of a direct file must, therefore, have a key associated with it.

General Format:

SEQUENTIAL DIRECT

General Rules:

- DIRECT files must also have the KEYED attribute which, if not explicitly specified, is implied by DIRECT. SEQUENTIAL files may have the KEYED attribute only if the SEQUENTIAL attribute is associated with a file of INDEXED organization.
- 2. The DIRECT and SEQUENTIAL attributes cannot be specified with the STREAM attribute.

Assumption:

Default is SEQUENTIAL for RECORD files.

ENTRY Attribute

With the ENTRY attribute you specify that the associated identifier is an entry name.

General Format:

ENTRY

General Rules:

- The ENTRY attribute must be specified for every entry name that is referred to in a procedure, unless RETURNS is specified, which implies the ENTRY attribute.
- The ENTRY attribute must <u>not</u> be specified for built-in functions.

Assumptions:

The appearance of a name as a label of a PROCEDURE statement is an explicit declaration of that name as an entry name. However, if you want to refer to that entry name from within another procedure, you have to explicitly declare that identifier with the ENTRY attribute in the invoking procedure.

ENV_or_ENVIRONMENT_(File-Description Attribute)

The ENVIRONMENT attribute (abbreviated ENV) is an attribute that specifies various file characteristics that are not part of the PL/I language.

General Format:

{ENVIRONMENT (options-list) ENV

The option list is defined individually for each implementation of PL/I. For Model 20 PL/I, it is as follows:

```
CONSECUTIVE
```

```
LINDEXED
(F (blocksize [, recordsize]))
 V (maxblocksize)
(U (maxblocksize)
[BUFFERS (1|2)]
 MEDIUM (symbolic-device-address,
         device-type)
[CTLASA]
[LEAVE]
[NOTAPEMK]
[NOLABEL]
[VERIFY]
[NOWRITE]
[KEYLENGTH (decimal-integer-constant)]
[EXTENTNUMBER (decimal-integer-constant)]
[OFLTRACKS (decimal-integer-constant)]
[KEYLOC (decimal-integer-constant)]
[ALTTAPE]
```

General Rules:

- 1. Each file declaration must include the ENVIRONMENT attribute.
- The options must be separated by one or more blanks.

EXT_or_EXTERNAL_and_INTERNAL_(Scope Attributes)

The EXTERNAL (abbreviated EXT) and INTERNAL attributes specify the scope of a name. INTERNAL specifies that the name is to be known only in the declaring procedure. EXTERNAL specifies that the name may be known in other procedures containing a declaration of the same name with the EXTERNAL attribute.

General format:

EXTERNAL| EXT | INTERNAL

General Rules:

- All file and entry names must be external. They cannot be declared as internal.
- All external names are restricted, in Model 20 PL/I, to a length of six characters.

Assumptions:

INTERNAL is assumed for variables with any storage class. EXTERNAL (abbreviated EXT) is assumed for filenames and entry names.

FILE Attribute

With the FILE attribute you specify that the identifier being declared is a filename.

General Format:

FILE

General Rule:

The FILE attribute must be explicitly declared for each filename. It must be the first attribute in a file declaration. File declarations cannot be factored.

FIXED_and_FLOAT_(Arithmetic_Data Attributes)

With the FIXED and FLOAT attributes you specify the <u>scale</u> of the arithmetic variable being declared. FIXED specifies that the variable is to represent fixed-point data items. FLOAT specifies that the variable is to represent floating-point data items.

General Format:

FIXED | FLOAT

General Rule:

You cannot specify the FIXED and FLOAT attributes with the PICTURE attribute.

Assumptions:

Identifiers that are not explicitly declared (or identifiers declared only with the dimension, storage class, and scope attributes) are invalid if they begin with any of the letters I to N. If they begin with any other alphabetic character, they are assumed to be arithmetic variables with the default attributes FLOAT DECIMAL(6).

FLOAT (Arithmetic-Data Attribute)

See FIXED.

INIT_or_INITIAL_(Data_Attribute)

With the INITIAL attribute (abbreviated as INIT) you can specify an initial value for a variable. The initial value is assigned to the variable at the time storage is allocated for it.

General Format:

{INITIAL (item[,item]...)
INIT

General Rules:

- 1. You may specify the INITIAL attribute for element variables and arrays. However, you cannot specify it for arrays of the storage class AUTOMATIC.
- The variables you can initialize may either be arithmetic, character-string or label variables.
- 3. INITAL values <u>cannot</u> be declared for BASED variables, DEFINED variables, structures, parameters, STATIC LABEL variables and arrays, POINTER variables, file names and entry names. In a <u>structure declaration</u>, the INITIAL attribute can only be used in the declaration of <u>elementary names</u>.
- Each <u>item</u> in the list following the INITIAL attribute may either be an <u>arithmetic constant</u>, a <u>character-string</u> <u>constant</u>, or an <u>iteration</u> <u>specification</u>.
- 5. The <u>iteration specification</u> has one of the following general forms:

(iteration-factor) constant
(iteration-factor (item [,item]...)

Iteration factors must be unsigned decimal integer constants. The <u>iteration</u> <u>factor</u> specifies the number of times the constant, or item list, is to be releated in the initialization of elements of an array. If a constant follows the iteration factor, then the specified number of elements are to be initialized with that value. For example:

DCL B (5,5) DECIMAL FIXED STATIC INIT ((25)0);

In this DECLARE statement, the 25 elements of the array B are initialized to 0. If a list of items follows the iteration factor, then the list is to be repeated the specified number of times, with each item initializing an element of the array; for example:

DCL C (10,10) STATIC FLOAT INIT (1,(9) ((10)0,1));

In this iteration specification, the first element is to be initialized to 1, then the item list ((10)0,1) is to be repeated nine times. In this case, all diagonal elements of the matrix C are initialized to 1, while all other elements are initialized to 0. The iteration specification must not contain more elements than the array.

- 6. For initialization of character-string data, if only one parenthesized integer constant precedes the string initial value, the expression is interpreted to be a <u>string repetition factor</u> for the string; that is, it is interpreted as a part of the specification of the value for a <u>single</u> element. Consequently, in order to cause initialization of more than one element in a character string, both the string repetition factor and the iteration factor must be explicitly stated, <u>even if the string repetition</u> factor the following
 - ((2) 'A') is equivalent to ('AA') (for a single element)
 - ((2) (1) 'A') is equivalent to ('A','A') (for two elements)
- 7. The depth of nested iteration factors in an INIFIAL attribute is restricted to three in Model 20 PL/I. In the example
 - DCL C (10,10) STATIC FLOAT INIT
 (1(9)((10)0,1));

the INITIAL attribute of the twodimensional array C has a nested depth of two.

8. The INITIAL attribute cannot be factored.

120 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

INPUT, OUTPUT, and UPDATE (File-Description Attributes)

The INPUT, OUTPUT, and UPDATE attributes indicate the function of the file. With INPUT you specify that data is to be transmitted from the file to the program. With OUTPUT you specify that data is to be transmitted from the program to the file. A new file is created, or, with INDEXED organization, an existing file may be extended at its end. With UPDATE you specify that data can be transmitted in either direction; that is, records of the file are read, updated, and rewritten. In case of INDEXED DIRECT files, file extension is possible.

General Format:

INPUT | OUTPUT | UPDATE

General Rules:

- 1. For a file with the INPUT attribute you cannot specify the PRINT attribute.
- 2. A file with the OUTPUT attribute cannot have the BACKWARDS attribute.
- 3. For a file with the UPDATE attribute, you cannot specify the STREAM, BACK-WARDS, or PRINT attributes. A declaration of UPDATE for a SEQUENTIAL file indicates the update-in-place mode. To access such a file, the sequence of statements must be READ, and then optionally, REWRITE.
- 4. For each file you have to specify one of the above attributes, unless you have declared the file with the PRINT attribute, in which case, OUTPUT is implied.
- 5. You cannot specify OUTPUT for INDEXED DIRECT files.

Assumption:

The PRINT attribute implies OUTPUT.

INTERNAL (Score Attribute)

See EXTERNAL.

<u>KEYED (File-Description Attribute)</u>

With the KEYED attribute you specify that each record in the file has a key associated with it.

General Format:

KEYED

General Rules:

- 1. A KEYED file can be read sequentially only if it has the INDEXED option and SEQUENTIAL attribute.
- You can specify the KEYED attribute only for a file residing on a directaccess storage device.

Assumption:

The DIRECT attribute implies KEYED.

LABEL (Program-Control Data Attribute)

With the LABEL attribute you specify that the identifier being declared is a label variable and is to have statement labels as values.

General Format:

LABEL

General Rules:

- 1. The variable can have as values any of the statement labels known within the scope of the variable.
- 2. Label variables and arrays must not be contained in structures.
- 3. A label variable cannot be assigned an entry name as value.

Length (Character-String Attribute)

See CHARACTER.

<u>OUTPUT (File-Description Attribute)</u>

See INPUT.

PIC_or_PICTURE (Data_Attribute)

You use the PICTURE (abbreviated PIC) attribute to specify the internal and external formats of numeric-character data and to define the editing of data. Numeric-character data is data having an arithmetic value but stored internally in character form. Before arithmetic operations can be performed, numeric-character data is converted to coded arithmetic.

General Format:

The <u>numeric-picture specification</u> is composed of a string of picturespecification characters enclosed in apostrophes (as shown in the format).

Attributes 121

You find a detailed description as well as a table of Licture-specification characters in the section <u>Picture-Specification</u> <u>Characters</u>.

POINTER (Program-Control Data Attribute)

With the POINTER attribute you specify that the identifier being declared is a pointer variable and can be used to identify data declared with the BASED storage-class attribute.

General Format:

POINTER

General Rules:

- You can specify the POINTER attribute for an identifier only in a DECLARE statement. Thus, you have to explicitly declare a pointer variable with the POINTER attribute.
- 2. There are two ways of assigning a value to a pointer variable:
 - a. by pointer assignment, and
 - b. by the SET option in a READ or LOCATE statement.
- Pointer data cannot appear as an operand in an arithmetic expression, nor can conversion be performed between pointer data and other data types.
- The only operators that can be used directly with pointer data are the comparison operators = and 1=.
- 5. Pointer variables cannot be used with STREAM I/O.
- A pointer variable cannot have the BASED attribute.
- 7. A pointer variable cannot be an element of a structure or of an array.
- 8. POINTER variables must not be defined.

Precision (Arithmetic-Data Attribute)

You use the precision attribute to specify the minimum number of significant digits to be maintained for the values of variables, and to specify, for fixed-point decimal variables, the scale factor (i.e., the assumed position of the decimal point).

General Format:

(number-of-digits [,scale-factor])

The <u>number_of_digits</u> and <u>scale_factor</u> are unsigned decimal integer constants.

122 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

The number of digits cannot be zero. The precision-attribute specification is often represented, for brewity, as (p,q), where p represents the number of digits and g represents the scale factor.

General Rules:

- The precision attribute must immediately follow, with or without intervening blanks, the scale (FIXED or FLOAT), or base (DECIMAL) attribute at the same factoring level.
- The number of digits specified is the number of digits to be maintained for data items assigned to the variable. The scale factor specifies the number of fractional digits. No point is actually present; its location is assumed.
- The scale factor is a decimal integer constant that states the number of digits to the right of the decimal point. It can be used only with fixedpoint variables.
- 4. When the scale factor is not specified for fixed-point data, it is assumed to be zero; that is, the variable is to represent integers.
- The maximum precision allowed in Model 20 PL/I is 15. The scale factor may range from 0 to 15.

Assumptions:

The defaults in Model 20 PL/I are as follows:

(5,0) for DECIMAL FIXED(6) for DECIMAL FLOAT

<u>PRINT (File-Description Attribute)</u>

With the PRINT attribute you specify that the data of the file is ultimately to be printed. The PAGE and SKIP options of the PUT statement and the PAGESIZE option of the OPEN statement can be used only with files having the PRINT attribute. These options are described in the section <u>Statements</u>.

General Format:

PRINT

General Rules:

- 1. The PRINT attribute implies the OUTPUT and STREAM attributes.
- 2. The PRINT attribute causes the first data byte within each record to be reserved for an ASA printer-control

character. To account for this control character any length specification of the record must be 1 plus the length of the print line. The control characters are set by the PAGE and SKIP format items or options in the PUT statement.

RECORD_and_STREAM_(File_Description Attributes)

With the RECORD and STREAM attributes you specify the kind of data transmission to be used for the file. STREAM indicates that the data of the file is considered to be a continuous stream of data items, in character form, to be assigned from the stream to variables, or from expressions into the stream. RECORD indicates that the file consists of a collection of physically separate blocks, each of which consists of one or more records in any form. Each record is transmitted as an entity directly to or from a variable or directly to or from a buffer.

General Format:

RECORDISTREAM

General Rules:

- A file with the STREAM attribute can be referenced only in the OPEN, CLOSE, GET, and PUT statements.
- A file with the RECORD attribute can be referenced only in the OPEN, CLOSE, READ, WRITE, REWRITE, and LOCATE statements.
- A file with the STREAM attribute cannot have any of the following attributes: UPDATE, DIRECT, SEQUENTIAL, BACKWARDS, and KEYED.
- 4. A file with the RECORD attribute cannot have the PRINT attribute.

Assumptions:

Default is STREAM.

RETURNS_(Entry-Name_Attribute)

You must specify the RETURNS attribute when a function invoked by a function reference returns a value that has attributes other than the default attributes FLOAT DECIMAL (6). It must appear in the invoking as well as in the invoked procedure.

General Format:

RETURNS (attributes-list)

General Rules:

- 1. The RETURNS attribute must be specified as follows:
 - In the invoking procedure:
 - DECLARE entry-name [ENTRY] RETURNS
 (attributes-list);

In the <u>invoked procedure</u>:

entry-name: PROCEDURE [(parameterlist)] RETURNS (attributes-list);

- 2. The RETURNS attribute in the DECLARE statement implies the ENTRY attribute; hence, you can omit ENTRY in the DECLARE statement of the invoking procedure.
- 3. The attributes in the parenthesized list following the keyword RETURNS have to be separated by blanks. The attributes specified in the attributes list following the keyword RETURNS in the invoking as well as in the invoked procedure must be identical.
- You can specify only arithmetic, character-string, PICTURE, or POINTER attributes with the RETURNS attribute.
- 5. The RETURNS attribute must not be specified for built-in functions.

Assumptions:

If the RETURNS attribute is not specified and the entry name referred to in the function reference does not start with any of the letters I to N, the value returned by the invoked function is assumed to have the default attributes FLOAT DECIMAL (6). If the entry name starts with any of the letters I to N, the RETURNS attribute has to be specified.

SEQUENTIAL (File-Description Attribute)

See DIRECT.

STATIC_(Storage-Class_Attribute)

See AUTOMATIC.

<u>STREAM (File-Description Attribute)</u>

See RECORD.

<u>UPDATE (File-Description Attribute)</u>

See INPUT.

Statements

This section presents the PL/I statements in alphabetical order. Most statements are accompanied by the following information:

- 1. <u>Function</u> -- a short description of the meaning and use of the statement.
- 2. <u>General_format</u> -- the syntax of the statement.
- <u>Syntax rules</u> -- rules of syntax that are not reflected in the general format.
- <u>General rules</u> -- rules governing the use of the statement and its meaning in a Model 20 PL/I program.

The Assignment Statement

Function:

The assignment statement evaluates expressions and assigns values to elements, arrays, or structures.

General formats:

The assignment statement has five general format types. They are shown in Figure 19.

Syntax Rules:

- In <u>Type 1</u>, the variable in the receiving field (i.e., to the left of the equal sign) must represent a single element whose data type is arithmetic or character-string.
- 2. In <u>Type 2</u>, the variable in the receiving field must represent an array of arithmetic or character-string elements.

If an expression appears to the right of the equal sign, the value of the expression is assigned to each element of the array in the receiving field.

If an array name appears to the right of the equal sign, the array in the receiving field must have the same number of dimensions and identical bounds.

3. In <u>Type 3</u>, the variable in the receiving field must represent a structure and each element of the structure must be an arithmetic or character-string element.

Type_1:__Element_Assignment ∫element-variable) = expression; }pseudo-variable ∫ Type_2:_Array_Assignment = (array-name) array-name (expression); Type_3:__Structure_Assignment structure-name = structure-name: Type 4: Statemet-Label Assignment (2 forms) = **(**label-constant a. element-label-variable \element-label-variable∫; (label-constant b. label-array ={element-label-variable}; (label-array Type 5: Pointer Assignment pointer-variable = pointer-expression;

Figure 19. Assignment Statement Types

124 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

The structure name to the right of the equal sign must have the same relative structuring as the structure name to the left and corresponding elementary items of both structures must have the same attributes.

This means that you can assign minor structures to major structures and vice versa, if the relative structuring is the same and the corresponding elementary items in both the minor and the major structure have the same attributes. For example:

DCL 1 INDEX_REC, 2 KEY CHAR (12), 2 OTHER CHAR (63), 1 OUTREC, 2 CTL_CHAR CHAR (1) INIT ('W'), 2 RECORD, 3 KEY CHAR(12), 3 OTHER CHAR(63);

RECORD = INDEX_REC;

In this example, the major structure INDEX_REC is assigned to the minor structure RECORD. Except for the level numbers (which need not be identical), both structures have the same structuring and the same attributes.

4. In <u>Type 4</u>, item <u>b</u>, if a label constant or an element label variable appears on the right, then the constant or the value of the variable is assigned to every element in the label array in the receiving field.

If a label array appears on the right, then the number of dimensions and the bound of each dimension of that array must be identical to those of the label array in the receiving field.

5. In <u>Type 5</u>, an <u>element pointer expres-</u> <u>sion</u> is either an element pointer variable or a function reference that returns an element pointer value.

General Rules:

- 1. The assignment statement is evaluated as follows:
 - a. For Types 1, 4, and 5, any expressions that appear in the receiving field, either in subscripts or in pseudo-variables, are evaluated from left to right. The expression on the right of the equal sign is evaluated and its value is assigned to the variable in the receiving field.

- b. For Types 2 and 3, the assignment statement is treated as a sequence of element assignment statements involving corresponding elements of the arrays or structures concerned. For arrays, the elements are assigned in row-major order; for structures, the elements are assigned in the order in which they were declared.
 - c. Except for Type 3, the value of the expression on the right is, when necessary converted to the characteristics of the variable in the receiving field according to the rules given under <u>Expressions</u>.
- 2. When a variable in the receiving field is a character string, the expression on the right is evaluated as described in general rule 1, and the assignment is performed from left to right, starting with the leftmost character position. The following may also apply:
 - a. If the value of the expression is longer than the character string, the value is truncated on the right to match the length of the string.
 - b. If the value of the expression is shorter than the character string, the value is extended on the right with blanks.
- Label-array assignment as shown in Type 4 follows the rules given for array assignment in general rule 1.

<u>Example_1</u>:

The following example illustrates array assignment:

Given the array A	2 3 1 4	4 6 7 8
and the array B	1 7 3 6	5 8 4 3

Consider the assignment statement

A = B;

After execution, A has the value:

1	5
7	8
3	4
6	3

Statements 125

Consider the assignment statement:

A = 2 - A(1, 1);

After execution, A has the value:

```
0 2
2 2
2 2
2 2
2 2
```

Note that the new value for A(1,1), which is 0, is used in evaluating all other elements.

Example_2:

The following example illustrates character-string assignment:

Given:

A is a string whose value is 'XZ/BQ'. B is a string whose value is 'MAFY'. C is a string of length 3. D is a string of length 5.

Then in the statement:

```
C = A, the value of C is 'XZ/'.
C = 'X', the value of C is 'Xbb'.
D = B, the value of D is 'MAFYb'.
D = SUBSTR (A,2,3)||SUBSTR (A,2,3), the
value of D is 'Z/BZ/'.
SUBSTR (A,2,4) = B, the value of A is
'XMAFY'.
SUBSTR (B,2,2) = 'R', the value of B is
'MRbY'.
```

Example_3:

The following example (where A, B, and C are element variables) illustrates element assignment:

A = A + SIN(B) + C ** 2;

Example_4:

The following example illustrates structure assignment:

DECLARE 1 X, 2 Y, 2 Z, 2 R, 3 S, 3 P, 1 A, 2 B, 2 C, 2 D, 3 E, 3 Q;

```
X = A;
```

The assignment statement is equivalent to:

```
X.Y = A.B;
X.Z = A.C;
X.S = A.E;
X.P = A.Q;
```

Example_5:

The following example illustrates statement-label assignment:

```
DECLARE P LABEL;

P = A;

GO TO P;

.

A: X = Y ** 2;
```

This set of statements causes control to transfer to A when the GO TO P statement is executed.

Example 6:

The following example illustrates conversion of data defined by a picture description assigned to floating-point data, and vice versa:

```
DCL A FLOAT, B PIC '999V99';
A = B; (B is converted from fixed-point
```

- numeric character to floating-point)
- B = A; (A is converted from floatingpoint to fixed-point numeric character)

The CALL Statement

Function:

The CALL statement invokes a procedure and causes control to be transferred to the entry point of that procedure.

General Format:

CALL entry-name (argument [, argument]...);

Syntax Rules:

- The entry name (i.e., the label of the PROCEDURE statement) represents the entry point of the procedure being invoked. The entry point of a procedure is always the first executable statement in the invoked procedure.
- An argument can be any expression except a based variable, a built-in function name, a file name, an entry name, or a label.

Examples of valid arguments include minor structure names, pointer expressions, character-string constants, and array names.

<u>Note</u>, however, that if the attributes of an argument are not consistent with those of its corresponding parameter, no conversion is performed and an error will result.

General Rule:

See the section <u>Arguments and Parameters</u>, for detailed descriptions of the interac-

tion of arguments with the parameters that represent these arguments in the invoked procedure.

The CLOSE Statement

Function:

The CLOSE statement de-activates the named file which was activated by a previous opening. It also dissociates from the specified file PAGESIZE, if specified in the OPEN statement for that file. However, all attributes explicitly specified for that file in a DECLARE statement remain in effect.

General Format:

CLOSE FILE (filename) [,FILE(filename)]...;

General Rules:

- The <u>filename</u> in the FILE(filename) specification indicates the file to be closed. Since more than one such specification can be given in a CLOSE statement, more than one file can be closed by one CLOSE statement.
- A closed file (except an INDEXED file) may be reopened after it has been closed.
- Closing an unopened file, or a previously closed file, has no effect.
- 4. If a file is not closed by a CLOSE statement, it is automatically closed at the completion of the program in which it was opened.

The DCL or DECLARE Statement

Function:

The DECLARE (abbreviated DCL) statement is the principal method for explicitly declaring attributes of names.

General Format:

Syntax Rules:

- Level is a nonzero unsigned decimal integer constant which must not exceed 255. It can appear only in structure declarations; the major structure must have the level 1. A blank space must separate a level number from the identifier following it.
- 2. In general, attributes must immediately follow the identifier to which they

apply (as shown in the general format). However, attributes common to several name declarations can be factored to eliminate repeated specification of the same attribute for many identifiers. Factoring is achieved by enclosing the involved declarations (non-common attributes included) in parentheses and following this by the set of common attributes. In the case of factored elements of structures, the level number must precede the parenthesized list (a blank is not required between the factored level number and the left parenthesis). For example:

DCL 1 A, 2(B,C,D) CHAR(20);

Dimension INITIAL, and file-description attributes cannot be factored. Factoring can be nested up to a level of eight. For more examples of factoring see <u>Factoring of Attributes</u> in the section <u>Attributes</u>.

General Rules:

- A major-structure identifier or an identifier not contained within a structure can be specified in only one DECLARE statement within a particular procedure. All attributes given explicitly for that identifier must be declared together in one DECLARE statement.
- Attributes of external names, in separate procedures and compilations, must be consistent.
- Labels may be prefixed to DECLARE statement, however, such labels are treated as comments and, hence, have no meaning.
- 4. File names must be explicitly declared, and the first attribute in a file declaration must be FILE.
- All entry names (except built-in function names) referred to in a procedure through a CALL statement or a function reference must be explicitly declared.
- The built-in function DATE must be explicitly declared.

The DISPLAY Statement

Function:

The DISPLAY statement is used to display a one-byte message on the CPU console, usually to the operator. It is used, together with the REPLY specification, to allow the operator to communicate with the program. REPLY permits the operator to return a onebyte message. Execution of the program is Type_1: DO; Type_2: DO variable = expression1 [TO expression2][BY expresion3];

Figure 20. General Format of DO Statement

suspended until the operator has entered his reply.

General Format:

DISPLAY (expression) REPLY (characterstring variable)

General Rules:

 The DISPLAY statement displays one character in the T-R register. The E-S register contains standard information. The REPLY specification returns one character from the DPS operator communication byte.

2. REPLY must be specified.

 The expression must result in a character string.

The DO Statement

Function:

The DO statement heads a DO-group and can also be used to specify repetitive execution of the statements within the group.

General Formats:

There are two format types for the DO statement as shown in Figure 20.

Syntax Rules:

- In both types, the DO statement is used in conjunction with the END statement to delimit the DO-group. Type 2 provides for iterative execution of the statements within the group, Type 1 does not.
- The <u>variable</u> in Type 2 must be arithmetic and must represent a single element; it cannot be subscripted. For example:

DO COUNTER = 1 TO 10 BY 2;

In this example, COUNTER is the control variable, 1 is expression1, 10 is expression2, and 2 is expression3. COUNTER must either be explicitly declared to be an arithmetic variable or it is given the default attributes FLOAT DECIMAL(6).

- Each extression in a DO statement must be an element expression.
- If <u>BY_expression3</u> is omitted, and if <u>TO</u> <u>expression2</u> is included, <u>expression3</u> is assumed to be 1.
- If TO expression2 is omitted, iterative execution continues until it is terminated by some statement within the group.
- 6. If both TO expression2 and BY expression3 are omitted from a specification, it implies a single execution of the group, with the control variable having the value of expression1.

General Rules:

- In Type 1, the DO statement only delimits the start of a DO-group; it does not provide for iterative execution.
- 2. In Type 2, the DD statement delimits the start of a DO-group and provides for controlled iterative execution as defined by the following:

LABEL: DO variable = expression1 TO expression2 BY expression3; statement-1

statement-m LABEL1: ´END; NEXT: statement

The above is exactly equivalent to the following expansion:

```
LABEL: e1 = expression1;

e2 = expression2;

e3 = expression3;

v = e1;

LABEL2: IF e3 \ge 0

THEN IF v \ge e2

THEN GO TO NEXT;

ELSE;

ELSE IF v \le e2
```

128 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

	THEN GO TO NEXT;	
	statement-1	
	•	
	•	
	•	
	statement-m	
ABEL1:	v = v + e3;	
	GO TO LABEL2;	
EXT:	statement	

In the above expansion, e1, e2, and e3 are compiler-created work areas having the attributes of expression1, expression2, and expression3, respectively; \underline{v} is synonymous with variable.

- 3. <u>Expression1</u> represents the initial value of the control <u>variable</u>; <u>expression3</u> represents the increment to be added to the control variable after each execution of the statements in the group; <u>expression2</u> represents the terminating value of the control variable. Execution of the statements in a DOgroup terminates as soon as the value of the control variable is outside the range defined by expression1 and expression2. When execution of the DO-group is terminated, control passes to the statement following the DO-group.
- 4. If both options, TO and BY, are present in an iterative specification, TO must occur first.
- 5. The control variable must not be changed during the execution of an iterative specification other than by the iterative specification itself.
- 6. Control may be transferred from outside the DO-group into the DO-group (i.e., to a statement in the group other than the DO statement) only if the DO-group is delimited by a DO statement of Type 1; that is, only if iterative execution is not specified. See also <u>The DO Statement</u> in Part I of the manual, under <u>Statement Classification</u>.

<u>The_END_Statement</u>

Function:

L

N

The END statement terminates DO-groups and procedures.

General Format:

END;

General Rules:

 The END statement always terminates that DO-group or procedure headed by the nearest preceding DO or PROCEDURE statement for which there is no corresponding END statement. If control reaches an END statement for a procedure, it is treated as a RETURN statement.

The FORMAT Statement

Function:

With the FORMAT statement you specify a format list that is to be used in editdirected transmission statements to control the format of the data being transmitted.

General Format:

label: [label:]...FORMAT (format-list);

Syntax Rules:

- The <u>format_list</u> must be specified according to the rules governing format-list specifications with editdirected transmission as described in the section <u>DataTransmission</u>.
- 2. You must specify at least one <u>label</u> for a FORMAT statement. In general, one of the labels (or a label variable having the value of one of the labels) is the statement-label designator specified in the remote format item.

General Rules:

- A GET or PUT statement may include a remote format item, R, in the format list of an edit-directed data specification. That portion of the format list represented by R must be supplied by a FORMAT statement preceded by the statement label specified with R. An R format item cannot appear in the format list of a FORMAT statement.
- 2. You have to specify the remote format item and the FORMAT statement in the same procedure.
- 3. The format list in a FORMAT statement may contain nested iteration factors. However, the depth of the nest is limited to 2.
- 4. If the format list of a GET or PUT statement contains a remote format item (R(statement-label-designator)) contained in an iteration nest, it must not be at a depth greater than 2.

<u>**The_GET_Statement**</u>

Function:

The GET statement is a STREAM transmission statement which you can use in either of the following ways:

Statements 129

- It can cause the assignment of data from an external source (that is, from a file) to one or more internal receiving fields (that is, to one or more variables).
- It can cause the assignment of data from an internal source (that is, from a character-string variable) to one or more internal receiving fields (that is, to one or more variables).

General Format:

GET {FILE (filename) {STRING (character-string-variable)} data-specification;

Syntax Rules:

- 1. The <u>data specification</u> is as described in Part I, under <u>Data Transmission</u>.
- The data specification must follow the FILE or STRING option one of which must be specified.
- 3. The <u>character-string variable</u> refers to the character string that is to provide the values to be assigned to the variables in the data specification.
- 4. The <u>filename</u> is the name of a file that will provide the values to be assigned to the variables in the data specification. It must have the STREAM and INPUT attributes.

General Rules:

- If the FILE option refers to an unopened file, the file is opened implicitly.
- 2. If the STRING option has been specified, the internal GET operation always starts at the beginning of the specified string. If the number of characters in this string is less than the total number of characters required by the variables in the data specification, the ERROR condition is raised. Note that the variables in the data specification do not have to be character strings; the internal assignment is the same as the transmission from the stream to internal storage, the only difference being that the character string variable is considered to be the input stream.

The_GO_TO_Statement

Function:

The GO TO statement causes control to be transferred to the statement identified by the specified label. General Format: {GO TO} {label-constant; GOTO } {element-label-variable;}

General Rules:

- 1. If an <u>element label variable</u> is specified, the value of the label variable determines the statement to which control is transferred. Since the label variable may have different values at each execution of the GO TO statement, control may not always pass to the same statement.
- 2. A GO TO statement cannot pass control to an incactive procedure.
- 3. A GO TO statement cannot transfer control from outside a DO-group to a statement inside the DO-group if the DOgroup specifies iterative execution, unless the GO TO terminates a procedure invoked from within the DO-group or unless the GO TO is an ON-unit given control from within the DO-group.
- 4. If a GO TO statement transfers control from within a procedure to a point not contained within that procedure, the procedure is terminated. Also, if the transfer point is contained in a procedure that did not directly activate the procedure being terminated, all intervening procedures in the activation sequence are also terminated (See <u>Part</u> <u>I, Flow of Control and Storage Allocation</u>, for examples and details). When one or more procedures are terminated by a GOTO statement, conditions are reinstated and automatic variables are freed just as if the procedures had been terminated in the usual fashion.
- 5. When a GOTO statement transfers control out of a procedure that has been invoked as a function, the evaluation of the expression that contained the corresponding function reference is discontinued.
- If the GO TO statement is an ON-unit, the specified label must be unsubscripted.

<u>**The_IF_Statement**</u>

Function:

The IF statement tests the value of a specified expression and controls the flow of execution according to the result of that test.

130 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

General Format:

If element-expression THEN unit-1 [ELSE unit-2]

Syntax Rules:

- Each unit is either a single statement or a DO-group. It must, however, not be a PROCEDURE, a DECLARE, or FORMAT statement.
- The IF statement itself is not terminated by a semicolon; however, each <u>unit</u> specified must be terminated by a semicolon.
- 3. Each unit may be labeled.

General Rules:

- The <u>expression</u> following the keyword IF must contain one and only one comparison operation.
- 2. If the comparison is true, the THEN clause is executed. After execution of the THEN clause, control branches around the ELSE clause and execution continues with the next statement. If the comparison is not true, control branches around the THEN clause, and the ELSE clause is executed. Control then continues normally.



Note that the THEN clause or the ELSE clause can contain a GOTO statement or some other control statement that can cause a different transfer of control.



3. If the THEN clause does not cause a transfer of control and if it is not followed by an ELSE clause, the next statement will be executed whether or not the THEN clause is executed.

This may be illustrated by the following diagram:



In the kind of IF statement illustrated above, the alternatives are "execute the THEN clause" or "do not execute the THEN clause". In either case, the next sequential statement is executed. If the expression tested is not true, control continues through the logical flow of execution. If the expression is true, the THEN clause is executed, and control returns to exactly the same point where it would have been if the expression had not been true. In this kind of IF statement the word ELSE <u>must</u> <u>not</u> appear since the ELSE clause would be skipped whenever the THEN clause it executed.

4. IF statements may be nested; that is, either unit, or both, may itself be an IF statement. In Model 20 PL/I, the number of IF and DO statements in one nest must not exceed 20. However, the number of DO statements alone must not exceed 12 per nest. Any IF statement, at any level, may have a DO-group as either or both of its alternative units. An ELSE clause is always associated with the innermost unmatched IF in the same DO-group; an ELSE with a null statement may be required to specify a desired sequence of control.

Example:

IF A > BTHEN IF C = 0 THEN X = SQRT (A-B); ELSE X = 1;

In this example, the statement X = 1; is executed if A is greater than B and C is not equal to 0.

If the statement X = 1; is to be executed if A is not greater than B, regardless of the value of C, you may write the example in the following way:

IF A > BTHEN IF C = 0 THEN X = SQRT (A-B); ELSE; ELSE X = 1;

<u>The LOCATE Statement</u>

Function:

The LOCATE statement is a RECORD transmission statement which you can use only for CONSECUTIVE output files. It allocates storage for a based variable in an output buffer to allow the creation of a record for that based variable. The record is created by assigning values to the based variable within the buffer. The record is not transmitted to the external medium until immediately before the next WRITE, LOCATE, or CLOSE statement (or implicit close operation) is executed for the specified file. General Format:

LOCATE based-variable FILE (filename) SET (pointer-variable);

Syntax Rules:

- The FILE and SET specifications must appear in the order shown in the general format.
- The <u>based variable</u> must be an unsubscripted based variable that is not a minor structure or an element of a structure. It may, however, be an array name or a major-structure name.
- 3. The <u>pointer variable</u> must be an element pointer variable.
- 4. The <u>filename</u> is the name of the file that has been activated (by opening) and that will eventually receive the record. The file must have the SEQUENTIAL and OUTPUT attributes. It must, however, not be an INDEXED file.

General Rules:

- The based variable is used to determine the length of the buffer area to be reserved. When the LOCATE statement is executed, the pointer variable in the SET specification is set to identify the location in the buffer at which the based variable is to be allocated.
- The record identified by the based variable is written from the buffer into the output file, immediately before the next WRITE, LOCATE, or CLOSE operation (implicit or explicit) for that file. For blocked records, the record is not written until the whole block is completed.
- 3. The FILE specification must refer to a previously opened file.

The Null Statement

Function:

The null statement causes no action and does not modify sequential statement execution. The null statement is represented by the semicolon (;).

General Format:

;

General Rule:

The null statement must not be specified for an ON statement whose condition is CONVERSION, ENDFILE, or KEY. The ON Statement

Function:

With the ON statement you specify what action is to be taken when an interrupt results from the occurrence of the specified exceptional condition.

General Format:

ON condition {SYSTEM; |ON-unit}

For a description of the ON statement and the ON-conditions that may be specified with it see the section <u>ON-Conditions</u>.

The OPEN Statement

Function:

The OPEN statement <u>opens</u> (activates) a file by associating a file with a file declaration.

General format:

OPEN FILE (filename) [option] [,FILE (filename) [option]]...;

where option is

PAGESIZE (element-expression).

Syntax Rules:

- 1. The FILE specification must appear first.
- 2. The <u>filename</u> is the name of the file that is to be activated. Several files can be opened by one OPEN statement.

General rules:

- The opening of an already open file does not affect the file. In such cases, any expressions in the option, if specified, are evaluated, but they are not used.
- 2. The PAGESIZE option can be specified only for a file having the STREAM and PRINT attributes. The expression is evaluated and converted to an integer, which represents the maximum number of lines to a page. This integer must be greater than zero and less than 256. During subsequent transmission to the PRINT file, a new page may also be started by use of the PAGE format item or by an option in the PUT statement. For the Model 20 PL/I Compiler, the default for PAGESIZE is 60.
- 3. When a PRINT file is opened, a new page is started.

132 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

- 4. The OPEN statement is mandatory for RECORD files and optional for STREAM files.
- <u>The PROCEDURE Statement</u>

Function:

- The PROCEDURE statement has the following functions:
- a. It heads a procedure and defines its entry point.
- b. It specifies the parameters, if any, for the entry point.
- c. It may specify certain special characteristics that a procedure can have.
- d. It specifies the attributes of the value that is returned by the procedure when it is invoked as a function.
- General Format:

[(condition-prefix):]
entry-name: PROCEDURE
{ OPTIONS (option-list)
 { [(parameter[, parameter)]...] };
 [RETURNS (data-attributes)] };

where, for the Model 20 PL/I Compiler, the <u>option_list</u> is defined as:

MAIN[, ONSYSLOG]

Syntax Rules:

- The <u>data attributes</u> represent the attributes of the value returned by the procedure when it is invoked as a function. Only arithmetic, string, PICTURE, and POINTER attributes are allowed.
- OPTIONS is a special procedure specification. Two options can be specified in the OPTIONS attribute which must be specified for only one external procedure in the program:
 - MAIN must be specified if and only if the procedure is the initial procedure of the program.
 - b. ONSYSLOG specifies that diagnostic output is on SYSLOG instead of SYSLST. ONSYSLOG can only be specified together with MAIN.
- One and only one entry name must appear in a PROCEDURE statement. The entry name must not exceed 6 characters.
- The maximum number of parameters that can be specified for one procedure is 12.

General Rules:

- When a procedure is invoked, a relationship is established between the arguments passed to the procedure and the parameters that represent those arguments in the invoked procedure. This topic is discussed in Part I, under <u>Arguments and Parameters</u>.
- 2. The MAIN option specifies that the procedure for which it is specified is the initial procedure and will be invoked by the programming system as the first step in the execution of the program. The ONSYSLOG option specifies that all output resulting from actions derived from ON conditions will be printed on the device assigned to SYSLOG. No other options are permitted. The procedure declared with the OPTIONS attribute remains active for the duration of the program and hence cannot be called by other procedures. For the Model 20 PL/I Compiler, only one procedure must have the OPTIONS(MAIN) designation.
- The data attributes specify the attributes of the value returned by the procedure when it is invoked as a function. For details see the section <u>Arguments and Parameters</u> in Part I.
- 4. The entry name of a procedure is an external name and as such is restricted in Model 20 PL/I to a length of six characters.
- 5. The name of a procedure must not be redeclared within that procedure.

The PUT Statement

Function:

The PUT statement is a STREAM transmission statement which can be used in either of the following ways:

- It can cause the values in one or more main-storage locations to be transmitted to a file on an external medium. Related to this, it can control the format of a PRINT file.
- It can cause the values in one or more main-storage locations to be assigned to an internal receiving field (represented by a character-string variable).

General Format:

- with the STRING option:
- PUT STRING (character-string-variable) data-specification;

Statements 133

with the FILE option:

```
PUT FILE (filename)

(EDIT data-specification

PAGE

SKIP (expression)]

PAGE EDIT data-specification

SKIP [ (expression)]

data-specification
```

Syntax Rules:

- Either the FILE or the STRING option must be specified in the PUT statement.
- 2. The FILE option specifies transmission to a file on an external medium. The file name in this option is the name of the file that has been activated (by implicit or explicit opening) and that is to receive the values. This file must have the OUTPUT and STREAM attributes.
- 3. The STRING option specifies transmission from main-storage locations (represented by variables or expressions in the <u>data specification</u>) to a character string (represented by the <u>character-string variable</u>). The "character-string variable" cannot be a pseudo-variable.
- The data specification is as described in <u>Part I, Data Transmission</u>.
- 5. The FILE or STRING option must always be the first option. If the data specification appears, it must be the last option. At least one of the options PAGE, SKIP, or data specification must appear. Note that the options PAGE and SKIP must not appear both in one PUT statement.

General Rules:

- If the FILE option is specified, and the <u>filename</u> refers to an unopened file, the file is opened implicitly.
- 2. If the STRING option is specified, the PUT operation begins assigning values to the beginning of the string (that is, at the leftmost character position), after appropriate conversions have been performed. Blanks and delimiters are inserted as usual. If the string is not long enough to accommodate the data, the ERROR condition is raised. Note that the variables in the data specification do not have to be character strings; the internal assignment is the same as the transmission from main storage to the output stream, the only difference being that the character-string variable is considered to be the output stream.

- 3. The option PAGE or SKIP can be given only for PRINT files. If specified, they take effect before the transmission of the values defined by the data specification takes place.
- 4. The PAGE option causes printing to continue on a new page. If a data specification is present, the transmission of values occurs after the definition of a new current page. A new current page implies line 1.
- 5. The SKIP option causes a new current line to be defined for the file. The expression is the number of lines (w) to be skipped and may range from zero to three inclusive. If w is greater than zero, w - 1 blank lines will be inserted in the data stream. If w is equal to zero, the effect is that of a carriage return, the characters previously printed will be overprinted. (SKIP(0) may be used to underline parts of the printed line by use of the break character.) If \underline{w} is not specified, 1 is assumed. If less than w lines remain on the current page (where the number of lines is determined by the PAGESIZE option of the OPEN statement or by default), the ENDPAGE condition is raised.

<u>**The_READ_Statement**</u>

Function:

The READ statement is a RECORD transmission statement that you can use to transmit a record from an INPUT or UPDATE file to a variable or buffer in main storage.

General format:

READ FILE (filename) {INTO(variable) SET(pointer-variable) INTO(variable) KEY(expression);

Syntax rules:

- The FILE specification must appear first. Either INTO or SET must be specified.
- 2. The <u>filename</u> is the name of the file from which the record is to be read. The file must have the RECORD attribute and must also have either the INPUT or UPDATE attributes.
- 3. The <u>variable</u> of the INTO option is the variable into which the record is to be read. It must be an unsubscripted variable not contained in a structure. It cannot be a label or pointer vari-

able or a parameter and it cannot have the DEFINED attribute.

4. KEY can be specified only if INFO is specified.

General Rules:

- The file appearing in the FILE specification must have been opened previously.
- The KEY option must appear if the file has the DIRECT attribute. The <u>expres-</u> <u>sion</u> is the key that determines which record will be read. (See Part III, <u>input/Out,ut</u>, for a discussion of keys.

The KEY option may also appear for files of INDEXED organization having the SEQUENTIAL and KEYED attributes. In such cases, the file is positioned to the record having the specified key. Thereafter, records may be read sequentially from that point on by using READ statements without the KEY option.

If the key specified in the KEY option of a READ statement for an INDEXED SEQUENTIAL file is not found in the file the KEY condition is raised.

3. The SET option can only be specified for CONSECUTIVE files; it cannot be specified for any file having the KEYED attribute. The SET option specifies that the record is to be read into a buffer and the <u>pointer variable</u> is to be set to point to the location of that record within the buffer. The description of the record is determined by a based variable. The value of the pointer variable is valid until the next READ statement is executed or until the file is closed.

The RETURN Statement

Function:

The RETURN statement terminates execution of a procedure and returns control to the invoking procedure. It may also return a value to the invoking procedure.

General Format:

REFURN [(expression)];

General Rules:

1. If the <u>expression</u> is not specified, the RETURN statement can only terminate a procedure that has not been invoked as a function. When such a statement is executed, control is returned to the

invoking procedure at the point logically following the point of invocation. If a RETURN statement is executed in the initial procedure, program execution is terminated.

2. If you have specified an expression, the procedure from which control is to be returned, must be a function procedure. When such a statement is executed, control is returned to the invoking procedure at the point of invocation; the value returned to this point is the value of the expression. If this value does not conform to the explicit or default attributes specified for the procedure being terminated, the value is converted to these attributes before it is actually returned.

The REWRITE Statement

Function:

You can use the REWRITE statement only for UPDATE files to replace an existing record in a file.

General Format:

REWRITE FILE (filename) [FROM(variable) [KEY (expression)]];

Syntax Rules:

- 1. The FILE specification must appear first. KEY cannot be specified without FROM.
- The <u>filename</u> is the name of the file containing the record to be rewritten. The file must have the UPDATE attribute.
- 3. The <u>variable</u> in the FROM option represents the record that will replace the existing record in the specified file. It must be an unsubscripted variable; it cannot be contained in a structure; it cannot be a parameter; it cannot be a label or pointer variable; and it cannot have the DEFINED attribute.

General Rules:

- The file whose name appears in the FILE specification must have been opened previously.
- If the file has the DIRECT attribute, you have to specify the KEY option. The expression must be a character string. This character string is the source key that determines which record is to be rewritten.

- 3. The FROM option must be specified for UPDATE files of INDEXED organization having either the DIRECT attribute or the SEQUENTIAL attribute.
- 4. The FROM option can be omitted only for SEQUENTIAL UPDATE files of CONSECUTIVE organization. When this is the case, the record rewritten is the record in the buffer. Hence, this record must be the last record that was read and it should have been read by a READ statement with the SET option. (The record will be updated by whatever assignments were made to it in the buffer). If the record had been read by a READ with the INTO option, it would be rewritten unchanged.

The WRITE Statement

Function:

The WRITE statement is a RECORD transmission statement that transfers a record from a variable in main storage to an OUTPUT or UPDATE file.

General Format:

WRITE FILE (filename) FROM (variable) [KEYFROM (expression)];

Syntax Rules:

1. The FILE specification must appear first.

- 2. The <u>filename</u> specifies the file into which the record is to be written. This file must be a RECORD file that has either the OUTPUT attribute or the DIRECT and UPDATE attributes.
- 3. The <u>variable</u> in the FROM specification contains the record to be written. It must be an unsubscripted variable; it cannot be a parameter; it cannot be contained in a structure, it cannot be a label or pointer variable; and it cannot have the DEFINED attribute.
- 4. The KEYFROM option must be specified for DIRECT files, it must also be s_kecified for INDEXED SEQUENTIAL files, but not for any other files.

General Rules:

- 1. The file must have been opened previously.
- 2. If the KEYFROM option is specified, the expression is the source key that specifies the logical location in the file where the record is written. (See Part III, <u>Input/Output</u>, for a discussion of source keys). In Model 20 PL/I the source key automatically replaces the recorded key whose length is determined by the KEYLENGTH option and whose location in the record is specified in the KEYLOC option in the ENVIRONMENT attribute.

Part III

Model 20 PL/I as Part of the Disk Programming System

INTRODUCTION

Model 20 PL/I is part of the System/360 Model 20 Disk Programming System. It requires a minimum of 16,384 bytes of main storage. Model 20 PL/I consists of a compiler and a set of subroutines, all operating under the control of the DPS System Control programs.

The Model 20 PL/I language is a subset of the full PL/I language and, except for support of input/output devices that can only be attached to a Model 20, is upward compatible with the System/360 DOS PL/I subset language.

SYSTEM_CONFIGURATIONS

MINIMUM SYSTEM CONFIGURATION

The minimum system configurations for both compilation and execution of PL/I programs under the System/360 Model 20 Disk Programming System are as follows:

<u>Submodel 2</u>

An IBM 2020 Central Processing Unit Model D2 (16,384 bytes of main storage);

an IBM 2311 Disk Storage Drive Model 11 or 12;

one of the following card reading devices:

IBM 2501 Card Reader Model A1 or A2, IBM 2520 Card Read-Punch Model A1, IBM 2560 Multi-Function Card Machine (MFCM) Model A1;

one of the following printers:

IBM 1403 Printer Model N1, 2, or 7, IBM 2203 Printer Model A1.

Submodel_4

An IBM 2020 Central Processing Unit Model D4 (16,384 bytes of main storage);

an IBM 2311 Disk Storage Drive Model 12;

an IBM 2560 MFCM Model A2;

an IBM 2203 Printer Model A2.

Submodel 5

An IBM 2020 Central Processing Unit Model D5 (16,384 bytes of main storage);

an IBM 2311 Disk Storage Drive Model 11 or 12;

one of the following card reading devices;

IBM 2501 Card Reader Model A1 or A2, IBM 2520 Card Read-Punch Model A1, IBM 2560 Multi-Function Card Machine (MFCM) Model A1;

one of the following printers:

IBM 1403 Printer Model N1, 2, or 7, IBM 2203 Printer Model A1.

MAXIMUM SYSTEM CONFIGURATION

<u>Submodel_2</u>

An IBM 2020 Central Processing Unit Model D2 (16,384 bytes of main storage);

two IBM 2311 Disk Storage Drives Model 11 or 12 (both must be the same model);

an IBM 2415 Magnetic Tape and Control Unit Model 1 through 6;

an IBM 2501 Card Reader Model A1 or A2;

an IBM 1442 Card Punch Model 5;

one of the following card units:

IBM 2520 Card Read-Punch Model A1, IBM 2520 Card Punch Model A2 or A3, IBM 2560 MFCM Model A1;

one of the following printers:

IBM 1403 Printer Model N1, 2, or 7, IBM 2203 Printer Model A1;

an IBM 2152 Printer-Keyboard.

Submodel 4

An IBM 2020 Central Processing Unit Model D4 (16,384 bytes of main storage);

two IBM 2311 Disk Storage Drives Model 12;

an IBM 2560 MFCM Model A2;

an IBM 2203 Printer Model A2.

an IBM 2152 Printer-Keyboard.

PL/I in the Model 20 Disk Programming System 139

<u>submodel_5</u>	one of the following card units:
An IBM Central Processing Unit Model E5	
(32,768 bytes of main storage);	IBM 2520 Card Read-Punch Model A1,
	IBM 2520 Card Punch Model A2 or A3,
	IBM 2560 MFCM Model A1;
four IBM 2311 Disk Storage Drives Model 11 or 12:	
	one of the following printers:
an IBM 2415 Magnetic Tape Unit and Control Model 1 through 6:	
	IBM 1403 Printer Model N1, 2, or 7,
an IBM 2501 Card Reader Model A1 or A2;	IBM 2203 Printer Model A1;
an IBN 1442 Card Punch Model 5;	an IBM 2152 Printer-Keyboard.

The Model 20 Disk Programming System

To show how programs written in Model 20 PL/I are compiled and executed under the Disk Programming System (DPS), the main components of the DPS must first be described.

The programs that form the Disk Programming System can be grouped into five categories as listed below:

- 1. Control programs
- 2. Service programs
- 3. Language translators
- 4. Several Utility programs
- 5. User-written programs



Figure 21. Schematic Representation of the Disk Programming System

<u>Control_Programs</u>

The <u>Initial Program Loader</u> loads the <u>Mon-</u> <u>itor program</u> into main storage and transfers control to it, causing it to load the <u>Job Control Program</u>. After execution of the Job Control program, control is returned to the Monitor program. The Job Control program is used before each job (1) to assign actual input/output addresses to the symbolic addresses used in the programs, (2) to specify other environmental data (e.g., the date or the storage capacity), and (3) to communicate the name of the next program to be executed to the Monitor program.

Service Programs

The Service programs are a group of programs that create and maintain the system libraries. They are executed under control of the Monitor.

The system libraries are:

- the <u>core image library</u>, which contains, for example, the Job Control Program, the PL/I Compiler, and executable user-programs.
- the <u>macro_library</u>, which contains macro definitions.
- the <u>relocatable area</u>, which is used to temporarily hold compiler output that is to be executed or cataloged immediately.

Language_Translators

One of the DPS language translator programs is the <u>PL/I compiler</u> which compiles PL/I source programs, and links together separately compiled PL/I procedures and library routines into an executable object program.

For the execution of PL/I programs, the most important parts of the programming system are the <u>Monitor program</u>, the <u>Job</u> <u>Control program</u>, and the <u>PL/I compiler</u>, all of which are discussed below.

Figure 21 gives a schematic representation of the Disk Programming System.

Monitor Program

The Monitor program, which is loaded by the Initial Program Loader, is the main control program of the DPS. It provides functions and contains information needed by all programs. Therefore, it must be in main storage throughout a system run. The Monitor program controls the loading and execution of object programs, that is, programs that have already been compiled (i.e., translated into machine language) by the PL/I compiler.

Job Control Program

The Job Control program, which is the first program to be loaded by the Monitor program, provides for automatic job-to-job transition in a system run. It prepares the system for the execution of the next job by reading and processing a set of job-control statements funched into cards by the user. The job-control statements must contain all the information required to run a job. They have to indicate the start and name of a job, specify the jobs that are to be executed, and to define input/output requirements of the programs. In response to the job-control statements, the Job Control program allocates the input/output units required, and then requests the Montior program to initiate the execution of the specified job (or batch). After execution of a job, the Job Control program prints the error statistics if specified and obtains information about the next job from a new set of control statements.

Model 20 PL/I Compiler

The Model 20 PL/I compiler is a program that

- translates (i.e., <u>compiles</u>) a PL/I source program into a set of System/360 Model 20 machine instructions, and
- <u>link-edits</u> the set of machine instructions into a form suitable for execution.

The set of machine instructions produced by a <u>compilation</u> is termed a <u>compiled</u> <u>object_module</u>.

The set of machine instructions produced by <u>link-editing</u> is termed an <u>executable</u> <u>object_program</u>.

A compiled object module is not executable. It must first be link-edited by the PL/I compiler, that is, linked with other user and IBM-supplied modules or -- if the compiled object module is a complete program -- only with IBM-supplied modules to form an executable object program. The Job Control program is executed before each job to prepare the system for the job to be executed, and it is called subsequently each time the end of the job is reached. Control statements supply the information required by the Job Control program.

This section gives a detailed description of the most important job-control statements you need to compile and execute your programs.

Figure 22 is an illustration of the I/O device assignments used for compilation and execution.

Note: SYSRDR and SYSIPT may be assigned the same card-reading device, in which case the cards read on SYSIPT follow those read on SYSRDR in the hopper. If the additional work areas WORK2 or WORK3 are used, the two (three) extents WORK1, WORK2, (and WORK3) must reside on different disks. Note also that the symbolic device addresses specified in this figure must be used for the work files. The work file WORKL is used in connection with the option LSORT. Job-Control Source Progra Statements in Mod 20 PL/ SYSRDR Compiler Contro Statements Inpu SYSIPT System Pack on Tape L/ICompiler (relocatable area) SYSRES onal ul APP (optional)

WORK2 System /360 WORK1 SY \$003 Work File 2 Model 20 on SYSRES (Main Storage) (optional) SYS002 SY \$000 SY 5001 Object Program Printed on Cards Sbjec Output Prog

SYSEST

Figure 22. I/O Device Assignments Used for Compilation and Execution

I/O Device Assignment

SYSOPT

The I/O devices used by the system for program compilation and execution are referred to by symbolic, not actual device addresses. This means that, when writing your programs, you can disregard the actual device assignments of the system configuration you use. The symbolic device addresses you can use are listed in Figure 23. No other addresses may be used.

Symbolic Device Address	Refers to
SYSRDR	Card reading device for control statements. Not used by PL/I compiler or object programs.
ISYSIPT	Input device (card reader or tape drive) from which the input for the compiler is read.
SYSOPT 	Card punching device or magnetic-tape drive on which the object program of the compiler is written.
SYSLST	Printer for printing listings and diagnostic messages.
SYSLOG	Printer used to print operator messages. The device may be the same as the one referred to by SYSLST.
SYS000- SYS019	User-program I/O devices (disk and magnetic tape devices only).

Figure 23. Symbolic Device Addresses

Symbolic device addresses can be assigned to actual devices

- when building the system, or 1.
- 2. by means of the ASSGN statements.

Job Control Statements

Job-control statements identify a job and define its requirements and options. They serve as input to the Job Control program and enable it to provide automatic job-tojob transition. Figure 24 lists the DPS job-control statements and their functions.

Operation Specification	Function
ASSGN	Changes or deletes I/O assignments
CONFG	Specifies main-storage capacity (either 16K, 24K, or 32K bytes)
DA TE	Specifies date, i.e., the day of the year and the year
DELET	Causes permanent labels to be deleted
DLAB	Supplies disk label infor- mation for individual file
DSPLY	Causes listing of all per- manent labels
EXEC	Indicates end of control statements
FILES	Positions magnetic tare reel by skipping specified number of tape marks
JOB	Specifies name of job and the $ty_k \in of$ operation to be performed
LOG	Causes listing of control statements on SYSLOG
NOLOG	Causes listing of control statements to be discontinued
OPTN	Indicates that the printout of tape error statistics is required by the job and/or indicates that the execu- tion of the job is not to be interrupted by an inquiry program
PAUSE	Causes immediate halt
TPLAB	Supplies tape label infor- mation for individual file
AOF	Specifies name of file to be processed and the sym- bolic address of the drive on which it is mounted
XTENT 	Defines the extents used by a file on a disk pack and specifies the symbolic address of the drive on which the pack is mounted

Figure 24. Summary of Job Control Statements and their Functions Job-control statements are read by the Job Control program on a device whose symbolic address is SYSRDR. Normally, the first job-control statement for a particular job is a JOB statement. Only PAUSE, LOG, and NOLOG statements may precede a JOB statement. The last job-control statement must be an EXEC statement.

Except where noted, the remaining jobcontrol statements may be arranged in any order between the JOB and the EXEC statements.

FORMAT OF JOB-CONTROL STATEMENTS

The general format of the job-control statements is as follows:

Name	Operation	Operand (s)	Comments
1//	operation	[operand]	[,operand]

- // identifies a statement as a job-control
 statement. The slashes must appear in
 the first two columns of the job-control
 statement and must be followed by at
 least one blank.
- <u>operation</u> indicates the function of the job-control statement. For example, the word ASSGN indicates that the control statement specifies an I/O device assignment. The operation field can be up to five characters long and must be followed by at least one blank.
- <u>operands</u> supply additional information about the job-control statement. For example, the operands of the ASSGN statement specify the symbolic device address and the characteristics of the actual device. The operand field may be blank or may contain one or more operands, separated by commas, with no intervening blanks. A blank to indicate the end of the field must follow the last operand in the field. The field must not extend beyond column 71 of the punched card. With a DLAB statement where not all operands can be accommodated on one card, a continuation card must be used.
- <u>programmer's comments</u> may be inserted in all control statements used in conjunction with the Model 20 DPS Control and Service programs. They must, however, follow the rightmost operand of the statement.
When preparing a control statement that contains comments, observe the following rules:

- If the control statement has one or more operands, the comments must be separated from the last operand by at least one blank column.
- If the statement does not permit the use of an operand, the comments must be separated from the operation entry by at least one blank column.
- 3. If an operand has been omitted from the statement, the absence of the operand must be indicated by a comma and the comments must be preceded by at least one blank column.

Comments are printed but have no effect on the program. They must not extend beyond column 71 of the statement.

JOB_Control_Statement

The JOB Control statement indicates to the Job Control program that a set of jobcontrol statements follows. The format of the JOB control statement indicates whether the program is to be executed or compiled only or compiled and executed. The JOB control statement has the following formats:

Name	Operation	Operand(s) Comments
1//	JOB	program-name ¹
///	JOB .	PL1
1//	JOB	PL1, program-name²
¹ may be any name ² must be name of root segment		

program-name

The name of the program to be executed. If the name appears by itself, it is the name of either a program in the coreimage library or an executable object program stored on cards or magnetic tage.

If the name is preceded by the word PL1, the input is to be compiled, linkedited, and executed. If only precompiled object modules are used, compilation is skipped.

If the word PL1 appears alone, the input is to be compiled and/or link-edited, but not immediately executed.

There is no limit on the length of the program-name in any JOB control state-

ment. However, if the length exceeds six characters, only the leftmost six characters are recognized.

Figure 25 gives an example of using jobcontrol statements.

<u>DATE_Control_Statement</u>

The DATE control statement must be included in the control statements for the first job after initial program loading. Further DATE statements need only be supplied if the date is to be changed.

The format of the DATE control statement is:

Name	Operation	Operand (s)	Comments
1//	DATE	yyddd	 1

- yy -- the last two dijits of the year; e.g., 70 for 1970.
- <u>ddd</u> -- the day of the year; e.g., 002 for January 2nd. (Any of the numbers 001 -366 may be used).

The year and the day of the year are used for label checking. The date can be used for dating output reports of problem programs by use of the PL/I DATE built-in function.

CONFG_Control_Statement

The CONFG control statement specifies the capacity of main storage. It must be included only if the capacity of main storage stored in the Monitor program is to be changed. The CONFG statement must precede any label information for tape files (e.g., VOL, TPLAB).

The format of the CONFG control statement is:

Name	Operation	Operand (s)	Comments
///	CONFG	1 6	
///	CONFG	24	
//	CONFG	32	

- <u>16</u> -- indicates a storage capacity of 16, 384 bytes.
- <u>24</u> -- indicates a storage capacity of 24, 576 bytes.
- <u>32</u> -- indicates a storage capacity of 32, 768 bytes.



Figure 25. Example of Using Job Information Control Statements

OPTN_Control_Statement

The OPTN control statement has the following format:

Name	Operation	Operand	l (s)	Comments
	OPTN	NOINQ,	TES	

NOINQ

No program may be executed as an inquiry program until the next Job Control run has been completed. For information about inquiry programs, refer to the section <u>Special Programming Information</u>.

r≧s

Indicates that tape error statistics are to be kept during the job that follows and printed before the next Job Control run. When TES is specified, LOG must also be specified. You may specify one or both operands, in any order, separated by a comma.

LOG_Control_Statement

The Job Control program does not normally list job-control statements. However, when a LOG control statement is encountered, it begins to list all job-control statements for all jobs until a NOLOG statement is encountered. The LOG statement is the first statement that appears in the listing. The format of the LOG control statement is:

Name	Operation	Operand (s)	Comments
[//	LOG	 	

<u>Note</u>: You may place the LOG statement either before the JOB statement or anywhere between the JOB and EXEC statements, but not between the VOL, DLAB, XTENT, or VOL, TPLAB control statements. The LOG statement is only effective if a printer is assigned to SYSLOG.

NOLOG_Control_Statement

The NOLOG control statement stops the listing of job-control statements for all jobs. It is the last statement to appear in the listing. Listing of control statements is resumed only if another LOG control statement is encountered. The format of the NOLOG statement is:

Name	Operation	Operand (s)	Comments
[//	NOLOG		۱ ا

<u>Note</u>: You may place the NOLOG statement either before the JOB statement or anywhere between the JOB statement and the EXEC statement, but not between the VOL, DLAB, XTENT or VOL, TPLAB control statements.

PAUSE_Control_Statement

The PAUSE control statement is used to interrupt processing. It merely suspends operation and does not affect the contents of main storage. The operator need only press the Start key on the CPU console to resume operation. The PAUSE control statement has the format:

Name	Operation	Operand (s)	Comments
[//	PAUSE	r	I

The Job Control program executes the PAUSE statement as soon as it encounters it. You may place it anywhere among the control statements, but not between the VOL, DLAB, XTENT or VOL, TPLAB control statements.

EXEC_Control_Statement

The EXEC control statement indicates to the Job Control program that the reading of a set of job-control statements has been completed and that control is to be returned to the Monitor. The EXEC control statement has the following formats:

Name	Operation	Operand(s) Comments
//	EXEC	
1//	EXEC	R
//	EXEC	LOADER
1//	EXEC	LOADER, R

R

The operand <u>R</u> as the only operand (2nd format) is used exclusively in EXEC statements for core-image maintenance. It indicates that the input to the CMAINT (Core-Image Maintenance) program is read from the relocatable area on the system disk pack.

LOADER

The operand LOADER used as the only operand (3rd format) indicates that the execute-loader function is used, i.e., your executable program is read from the card reading device or tape drive assigned to SYSIPT and then excuted.

LOADERRR

The operand <u>R</u> used in conjunction with the operand LOADER (4th format) indicates that the execute loader function is to be used and that the program you want to be executed is read from the relocatable area and executed. The name in the JOB statement is then ignored.

<u>Note</u>: When the execute-loader function is used, the CMAINT program must be contained in the core-image library of your diskresident system.

Figure 26 shows examples for the usage of the JOB and the EXEC control statement.

ASSGN Control Statement

In the PL/I program itselt, you refer to I/O devices in the MEDIUM option of the ENVIRONMENT attribute by symbolic device addresses, and not by specifying the actual device address. The Job Control program assigns actual I/O device addresses to the symbolic device address. the actual device address is assigned to the symbolic one by means of an ASSGN control statement.

Figure 27 shows an example of I/O device assignment.

Permanent device assignments are made by means of ASSGN macro instructions when generating the Monitor. These permanent device assignments are written onto the system disk pack and loaded into main storage together with the Monitor at IPL time.

Job Control 147

11.	// JOB CMAINT // EXEC[R]	Input from SYSIPT = Card or Tape unless R is specified in which case the program in the relo- catable area is included in the core- image library.
2.	// JOB program-name // EXEC	Fetch executable object program from core-image library and execute.
3. 	// JOB program-name // EXEC LOADER	Load executable object program from SYSIPT and execute. Input (program) in card image form from SYSIPT = Card or Tale.
4.	// JOB program-name // EXEC LOADER,R	Load program from relocatable area and execute.
15.	// JOB PL1, program-name // EXEC	Compile, link-edit, and execute program. Input from SYSIPT = Card or Tape.
6. 	// JOB,PL1 // EXEC	Compile, or compile-and-link, or link depending on compiler-control statements. Input from SYSIPT = Card or Tape. Output onto SYSOPT = Card or Tape and onto the relocat- lable area.

Figure 26. Examples for the Usage of JOB and EXEC Control Statements

Permanent device assignments loaded into main storage apply to all jobs, unless you alter them by inserting ASSGN control statements in your problem program. These new device assignments then remain in effect for all subsequent jobs unless changed again by other ASSGN control statements.



Figure 27. Example of I/O Device Assignment

If the operator reloads the Monitor into main storage through an IPL run, the permanent device assignments written on the system disk pack are reloaded into main storage and take effect, cancelling any assignments that have been changed by ASS3N control statements.

Changing, at execution time, assignments for card devices, printer and printerkeyboard has no effect on the device addresses specified in the MEDIUM options in the source program. These device types can only be changed by changing the device type in the MEDIUM option of the ENVIRON-MENT attribute and recompiling the program.

The formats of the ASSGN control statement are:

Name	Operation	Operands	Comments
/ / 	ASSGN	symbolic-device-a actual-device-add type, specificati	address, lress, lon
1//	ASSGN	symbolic-device-a actual-device-add	ddress, lress,type
//	ASSGN	symbolic-device-r	name, UA

<u>symbolic-device-address</u> One of the following names:

SYSRDR	Card-reading device for job- control statements
SYSIPT	Card-reading device or magnetic- tape drive for input
SYSOPT	Card-punching device or magnetic-tape drive for output
SYSLST	Printer for output listings
SYSLOG	Printer for listing job-control statements
SYS000- SYS019	User I/O devices (tape and disk devices only)

<u>Note 1</u>: In the case of magnetic tape and disk units, the introduction of symbolic device names allows to change the actual device address by means of an ASSGN jobcontrol statement.

<u>Note 2</u>: If SYSRDR and SYSIPT are both assigned to the same 2560 device, two /* cards must follow the source input on SYSIPT.

actual-device-address The device address of the unit chosen by the machine operator. The attachment point and the unit must be specified in the form X'cuu' where

c, the <u>attachment point</u>, is:

Attachment Point	for	Device Type
1 1	IBM	2501 Card Reader
2	IBM	2520 or 2560 (all models)
3	IBM	1442 Card Punch
4	IBM	1403 or 2203 Printer
7	IBM	2415 Magnetic Tape Unit
 8 	IBM	2311 Disk Størage Drive

uu, the unit, is:

Unit	for Device Type
01, 02, 03, and 04	disk
08 through FD	tape
00	all other equipment

<u>type</u> Code specifying the device type:

Code	for Device Type		
D3 D4 L1 P3 P3 R4 R5 R6 R7 R7 T1 T2	2311 Disk Storage Drive Model 112311 Disk Storage Drive Model 121403 Printer2203 Printer1442 Card Punch2520 Card Punch2501 Card Reader2520 Card Read Punch2560 MFCM Primary Feed2560 MFCM Secondary Feed2415 7-track Tape Drive2415 9-track Tape Drive		

<u>specification</u>

Code indicating device specifications for 7-track tape and 9-track phaseencoded take. This field is not used for other types of equipment. The codes for 7-track take are shown in Figure 28.

Code	Bytes per Inch	Parity	Translate Feature	Convert Feature
X 10	200	odd	off	on
X 20	200	even	off	off
X 28	200	even	on	off
X 30	200	odd	off	off
X 38	200	odd	on	off
X 50 X 60 X 68 X 70 X 78	556 556 556 556 556 556	odd even even odd odd	off off on off on	on off off off off
X '90'	800	odd	off	on
X 'A0'	800	even	off	off
X 'A8'	800	even	on	off
X 'B0'	800	odd	off	off
X 'B8'	800	odd	on	off

Figure 28. Codes for 7-Track Tapes

For 9-track tape, specifications are not required unless phase-encoded tape with the compatibility feature is used.

The codes for 9-track phase-encoded tape are:

X'CO' -- 1600 bytes per inch X'C8' -- 800 bytes per inch

 $\underline{U\underline{A}}$ Indicates that the device is to be unassigned.

The following examples illustrate the use of the ASSGN control statement.

Job Control 149

1. The following control statement assigns SYS001 to a 2415 9-track magnetic tape drive whose unit number is 08, specification 1600 bytes per inch.

// ASSGN SYS001,X'708',T2,X'C0'

 The following control statement assigns SYS002 to a 2311 Disk Storage Drive Model 11, whose unit number is 02.

// ASSGN SYS002, X'802', D3

 The following control statement releases SYS003 from a device assignment.

// ASSGN SYS003,UA

FILES Control Statement

The FILES control statement is used to position the magnetic tape at the beginning of any file on a multi-file reel. If, in a set of job-control statements, a FILES control statement and an ASSGN control statement refer to the same symbolic I/O address, the FILES statement must follow the ASSGN statement. The format of the FILES control statement is:

	Name	Operation	Operand (s)	Comments	1
1	//	FILES	device-name,skip		1

<u>device-name</u>

The symbolic name of the tape drive on which the reel of tape to be positioned is mounted. (A complete list of device names is given in the discussion of the ASSGN control statement).

<u>skip</u>

The number of tape marks to be skipped (1-999), counted from the load point, in order to position the tape. (On unlabeled files, a tape mark follows each file. On labeled files, another tape mark follows the labels).

An example showing the use of the FILES control statement is shown in the section

<u>Input/Outrut</u>, under the heading <u>Positioning</u> of <u>Unlabeled Tape Files</u>.

Label Information Processing

The Job Control program pretares for the writing and checking of standard labels for disk and magnetic tape files.

Control statements are required only for labeled tape and disk files. Two control statements must be supplied for each labeled tape file. At least three control statements must be supplied for each disk file (a minimum of four is required for indexed files). The types of control statements are:

- 1. VOL (volume)
- 2. TPLAB (tape label)
- 3. DLAB (disk label)
- 4. XTENT (disk extent)

Each file requires a VOL control statement and either a TPLAB or DLAB control statement. XTENT control statements are required only for disk files.

The control statements must be read in the order indicated below.

- 1. The VOL control statement for a file.
- 2. Either the TPLAB or the DLAB control statement for that file.
- 3. One or more XTENT control statements if the file is in disk storage. If there is more than one XTENT control statement, they must be arranged in the order in which the areas they define are to be used.

The label control statements for tape and disk are further discussed in the section <u>Input/Output</u>.

Figure 29 shows another example illustrating the use of job-control statements.

r	
ì	// LOG THIS JOB STREAM ILLUSTRATES OPERATIONAL
1	// LOG ASPECTS OF PL/I AND THE JOB CONTROL LANGUAGE.
1	// LOG FIRST IS AN EXAMPLE OF PL/I COMPILE AND EXECUTE
1	// JOB PL1, PROG1
1	// DATE 70001
If different [// CONFG 16
from the	// ASSGN SYS000,X'801',D3 2311 DISK DRIVE, MODEL 11
Monitor	// ASSGN SYSIPT,X'100',R4 2501 READER
Assignments	// ASSGN SYSLST,X'400',L1 1403 PRINTER
1	// ASSGN SYSOPT,X'200',R7 2560 SECONDARY
1	// ASSGN SYSLOG,X'400',L1 1403 PRINTER
1	// OPTN NOINQ
1	// DELET
1	// VOL SYSOOO, WORK1
1	// DLAB'DPS 16K DISK WORK FILE1 1202020', X
1	0001,70001,70001 col.72
1	// XTENT 1,000,0090000,0102009,'202020',SYS000
1	// EXEC
1	+ COPTN LINK, GODECK
	+ SEGMENT PROGA
1	+ PROCESS XREF, ATR, LIST
	/* PL/I SOURCE DECK */
	•
1	•
1	
	/* DELIMITER CARD
	DATA CARDS
Two /*>	
ICALUS II	// FAUSE END OF ODD. INSERI ODDECT IN OUD SIREAR BELOW.
ISUSTDA -	// LOG PL/I PROGRAM IS SILL IN RELOCATABLE ANDA, AND II IS
laccignod to	// LOG POSSIBLE TO CATALOG IT INTO THE CORE IMAGE LIBRARI,
ltho camo	// JOB CMAINT
12560	// EVEC R
ITE SVSRDR>	
I ± SYSTPT	
ICATAL cards	// PAUSE END OF JOB.
lhave to be	// LOG IT IS ALSO POSSIBLE TO CATALOG THE PROGRAM INTO
lincluded for	// LOG THE LIBRARY FROM THE OBJECT DECK, AS FOLLOWS.
leach program	// JOB CMAINT
Isegment	// EXEC , NOTEFOLLOWING IS COMPILER OUTPUT FROM FIRST JOB!
1	// CATAL
i (PHASE PROGA, A, X 1200' GENERATED DURING LINK-EDITING.
i /	12
i l	2 ESD
i l	9
OBJ)	12
IDECK	2 TXT
1	9
1 1	12
1	2 END
1 /	、 9
1	/*
	// END
L	



L 1 I I L 1

//	PAUSE END OF JOB
1 //	LOG THE OBJECT PROGRAM IS STILL IN THE RELOCATABLE
1 11	LOG AREA AND CAN BE AGAIN EXECUTED, AS FOLLOWS
	JOB ANYNAME
	BLE LUADER, R
	PAUSE
	LOG OR THE OBJECT DECK CAN BE EXECUTED, AS FOLLOWS.
	JOB ANYNAME
1 //	PAUSE INSERT OBJECT DECK AFTER EXEC CARD
1 //	EXEC LOADER
1 (DBJECT DECK GOES HERE
/*	
L/*	ב ב
	FAULE PROGRAM CAN ALSO BE EVECTIVED FROM THE
	LOG CORE IMAGE LIBRARY. SINCE IT HAS BEEN
	LOG PREVIOUSLY CATALOGED.
	JOB PROGA
1 //	EXEC
I [DA	FA CARDS
1 L/*	
//	PAUSE END OF JOB
1 //	LOG FOLLOWING IS AN EXAMPLE OF PL/I COMPILE ONLY.
	JUB PLI OTHER JCL PROVIDED BY FIRST JUB
י די ו	/* IN THIS EXAMPLE. ALL COMPILER OPTIONS ARE ASSUMED */
	/* PL/I SOURCE DECK GOES HERE */
/*	
1 11	PAUSE
1	

1

1

Figure 29. Example of the Sequence of Job Control Statements, Part 2 of 2

The Model 20 PL/I compiler is a component of the Model 20 Disk Programming System.

This section describes the Model 20 PL/I compiler, its options, the listings it produces, and its diagnostic features. (At the present stage, this section contains only preliminary information.)

Let us briefly recall the essential functions of the control programs described so far:

After initial program loading, the Monitor receives control and loads the Job Control program, which reads and processes the job-control statements. It then returns control to the Monitor, which loads the PL/I compiler and transfers control to it.

The compiler is the program that translates source programs into machine language and performs the necessary link-editing to transform compiled object modules into an executable object program.

In addition to translating the source program, the PL/I compiler produces listings useful for documentation and program check-out. If it detects errors, it prints the corresponding diagnostic messages. Syntax errors are printed with the source program listing. Errors detected within data declarations are printed together with the symbol table listing. Other errors are printed at the end of compilation with an extra listing.

Input to Compiler

When the Job Control program has read and processed the job-control statements preceding a job, it transfers control to the compiler. The compiler then reads the input -- which may be on cards or on magnetic tape in card-image format -- from SYSIPT to perform any of the following:

- compile
- compile-and-link
- compile-link-and-execute
- link
- link-execute

The input read from SYSIPT may consist of

- one or more PL/I source modules
- one or more precompiled object modules or
- PL/I source module(s) and precompiled object module(s)

A <u>module</u> is a procedure that is either part of a program or a complete program. Precompiled object modules are modules that have been compiled, but not link-edited, or assembled by the PL/I compiler or the Assembler, respectively, and are used again as compiler input.

If more than one module is processed by the compiler in one job, we speak of <u>batch</u> <u>compilation</u>.

PL/I_SOURCE_MODULE_INPUT

Source modules are always read from SYSIPT. They may either be on cards or on magnetic tape, depending on whether a card reading device or a tape drive is assigned to SYSIPT.

The first statements processed by the compiler are always the compiler-control statements, with their options.

Compiler-control statements and options are furnished to the compiler on cards either for the whole job or separately, for each procedure.

For the Model 20 PL/I compiler, we have the following control statements: COPTN, PROCESS, SEGMENT, and COPY. The COPTN control statement is valid for the whole job. The PROCESS statement is furnished once per procedure.

The statement immediately preceding a source module must always be the PROCESS statement. The PROCESS statement must be specified for every source module to be compiled. For a compile-link-and-execute run in which several procedures are to be compiled and link-edited, the first compiler-control statement read from SYSIPT must always be the COPTN statement with the LINK or GODECK option specified. For source modules that are to be compiled only, the COPTN statement is optional. If specified, the COPTN statement must precede all other compiler-control statements.

If overlay is used, SEGMENT control statements must precede each segment.

The Compiler 153

Compilation of PL/I Source Modules

To compile two source modules without immediate execution and/or cataloging and obtain the output (i.e., the compiled object modules) on cards, use the job and compiler-control statements in the sequence shown in Figure 30.

```
// JOB PL1
(other job-control statements)
// EXEC
[+ COPTN compiler-options]
+ PROCESS DECK
(source program 1)
+ PROCESS DECK
(source program 2)
(/*
```

1

1

1

1

1

Figure 30. Compilation of PL/I Source Modules

The option DECK in the PROCESS control statements specifies that the compiler output (i.e., the compiled object modules) is to be punched or written on tape. Since we want the output to be punched into cards, we have to assign SYSOPT to a card-punching device. (The complete set of options of the PROCESS control statement is discussed in the section <u>Options and Control</u> <u>Statements</u>).

Compilation_and_Linkage

If the two source modules are to be linked as well as compiled, that is, to have an executable object program available for execution at a later date, your control statements would have to look as shown in Figure 31.

Figure 31. Compilation and Linkage of PL/I Source Modules

Complication, Linkage and Execution of PL/I Source Modules

For a compile-link-and-execute run, you would need the control statements shown in Figure 32.

```
| // JOB PL1,program-name
         (other job-control statements)
| // EXEC
+ COPTN LINK
| + PROCESS
    . (PL/I source program 1)
1
1
| + PROCESS
        (PL/I source program 2)
1
1
| /*
| data cards
| /*
```

Figure 32. Compilation, Linkage, and Execution of PL/I Source Modules

Compilation starts with the compilercontrol statement + COPTN LINK. The option LINK indicates that the program is to be link-edited into an executable object program.

Precompiled object modules produced by the Model 20 PL/I compiler cannot be handled by the DPS Linkage Editor program, nor can they be loaded immediately by the Fetch routine of the Monitor.

<u>Compilation, Linkage and Cataloging of a</u> <u>PL/I_Source_Module</u>

To compile-link-and-catalog a PL/I source module, that is, to include it in the coreimage library as a permanent entry, use the set of control statements shown in Figure 33.

Compilation starts with the + COPTN LINK control statement, LINK specifying that the PL/I source module is to be compiled and link-edited.

If you want to compile-link-and-catalog and then immediately execute the same program, specify the job-control statements

// JOB program-name // EXEC

following the CMAINT control statements (see Figure 33).



Figure 33. Compilation, Linkage, and Cataloging of PL/I Source Modules

PRECOMPILED_OBJECT_MODULE_INPUT

A precompiled object module is a source module that has been compiled or assembled but not link-edited and that is used again as input to the PL/I compiler.

Precompiled object decks may be output from the Model 20 PL/I compiler or from the DPS Assembler. If subroutines assembled with the DPS Assembler are used, none of the following Assembler options are allowed in the AOPTN control statements: NOESD, NORLD, ENTRY. The assembler language must not contain any supervisor macros or input/ output programming, nor the XFR pseudo instruction.

Control statements for the DPS Linkage Editor Program must not be contained in the precompiled deck.

Linkage_and_Execution_of_Precompiled_Object Modules

Suppose you have several precompiled object modules which you want to be linked into one executable PL/I object program and executed immediately. The set of control statements for this job would have to look as shown in Figure 34.

The job-control statements for this run indicate that the program is to be executed immediately after compilation -- in this case, after link-editing. The link-editing of the precompiled object modules starts with the COPTN LINK card and ends with the first end-of-file (/*) record.

Link-editing produces an object program that can be executed immediately.

// JOB PL1,program-name
. (other job-control statements)
// EXEC + COPTN LINK + COPY
<pre>. (precompiled object module 1)</pre>
[[+ COPY]
<pre>. (precompiled object module 2)</pre>
[+ COPY]
<pre>. (precompiled object module 3) .</pre>
/*
(data)
/*

Figure 34. Linkage and Execution of Precompiled Object Decks

Linkage of Precompiled Object Modules

If you want to only link the same precompiled object programs and have them available for execution at a later date, use a set of control statements as shown in Figure 35.

1 //	JOB PL1
] 1	. (other job-control statements)
// + +	EXEC COPTN LINK,GODECK COPY
1 [+	. (precompiled object program 1)
1 L T 1 1 1	. (precompiled object program 2)
[+ 	COPY] . (precompiled object program 3)
 /*	•

Figure 35. Linkage of Precompiled Object Modules

<u>Note</u>: You have to specify GODECK in the COPTN control statement in addition to assigning SYSOPT to a card-punching device or a magnetic-tage drive.

The Compiler 155

<u>PL/I_SOURCE_MODULE_AND_PRECOMPILED_OBJECT</u> MODULE_INPUT

Compilation and Execution

If several PL/I source modules are to be compiled and several precompiled object modules are to be link-edited with the compiled object modules into one executable object program that is to be executed immediately, you must use the set of control statements needed for such a job as shown in Figure 36.

```
// JOB PL1, program-name
        (other job-control statements)
// EXEC
  COPTN LINK
+
   COPY
        (precompiled object module 1)
   PROCESS
+
        (source module 1)
   PROCESS
        (source module 2)
     .
   COPY
        (precompiled object module 2)
(data)
1*
```

Figure 36. Compilation and Linkage of PL/I Source Modules and Pre-Compiled Object Modules for Immediate Execution

The precompiled object decks must be headed by a COPY control statement, each source program by a PROCESS control statement.

Compilation, Link-Editing and Cataloging

To compile, link-edit, and catalog the set of programs shown in Figure 36, omit the <u>program-name</u> in the first job-control statement and the data cards followed by /*.

The following control statements would be needed to catalog the job after compilation:

// JOB CMAINT // EXEC R // END

These control statements must follow the input deck if the program is to be cata-loged from the relocatable area.

Output from Compiler

Output from the compiler may be

- a compiled object module and/or
- an executable object program

The executable object program is always in the relocatable area and on the device assigned to SYSOPT if the option GODECK has been specified in the COPTN control statement.

The compiled object module is on the device assigned to SYSOPT. Note, however, that you must specify the option DECK in the PROCESS control statement and assign a card-punching device or a tape drive to SYSOPT. Otherwise, the output is lost.

COMPILED_OBJECT_MODULES

A compiled object module is an output module that has been compiled but not linkedited by the PL/I compiler. It cannot immediately be executed or cataloged. Before the object module can be linked, linked-and-executed, or linked-andcataloged, it must be read again from the device assigned to SYSIPT like a PL/I source module, but with different and additional control statements and options. Such an object module, which is used again as compiler input, is referred to as a precompiled object module. (For the necessary control statements, refer to the section Input_to_the_Compiler).

Compiled object module output may be on cards or on magnetic tage.

Card_Jutput

The output is on cards if the DECK option has been specified in the PROCESS control statement, and if a card-punching device has been assigned to SYSOPT.

Tape Output

The output is on magnetic tape if the DECK option has been specified in the PROCESS control statement and if a magnetic-tape drive has been assigned to SYSOPT. The output tape contains the compiled object module(s) in card-image format.

SYSOPT must be assigned if PROCESS DECK is specified.

EXECUTABLE_OBJECT_PROGRAMS

Executable object programs are programs that have been compiled and link-edited. They are in the relocatable area and can immediately be executed and/or cataloged into the core-image library by the CMAINF program.

<u>Note</u>: Executable object programs cannot be used again as compiler input.

If the GODECK option has been specified in the COPTN control statement, the executable object-program output is also on a device assigned to SYSOPT. Depending on whether a card punching device or a magnetic-tape drive is assigned to SYSOPF, the output is either on cards or on magnetic tape.

For the job-control statements necessary to execute an executable object program, refer to the section <u>Job_Control</u>.

For the control statements necessary to catalog an executable object program, refer to the section <u>Cataloging</u>.

Compiler-Control Statements and Options

The control statements for the Model 20 PL/I compiler are COPTN, PROCESS, SEGMENT, and COPY.

The general format of the compilercontrol statements is:

Na	ime	Operation	Operand (5)	
 L	+	operation	[operand	[,operand]]	

<u>name</u>

identifies the statement as a compilercontrol statement. The plus (+) sign must appear in the first card column of the control statement and must be followed by at least one blank column.

operation

indicates the function of the control statement. For example, the word COPY specifies that the deck following the COPY card is a precompiled object deck. The operation field must be followed by at least one blank.

operand(s)

supply additional information about the compiler-control statement. For example, the operand DECK in the PROCESS control statement specifies that the compiled object module is to be punched on cards or written on tape. The operand field may be blank or may contain one or more operands, separated by commas, with no intervening blanks. A blank to indicate the end of the field must follow the last operand in the field. The field must not extend beyond column 71 of a punched card. Operands of a statement may be referred to as options whenever a choice can be made among them.

Whenever a job is to be compiled and link-edited for execution, the'first statement read from the device assigned to SYSIPT must always be COPTN, with the option LINK or GODECK. In all other cases the use of the COPTN statement is optional.

The control statement immediately preceding the PL/I source deck must always be the PROCESS statement. The PROCESS statement is mandatory for PL/I source modules. If overlay is used, SEGMENT control statements must precede each segment. If precompiled object modules are used in the input deck, they must be preceded by a COPY statement.

COPTN Compiler Control Statement (Optional)

Options valid for the whole job are specified in the COPTN control statement which has the following format:

Name Operation Operand (s)		Operand (s)	
+	COPTN	option [,option]	

Note that you may specify one or more COPTN control statements for a job. However, they must precede the whole job and follow each other. In case of conflicting options, the option specified last is the one that is valid.

The possible options shown in Figure 37 (default values underlined) are:

Option	Function
<u>DU MP</u>	causes the contents of main storage and registers to be listed on SYSLST or SYSLOG in case of abnormal termination of the job.
NODUMP	suppresses the DUMP option.
LINK	causes the source module(s) to be compiled and link-edited.
NOLINK	suppresses the LINK and GODECK options. The program is only compiled, not link-edited.
<u>WORK 1</u>	specifies that the work file is located on one disk drive.
WORK2	specifies that the work files are located on two disk drives.
WORK 3	specifies that the work files are located on three disk drives.
LSORT	indicates that, for batch com- pile mode, the specified list- ings are to be collected for leach procedure.
<u>NOLSORT</u>	indicates that, for batch compi- lation, the specified listings are to be collected for each list type: first all source module listings, then all cross- reference listings, etc.
GODECK	specifies that the executable object program is punched or written on SYSOPT. If GODECK is specified, LINK must also be specified.
NOGODECK	suppresses the GODECK option.

Figure 37. O₄tion of COPTN Control Statement

PROCESS Compiler-Control Statement (for PL/I_Source_Modules)

Options used for the compilation of a single procedure are specified in the PRO-CESS statement, which has the following format:

1	Name	Operation	Operand (s)
	+	PROCESS	[option [,option]]

(default values underlined) are:

Option	Function
DECK	punches or writes a compiled object module on SYSOPT if no irrecoverable errors have been detected during compilation.
N <u>ODECK</u>	suppresses the DECK option.
SOURCE	lists the source module on SYSLST.
NOSOURCE	suppresses the SOURCE option.
XREF	causes the PL/I Compiler to list the cross-reference table.
NOXREF	suppresses the XREF option.
ATRO	lists the offsets of labels and variables and the length of automatic storage.
NOATRO	suppresses the ATRO option.
ATR	lists the attributes of all variables, entry names, and file names (Symbol-table listing).
NOATR	suppresses the ATR option.
LIST	lists the object module in sym- bolic form on SYSLST.
NOLIST	suppresses LIST option.
W <u>ARNING</u>	lists <u>all</u> detected errors and warning messages.
ERROR	lists errors and severe errors.
SEVERE	lists only severe errors.
CHAR48	informs the compiler that the source module is written in the 48-character set in EBCDIC Inotation.
CHAR60	informs the compiler that the source module is written in 60- character set in EBCDIC notation.
STMT	permits the listing of "the last statement entered" in case of an object time error message.
NOSIMI	suppresses the STMF option.
	prints all external references, names with the attributes EXTERNAL, and library names of this procedure.

The possible options shown in Figure 38 Figure 38. Options of PROCESS Control Sta-efault values underlined) are: tement, Part 1 of 2

NOEXTREE	suppresses the EXTREF option.
OFFSET	lists the offsets of the begin- ning of each statement from the beginning of the procedure. This listing is a subset of the LIST option, and cannot be used together with LIST. If the STMT option would take up too much main storage, use the OFFSET option for debugging. It permits the number of the state- ment that caused the error to be determined by simple computation.
NOOFFSET	suppresses the OFFSET option.

Figure 38. Options of PROCESS Control Statement, Part 2 of 2

Printed Listings and Diagnostic Aids

(This section contains only preliminary information).

DIAGNOSTIC CAPABILITIES DURING COMPILATION

PL/I source module diagnostic messages will be given at three levels:

- 1. <u>Syntax errors</u> will be printed with the PL/I source module listing.
- Errors detected with data declarations will be printed together with the symbol-table listing (ATR).
- <u>Other errors</u> will be printed at the end of the compilation with an extra listing.

DIAGNOSTIC CAPABILITIES DURING EXECUTION

The following diagnostic carabilities will be provided at execution time:

- A dynamic dum, facility that can be called by the statement CALL DYNDUMP (variable-name [,variable-name]...);. This statement dumps data in hexadecimal format, including statementlabel and pointer variables. This feature will require a minimum of main storage.
- 2. Object time error conditions will be printed on a device assigned to SYSLST or SYSLOG, giving an error code, the address where the error occurred, the chain of active procedures and, if applicable, the address of the file that caused the error.
- 3. If the ERROR condition has been raised, the standard system action must be taken. If the DUMP option was specified at compile time, a hexadecimal main storage dump will be taken before the end of job is called. All files are closed automatically before the end of the job.
- In case of a hardware stop, the operator can start the same action as described under 3.
- 5. If the STMT option was specified at compilation time, actions 2 to 4 above are extended by printing the statement number of the last PL/I statement entered.

Executing a Simple PL/I Program

Figure 39 shows a simple, but complete PL/I program which reads cards and prints them. It is shown with the complete set of jobcontrol statements needed to run the program. The job-control statements used are discussed below in the sequence in which they appear.

<u>// JOB PL1, FIRST</u>: indicates to the Job Control program that (1) a set of jobcontrol statements and a PL/I program are to follow, that (2) the PL/I Compiler is to translate the source program into an object module, and that (3) the PL/I program is to be executed immediately.

The JOB statement must be specified for every program. It indicates to the Monitor what kind of job is to be done.

<u>// DATE 70002</u>: specifies the day of the year (January 2nd, 1970). The DATE control statement must appear in the first job following initial program loading.

The DATE statement is used for label checking and for dating output reports.

<u>// ASSGN_SYS000,X'801',D3</u>: specifies that 2311 Disk drive, Model 11, (identified by D3) will hold the work area for the compilation of the program. SYS000 is the symbolic device address to be used by the compiler to refer to the address of the disk device holding the work area whose location (actual device address) is 01.

A work area must always be assigned for a compilation.

<u>// ASSGN_SYSIPT,X'100',R4</u>: specifies that the PL/I source program is to be read from the 2501 card reader (identified by R4) whose symbolic device address is SYSIPT.

Input to the compiler is always read from SYSIPT.

<u>ASSGN SYSLST, X"400', L1</u>: assigns the 1403 printer to the symbolic device address SYSLST on which the output of the PL/I compiler is to be printed.

It is assumed that SYSOOO, SYSIPF, and SYSLST had other assignments in the previous job or, if this is the first job, that they had other standard assignments. Otherwise, the ASSGN statements would not be needed. <u>VOL SYSOO, WORK1</u>: The VOL (volume), DLAB (disk label), and XTENT cards must be supplied because a disk work file is used. The VOL control statement indicates the symbolic address of the device (SYSOOO) and name (WORK1) of the work file to be used.

<u>// DLAB...</u> contains the standard IBM disk label for the file (WORK1) named in the VOL control statement that precedes the DLAB control statement.

<u>// XTENT...</u> specifies the purpose of the extent, the extent sequence number, the location of the extent etc.

For a full description of the label control statements VOL, DLAB, and XTENT see the section <u>Input/Output</u>.

 $\underline{// EXEC}$: indicates to the Job Control program that the reading of the control statements has been completed and that control is to be returned to the Monitor. The Monitor then transfers control to the PL/I compiler, which begins reading and compiling the source program' from the card reader.

<u>+ COPIN_LINK, WORK1</u>: specifies that the source program is to be compiled and linkedited (LINK). The option WORK1 specifies that one work file is to be used. Since the option NOLINK is applied by default, LINK must always be specified if the job is to be compiled and link-edited to form an executable object program.

<u>+ PROCESS XREF, ATR, LIST</u>: causes the compiler to print the cross-reference table (XREF), the source program (by default), the symbol table (ATR), and the object module (LIST) on the device assigned to SYSLST. The input on SYSIPT will be (by default) in 60-character set EBCDIC notation.

 $\angle \star$ signifies the end of the source program.

∠* signifies that no more data cards follow.

Figure 40 illustrates the arrangement of Input/Output devices that would be needed for compilation and execution of the program shown in Figure 39.

	12	3	4 5	6	7	8	9 1	011	12	13 1	4 15	16	17	8 11	20	21	22	23 2	4 25	26	27	28	29 3	10 3	11 3	2 33	34	35	36 3	73	8 31	40	41	42	43	44 4	5 4	6 4	48	49	50	51 53	53	54	55 S	6 57	58	59	60	6	2 43	64	65	4	016		70	71	2	73	74 7	5 74	177	78	79 8	a
A	11	П	J	0		P		Ι,	F	I	RS	T								L				ļ		L												T				T					L					L				L			П	Д	Ţ	T			T	
i	14	L	D/	T	E	ŀ	74	ø	Ó	2	\perp							1	\downarrow		Ц			1	1	L				+	1	1				\downarrow	1					\perp	L	Ц					\downarrow		\bot	L	Ц		_	\perp			Ц	\square	_	\perp			\downarrow	
i	11	1	AS	5	G	N.		<u>k</u>	s	φ(D ¢	4	X	' e	Ø	1	'	, 1	23				_	1		╞				4			L			1	1					\downarrow	L	Ц		\perp			\perp	1	1		\square		\downarrow	1			Ц	\downarrow	_	+		\square	4	_
Job Control	11	H	4 5	S	G	N	4	٤k	s	1	p٦	.	X	<u>۱</u>	0	Ø	1	, l	24	1				1	1	L				1	\perp			L		\downarrow	1	1		L		+	L		_		1		_	\downarrow	\perp	L	Ц		\perp		L		Ц	\downarrow	\downarrow	1	L.	Ц	_	
Program	11		AS	s	G	N		5 7	5	L	5 7	1,	X	14	Ø	0	2	1	.]1	1				1		\downarrow			\downarrow	1		1			\square	_			\bot			_	L	\square	_		L	Ц		\downarrow		L	Ц		1			L		H	_	\downarrow	L		4	-
Input	11		VC	L		s	٧k	6	Ø	¢	, M	0	R	K 1			_	1	\downarrow	L		_	4	1	1				_	1		L				4	4	+				-	L	Ц	1	+			1		\downarrow	L			+	\downarrow		L	Ц	\downarrow	4	\perp	1	Ц	4	_
	11	Ц	DL	A	в	\downarrow	1	M	0	RI	< F	1	L	E			4	1	\downarrow	L		_		1	\downarrow	Ļ.		_	_				Ļ			_	1					1	\downarrow		12	۷Ø	2	Ø	2	<u>b</u> l'	4	L	Ц		4	\perp			C	\downarrow	_	\downarrow	1	Ц	4	
	\square	\square	1			\downarrow	\downarrow		\square		\downarrow	Ø	Ø	Ø 1	4	6	8	2	20	4	6	8	2	2	2	L	Ц		\downarrow	1	1	L				1	+	_	1	Ц		-	L	Ц					4	\downarrow	Į.	L	Ц		1	1			Ц	Ц	_	+	1	L	4	_
	11		(7	E	N	T	1		Ø	\$	U,	ø	Ø	9 0	ø	Ø	ø	. (Ø	9	9	¢	ø	6	1	2	Ø	2	¢ i	2) '	4	S	Y	S	0ľ		<u>b</u>					L	Ш												L					\downarrow		L		1	
_	11		ΕX	E	C			Ĺ	Ц		Ţ.					Ц	1	1	\perp	L		_		T.	1						1	Ľ				4	1			Ц		_			_				_		1	L	Ц		4						_	\perp	L		4	_
▲	<u>+</u>	C) F	T	N	L	. I	N	ĸ	, þ	NO	R	ĸ	L			_		\bot					1	_	L			\downarrow			L	L									_	L	Ц			1_	Ц	\downarrow		\bot	L	Ц		\downarrow	\downarrow			\square	\square	_	\downarrow			4	-
I	+	Ρ	RO	C	E	<u>5</u> 5	5	X	R	ĒE	1	A	T	RÌ,	L	I	s	r	\perp					1		L			\downarrow							_						_	L					Ц	_	\downarrow	1	L			+	1		L			_	_	L	Ц	4	_
ļ	F	R	<u>z</u> n	Τ	:	F	P	20	c	εI	2 U	R	E	0	P	T	1	oh	1s	4	M	A	1	N)	L,						1					1						+	1	Ц			1	Ц	4	1	4	L		Ll	4	1	Ļ	L	Ц	1	1	\perp	L	Ц	Ц.	_
1		Ц				I) 6	c	L	A	۶E		I	v	F	1	L	E	I	N	ρ	u	т	4	śΪ	R	E	A	н														L					Ц			1					1			\square	Ц	\downarrow	\perp		Ц		_
1	Ц	Ц	1		\square	F	Ξþ	ψ	I	R	2 n	M	E	7 1	1	Ĺ	_	F	lε	0	1		4	E) [u	н	4	s.	¥ s	jI	P	Т	-	2	54	4	ψ	þ	4		_		\square				\square	4	1	4	L			4			L	\square	4	_	\perp	L		4	
	\square	\square	+				1	1					0	T		F	1	L	4	0	u	T	ΡĮ	ψ	rĻ	S	Т	R	E/	1	1			Ĺ			1							Ц	_	\perp	L	Ц	\downarrow	60	ψr	c			\downarrow	1		L	\square	\square		\perp	Ļ			_
1	\square	\prod	<u>_</u> .			E	Ξh	IV	I	R	<u>2 N</u>	M	E	τV		C	F	Ц	31	Þ		1	M	ΞĮ	1	u	М	Ĺ	s	Ľ٩	5	S	T		1	4	¢.	зþ	ψ	4	\downarrow	1		\square			L	\square	F)r	99	ra	m		-	+	1	L	Ц	Н	\downarrow	+	1		Ц	_
Compiler	\square		-	1	\square	k	- 1	R	D	_	: н	A	R	<u>م د</u>	T	E	R	(¢	30	1	į.	_	1	1	+	L			_		\downarrow	L	L			\downarrow	1			Ĺ		_	L	Ц	_	1	┢	Ц	-		4	L			\downarrow	4	\downarrow	Ļ.,	\square	Ц	4	\perp	↓		Ц	_
Input	H	11	4	1		4	1.	ł_	T	H	rls		P	RO	G	R	A	4	1	1	5	T	s	1	٥þ	ψT	A	-	c/	4 4	ÞΦ	S		F	R	01	1	F	ε	A	D	E		2	5 (1	⊥	×	/	-	4	L			-+	+	╞	L	\square	Н	\downarrow	\downarrow	1_		Ц	_
	Ц	\square	4	\downarrow	\square	4	24	4	Ε	N	<u>D</u> F	1	L	Eļ(I	N	μ	(50	T	0	4	Eļ	ψ	Þ ,	Ļ			4	\downarrow	+	╞	L			4	1	+			4	1		\square	4	1	∔	11	+	4	4	Ļ		11		4	∔		\square	Н	\downarrow	\downarrow	╞	Ц	Ц	_
	Ļμ	0	D F	<u> </u>		_	GE	17	1	F	L	E	4	I n	ψ		Ē	D I	Ţ	4	Ç,	A	R	미	Щ	A	L	8	¢ ‡	Щ	4;		L		Ц	_	1		\downarrow			-	1	Ц	$ \downarrow$		1	Ц	-	1	Ţ	₽			-	+	1	1	\square	H	\downarrow	\downarrow	1	1_	H	_
I	\square	\square	\downarrow	Ļ		4	PL	ıψ		F	<u>I</u> L	E	4	ol	T	2	_	E)	DI	T	4	C	AI	Ŗ٦	D()	4	A	1	80	ÞД	Ψ2	li	L			_	\downarrow					-	L		-		1	Ц	4	+	1	1	\square	Ll	4	+	1	L	Ц	Ц	4	\downarrow	4-	\square	4	_
	\vdash	\downarrow	+	↓_	Ц	-	Gļ	μ	0	4	-	0	Р	il	\downarrow		4	4	+	+-	1		4	4	\downarrow	1				+	1	Ľ	L			\downarrow		\downarrow			Ц	\downarrow	╞	\square	_	∔	╞	Ц	4	1	-		\vdash	\square	4	+	∔		\square	Ц	4	4	∔-	1_	H	_
L.	Le	N	D:	4-	Ц	-	Εļ	۱Ľ);	\square	+		Ц	4	┢			+	+	\downarrow			4	+	4	\downarrow			+	\downarrow	1	1			\square	4	4	∔	\downarrow		\square	-	∔	\square	\downarrow	\downarrow	1	Ц	+	4	4	4	1		4	+-	1	+-	Ц	H	\downarrow	+	╀	\downarrow	H	_
V	/ ×		+	╞	Ц	4	4	-		$\left \right $	+	1	\square		\downarrow			4	+	╀	-		+	4	+	1	Ц		\downarrow	+	1	L		L		_	+	\downarrow	1			_	Ļ		\perp	_		Ц	-	-	∔	1	-	\square	-	+	∔	L	μ	μ	\downarrow	+	+-	\square	H	-
	T #	1	s∔	¢	A	R	미	I	S	H	4	Þ	A	T #	÷	С	4	R	2	∔	Ľ	j†		¢Þ	10	4		4	4	\downarrow	+	1	-		\square	+	\downarrow	∔			\square	_	₽		-	+	\downarrow	μ	-	\downarrow	+	∔	-	\square	4	+	╀	-	Н	H	4	+	ţ.	-	Н	-
	14		+	↓.	\square	_	+	+		\downarrow	+	+	H	+	╞			-	+	4		-	4	4	+	1			-	4	+	+-	L			4	4	+	1		\square	-	4	Ц	4	+	\downarrow	Ц	+	4	+	Ļ			+	\downarrow	+	1	Ц	\vdash	4	+	₋		H	-
	\square	++	+	+			+	+	\square	\square	+	╀	Ц	\downarrow	╞		_	4	+		4	_	4	4	+	╞		_	_	4	+	╞			Ц	_	4	4	\downarrow		\square	+	Ļ	\square	\downarrow	+	1	\square	-	4	+	4.		\square	4	╇	1	-	μ	H	-	+	+-	-	H	-
	\vdash	\square	+	+	\square	-	-	1	\downarrow	\downarrow	+	+	\square	+	╀			4	+	1	$\left \right $		+	+	+	+		Ц	-	+	1	1	L			+	+	+	1		H	+	\downarrow	Ц		1	\downarrow	Ц	4	4	+	Ļ	\downarrow	\square	4	+	+	-	Ц	H	4	+	+-	1	4	
	\vdash	11	+	+		+		+		4			Ц					1		1		_		+		1						1				_	+	+	1	Ļ	Ц	+	1		+		1	Ц	-	+	+	Ļ		H	+	+	+	-	H	H	+	+	+		4	_
	ĽĽ	3	4] 1	14	17	•	<u>"</u>	0/11	12	13	411	16	77	10[1	20	21	2	Z3 2	4 2	28	27	2	27	0	113	2 33	34	35	36	7]3	- 3	40	41	42	43	44	5 4	6 4	40	47	50	51 5	153	54	55 5	•[s	50	59	60 je	61 16	2	٣	65	"	1	16	170	17	Ľ	1	<u>"</u> "	21	ľ	1/*	1	"1

Figure 39. PL/I Program, with a Complete Set of Job-Control Statements



Figure 40. Arrangement of I/O Devices for the PL/I Program shown in Figure 39

(At the present stage, this section contains only preliminary information).

Overlay Facility

With the Model 20 PL/I, you can divide (segment) large programs into segments that can all be executed one segment at a time in one job. This feature allows you to save main storage and reduce the overall requirements of a program.

Suppose you have a program consisting of many procedures that would not fit into main storage without partitioning. By means of SEGMENT compiler-control statements, which you must include between procedures in the input deck, you can partition your program into segments that can -at execution time -- be successively called into main storage and executed.

A <u>segment</u> may consist of one or more procedures. Segments are called into main storage by the calling (fetching) procedure with a statement of the format CALL OVERLAY ('segment-name'). The called segments successively <u>overlay</u> each other, except the first, the <u>root segment</u>, which must remain active and reside in storage throughout execution of the problem program.

When overlay is used, the second segment occupies the main storage immediately above the first segment. The third, fourth, etc., segments start, when they are overlaid, at the same location where the second segment started after loading. Each segment, including the first (root) segment, must be preceded by the SEGMENT compiler control statement, which has the following format:

Name	Operation	Opera	and (s)
r	ISEGMENT	name	[,option]

operand(s)

<u>name</u> is the segment name, which has the same syntax as an external PL/I name, except that break characters are not allowed. The segment name is independent of any procedure name.

<u>option</u> is a decimal integer constant specifying the load address of the root segment. It may optionally follow the name of the root segment. If this option is not specified or, if the program is not segmented, the SEGMENT statement is missing, the executable object program will be loaded immediately behind the end of the Monitor.

CREATING A SEGMENTED PROGRAM

To segment a program, include SEGMENT control statements between procedures in your input deck; one or more procedures may follow each SEGMENT card.

Figure 41 illustrates how you might segment a program to be compiled, link-edited, and executed:

// JOB PL1,EXAMPLE	
. (other job-control statements)	
// EXEC + COPTN LINK	
+ SEGMENT ROOT + COPY	
. (precompiled object module)	
+ PROCESS NODECK	
(PL/I source module)	
+ COPY	
. (precompiled object module)	
+ SEGMENTY + COPY	
. (Frecompiled object module)	
+ SEGMENT X	
+ PROCESS NODECK, NOXREF	
. (PL/I source module)	
/*	

Figure 41. Segmenting a PL/I Program

LOADING SEGMENTS

During program execution, the individual segments are loaded by the fetching procedure(s) with a statement of the format CALL OVERLAY ('segment-name'); CALL OVERLAY does not automatically invoke a procedure in the newly loaded segment. This has to be done by a normal CALL statement or function reference.

The fetching procedure must always be contained in the root segment, never in one of the segments that are overlaid during program execution.

However, within a segment, one procedure may call another procedure. Figure 42 illustrates how segments are fetched and executed. In this example, the main procedure A of the program (contained in the root segment) first loads SEGM1 and calls procedure B1 (contained in SEGM1) for execution. After B1 has returned control to A, A loads SEGM2 and successively calls the two procedures B2 and B4 for execution. However, before B2 returns control to A, it calls B3 for execution, which returns control to B2. B2, B3, and B4 are contained in SEGM2.

The structure of the overlay scheme of the above example is shown in Figure 43.



and (3) the segment in which this procedure is contained is about to be overlaid with another segment, close this file before the segment is overlaid. However, this restriction does not apply if the file is not only declared in the fetched segment in which it is opened, but also in the root segment.

<u>Use_of_Static_Storage</u>

If you have data that is to be used in more than one segment, you must give the data the EXTERNAL attribute (which implies the STATIC attribute) of transmit them through argument lists of the CALL statement. For larger volumes of data, the use of the EXTERNAL attribute generally requires less storage than argument transmission. These data must be declared EXTERNAL in the root segment as well. However, where the arguments change, argument transmission is normally more useful.

RULES_FOR_USING_OVERLAY

This section gives a summary of the rules to be observed when using overlay:

- After a segment has been fetched into main storage, the procedure(s) contained in it may be activated by means of a call to the name of the procedure or, if more than one procedure is contained in the segment, by a call to one of the procedure names.
- The segment name is independent of any procedure name. It is assigned by means of the SEGMENT compiler-control statement contained in the input deck.

- 3. CALL OVERLAY statements must always be contained in the root segment.
- 4. The root segment cannot be overlaid. It is in storage throughout execution of the problem program.
- Any procedure of a segment may be activated at any time after the segment has been loaded, provided it has not been overlaid.
- Fetching a segment already fetched into main storage causes the segment to be loaded again. The variables contained in the segment that are in static storage have no known values or the values specified in an INITIAL attribute.
- Names of segments to be fetched must be unique. Names of procedures in the whole program must also be unique.
- A library subroutine is automatically included in every segment in which it is used if (a) it is used in a segment other than the root segment and (b) it is not in the root segment.
- 9. Data referred to in more than one segment must either be given the EXTERNAL attribute in each segment in which they are used and in the root segment or they must be transmitted as arguments with the CALL statement.
- 10. Files declared and opened in a segment below the root segment but not declared in the root segment also must be closed before the segment is overlaid by another segment.

Input/Output

In this section, we will discuss and illustrate how to create a file and how to relate a file on an external medium to your program.

The section headed <u>Data_Transmission</u> in Part I is prerequisite for the understanding of this section.

Let us briefly repeat what a file is and how you can relate it to your program.

A <u>file</u> is an organized collection of related data external to a program. A file is stored on an external medium, generally referred to as a <u>yolume</u>, such as a reel of magnetic tape or a disk pack. One reel of magnetic tape or one disk pack, for example, i.e., a valume, may contain one or more files or parts of a file. A volume that contains more than one file, is called a <u>multi-file volume</u>. If more than one volume is needed to hold one file, we speak of a <u>multi-yolume file</u>.

The individual data items in a file are arranged in distinct physical groupings called <u>blocks</u>. For processing purposes, each block consists of one or more logical parts called <u>records</u>, each of which can contain one or more related data items. A block is also called a <u>physical record</u>, because it is the unit of data that is physically transmitted to and from a volume. To avoid confusion between a physical record and its logical parts, the logical parts are called <u>logical records</u>.

When a physical record contains two or more logical records, we say the records are <u>blocked</u>. Blocking permits a more compact and efficient use of external storage and a faster access to the logical records.

To be able to deal with the data items of a file, that is, to read them into main storage or to write them onto an external storage medium, a relationship has to be established between a file and a program. You do this by means of a file declaration, that is, by declaring a <u>file name</u> for the file to be processed in your program and by specifying <u>attributes</u> that describe the file and the manner in which it will be handled. You establish the connection between the device on which the file resides and the program in main storage by means of the MEDIUM option in the ENVIRONMENT attribute in the file declaration and, if necessary, with ASSGN control statements. (For the ASSGN control

statement, see also the section <u>Job</u> <u>Control</u>).

Unlike a file, however, a file declaration has significance only in a program. For example, if you use the same file again, you may specify a different file name and some different attributes for it.

File Organization

The organization of a file determines how data is recorded in a file and how data may be retrieved from a file to be transmitted to a program for processing.

For the Model 20 PL/I, a file may be of <u>CONSECUTIVE organization</u>, in which case logical records can be stored in and retrieved from a file in sequential order, or it may be of <u>INDEXED organization</u>, in which case logical records may be retrieved from or stored in a file either in sequential or direct order, that is, on the basis of key values specified in the data- transmission statements.

Files of CONSECUTIVE organization may be read or written in either stream- or record-oriented transimission. INDEXED files may be read or written in recordoriented transmission only.

<u>Record Formats</u>

Logical records can appear in one of three formats: <u>fixed-length</u> (format F), <u>variable-length</u> (format V), or <u>undefined-</u> <u>length</u> (format U). One of these record formats must be specified. They provide flexibility in the design of files and allow you to take advantage of the fixedlength and variable-length features of specific input/output devices.

The block size and the record size are specified as the number of bytes in a block or record, respectively. For <u>format-F</u> <u>records</u>, if the record size is not specified in the ENVIRONMENT attribute, the records are assumed to be unblocked. The block size must be specified. The record size may be specified for format F records only. Blocking and deblocking is handled automatically.

With format F records, blocking is based on the stated record size. The block size must be an integer multiple of the record size. With <u>format V</u> records, deblocking is based on information at the beginning of each block and at the beginning of each logical record. Four bytes are used at the beginning of each block to specify block length, and another four bytes are used at the beginning of each record to specify the length of that record. Although insertion of this length information is done automatically by the system when the file is created, you must include the number of control bytes when you specify the length of the block in the ENVIRONMENT attribute. When format V files are created, records are always blocked if their lengths allow two or more to be placed into a block smaller than or equal to the maximum that is specified.

With <u>format-U</u> records, each block consists of only one record. The blocks (records) are of varying lengths. No system control bytes appear anywhere within the block. All processing of record is your responsibility. If you include a length specification in the record, you must insert it yourself, and must retrieve the information yourself.

Figures 44 through 46 illustrate record formats.







Figure 44. Example of Format-F Records on Magnetic Tape



S = Sector Address

Schematic Representation of Unblocked Format-F Records on Disk



S = Sector Address

Schematic Representation of Blocked Format-F Records on Disk, assuming five Records per Block.

Figure 45. Example of Format-F Records on Disk



BL is Block Length RL is Record Length IBG is Inter-block Gap

Figure 46. Example of Format-V Records on Magnetic Tape

168 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

CONSECUTIVE_FILE_ORGANIZATION

In a CONSECUTIVE file, the logical records are organized on the basis of their successive thysical positions, such as they appear on magnetic tate. Records can only be retrieved in sequential order. Therefore, the associated files must either be declared with the SEQUENTIAL attribute or be STREAM files.

Attributes_and_Options

The file attributes, which are part of the PL/I language, are not discussed in detail here. They are explained in Part I, in the section <u>Data Transmission</u>, and in Part II, in the section <u>Attributes</u>.

The <u>attributes</u> you may specify for CONSECUTIVE files are:

FILE RECORD STREAM SEQUENTIAL INPUT OUTPUT UPDATE PRINT BACKWARDS ENVIRONMENT (options-list)

The <u>options</u> you may specify in the ENVIRONMENT attribute for CONSECUTIVE files are: [CONSECUTIVE] (F (blocksize [,recordsize]))

```
{V (maxblocksize)
{U (maxblocksize)
[BUFFERS ({1|2})]
MEDIUM (symbolic-device-address,
device-type)
[CTLASA]
[LEAVE]
[NOTAPEMK]
[NOLABEL]
[VERIFY]
[ALTTAPE]
```

The individual options -- which are not part of the PL/I language, but Model 20 compiler keywords -- are discussed in the two programming examples shown in Figures 47 and 48 in the sequence in which they appear.

A complete list of all options you may use for CONSECUTIVE as well as INDEXED files is given later in this section under the heading <u>The ENVIRONMENT Attribute and</u> <u>its Options</u>. See also <u>Appendix E. File</u> <u>Attributes and Options</u>.

<u>Record Formats</u>

Records in consecutive files may be of format F, format V, or format U. The format V

may be used only for record-oriented I/O, and only with tape units. However, format-V records cannot be read backwards. The format U may only be used for magnetic tape and printer-keyboard I/O. It must be used with printer-keyboard I/O. With magnetic tape I/O you may use format U with recordoriented transmission only.

<u>Input/Output_Devices</u>

Input/output devices permitted for CONSECUTIVE files include magnetic-tape drives, card readers and punches, a printer-keyboard, disk-storage devices, and printers.

<u>Creating CONSECUTIVE Files</u>

Following now are two simple programming examples that illustrate the use of files of CONSECUTIVE organization, their attributes and options.

The <u>first_example</u>, shown in Figure 47, demonstrates the use of the ASA control character for record-oriented output. With RECORD OUTPUT files that are to be printed, you cannot use the SKIP or PAGE format items or options, which are used for printer-carriage control with STREAM PRINT files (see second example, Figure 48). With the CTLASA option specified in the ENVIRONMENT attribute, you can, however, achieve the same effect with RECORD OUTPUT files that are to be printed. The first program uses multi-valume tape input and printed output.

Explanation:

- 1 <u>Assignments</u>: The alternate tape drive must always be assigned to a symbolic device address that is one higher than that specified in the MEDIUM option.
- 2 <u>Labels</u>: For an explanation of file labels refer to <u>File_Labels</u> in this section.
- <u>Relating the Program to the Input File:</u> The program LISTTAPL -- which uses 3 multi-volume file tape input -- is related to the input file by means of the FILE declaration which associates the name INP with the file and declares it to be an INPUT file that is to be transmitted in RECORD-oriented mode. The MEDIUM option of the ENVIRONMENT attribute in the file declaration specifies that the file is located on a 2415 9-track tape drive assigned to the symbolic device address SYS004. The records have a fixed length of 120 bytes and are blocked 20 logical records to a block. On input, the blocked records are automatically deblocked so that the program deals only with

Input/Output 169

1// JOB PL1,LISTTAPE // ASSGN SYS004, X'780', T2, X'C0' 1 |// ASSGN SYS005,X'782',T2,X'CO' ALFERNATE TAPE UNIT ł 1// VOL SYS004, INP 2 1// TPLAB 'TRANSACTION FILE 00111100010001000700 70010 71009" 1 I// EXEC I+ COPTN LINK, WORK2 |+ PROCESS LIST, CHAR60, ATR, NODECK | LIST: PROCEDURE OPTIONS (MAIN); 3 DCL INP FILE RECORD INPUT ENV (MEDIUM (SYS004,2400) F(2400,120) ALTFAPE), 4 PRT FILE RECORD OUTPUT ENV (MEDIUM (SYSLST, 2203) 1 1 5 F(121) CTLASA), 1 1 INRCD BASED (P), 2 KEY CHAR (8), 2 FILLER CHAR (112), INSTREAM BASED(P) CHAR (120), 1 OUTRCD, 6 2 CTLASA CONTROL CHAR (1), 1 2 TEXT CHAR (120), (LINE FIXED (3) INIT (57), OLDKEY CHAR (8), P POINTER) STATIC; OPEN FILE (INP), FILE (PRT); ON ENDFILE (INP) GOTO FINIS; 7 1 8 1 LOOP: READ FILE (INP) SET (P); 1 IF LINE > 56 THEN DO; CTLASA_CONTROL = '1'; 9 1 LINE = 1;END; 1 ELSE IF KEY = OLDKEY THEN DO; 101 CTLASA_CONTROL = ' '; 1 LINE = LINE + 1; 1 END: ELSE DO: 111 CTLASA_CONTROL = '0'; LINE = LINE + 2; END: TEXT = INSTREAM; WRITE FILE (PTR) FROM (OUTRCD); OLDKEY = KEY;GO TO LOOP: | FINIS: END; 1/*

<u>Note</u>: The numbers to the left of Figure 47 are used for explanation purposes only. They are not part of the coding.

Figure 47. Programming Example Illustrating the Use of the ASA Control Characters for RECORD OUTPUT

logical records. Since a multi-volume tape file is used, the option ALTTAPL must be stecified in the ENVIRONMENT attribute. ALTTAPE indicates that an alternate tape drive is assigned to enable automatic switching from one drive to the other.

4 <u>Relating the Program to the Output</u> <u>File</u>: The connection between the program and the device on which the output file is to be stored is established by means of the FILE declaration for PRT which declares PRT to be an OUTPUT file that is to be printed on a 2203 printer assigned to the symbolic device address SYSLST. The records are unblocked with a length of 121 bytes, the first being reserved for the ASA control character. An ASSGN statement for SYSLST is not needed since the device assignments for printers are taken from the device specification in the MEDIUM option only.

7 <u>Opening the Files</u>. Both the input file INP and the output file PRT are opened (activated) which means that the file declarations for the two files are associated with the respective actual files on the external storage medium and that processing of the records can begin.

- 5 <u>Use of CTLASA</u>. The option CTLASA in the ENVIRONMENT attribute of a RECORD file specifies that the first character of a logical record transmitted to the output file is to be interpreted as an ASA control character. When RECORD output is to be on a printer or on cards, the ASA carriage control character is used for printer carriage control and for punched card stacker selection. (The character codes that you can use with CTLASA are shown in <u>The ENVIRONMENT Attribute and Its</u> <u>Options</u> in this section).
- 6 In the structure declaration for the output record OUTRCD, the first character is reserved for the ASA control character.
- 9 Depending on the result of comparison operations, the ASA control character is either set to '1' which is interpreted as "skip to channel 1 before printing", when the output record is printed,
- 10 or set ot ' ' (blank) which is interpreted as "space one line before printing",
- 11 or to '0' which is interpreted as "space two lines before printing".
- 8 <u>De-Activating the Program</u>: The processing loop ends automatically when the ENDFILE condition is raised for the

input file INP. Control is transferred to the statement labeled FINIS by means of the ON statement. When control is returned to the Monitor by execution of the last END statement of the program, both files are automatically closed.

The <u>second programming example</u>, shown in Figure 48, illustrates printer-carriage control for STREAM files. Printer-carriage control for STREAM files is achieved by means of the SKIP option in the PUT statement.

The second program (LISTBACK) uses tape input that is on a multi-file tape volume which is to be read backwards in recordoriented transmission mode.

Explanation:

- 1 The job-control statement // JOB PL1, LISTBACK specifies that the program LSTBACK is to be compiled, link-edited, and executed immediately. For an explanation of the other job-control statements, see the section Job Control and the paragraph headed <u>File Labels</u> in this section. For the compiler-control statements, see the section <u>The</u> <u>Compiler</u>.
- 2 The input file that is to be processed by LISTBACK is related to LISTBACK by means of the FILE declaration which declares the file to be an INPUT file that is to be read BACKWARDS from a

	n.	// PAUSE LOAD REEL 118 ON UNIT 81
		// JOB PLI, LISTBACK
1 1		// ASSGN SISUU/,A'/01',I2
! '		// VOL SISUV/,DACKI
1	1	// IFLAD 'BACKWARDS EXAMPLEDOUTIOUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU
	1	
		// EAEC A CODWN IINV WODVO
		T COFIN LINK, WORKZ
1 I	4	T PROCESS LISI, AIR, NODECR
8 1	r¦	DISTD: PROCEEDURE OFFICING (MAIN), DOT BICKT FILF TNDITT BECORD BICKWIDDS FNV
2		(MEDIUM (SYSON7 2400) F (1500 100) LEAVE)
		PRT FILE OUTPUT PRIME ENV (MEDIUM (SYSOO3, 2400)
3		F (121) NOLABEL NOTAPENK).
		1 INRCD BASED (P), 2 KEY CHAR(8), 2 TEXT CHAR(92),
1	i	(SKIP FIXED (1), P POINTER, OLDKEY CHAR (8) STATIC:
i 4	i	OPEN FILE (BACKT), FILE (PRT) PAGESIZE (48):
	i	ON ENDFILE (BACKT) GO TO FINIS:
i 5	i	OLDKEY = HIGH(8):
i	i	LOOP: READ FILE (BACKT) SET (P):
i	i	IF KEY = OLDKEY THEN SKIP = 1; ELSE SKIP = 2;
6	i	PUT FILE (PRT) SKIP (SKIP) EDIT (KEY, TEXT) (A,X(5),A);
1	Ì	OLDKEY = KEY;
1	1	GO TO LOOP;
1	1	FINIS: END;
l	1	/*
L	-+-	

Figure 48. Programming Example Showing Printer-Carriage Control for STREAM Files

multi-file tape volume. The file BACKT is on the multi-file tape volume assigned to the symbolic-device address SYS007. (It is the file following the sixth tapemark on the volume (FILES control statement).)

The records are of blocked format, with 15 logical records, each of a length of 100 bytes. On input, the records are automatically deblocked, so that the program deals only with the logical records.

The LEAVE option in the ENVIRONMENT attribute is used to specify that no rewind operation is to be performed when the file BACKT is opened. You should always specify it for files that have the BACKWARDS attribute to ensure proper positioning of the file.

3 The file PRT that is to be created by LISTBACK is declared as an OUTPUT tape file that is to be printed. The attribute PRINT specifies that the first byte of each logical record of the STREAM file is to be reserved for an ASA control character needed for printer-carriage control. The records are unblocked and of fixed length. Since output is stream-oriented, in this example, the records must not be blocked.

The options NOLABEL and NOTAPEMK in the ENVIRONMENT attribute specify that no label processing is to be done for the file. On output, a tapemark is automatically written as the first record on the tape, unless NOTAPEMK is specified in the ENVIRONMENT attribute.

- 4 Both the input and the output file are opened by means of the OPEN statement which specifies the names of the files to be opened. The PAGESIZE option specifies that, before writing beyond the 48th line, the ENDPAGE condition is raised. Since no appropriate ON statement is given, standard system action, i.e., advancing to a new page, is taken.
- 5 OLDKEY is assigned an initial value of 16 hexadecimal Fs.
- 6 A printer-carriage control character is created preceding each output record on tape.

Accessing a CONSECUTIVE File

An existing CONSECUTIVE file can be accessed in two ways: either as an INPUT or as an UPDATE file. Reading of an INPUT file may be either stream- or record-oriented. If the file is on magnetic tape, it may be read either forward or backwards.

Transmission of an UPDATE file must always be record-oriented. An UPDATE file cannot have the STREAM, BACKWARDS, or PRINT attributes. The attribute UPDATE specifies that the record is to be read, processed, and rewritten into its previous place in the existing file. Only disk files may be updated.

It is not possible to insert additional records into an existing CONSECUTIVE file or to extend it by adding records at its end.

DISK ORGANIZATION

A file of INDEXED organization is always on a direct-access device. For the Model 20 System, this is a 1316 Disk Pack used with the 2311 Disk-Storage Drive Model 11 or 12.

Before we come to the discussion of INDEXED file organization, we will, therefore, first deal with the organization of the IBM 1316 Disk Pack, as shown in Figure 49.

The IBM 1316 Disk Pack

The 1316 disk pack is the medium on which data is stored externally. It is mounted on a 2311-11 or 2311-12 disk-storage drive. Let us consider the physical characteristics of the 1316.

A 1316 disk pack consists of six disks. The top surface of the upper disk and the bottom surface of the lowest disk are not used, which leaves ten surfaces for storage of data. Each disk surface has 203 concentric \underline{tracks} of which, on a 2311-11, you may use tracks 004 to 202 whereas, on a 2311-12, you may use only tracks 004 to 102. Track 1, 2, 3, etc., on each surface is physically located below or above track 1, 2, 3, etc., of the other surfaces. Each group of ten vertically aligned tracks can Each therefore be said to form an imaginary cylinder. 200 or 100 cylinders, respectively, are used for actual recording depending on the disk pack used; the remaining three are reserved. (Refer to Figure 49).



Figure 49. 1316 Disk Pack and Access Mechanism

The 2311 has one access arm, equipped with ten read/write heads. These heads are aligned vertically so that data contained in one and the same cylinder can be accessed without any mechanical movement of the arm from track to track. This, however, makes it necessary to switch from surface to surface within a cylinder when a file being written overflows from track to track or when one track has been read and the file continues on the next. When a cylinder is filled with data, writing continues on the first track of the next cylinder. This technique reduces the time needed to move the access arm.

Thus, a disk pack is thought of as consisting of 200 or 100 cylinders, each cylinder in turn consisting of ten tracks. A consecutive set of tracks or cylinders set aside for usage of a specific file is referred to as an <u>extent</u>. Each track consists of ten <u>sectors</u>. Each sector can accommodate 270 bytes of data. When reading records from, or writing them onto disk, one or more complete sectors are always read or written. Parts of sectors cannot be transferred. A single read or write operation may transfer the contents of one 270-byte sector, of several sectors of a single track, or of several sectors of two or more tracks within the same cylinder. A single read or write command must not exceed cylinder limits.

The fact that only one or more <u>complete</u> sectors can be read or written is important in dealing with disk-file organization.

All records written on disk must be of fixed length (format F). They may be blocked or unblocked. Only one logical record at a time is available for processing by the problem program. However, data may be transferred between a disk file and

Input/Output 173

main storage in blocks of two or more logical records.

For example, assume that a file is specified to contain unblocked logical records of 160 bytes in length. In this case, the first 160 bytes of each sector contain one record. Note that 110 bytes of each sector are wasted. The input/output area that is automatically established in main storage is 270 bytes in length to accommodate one complete sector, even though only 160 bytes of each sector are utilized by a logical record. This is obviously wasteful. In this example, unblocked records result in poor utilization of disk capacity. An additional disadvantage is a delay in retrieval of records (slower retrieval times as compared with retrieval of blocked records).

Figure 50 shows the possibilities of blocking records to achieve good utilization of the disk area.





174 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

INDEXED_FILE_ORGANIZATION

For the Model 20, a file of INDEXED organization is always on a 1316 disk pack mounted on the 2311-11 or the 2311-12 diskstorage drive. The structure of an INDEXED file is basically sequential. Its records are arranged in logical sequence according to <u>keys</u> that are associated with every record. The key must be a character string that represents an item within the record, such as a date or a name. Each key must be unique. Records may be retrieved either sequentially or directly.

INDEXED file organization offers the following additional features not provided by CONSECUTIVE file organization:

- Sequential retrieval of records within specified limits in the file.
- Direct retrieval.
- Extension of the file at its end.
- Insertion of new records without copying the whole file.

When an INDEXED file is created (or loaded), it must be created as an INDEXED SEQUENTIAL OUTPUT file. INDEXED DIRECT files cannot be output files. The records of the file to be written must be presorted to the required sequence. Once an INDEXED file is created, it may be retrieved in either sequential or direct access mode.

<u>Seguential_Retrieval</u>

Sequential retrieval permits all records of the file to be read into main storage, beginning with the record that is lowest in sequence. However, you may also read only a portion of the file by specifying the key of the lowest record of that portion and then processing as many records as required. The lowest record is retrieved in direct access and the file is then processed sequentially by READ statements without source keys until the upper limit is reached.

<u>Direct_Retrieval</u>

For direct retrieval, you must specify a source key in every READ statement.

<u>File_Extension</u>

An INDEXED file may be extended at its end, once it has been created. For file extension, the records that are to be added must all have keys that are higher in sequence than the key of the last record of the current file. Note, however, that extension is not possible if a record has been inserted on the last active track of the file in a previous run. In this case, the file must be entirely rewritten.

Insertion_of_New_Records

You may also insert records with new keys into the file. For the insertion of new records, you must reserve overflow areas within the file.

Deletion_of_Records

Deletion is not accomplished by physically removing the records from the file. If you want to delete records, you must specify this by writing a deletion code in each record to indicate that it is to be removed when the file is eventually reorganized by a reorganization program that you must supply yourself.

<u>Indexes</u>

The ability to read and write records anywhere in an INDEXED file is provided by indexes that are part of the file. Two types of indexes are automatically constructed whenever a file is created or extended: a <u>cylinder index</u> for the entire file, and a <u>track index</u> for each cylinder. An entry in a cylinder or track index contains the identification of a specific cylinder or track and the highest key associated with that cylinder or track. The indexes are automatically retrieved and searched when their use is required, that is, when a READ, WRITE, or REWRITE statement with a source key is encountered during execution of a program.

When new records are added to the file, as insertions or extensions, the indexes are automatically modified to account for the new records.

Overflow Area

In addition to the <u>prime_data_area</u>, whose tracks initially receive the records of an INDEXED file, there are overflow areas for records forced off their original tracks by the insertion of new records. An overflow area called a <u>cylinder overflow_area</u>, may be designated for each cylinder of the prime data area. If a large number of additions is anticipated, an <u>independent</u> <u>overflow_area</u> may be designated to supplement or replace the cylinder-overflow areas. This area must be defined as a segarate extent.

When a new record is to be inserted in a track that is already full, the records already on the track with keys that are higher in sequence than the key of the record to be added are removed and -- after insertion of the new record -- written back

Input/Output 175

Page Missing From Original Document

Page Missing From Original Document

first 45 bytes of each card are processed, even though a complete card is fed through the card reader each time a READ statement is executed.

- 4 The format of the records to be written on the INDEXED file is described in the structure declaration DATA. The key, which, in this example, has also the name KEY, starts with the eighth character of the record as specified by the KEYLOC option in the file declaration. The length of the key, 12 characters, must be the same as specified in the KEYLENGTH option.
- 2 EXTENTNUMBER (3) serves for either (a) one index extent, one prime data extent, and one independent overflow area, or (b) one index extent and two prime data extents. Of which kind the last extent actually is, has to be specified by the third job control XTENT statement for this file (not shown in this example). Two tracks per cylinder are set aside for later insertion of overflow records by the OFLTRACKS option. The records of the file to be loaded are blocked with a blocking factor of 6. Since the file is to be

saved for later usage, the VERIFY option has been specified to assure error detection during writing of blocks on the disk pack.

- 3 The printer will be used only in exceptional cases, that is, when the KEY or the ENDFILE condition is raised. Therefore, the use of only one buffer will not impair performance significantly.
- 5 Even though the key is already in its final position in the record, the KEYFROM option must be specified with the WRITE statement.
- 6 This point is reached each time a key is out of sequence. The program need not be terminated; it proceeds with reading the next record.
- 7 The program is terminated by detecting an end-of-file statement, /*, in card columns 1 and 2 in the input file. A termination message is printed.

In the second example, shown in Figure 53, the file created in the previous example is updated and records are added to

 1	ADDUPD: PROCEDURE OPTIONS (MAIN); DCL INPUT FILE RECORD INPUT ENV(MEDIUM(SYSIPT,2520)F(45)), INDEX FILE RECORD UPDATE DIRECT ENV(MEDIUM(SYS008,2311) E(270,45)
1	INDEXED KEYLENGIH(12) KEYLOC(8) EXTENTNUMBER(3) OFLTRACKS(2) VERIFY), 1 DATA BASED (P), 2 PERS_NO PIC'(7)9', 2 INKEY CHAR(12),
1	
i	
2 	1 FDATA, 2 PERS_NO PIC'(7)9', 2 FKEY CHAR(12),
1	•
i	P POINTER STATIC;
i	/* FILE ACTIVATION*/ OPEN FILE (INPUT), FILE (INDEX);
1	ON ENDFILE (INPUF)GO FO END_OF_JOB;
1	/ ON REF (INDER) GO TO NEW_RECORD,
i	LOOP: READ FILE (INPUT) SET (P);
3	READ FILE (INDEX) INTO (FDATA) KEY (INKEY);
1	/* UPDATE RECORD IN 'FDAFA' BY 'DAFA'*/
4	REWRITE FILE(INDEX) FROM (FDAFA) KEY (FKEY);
1	GO TO LOOP;
5	/* ADD NEW RECORD TO INDEXED FILE */ NEW_RECORD: WRITE FILE (INDEX) FROM (DATA) KEYFROM (INKEY); GO TO LOOP; END_OF_JOB: END;

the file. The distinction between updating and adding is made by use of the KEY condition. The KEY condition is raised when searching for a record with a READ statement is unsuccessful. In this case, adding instead of updating is performed.

Explanation:

- 1 The attribute DIRECT implies the attribute KEYED.
- 3 The key (INKEY), which is used to determine whether a record is to be updated or added, is provided by the card file INPUT whose records are read into the structure DATA.
- 2 Since both the card record and the old record from the INDEXED file are needed for updating, an extra structure, FDATA, is used for holding the records of the INDEXED file.
- 5 If a record with a key specified in INKEY is not yet on the INDEXED file,

control branches automatically to the statement label NEW_RECORD where the new records are added to the INDEXED file.

4 The updated record is written back into its previous location on the INDEXED file.

In the third example, shown in Figure 54, sequential regions of an INDEXED file (SAMPLE) are punched into cards with an output file (PUNCH). The limits of the regions to be punched are defined by upper keys and lower keys read from a third file (CONTRL). The block length of the INDEXED file is 525 bytes occupying two disk sectors, so that 15 bytes of the second sector are left unused. The output file (PUNCH) uses the ASA control character W, which causes the cards from the secondary hopper of the MFCM to be fed into stacker 4. All cards receive running numbers in columns 76 to 80.

 	INDXPC:	PROCEDURE OPTIONS (MAIN); DCL SAMPLE FILE RECORD INPUT KEYED SEQUENTIAL ENV (MEDIUM (SYS006,2311) INDEXED KEYLENGTH (12)
!]	1 1 1	KEYLOC(1) EXTENTNUMBER(3) F(525,75)); DCL CONTRL FILE RECORD INPUT ENV(MEDIUM (SYSIPT,2560P) F(24) BUFFERS(1));
 	1	DCL PUNCH FILE RECORD OUTPUT ENV (MEDIUM (SYSOPT, 2560S) F (81) CTLASA);
 	 	DCL 1 INDEX_REC, 2 KEY CHAR(12), 2 OTHER CHAR(63),
]] 	1 OUTREC, 2 CTL_CHAR CHAR(1) INIF ('W'), 2 RECORD,
1 1 1	1 	3 KEY CHAR(12), 3 OTHER CHAR(63), 2 NUMBER PIC'(5)9',
 	1 1	1 CTL_REC, 2 (LOWER, UPPER) CHAR (12), NO FIXED DECIMAL (5,0) INIT (1);
1	9 4 1	<pre>/* FILE ACTIVATION */ OPEN FILE(SAMPLE), FILE(CONTRL), FILE (PUNCH); ON ENDFILE (CONTRL) GO TO EOJ; </pre>
 1	CLOOP:	<pre>/* CONTROL-FILE LOOP */ READ FILE (CONTRL) INTO (CFL_REC); READ FILE (SAMPLE) INTO (INDEX_REC) KEY (LOWER);</pre>
1 2	ISLOOP:	GO TO E_2; /* SAMPLE-FILE LOOP */ READ FILE (SAMPLE) INTO (INDEX_REC);
3 4 	E_2:	IF INDEX_REC.KEY > UPPER THEN GO TO CLOOP; RECORD = INDEX_REC; NUMBER = NO; WEITE FILE (PUNCH) FROM (OUTREC) .
	 EOJ:	NO = NO + 1; GO TO SLOOP; END;

Figure 54. Example Illustrating (a) Sequential Retrieval of Records Within Specified Limits From an INDEXED File and (b) Stacker Selection

Explanation:

- 1 The READ statement for the first record of each sequential region to be punched requires the KEY option to position the file to the specified lower limit.
- 2 Further READ statements to transmit records of the same sequential region do not require the KEY option. The next sequential record is read automatically.
- 3 The IF statement tests whether the upper limit of the region to be punched has been exceeded. If it has, a branch to CLOOP is taken, where the next control key from the file CNTRL is read.
- 4 This is a structure assignment. Note that both structures have the same structuring and description, but no identical level numbers. Level numbers need not be identical.

Accessing INDEXED Files

Records in INDEXED files are arranged on the basis of keys that are associated with each record. INDEXED files may be transmitted only in record-oriented mode. They must be created as INDEXED SEQUENTIAL OUTPUT files. Once they have been created, they can be accessed only as INPUT or UPDATE files, for either sequential or direct retrieval.

To retrieve the entire file sequentially, you may read it just like a CONSECUTIVE file, without specifying a key. To read only a given portion of the file, you must specify the key of the lowest record of that portion and then test whether the key of the highest record of that portion has been reached. The records between the lowest and the highest record can be retrieved without specifying source keys in the READ statements.

To retrieve records from an INDEXED file in random order, you must specify a source key with every READ statement to identify the record to be retrieved from the file. And, in the file declaration, you must specify the attribute DIRECT, together with the option INDEXED.

For an INDEXED file that is to be retrieved sequentially, you must specify the attributes SEQUENTIAL and KEYED, together with the option INDEXED in your file declaration.

The ENVIRONMENT Attribute and Its Options

The ENVIRONMENT attribute is an implementation-defined attribute that spe-

cifies various file characteristics that are not part of the PL/I language.

The options list for the Model 20 PL/I compiler is as follows:

CONSECUTIVE LINDEXED (F (blocksize[,recordsize])) V (maxblocksize) U (maxblocksize) [BUFFERS ({1|2})] MEDIUM (symbolic-device-address, device-type) [CTLASA] [LEAVE] [NOTAPEMK] [NOLABEL] [ALTTAPE] [VERIFY] [NOWRITE] [KEYLENGTH (decimal-integer-constant)] [EXTENTNUMBER (decimal-integer-constant)] [OFLTRACKS (decimal-integer-constant)] [KEYLOC (decimal-integer-constant)]

General Rules:

- Each file declaration must have an associated ENVIRONMENT attribute.
- The options must be enclosed in parentheses and setarated by one or more blanks.
- 3. The MEDIUM option and one of the record format options (F, V, and U) must always be specified. The others are optional. Their use depends upon the associated files that are to be processed.

The individual options are discussed in the sequence in which they are listed above.

<u>The_CONSECUTIVE_Option</u>

The option CONSECUTIVE indicates that the logical records of the associated file are arranged on the basis of their successive physical positions, such as they appear on tape.

General Rules:

- A CONSECUTIVE file must either have the SEQUENTIAL attribute or be a STREAM file.
- 2. If neither the CONSECUTIVE nor the INDEXED option is specified in the ENVIRONMENT attribute, CONSECUTIVE is assumed by default.

180 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I
- 3. Once a CONSECUTIVE file has been created, it may be opened only as an INPUT or UPDATE file. Such a file may be read either forward or backwards if it is on magnetic tape. In order to be read backwards, it must have the BACKWARDS attribute, and the LEAVE option specified in the ENVIRONMENT attribute.
- 4. All three kinds of record formats -- F, V, and U -- are allowed for CONSECUTIVE files. The last two formats, V, and U, may be used only for RECORD I/O and only with magnetic tape. As an exception to this rule, printer-keyboard files must always consist of format-U records. Format-V records, however, cannot be read backwards.
- I/O devices permitted for CONSECUTIVE files include magnetic tape units, card readers and punches, disk-storage drives, printer-keyboards printers.

The INDEXED Option

The INDEXED option specifies that the records of the associated file has or will have its records arranged in logical sequence, according the keys associated with every record.

<u>General Rules:</u>

 An INDEXED file may be created only as an INDEXED SEQUENTIAL OUTPUT file. Once it has been created, it may be processed as an INDEXED SEQUENTIAL OUTPUT file only if it is to be extended, in which case the keys of the extended part must be higher in the collating sequence than the keys of the already existing part. Although you can extend an INDEXED SEQUENTIAL file at its end, you cannot insert new, additional records into it.

INDEXED DIRECT files may be opened only for INPUT or UPDATE activity. You cannot extend an INDEXED DIRECT file at its end, but you can replace old records and insert new, additional ones.

- Only record-oriented retrieval is permitted with INDEXED files.
- 3. The key associated with each logical record must always be a character string of not more than 60 characters. The length of the recorded key must be specified in the ENVIRONMENT option KEYLENGTH (n). The high-order position of the key -- which is always embedded in the actual data part of the logical record -- is specified in the ENVIRONMENT option KEYLOC (n).

- Only format-F records (blocked or unblocked) may be used with INDEXED file organization.
- 5. LOCATE and READ with the SET option are not allowed for INDEXED files.

<u>The Options F, V, and U</u>

The options F, V, and U are used to describe physical records. F specifies fixed-length records, V specifies variablelength records, and U specifies records of undefined length.

Records may be blocked or unblocked. Block size and record size are specified in number of bytes, as unsigned decimal integer constants.

<u>General Rules:</u>

Format-F records:

- 1. If the record size of format-F records is not specified in the ENVIRONMENT attribute, the records are assumed to be unblocked. In case of blocked records, record and block size must be specified. The record size can be specified for format-F records only. Blocking and deblocking is handled automatically. It is dependent upon the stated record size. The quotient of block size divided by record size must be an integer. Fixed-length blocked records are constructed if, on output, both block size and record size are specified. The blocking factor is the block size divided by the record size.
- For INDEXED files, only format-F records (blocked or unblocked) are allowed. The maximum block size for INDEXED files is 16200, the maximum record size 4090 bytes.
- For STREAM files, only fixed-length, unblocked records are allowed, with the exception of printer-keyboard files which require format-U records.

Format-V records:

 Blocking and deblocking of format-V records is dependent on the information at the beginning of each block and at the beginning of each logical record. Four bytes are used at the beginning of each block to specify block size, and another four bytes at the beginning of each logical record to specify the size of that logical record. Although the block and record sizes are inserted automatically in these four bytes when the file is created, you must include the number of these bytes when you spe-

Input/Output 181

cify the length of the block in the ENVIRONMENT attribute. When format-V files are created, records are always blocked if their sizes allow two or more records to be placed into a block smaller than or equal to the maximum that is s_{\downarrow} ecified.

 Format-V records cannot be read backwards.

Format-U records:

- With format-U records, each block consists of only one record. The blocks (records) are of varying lengths. No system-control bytes appear anywhere within the block. All processing of records is your responsibility. If you include a length specification in the record, you must insert it yourself, and you must also retrieve this information yourself.
- The two formats V and U may be used only with record-oriented magnetic tape I/O, printer-keyboard files must consist of format-U records.
- The minimum and maximum physical record sizes (or block sizes) that are allowed with the various I/O devices are shown in Figure 55.

	Block Size	in Bytes
	Min	Max
Card Printer Typewriter Magnetic Tape 2311 DASD (for CONSECUTIVE files) 2311 DASD (for INDEXED files)	1 1 2 18* 1	80 1 line 511 4095 26730 16200
*The minimum reco 18.	ord size mus	st also be
Add 1 to the above trol character is	ve values if s used.	an ASA con-

Figure 55. Block Sizes Permitted Depending Upon the I/O Devices Used

4. When reading files with format V or U records, you normally decide from some control field in the record you must have inserted yourself, which type of record you are processing. In this case, you should use the READ statement with the SET option to avoid raising of the RECORD condition.

<u>**Ihe BUFFERS(n)**</u> **Option**

The BUFFERS (n) option is used to specify that buffer storage area is used for data transmission. If you specify BUFFERS (2), input/output activity can run concurrently with internal processing.

General Rules:

- 1. The number <u>n</u> must either be 1 or 2.
- If the BUFFERS(n) option is not specified, the number of buffers is assumed to be 2, except for INDEXED DIRECT files.
- BUFFERS(n) may be used with both STREAM and RECORD files.

The MEDIUM Option

The MEDIUM option in the ENVIRONMENT attribute -- and, if necessary, the ASSGN statement of the Model 20 Job Control -are used to associate a file on an external storage medium with a program. The format is:

The symbolic-device-address entry relates a device to a particular file. The device-type entry defines the type of I/O device on which the file is located.

General Rules:

- The symbolic device address is specified as SYSnnn, where nnn can be IPT (system input device), LST (system output device), used for listing), PCH or OPT (system output device used for punching or writing on tape), or 000 through 019 (as selected by the programmer).
- 2. <u>OPT</u> should not be used for Model 20 PL/I programs that are expected to run under DOS/TOS as well.
- 3. The device-type entry is a four or five-character code identifying the type of I/O device to be used. For example, for the IBM 2415 Magnetic Tape Unit, the code is 2400, for the IBM 2311 Disk Unit, the code is 2311. Figure 56 shows how the individual device types are specified.

 Туре	 Device	Device-Type Specification
Card Readers and Punches 	IBM 1442 IBM 2520 IBM 2560 IBM 2560 IBM 2560 IBM 2501	1442 2520 2560P 2560S 2501
Printers	IBM 1403 IBM 2203	1403 2203
Magnetic Tape Units	IBM 2415 (9-track) IBM 2415 (7-track)	2400 2400
Disk Storage	IBM 2311	2311
Printer- Keyboard	IBM 2152	2152
¹ Primary feed ² Secondary feed		

Figure 56. Device Types and Corresponding Specifications

4. The device types listed in Figure 56 may be assigned to the logical unit names SYSIPT, SYSLST, SYSPCH, SYSOPT, or SYS000 - SYS019, as shown in Figure 57.

Symbolic Device Address	Device Type Specification
SYSIPT	2501 2520 2560P 2560S 2400 2152
SYSLST	1403 2203 2152
SYSOPT, SYSPCH	1442 2520 2560P 2560S 2400
SYSOOO through SYSO19	2311 and 2400 and any of the above devices

- Figure 57. Device Type Specifications that may be Associated with Symbolic Device Addresses
- 5. The system automatically associates the symbolic device address with the

device type specified in the MEDIUM option of the ENVIRONMENT attribute. Only if standard assignments are used, no additional ASSGN job-control statements are needed.

For magnetic tape and disk storage, you may have to change the permanent device assignments of the system. This means that, in addition to specifying the symbolic device address and the device type in the MEDIUM option, you may have to furnish ASSGN statements. These ASSGN job-control statements must contain the actual device address and device type following the SYSnnn. The device specification in the MEDIUM option must correspond with the device specification in the ASSGN statement. (For a complete discussion of the ASSGN jobcontrol statement, refer to the section <u>Job Control</u>.)

- All files in Model 20 PL/I must be explicitly declared with the MEDIUM option in the ENVIRONMENT attribute. ASSGN statements are required only if you want to change the previous device assignments for tape and disk files.
- 7. With card, printer, and magnetic tape, only one file must be open at the same time for the same device. An exception is the 2560 multifunction card machine. With the 2560, one file may be open at the same time for each hopper. Disk files that are open at the same time must not have overlapping extents.

With the 2152 printer-keyboard, one input and one output file may be open at the same time. For synchronisation of these files, see <u>Use of the</u> <u>Printer-Keyboard</u> in the section <u>Spe-</u> <u>cial Programming Considerations</u>.

The CTLASA Option

The CTLASA option may be used for card and printer RECORD OUTPUT files. It indicates that the first character of a record is to be interpreted as an ASA control character for printer-carriage control and for punched-card stacker selection.

General Rules:

 It is your responsibility to provide the correct control character. For an example of its use, refer to <u>Creating Files of CONSECUTIVE Organization</u> in this section. 2. The character codes you can use with CTLASA are listed in Figure 58.

Code	Interpretation
Code (blank) (blank) 	Interpretation Space one line before printing Space two lines before printing Space three lines before printing Suppress space before printing Skip to channel 1 before printing Skip to channel 2 before printing Skip to channel 3 before printing Skip to channel 4 before printing Skip to channel 5 before printing Skip to channel 6 before printing Skip to channel 7 before printing Skip to channel 8 before printing Skip to channel 9 before printing Skip to channel 10 before Iprinting Skip to channel 11 before Iprinting Skip to channel 12 before Iprinting
V - W	Select stacker 1 (5 if 2560S) Select stacker 2 (4 if 2560S)

Figure 58. Character Codes that can be used with Printer Carriage Control for Record Output Files

The_LEAVE_Option

The LEAVE option is used for file positioning. It is used to specify, that no rewind operation is to be performed when a tape file is opened or closed.

General Rules:

- LEAVE can only be used with tape I/O files, either RECORD or STREAM.
- LEAVE should be specified for files that have the BACKWARDS attribute to ensure proper positioning of the file.

The_NOTAPEMK_Option

The NOTAPEMK option for tape files enables you to prevent a leading tapemark from being written ahead of the data records in unlabeled tape files.

General Rules:

- 1. NOTAPEMK may be used for tape OUTPUT files with NOLABEL specified.
- NOTAPEMK may be used with STREAM and RECORD files.

The_NOLABEL_Option

The NOLABEL option is used to indicate that no label processing is to be done for the associated file. General Rules:

- If the NOLABEL option is specified for output files, a tapemark is automatically written as the first record on the tape unless, in addition to NOLABEL, NOTAPEMK is specified in the ENVIRONMENT attribute. Labels are not processed.
- 2. If your program is to run as an inquiry program the NOLABEL option must be specified for all tape files.

<u>The_ALTTAPE_Option</u>

The ALTTAPE option is used to indicate that an alternate tape drive can be assigned to enable automatic switching from one tape drive to another.

<u>General_Rules:</u>

- The ALTTAPE option is used for multivolume tape files.
- The alternate tape drive is always assigned a symbolic device address that is one higher than the symbolic device address specified in the MEDIUM option. For example, if the symbolic device address specified in the MEDIUM option is SYS004, the symbolic device address for the alternate tape drive is SYS005.

The VERIFY Option

The VERIFY option causes a check to be performed after every WRITE operation.

<u>General Rules:</u>

- The VERIFY option is allowed only for files that are associated with a 2311 disk-storage device.
- 2. It is recommended to use VERIFY if the disk file is to be retained for re-use at a later date.

<u>The_NOWRITE_Option</u>

The NOWRITE option is used to specify that no new records will be added to the file by the associated program. This results in loading a smaller library routine, thus saving main storage space.

General Rule:

This option may only be used with DIRECT UPDATE files.

184 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

The KEYLENGTH Option

The KEYLENGTH(n) option is used to specify the length of the recorded key for I/O operations.

General Rules:

- 1. This option may be used only for INDEXED files.
- The length of the recorded key, specified by <u>n</u>, must not exceed 60 characters.
- 3. <u>n</u> must be an unsigned decimal integer constant.
- The EXTENTNUMBER_Option

The EXTENTNUMBER(n) option is used to specify the number of extents used for INDEXED files.

General Rules:

- EXTENTNUMBER (n) must be specified for INDEXED files. It is not permitted with CONSECUTIVE files.
- The minimum number that may be specified is two: one extent for the prime data area, and one for the cylinder index.
- The number <u>n</u> must be a decimal integer constant.
- EXTENTNUMBER(n) must include all prime data area extents, the cylinder index extent, and the independent-overflow area extent, if any.

The OFLTRACKS Option

The OFLTRACKS(n) option is used to specify the number of tracks to be reserved on each cylinder for the addition of new records.

General Rules:

- This option is specified only for INDEXED SEQUENTIAL OUTPUT and INDEXED DIRECT UPDATE files. It is meaningless for INPUT and SEQUENTIAL UPDATE files. If specified for these files, the option is ignored.
- 2. The number <u>n</u> -- which must be a decimal integer constant -- must be from 0 to 8.

The_KEYLOC_Option

The KEYLOC(n) option is used to specify the high-order position of the key field within the data part of each logical record in INDEXED files. For example, if the key field is to start in the second byte of the record, KEYLOC(2) has to be specified.

General Rules:

- The KEYLOC(n) option is used with INDEXED files only. It must be specified.
- 2. The number <u>n</u> must be a decimal integer constant.
- At least three bytes in the logical record must follow the last byte of the key.

File Labels

A reel of tape may be, whereas a disk pack must be identified to determine whether it contains the file to be processed. Besides a sticker on the pack or reel that identifies a volume to the operator there are also internal labels. The internal label is written, like other data, on the tape or on the disk and provides programmed identification of the files contained in the volume.

Internal labels are also used to protect files on a volume from being destroyed. For example, labels are checked to determine whether the correct volume has been mounted. Another use of labels is to specify the location of the data files. Labels also contain other information concerning files, such as expiration dates. They are processed whenever an OPEN or CLOSE statement is executed for a particular file.

There are two types of internal labels: volume labels and file labels.

<u>Volume labels</u> are used to identify the volume (tape reel or disk pack). They are written by IBM-supplied Utility programs when a tape reel or a disk pack is prepared for use. They are automatically checked each time a file is opened.

<u>File_labels</u> are used to identify a file on a volume and to specify how long a file is to be retained on the volume. When an OPEN statement is encountered for a file, the information contained in the file labels is compared against the information supplied by the job-control statements. If a mismatch is found, a message is displayed to the operator and execution of the program may be discontinued.

In our discussion, we will be concerned mainly with file labels. Volume labels are of minor interest to the programmer.

Input/Output 185

PUNCHED_CARD_AND_PRINT_FILES

Punched card, printer-keyboard, and print files cannot be labeled.

TAPE_FILES

Tape files may be labeled or unlabeled.

<u>Unlabeled_Tape_Files</u>

In the case of unlabeled tape files, neither the volume nor the file is associated with an identification. The operator must make sure that the correct volume is mounted by checking external labels. When working with multi-file volumes, the operator must also correctly position the volume at the beginning of the file in question (// FILES card).

The first record on a tape containing unlabeled files may or may not be a tapemark; however, every unlabeled tape file is <u>followed</u> by a tapemark. The last file on a volume is always followed by two tapemarks.

If the first record on a tape containing unlabeled files is not a tapemark, the record is assumed to be a data record.

If no labels are specified for an output tape file, no label checking is performed, and any labels on the output tape are destroyed. A tapemark is automatically written on the output file unless, in addition to the option NOLABEL, the option NOTAPEMK has been specified in the ENVIRONMENT attribute of the associated file declaration.

Labeled_Tape_Files

There are two types of labels: <u>header</u> <u>labels</u> and <u>trailer labels</u>. The header label precedes each file and defines it. The trailer label is written at the end of the file. It furnishes the information required to determine whether the end of the file has been reached or whether the file is continued on another volume.

Label information for tape files is furnished to the Job Control program in two consecutive control cards: The VOL and the TPLAB card.

The VOL card is simply a header card for the TPLAB card. It contains the file name and the symbolic device address and serves a diagnostic function. It is used to check whether the device assigned to the symbolic address in the TPLAB card is really a tape drive. The TPLAB card contains the file identification, file sequence number, and all other information used by the Open routine to position and identify the file.

186 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

Only one VOL and one TPLAB statement are needed for each logical file, regardless of the number of reels on which the file is recorded.

DISK_FILES

Disk files <u>must</u> be labeled, that is, the volume and the actual file must both be identified. However, these labels do not precede or follow the individual file on the disk. The file labels are contained in a special region referred to as VTOC (Volume Table of Contents).

Disk labels are also automatically written, checked, and updated by IBM-supplied programs. The correct mounting of the packs is checked by means of the volume serial number. The positioning at the beginning of the actual data on the volume is done by means of the file identification. In your program, you need only specify the filename and the symbolic device address. Switching from volume to volume for multi-volume files is automatic without any programming effort.

All information necessary to locate the data on the disk pack is specified in the job-control statements. A set of three related, consecutive control statements is used: the VOL, DLAB, and XTENT statements. The VOL and DLAB statements have the same function for disk files as the corresponding control statements have for labeled tape files. The XTENT statements contain the symbolic device address to locate the drive, the volume serial number to determine whether the correct pack is mounted, and the extent limits.

LABEL-CONTROL STATEMENTS

The label-control statements for tape and disk must precede the // EXEC statement in the following sequence:

~		~	
tor	tano	+11000	
TOT	Lave	TTTED.	

- // VOL // TPLAB
- for disk files:

11	VOL
11	DLAB
11	XTENT
11	XTENT
[//]	XTENT
	•
	•
	•

VOL_Control_Statement

A VOL (volume) control statement is required for each labeled tape and disk file used in your problem programs. It indicates the symbolic address of the device to which the volume is assigned and identifies the file by name. A VOL control statement must be followed by a TPLAB control statement if the volume is a reel of magnetic tape, or by a DLAB control statement and one or more XTENT control statements if the volume is a disk pack. The format of the VOL control statement is:

Name	Operation	Operand (s)	Comments
//	VOL	symbolic-device-a filename	address,

symbolic-device-address

The symbolic address identifies the device on which the associated file is to be read or written. (A complete list of symbolic device addresses is given in the discussion of the ASSGN control statement).

<u>filename</u>

The name of the file to be processed.

<u>Note</u>: If the symbolic device address refers to a tape drive, a TPLAB control statement is expected as the next control statement. If it refers to a disk drive, a DLAB statement is expected to follow.

TPLAB Control Statement

The TPLAB (tape label) control statement contains a portion of the tape header label for the file named on the VOL control statement that precedes the TPLAB control statement. The contents of the tape file label are shown in Figure 59. The information in the TPLAB control statement is used to check input-file tape labels or write output-file tape labels. The format of the TPLAB control statement is:

Name	Operation	Operand (s)	Comments
	TPLAB	l'label-informatio	n'

'label-information' The information in fields 3 through 10 of the standard IBM tape label (see Figure 59) for the associated file. The label information must be enclosed in apostrophes. The following information is required:

 Field	Contents	No. of Characters
3	 File identification	17
14	File serial number	6
5	Volume sequence number	4
6	File sequence number	4
17 17	Generation number (if used)	4
8	 Version number (if used)	2
9	Creation date (yyddd preceded by one blank)	6
10 1 1	Expiration date (yyddd preceded by one blank)	6

Figure 59. Label Information for Tape Files

The file-label fields required in the operand field of a TPLAB control statement must be contiguous and not separated by commas. The operand requires 51 columns (two apostrophes with 49 columns of information between them).

The standard IBM tape-file label format and contents are as shown in Figure 60.

Field	Name and Length	Description
3	f <u>ile_identification</u> 17 bytes, EBCDIC	Uniquely identifies the entire file; may contain only printable characters.
4	<u>file_serial_number</u> 6 bytes, EBCDIC	uniquely identifies a file/volume relationship. This field is identical to the Volume Serial Number in the volume label of the first or only volume of a multi-volume file or a multi-file set. This field will normally be num- eric (000001 to 999999) but may contain any six alphameric characters.
5	volume_sequence number 4 bytes, EBCDIC	indicates the order of a volume in a given file or multi-file set. The first must be numbered 0001 and subsequent numbers must be in proper numeric sequence.
6	<u>file_sequence_number</u> 4 bytes, EBCDIC	assigns numeric sequence to a file within a multi-file set. The first must be numbered 0001.
7	<u>generation_number</u> 4 bytes, EBCDIC	uniquely identifies the various editions of the file. May be from 0001 to 9999 in proper numeric sequence.
8	v <u>ersion_number_of</u> g <u>eneration</u> 2 bytes, EBCDIC	indicates the version of a generation of a file.
9	<u>creation_date</u> 6 bytes, EBCDIC	indicates the year and the day of the year the [] [file was created;
		P <u>osition Code Meaning</u> 1 blank none 2-3 00-99 year 4-6 001-366 day of year
		(e.g., January 31, 1970 would be entered as 70031).
10	l <u>expiration_date</u> 6 bytes, EBCDIC	indicates the year and the day of the year when the file may become a scratch tape. The format of this field is identical to that of Field 9. On a multi-file reel, pro- cessed sequentially, all files are considered to expire on the same day.

Figure 60. Label Information for Tape Files

DLAB_Control_Statement

The DLAB (disk label) control statement contains the disk-label information for the file named in the VOL control statement that precedes the DLAB control statement. The information in the DLAB control statement is used to check input-file disk labels or write output-file disk labels. The format of the DLAB control statement is:

1	Name	Operation	Operand (s)	Comments	רי ו
	//	DLAB	label-information	l	1

label-information

Information contained in the disk label for the associated file. Fields 1-3 of

the disk file label (a 51-character string) are punched into the DLAB statement as they appear in the label. The contents of the file label are shown in Figure uc. The character string must be enclosed in apostrophes and followed by a comma. If the label information is to be cataloged permanently, the comma must be followed by the code P followed by a blank (See <u>Permanent and Temporary Disk</u> <u>Labels</u> in this section). The remainder of the required label information, beginning with the volume sequence number, is junched into a continuation card. Therefore, column 72 of the DLAB control statement must contain a continuation punch (any EBCDIC character except blank). The information in the continuation card must begin in column 16. Columns 1-15 must be left blank. The fields in the continuation card are

Field	Name and Length	Description
	i <u>dentification</u> 44 bytes, EBCDIC	this field serves as identifier of the file. Each file must have a unique filename. Duplication of filenames will cause retrieval errors. The Model 20 Disk Programming System compares the entire filename field against the filename given in the DLAB card.
2	<u>format_identifier</u> 1 byte, EBCDIC	
3	<u>file_serial_number</u> 6 bytes, EBCDIC	uniquely identifies a file/volume relationship. [It is identical to the volume serial number of the first] or only volume of a file.
3a	<u>code_for_permanent_label</u> 2 bytes, EBCDIC	specifies that the label is to be cataloged permanently ((optional).
4	volume_seguence number 4 bytes	indicates the order of a volume relative to the first volume on which the data file resides.
5	l <u>creation_date</u> 5 bytes	indicates the year and the day of the year the file was created. It is of the form yyddd, where yy signi- fies the year (0-99) and ddd the day of the year (1-366).
6 	e <u>xpiration_date</u> 5 bytes	indicates the year and the day of the year the file may be deleted. The form of this field is identical to that of Field 5.
7 7 	<u>system_code</u> 13 bytes	uniquely identifies the programming system. The character codes that can be used in this field are limited to 0-9, A-Z, or blanks.

Figure 61. Label Information for Disk Files

separated by commas. The last field (system code, 13 characters) is optional, and if used, must be enclosed in apostrophes. The following fields are used:

Field	Contents	No. of Characters
1 1	File Identification	44
2	Format (always coded as 1)	
1 3 1	File serial number	6
3a 	<pre> Code for permanent label (optional)</pre>	2
1 4 1	Volume sequence number	4
5	Creation Date (yyddd)	5
6	Expiration date (yyddd)	5
7	System code (optional)	13

The standard IBM disk-file label (see Figure 61) is common to all data files on disk:

XTENT_Control_Statement

In addition to the VOL and DLAB control statements, the user must provide at least one XTENT control statement for SEQUENTIAL files and at least two XTENT control statements (prime data area plus cylinder index) for an INDEXED file. The format of the XIENT control statement is:

Name	Operation	Operand (s)	Comments
//	XTENT	type,sequence upper-limit, 'volume-seria symbolic-devi	e,lower-limit, l-number', .ce-address

type

A code indicating the purpose of the extent:

- 1 for prime data area 2 for independent overflow area
- 4 for cylinder index area

<u>Note 1</u>: At least one type-1 XTENT statement must be among the file definition statements.

<u>Note_2</u>: Only one XTENT statement is allowed for types 2 and 4. If type 2 is used, it must be the last XTENT statement for that file.

<u>Note 3</u>: If an independent overflow extent exists, a cylinder-index extent must also be specified.

<u>Note 4</u>: If a cylinder-index extent is specified, the prime-data extents must be on cylinder boundaries (i.e., lower limit track 0, upper limit track 9). The index extent itself may not occupy more than ten tracks.

seguence

The three-digit extent sequence number (ESN), indicating the position of the extent within a multi-extent file. The ESN may be any of the numbers 000-255. The extent sequence numbers must be specified in ascending order, but not necessarily consecutive.

<u>lower-limit</u>

The address of the beginning (lowest disk address) of the area. The address is given in the form cccchh, where cccc is the four-digit cylinder number (0000-0202) and hhh the three-digit head number (000-009). The lower-limit address must not be cylinder 0, track 1. It should at least be cylinder 4, track 0.

<u>upper-limit</u>

The address (form cccchhh) of the end (highest disk address) of the area.

<u>Note</u>: A file must not occupy the volume label area (cylinder 0, track 1) or the alternate track area (cylinders 1-3).

'volume_serial_number' An EBCDIC character string (6 characters) enclosed in apostrophes.

<u>Note 1</u>: The file serial number of the DLAB statement and the volume-serial-number operand of the first XTENT statement must be identical.

<u>Note 2</u>: If several volume serial numbers occur in a group of XTENT statements, the statements with identical volume serial numbers must be grouped together. <u>Note_3</u>: A volume serial number is assigned to each disk pack by the Initialize Disk Utility program.

<u>symbolic-device-address</u> The symbolic address of the device on which the volume containing the extent is mounted.

<u>Notes</u>:

- The symbolic-device-address operand in the VOL and first XTENT statement must be assigned to the same actual device address.
- The symbolic-device-address operand in XTENT statements with the same volume serial number must be assigned to the same actual device address.
- The volume-serial-number operand of the XTENT statement is used for controlling multi-volume processing. For INDEXED files located on more than one disk pack, multi-drive operation is mandatory.
- One disk volume may contain several files, each with its own extent. The volume serial number in the XTENT statement must be the same for all these files. The symbolic device address in the VOL statements may be different for these files, but the actual device addresses in the ASSGN statement must be the same.
- One-drive users may also use different files with different volume serial numbers assigned in the XTENT statements. They must then change disk packs before a file with a different volume serial number is opened or processed.
- If different extents are used for one set of VOL and DLAB statements the symbolic device addresses and the volume serial numbers in the XTENT statements must refer to the correct disk pack.
- All information for the XTENT statement can be accommodated on one card; the information must not be continued on a continuation card.

For examples of label-information control statements refer to Figure 62. 11 1 2 3 4 5 8 6 7 7 01 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 -4 +-**|//** JOB FIRST 1// ASSGN SYS001,X'708',T2 // FILES SYS001,1 // VOL SYS001,KEY // TPLAB 'KEY TAPE FILE 00038400010001000102 70085 71085 ' I// EXEC 1// JOB SECOND /// ASSGN SYS002, X'801', D3 SYSOO2, INPUT 'INPUT DATA FILE MULTI-VOL, SINGLE DRIVE 1// VOL I// DLAB 1SSSSSS', С 0001,70032,71033, 000000000000000 // XTENT 1,001,0011003,0011006,'SSSSSS',SYS002 // XTENT 1,003,0201000,0202009,'TTTTTT',SYS002 // XTENT 1,008,0050008,0060006,'UUUUUUU',SYS002 I// EXEC **]//** JOB THIRD // ASSGN SYS019, X'802', D3 1// VOL SYS002,OUTPUT MULTI-VOL, TWO DRIVES 'OUTPUT DATA FILE I// DLAB 1SSSSSS', P С 0001,70032,71033, 000000000000000 // XTENT 1,004,0023001,0023001,'SSSSSS',SYS002 1// XTENT 1,099,0050008,0060006,'A12BCZ',SYS019 I// EXEC

Figure 62. Example of Using Label Information Control Statements

Multi-File Volumes

The handling of multi-file volumes requires no special programming effort. All information required for locating the correct file is contained in the job-control statements.

TAPE FILES

Files on a multi-file tape reel may be labeled or unlabeled. Labeled tape files are identified by file header and trailer labels. Unlabeled tape files are identified by tapemarks, that is, a tapemark separates one file from the next.

Positioning of Labeled Tape Files

If a reel of tape contains more than one file and BACKWARDS reading is not specified, the label processing routines use the file-sequence number to position the file correctly. The file-sequence numbers in the header labels are checked against the file sequence number in the TPLAB statement, and the files on the tape are bypassed until a match is found or the end of the tape is reached. If the tape is positioned beyond the desired file when a search is started or if the file is not contained on the tape, the operator is notified. To position labeled tape files, you may also use the FILES card. Note, however, that <u>three</u> tapemarks are associated with every tape file that is labeled.

For tapes that are to be read backwards, you must specify the attribute BACKWARDS and the option LEAVE for the file to be processed to prevent the normal rewinding of the tape when the file is opened. You must also use the FILES statement to properly position the file, if it has not been properly positioned by a previously executed program.

Figure 63 shows the format of a labeled multi-file real.



Figure 63. Format of Labeled Tape File (Multi-File Reel)

<u>Positioning_of_Unlabeled_Tape_Files</u>

Unlabeled tape files are positioned on a multi-file reel in accordance with the

Input/Output 191

entries of the FILES statement, which has the following format:

Name	Operation	Operand (s)	Comments
1//	FILES	symbolic-devi skip	ce-address,

symbolic-device-address

The name of the tape drive on which the tape to be positioned is mounted. (A complete list of symbolic-device addresses is given in the discussion of the ASSGN statements in the section <u>Job</u> <u>Control</u>).

skip

The number of tapemarks to be skipped (1 - 999, counted from the load point) in order to position the tape.

<u>Note</u> that a tapemark may or may not precede the first file on the tape, while a tapemark must always follow each file.

The use of the FILES statement is illustrated by the following example.

Example:

Suppose you have a tape reel that contains unlabeled files. Each file on the tape is delimited by tapemarks as shown in Figure 64.

$\left\{ \right.$	Tape Mark	First File	Tape Mark	Second File	Tape Mark	Third File	Tape Mark	Fourth File	Tape Mark	Fifth File	Tape Mark	(
	Load Point											

Figure 64. Unlabeled Files and Tape Marks

<u>Case 1</u>:

To read the first file on this tape forwards, you need not specify a FILES statement at all. To read the first file on the tape backwards, however, you must use the following FILES statement:

// FILES SYSnnn,2

When this statement is executed, the first two tapemarks are skipped and the tape is positioned immediately behind the second tapemark. The file is then processed backwards, if you have specified the BACKWARDS attribute and the LEAVE option in the ENVIRONMENT attribute of the associated file declaration. Case_2:

To read the third file on the tape forward, your FILES statement must look as follows:

// FILES SYSnnn, 3

The first three tapemarks are skipped and the tape is positioned at the beginning of the third file.

If the first file on the tape is not preceded by a tapemark, the FILES statement has to read as follows:

// FILES SYSnnn,2

DISK_FILES

The handling of multi-file volumes on disk storage requires no special preparation, since all file labels are available when the file is opened. The positioning at the beginning of a file on a disk volume is done automatically by means of the file identification.

Multi-Volume Files

Generally, the handling of multi-volume files requires no special programming effort either. All information required for processing multi-volume files must be contained in the job-control statements and in the ENVIRONMENT attribute of the associated file declaration. The only exception is with unlabeled multi-volume tape input files.

TAPE FILES

Multi-volume tape files <u>should</u> always be labeled because end-of-volume conditions raised for unlabeled multi-volume tape input files are not handled automatically. You must handle them in your program as described below under the heading <u>Position-</u> <u>ing_of_Unlabeled_Tape_Files</u>. Note that multi-volume tape files cannot be read backwards.

Positioning of Labeled Tape Files

A multi-volume labeled tape file is always automatically positioned at the beginning of the first reel, if correctly mounted by the operator. The labels are checked by the system.

To enable automatic switching between tape units with labeled multi-volume files, you must specify the option ALTTAPE in the ENVIRONMENT attribute for the file to be processed. For the alternate tape, you must assign (by means of the ASSGN control statement) a symbolic device address that is one higher than the one specified in the MEDIUM option of the ENVIRONMENT attribute for the associated file. The ALTTAPE option saves you extra mounting time when an end-of-volume condition arises. (For an example illustrating the use of the ALFTAPE option, refer to Figure 62.

Positioning_of_Unlabeled_Tape_Files

An unlabeled multi-volume tape file is always automatically positioned at the beginning of the first reel.

End-of-volume conditions that arise during the processing of unlabeled multivolume tape <u>input</u> files, are not handled automatically by the system. You may, however, handle end-of-volume conditions for these files in your program.

On input, the ENDFILE condition is raised when the end of volume is reached. You may now use a control field you have inserted in your file to decide whether the end of file or the end of volume has been reached. When an end-of-volume has been reached, you must close the file and reopen it when the new reel has been mounted.

For unlabeled multi-volume tape <u>output</u> files, you may specify the ALTTAPE option to achieve automatic switching between volumes. For unlabeled multi-volume tape input files, the ALTTAPE option cannot be used.

<u>DISK_FILES</u>

All information needed to position a multivolume disk file correctly is contained in the job-control statements. The XTENT statements supply the necessary information regarding each extent occupied by a file. Switching from one volume to the next is automatic. It requires no programming effort on your part. However, with an INDEXED file, all volumes used by the file must be mounted when the file is opened.

PERMANENT_AND_TEMPORARY_DISK_LABELS

For every disk file to be opened, the pertinent label information must be available to the system when the file is opened.

The required label information may either be supplied in the job-control cards preceding the program to be executed, or it may already be contained as a permanent entry in the label-information area of the system disk pack where it is checked by the Open routine when the file is opened. Permanent label information may be added to the label-information area in any Job Control run.

CATALOGING LABEL INFORMATION

To identify permanent label information, the DLAB control statement must contain the code P followed by a blank in the twocharacter field following the file serial number. For example:

<u>Note</u>: If both permanent and temporary label information is specified with the same Job Control run, the control statements providing the permanent information must precede those providing temporary label information.

When processing a disk file whose label information is already cataloged, you can omit the VOL, DLAB, and XTENT statements from the job-control cards preceding the program to be executed.

The ability to catalog label information of disk files is of special importance for running inquiry programs (see <u>Inquiry Pro-</u> <u>grams</u> in this section).

DELETING CATALOGED LABEL INFORMATION

You can delete permanent labels from the label information area with the following statement:

Name	Operation	Operand (s)
1//	DELET	[[filename1,filename2,]

If the operand field is blank, all permanent labels will be deleted from the label-information area.

If the operand field contains a file name, the permanent label information for that file will be deleted.

The DELET control statement enables you to make room for new labels if the label information area is full, or if the file to which the label refers has expired.

The control statement may be inserted anywhere between the JOB and the EXEC control statements but (1) it must not interrupt the sequence VOL, DLAB, XTENT or VOL, TPLAB, (2) disk-label information statements may not appear anywhere before a DELET statement.

DISPLAYING PERMANENT LABELS

You may display all permanent labels by using the following control statement:

l	Name	Operation	Operand	İ
	//	DSPLY		

The DSPLY statement may be placed anywhere between the JOB and EXEC statements, but it must not inerrrupt the sequence VOL, DLAB, XTENT (or VOL, TPLAB).

The DSPLY statement is executed as soon as it is encountered. The information displayed consists of the filename, the expiration date, and the extents of the pertinent file.

The DSPLY statement enables you to determine which label information is permanent and to check the expiration date of your files.

Inquiry Programs

Inquiry programs which are initiated by pressing the Request key on the printerkeyboard, do not begin with a Job Control run. Therefore, all disk-label information required by the inquiry program must be provided in an earlier Job Control run as permanent labels. Labeled tape files cannot be processed by inquiry programs.

Program-Label Communication

Figure 65 shows the communication between a PL/I source program, the object program, job-control statements, and a 2311 disk drive with a 1316 disk pack.

The FILE table (I/O control) produced by the PL/I compiler somewhere contains the filename as a character string. The communication between this table and the actual file extent(s) is established by storing the extent information in the table during execution of the OPEN statement.

The VOL statement in the deck of control statements used during opening the file contains the same filename as stored in the character string of the FILE table. The symbolic device address is taken from the VOL and XTENT cards. The actual device address -- in this case that of a 2311 disk drive -- is then determined from the standard assignment or from // ASSGN statements, respectively. The serial-number field of the XTENT statement is compared against the volume label of the 1316 disk pack to determine whether the right pack has been mounted.

The remaining action depends on the type of file. For INPUT or UPDATE files, the VTOC on the disk pack is searched for a label matching the file identification entered in the DLAB statement (EMPLOYEE MASTER FILE in Figure 65). When a matching label is found, the remaining file information is checked against the label information in the VTOC, and the extent information is passed to the FILE table to allow proper addressing of the blocks to be transferred.

In the case of OUTPUT files, all existing labels in the VTOC are checked to determine whether the extents of any existing, unexpired file overlap with the extents of the file to be created. The file is opened only if there is no overlap with any unexpired file. The new label is then written into the VTOC.

If an unexpired file with the same identification as the file to be created already exists on the disk pack, the action taken depends on the file organization. If the new file is a CONSECUTIVE file, it cannot be opened. If it is an INDEXED file, it can be opened only to be extended. (Note that all extents that are required for creation of an INDEXED file and all extents that might be required later when new records are to be added, must be specified for the initial creation of the file).

In the case of CONSECUTIVE multi-volume files, one volume will be opened at a time, i.e., the second volume is opened when the last extent of the first volume has been processed, etc. Opening of the second and following volumes is automatic. Thus, no explicit OPEN statement need be given. For INDEXED multi-volume files, all volumes will be opened at once. Therefore, all volumes to be processed must be mounted at the same time.

The handling of tape-label information is similar.



Cataloging

If you have a PL/I program you frequently use, you may catalog this program into the core-image library as a permanent entry and call it each time you want it to be executed. This greatly reduces the time required for card or tape reading. When you no longer need the cataloged program, you can delete it from the core-image library and use the same storage space for other purposes.

The program used to catalog a PL/I program into or to delete it from the coreimage library, is the CMAINT (Core-Image Library Maintenance) program. Therefore, the first control statement needed for cataloging or deleting a PL/I program is always the JOB control statement with the operand named CMAINT:

Name	Operation	Operand
[//	JOB	CMAINT

CMAINT

Identifies the operation as a maintenance operation for the core-image library.

For cataloging a PL/I program, the CMAINT program uses the information furnished to the compiler by the SEGMENT cards to identify the segments to be added to the core-image library. Thus, a program to be cataloged must always be preceded by a SEGMENT card, even if it consists of only one segment. For a compile-and-execute run of a one-segment program, however, no SEGMENT card is needed.

You must make sure that the name of a segment to be cataloged is different from the name of any segment already cataloged in the core-image library, except if you want to replace an old segment.

Cataloging a PL/I Program into the Core-Image Library

The control statement used to cause CMAINT to add a program segment to the core-image library is the CATAL control statement, which has the following format:

Name	Operation	Operand
[//	ICATAL	

A CATAL statement, encountered on SYSRDR, specifies that the next program segment is to be read and cataloged from either the device assigned to SYSIPT or the relocatable area. If read from SYSIPT, it must be an <u>executable</u> object program stored on either cards or magnetic tape.

When setting up the control statements for cataloging from SYSIPT, you must consider whether or not the same device is assigned to SYSIPT and to SYSRDR. Another posibility is to catalog from the relocatable area on disk. In the following, all three methods are described:

- Cataloging from SYSIPT, with SYSIPT=SYSRDR
- Cataloging from SYSIPT, with SYSIPT#SYSRDR
- 3. Cataloging from the Relocatable Area.

<u>Cataloging from SYSIPT (=SYSRDR)</u>

Suppose you have a precompiled object program consisting of any number of program segments, which you want to be cataloged into the core-image library. The input is to be read from the device assigned to SYSIPT, and the same device is assigned to SYSRDR. The control statements required for such a job are shown in Figure 66.

/ / /	JOB ASSO EXEC	CMAINT GN SYSIPT, C	
	•	(executable object program con- sisting of any number of program segments)	
//	END		1

Figure 66. Cataloging Program Segments from SYSIPT (=SYSRDR)

Note that you have no CATAL cards here. CATAL cards are provided automatically by the compiler, one card per segment, if the option GODECK has been specified in the COPTN control statement preceding the program.

A // END card must follow the input read from the device assigned to SYSIPT.

Cataloging_from_SYSIPT_(#_SYSRDR)

The control cards needed to catalog an executable object program consisting of three segments from SYSIPT, if different devices are assigned to SYSIPT and SYSRDR are shown in Figure 67.

Control cards	/// JOB CMAINT
on SYSRDR	/// ASSGN SYSIPT,
	// EXEC
	/// CATAL
	/// CATAL
	// CATAL
	// END
	(executable object deck,
Input read	consisting of three
from SYSIPT	[segments]
	/*

Figure 67. Cataloging from SYSIPT (#SYSRDR)

For each segment in your executable object deck program you must supply a // CATAL statement on the device assigned to SYSRDR. The CATAL statements automatically provided by the compiler are ignored by CMAINT.

A // END statement must follow the control statements on SYSRDR, /* and a statement has to follow the input read from the device assigned to SYSIPT.

Cataloging from the Relocatable Area

In order to be cataloged from the relocatable area, your program must have been compiled previously. The set of control statements needed to catalog such a program is shown in Figure 68:

i //	JOB CMAINT
1 //	EXEC R
1 //	CATAL
1[//	CATAL]
1[//	CATAL]
1	•
1	 (additional CATAL statements,
1	. as required)
1	
1 11	END

Figure 68. Cataloging from the Relocatable Area

For each program segment contained in the relocatable area, you must supply one CATAL statement on the device assigned to SYSRDR. Note that, when cataloging from the relocatable area, an R must be specified in the // EXEC statement.

Executing a Cataloged PL/I Program

The set of job-control statements needed to fetch a PL/I program from the coreimage library for execution, looks as follows:

```
// JOB program-name
// EXEC
```

<u>program-name</u> The name of the root segment of the program to be executed.

When the root segment of a multisegment program to be executed has been called into main storage by the above set of control statements, the remaining program segments are successively called into main storage and executed one at a time. This is done automatically by a procedure in the root segment, with a statement having the format:

CALL OVERLAY ('segment-name');

Thus, with the above set of control statements, you can call a program consisting of any number of segments from the core-image library into main storage for execution. (Refer to <u>Overlay Facility</u> in the section <u>Practical Considerations</u> <u>Regarding Program Execution</u>).

Deleting a PL/I Program from the Core-Image Library

When you no longer need a program contained in the core-image library, you can delete it with the DELET statement, which has the following format:

Name	Operation	Operand
//	DELET	segment-name
//	DELET	name.ALL

<u>segment-name</u>

The name of the segment to be deleted from the core-image library.

<u>name.ALL</u>

Indicates that all segments whose names begin with the characters specified in the left-hand portion of the operand (name) are to be deleted from the coreimage library. The name may contain one to six characters.

If, for example, all segments in your program start with the same three characters, you can delete all segments with one DELET statement, instead of

Cataloging 197

specifying a DELET statement for each segment to be deleted.

Segments whose names begin with SYS or \$\$\$ must not be deleted. If \$.ALL, SY.ALL, S.ALL, or \$\$.ALL is specified, a halt occurs when a segment name beginning with the characters SYS or \$\$\$ is encountered.

The operand ALL must not be the only operand of the DELET statement in CMAINT programs.

<u>Example</u>:

Suppose you want to delete from the coreimage library a program that consists of five segments whose names all start with the same two characters PS, but no other segments start with the two characters. The set of control statements needed to delete all five segments of the program would look as shown in Figure 69.

| // JOB CMAINT // EXEC // DELET PS.ALL // END Ł

Figure 69. Deleting a PL/I Program from the Core-Image Library

The following sections provide you with the information you need to fully use all of the facilities of PL/I under the Disk Programming System.

(At the present stage, this section contains only preliminary information).

Inquiries on the IBM 2152 Printer-Keyboard

The IBM 2152 Printer-Keyboard can be used as an inquiry device. It is used for fast retrieval of information from disk files, with only a brief interruption of processing in progress. You just enter the name of your inquiry program on the printerkeyboard. The job in progress is interrupted while the inquiry is made.

The Model 20 DPS support for the printer-keyboard as an inquiry device consists of interrupt routines. Through the use of these IBM-supplied routines, an inquiry request entered on the printerkeyboard interrupts the job in progress, saves the status of that job, and initiates the processing of a specified user-written program. After this program has been processed as an inquiry program the interrupted program is returned from the system disk pack to main storage and its execution is resumed. The intervening program, which must be in the core-image library, is called into main storage by entering the program name on the printerkeyboard. It can occupy all of main storage, except for the part required for the Monitor, and can use any I/O devices, provided such use does not inerfere with the status of the interrupted program. This versatility enables it to perform the operations required of any program executed on the Model 20. The interrupted program is referred to as the mainline program.

INQUIRY PROGRAMS

You can write an assortment of inquiry programs and store them in the core-image library. An inquiry program specifies the operations to be performed, using the inquiry file and any other files that are necessary. These normally include only disk files from which records designated in a printer-keyboard INPUT file are to be retrieved. Note that an inquiry may be requested during the processing of a wide variety of mainline programs. If these mainline programs are operating with tape or card devices that are also accessed by the inquiry program, it may not be possible to restore the interrupted mainline program to its original status.

Some Model 20 DPS programs and certain routines in such programs must not be interrupted by an inquiry program. These programs and routines are listed in the SRL publication IBM_System/360_Model_20, Disk_Programming_System, Operating_Procedures, Form C33-6004.

The inquiry program, like any other program, requires that label information be supplied in order to open disk files to be used in the program. The disk files, of course, must be on-line at the time the inquiry is requested. The label information submitted to the Job Control program in VOL, DLAB, and XTENT statements must have been cataloged permanently in a previous Job Control Run into the labelinformation area. (Refer to <u>Permanent and</u> <u>Temporary Disk Labels</u> in the section <u>Input/Output</u>.

All programs compiled with the Model 20 PL/I compiler can be used as mainline programs as well as inquiry programs. However, programs running as inquiry programs must not use labeled tape files. To protect a PL/I program from being interrupted by an inquiry program, the job-control statement // OPTN NOINQ must be used. The PL/I compiler itself runs only as mainline program.

Note: The inquiry input and output area of the Monitor and the inquiry record are not used by PL/I. Input/output on the IBM 2152 Printer-Keyboard is through normal PL/I file processing.

USE_OF_THE_IBM_2152_PRINTER-KEYBOARD

Even though all types of file processing available with Model 20 PL/I are supported by the IBM 2152 Printer-Keyboard, its main purpose is the transfer of messages between the program and the operator.

Since messages are mostly of variable length, undefined record format has been introduced as the only record format for the printer-keyboard. If, however, with RECORD transmission, an input record does not have the same length as the variable into which it is read, the RECORD condition is raised. The transfer of messages between the program and the operator requires that the input and the output file are synchronized in such a way that the listing on the keyboard reflects the sequence in which the input and output statements have been executed. This synchronization is guaranteed if both files have the option BUFFERS(1) in the ENVIRONMENT attribute. Otherwise, read requests are issued to the printer-keyboard before PL/I GET or READ statements are executed.

The following set of additional rules applies to files that are read from or written on the printer-keyboard:

- For STREAM files, the actual length of an output record is defined as follows:
 - By an explicit occurrence of a SKIP option or format item.
 - By an implicit occurrence of SKIP(
 when the maximum record length (declared in the U option of the ENVIRONMENT attribute) is being exceeded.
 - When a GET or READ statement for a printer-keyboard file is executed, any output produced by previous PUT statements that has not been written out, is printed before the keyboard is unlocked, that is, before the input data can be typed in.
- SKIP(0) is not supported for printerkeyboard files since over-printing is not possible.
- 3. CTLASA is meaningless for printerkeyboard files.

4. Since pages are not defined on a printer-keyboard, the PRINT attribute and the PAGESIZE option are ignored for printer-keyboard files. The PAGE option or format item is treated as SKIP(3). The ENDPAGE condition cannot be raised.

Linking PL/I Programs with Assembler Procedures

In order to increase the capability and/or efficiency of your programs, you may combine programs written in PL/I with procedures written in Assembler language (in the following referred to as Assembler procedures).

For a PL/I program consisting of several procedures, the compiler automatically generates the code required for the activation and de-activation of the procedures. When writing Assembler procedures that are to be linked with PL/I procedures, however, you must write the code required for the activation and deactivation of other procedures yourself. The code you must supply corresponds exactly to the code generated automatically by the compiler for PL/I procedures.

Following, now, is a description of the code that will be of interest for you when writing Assembler procedures that are to be included in PL/I programs.

Figure 70 shows the code generated by the compiler for each procedure of a PL/I program.

entry-name	DC X'FFFF')	
1	• (
		(for n addresses of parameters)
	DC X'FFFF')	
ł	DC X'FFFF'	(for address of function value)
1	DC H'O'	(end of parameter list)
1	DC Y (ONBLOCK)	(address of On-Block)
1	•	
1	•	(code generated for the statements of the procedure)
	DC VIEFOAL	1
		(length of dynamic-storage area)
1		(entry-mane, six bytes in length)
1		(chery name, six bytes in iongen)
		(On-Block entries)
1	•	(
	DC X'7FFF'	(end of On-Block)

Figure 70. Code Generated by the Compiler for Each Procedure of a PL/I Program

DC X'4D80'	(BAS instruction to invoke the Library Call Routine)
DC Y ()	(address of called procedure)
	(addresses of arguments)
) DC Y() * / DC Y() *	(address of function value)
	(end of argument list)
*All addresses marked by an a	sterisk may also consist of a register and a displacement.

Figure 71. Code for a CALL Invoking Another Procedure

<u>Call</u>

Whenever, during program execution, one procedure calls another procedure, the Call routine PL1SCA, a member of the PL/I library, is entered.

This routine

- provides the Dynamic Storage Area (DSA)¹
- stores the register contents and the return address of the calling procedure in the DSA
- provides On-Block¹ information
- transmits the addresses of arguments
- causes the branch to the called procedure
- ¹ DSA and On-Block are discussed below in this section.

To include in a PL/I program an Assembler procedure that calls a PL/I procedure, you must yourself supply the code needed for the call.

The code generated automatically for the CALL statement is shown in Figure 71.

Arguments and Parameters

Arguments are passed to the invoking procedure by transferring the addresses of the arguments to the invoked procedure. In the invoked procedure, the arguments are referred to by names called parameters.

During transmission of the addresses, a test is performed to determine whether the addresses are absolute. If they are not, they are converted to absolute addresses. Also passed to the invoked procedure is the address of a function value that might be returned by the invoked procedure. This address is specified even if no function value is returned.

<u>Note</u>: The number of arguments of a call must be identical to the number of parameters in the called procedure.

<u>On-Block</u>

The On-Block holds all information needed about ON-conditions during activation of a procedure. Its address is contained in the code for the called procedure.

For Assembler procedures, the On-Block must only contain the following:

DC X'FF00' DC X'length of DSA' DC C'entry-name' (6 bytes) DC X'7FFF'

<u>Note</u>: The On-Block must begin on a halfword boundary.

Dynamic Storage Area

Since a procedure needs working storage for its own purposes, storage is dynamically allocated for it during activation by the Call routine; This dynamically allocated storage is freed again by the Return routine PL1SCAR, a member of the PL/I library, upon deactivation of the procedure.

The DSA is used to save register contents and the return address of the calling procedure and to hold any intermediate results used only by the called procedure. Its length is given in the On-Block of a procedure. It must have a length of at least 24 bytes. These 24 bytes are needed for internal use. To use additional dynamic storage for an Assembler procedure, you can increase the length of the DSA up to 4096 bytes. You can address the DSA via register 13. This register is set by the Call routine and reset by the Return routine. <u>Note</u>: If you use register 13 for other purposes in an Assembler procedure, you must save it and restore it later. You must not use register 13 for other purposes during activation of another PL/I procedure.

<u>Return</u>

When a procedure returns control to the calling procedure, this is done via the Return routine PL1SCAR which is entered. This routine

- restores the register contents
- frees the Dynamic Storage Area
- passes control back to the calling procedure

The code generated for a return is a branch to PL1SCAR and looks as follows:

DC X'47FO' DC Y(PL1SCAR)

For an Assembler procedure, you have to supply this return code yourself.

<u>Notes</u>:

- When combining PL/I procedures with Assembler procedures, the main procedure must always be written in PL/I; it must not be coded in Assembler.
- 2. To combine Assembler procedures with PL/I procedures, include the already assembled procedures in your PL/I source program or precompiled object program. The assembled object deck(s) (as well as any precompiled PL/I object deck(s), must be headed by a + COPY card. (For more information about the COPY card, refer to the section entitled <u>The Compiler</u>).

Rules_and_Restrictions_for_Writing Assembler_Procedures

When writing Assembler procedures to be combined with PL/I procedures, you must observe the following rules and restrictions:

<u>Rules</u>:

 An Assembler procedure may have more than one entry point. All entry names of an Assembler procedure have to be declared with the ENTRY (or START or CSECT) statement. 2. If a PL/I procedure is called from within an Assembler procedure, the name of the PL/I procedure must be declared with the EXTRN statement in the Assembler procedure. Names declared with the EXTRN statement must appear only within DC Y(...) constants.

<u>Restrictions:</u>

- An Assembler procedure used in combination with PL/I procedures must not contain any Monitor or IOCS macro instructions.
- 2. It must not contain any CIO, XIO, or TIOB instructions.
- It must not change the communication region and must not contain an XFR Assembler instruction.
- 4. The Assembler procedure must be relocatable; that is, it must not contain the NOESD or NORLD options in the AOPTN control statement, nor contain the Linkage-Editor ENTRY statement.
- When linking PL/I with Assembler procedures, the main procedure must always be written in PL/I.

Programming_Example

In order to illustrate the use of an Assembler procedure in combination with PL/I procedures, a small programming example consisting of three procedures is given in Figure 72.

The problem dealt with in the program is to determine whether the current year is a leap year or not.

The main procedure ALPHA is written in PL/I. ALPHA calls the procedure LEAP, which returns, as a function value, the letter Y or N, depending on whether the current year is a leap year (Y) or not (N). The returned letter is displayed in the E-S-T-R registers on the pannel. However, before LEAP can return its function value, it calls the function YEAR which returns to LEAP a two-digit number specifying the current year. The procedure YEAR is also written in PL/I, whereas the procedure LEAP is written in PL/I as well as in Assembler language. The two procedures are equivalent.

The Assembler and the PL/I coding for the procedure LEAP are shown in parallel in Figure 72 for comparison.

202 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

ALPHA:	PROCEDURE OPTIONS (MAIN); DCL LEAP RETURNS CHAR (1), DISPLAY (LEAP) REPLY(A);	A CHAR(1) END;);		
LEAP: 	PROCEDURE CHAR(1); DCL V,W FIXED (2,0), YEAR RETURNS PIC'99';	LEAP RA LO 	STARF BASR EXTRN EXTRN EXTRN EQU DC DC DC	0 8,0 PL1SCA PL1SCAR YEAR 9 X'FFFF' X'0000' Y (ONBLOCK)	CALL ROUTINE RETURN ROUTINE PL/I PROCEDURE TO BE CALLED WORKING REGISTER HALFWORD FOR ADDRESS OF FUNCTION VALUE POINTER TO ONBLOCK
F I I I I I I I I I	V=YEAR;		DC DC DC DC DC PACK	X'4D80' Y (PL1SCA) Y (YEAR) Y (A) X'0000' B (3), A (2)	BAS INSTRUCTION TO CALL PROC YEAR ADDRESS OF CALLED PROCEDURE YEAR ADDR OF FUNCTION VALUE PACK VALUE RETURNED FROM YEAR
 	W=V/4: IF V=W*4 THEN	 	DP CLI BNE	B(3),V(1) B+2,X'OC' L1	DIVIDE IT BY 4 TEST REST FOR 0 IF YES, LEAP-YEAR
1 1 1 1	RETURN ('Y'); ELSE	 	LH MVI DC DC	RA,LO O(RA),C'Y' X'47FO' Y(PL1SCAR)	ELSE,NO LEAP-YEAR RETURN C'Y' FOR RESULT BRANCH TO RETURN ROUTINE
 	RETURN ('N');	L 1 V A B	LH MVI DC DC DC DS DS	RA,LO O(RA) C'N' X'47FO' Y(PL1SCAR) X'4C' CL2 CL3	LOAD ADDR OF RETURN VALUE RETURN C'N' FOR RESULT BRANCH TO RETURN ROUTINE CONSTANT 4 VALUE RETURNED FROM YEAR WORKING STORAGE
k 1 1 1 1	END;	IONBLOCK	DC DC DC DC DC END	X'FF00' H'24' C'LEAPbb' X'7FFF'	BEGIN OF ONBLOCK LENGTH OF DSA PROCEDURE NAME END OF ONBLOCK
YEAR:	PROCEDURE CHAR(2); DCL DATE BUILTIN; RETURN (DATE); END;				

Figure 72. Programming Example Illustrating the Use of an Assembler Procedure in Combination With PL/I Procedures

Sterling Currency Processing Routines

Model 20 PL/I does not support Sterling. However, the Model 20 Sterling Currency Processing Routines (260-LM-015) can be linked to PL/I object programs. The linkage of these routines to PL/I programs must be done like the linkage of Assembler procedures.

For detailed information, refer to the publication <u>IBM_System/360_Model_20</u>, <u>Sterling_Currency_Processing_Routines</u>, Form C26-3605.

The DYNDUMP Routine

Model 20 PL/I provides you with a dynamic dump facility that can be called at execution time with the statement

```
CALL DYNDUMP
(variable-name [,variable-name]...);
```

This statement may be used to display the items listed in the variable list in hexadecimal notation. The variable list may contain up to 12 variables and include label and pointer variables.

The following example shows the use of the DYNDUMP routine:

DCL A FIXED (5,2), (B (20), C) CHAR (2);

CALL DYNDUMP (A,B,C);

The three items A, B, and C are displayed: A as three bytes (five hexadecimal digits + sign), B as 40 bytes (80 hexadecimal digits), and C as two bytes (four hexadecimal digits).

This feature requires a minimum of main storage.

Data Storage Mapping

This section discusses the location of a data item in storage in relation to other data items.

<u>Alignment_of_Data_Items_in_Storage</u>

The Model 20 PL/I compiler aligns all data items -- except label variables and pointer variables -- on one-byte boundaries, that is, the data items in storage are aligned one after the other without any storage stace being lost between the individual items. Only label variables and pointer variables are aligned on two-byte boundaries, that is, the first byte of a label or pointer variable is in a storage position where the address is divisible by two.

STORAGE_MAPPING_OF_ARRAYS

The storage requirement of an array is the sum of the requirements of the individual data items contained in the array, For example, the storage requirement of an array declared in the statement

DCL A(5, 4, 3) CHAR(2);

can be calculated as follows: The number of data items in the array is 5 * 4 * 3 =

60. Each data item requires two bytes as declared. Thus, the total storage requirement of the array is 2 * 60 = 120 bytes.

The individual items of an array are stored in row-major order. For the above example, this means that the items are stored as follows:

```
A (1, 1, 1)
A (1, 1, 2)
A (5, 4, 2)
A (5, 4, 3)
```

STORAGE MAPPING OF STRUCTURES

With structures, storage is required only for data on the <u>elementary</u> structure level. <u>Names</u> of major and minor structures require no storage space. Elementary items are stored in the order in which they are declared within the structure, the length of each individual item being dependent on the attributes declared for it. The length of a structure is equal to the sum of the lengths of all elements contained in it.

The starting point of a major or minor structure is the starting point of its first element.

<u>Note</u>: The pointer and label variables cannot be elements of structures. Thus, no boundary problems can appear in structure mapping.

Figure 73 illustrates the storage mapping of the structure declared as follows:



Figure 73. Storage Mapping of Structures -- Example 1

 Variable Type	Stored Internally as	Storage Requirements	Alignment Requirements
CHARACTER (n)	1 Byte per Character	n	Byte
PICTURE	1 Byte for each PICTURE Character lexcept for V	Number of PICTURE Characters	Byte
DECIMAL FIXED (w,d) 	1/2 Byte Per Digit Plus 1/2 Byte for Sign	w + 1 CEIL 2	Byte
DECIMAL FLOAT (w) w < 7	Short Floating Point	5	Byte
DECIMAL FLOAT (n) 6 < w < 16	Long Floating Point	9	Byte
LABEL	•+-	4	Half-Word
POINTER		2	Half-Word

Figure 74. Summary of Data Alignment Requirements

Explanation: Only the elementary data items B, D, E, G, I, K, and L actually occupy storage space. A, the major structure name, and the minor structure names C, F, H, and J occupy no storage space. The range of the structure names is indicated by the vertical lines in Figure 73. For the length of each data item, see Figure 74.

Figure 75 shows storage mapping of a fully declared structure. The structure has been declared as follows:

1 A, 2 B PICTURE '999V99', 2 C, 3 D CHAR (3), 3 E FIXED (5,2), 2 F FLOAT (6), 2 G CHAR (1); Figure 75. Storage Mapping of Structures -- Example 2

<u>Explanation</u>: B, D, E, F, and G are elementary data items and occupy actual storage space according to the rules listed in Figure 74. A and C are structure <u>names</u> and require no storage space. Their range is indicated by the vertical lines in Figure 75.

Two Programming Examples

This section discusses two complete programming examples:

- an example for scientific application, and
- (2) an example for commercial application.

Example for Scientific Application

The example shown in Figure 76 illustrates numerical integration of an ordinary differential equation, using the method of Runge and Kutta. Since this method can be used for numerical integration of more than one type of ordinary differential equation, a main procedure (RUKU) was written for the Runge-Kutta method, and a separate procedure (YPRIME) to evaluate a special differential equation y' = f(x,y).

Both procedures are to be compiled together and executed immediately. In addition, two decks are to be produced: a <u>compiled</u> object deck from the main procedure, and an <u>executable</u> object deck from the complete program.

The compiled object deck can -- in later applications with other equations -be used again as compiler input (headed by a + COPY card) together with a PL/I source module for any new equation.

The executable object deck can be used to solve the same problem again with different parameters.

The parameters are the starting values for x0, y0, the end value xn, and the step width h. They are read from a card. The result of each step is printed.

The differential equation used in this example is:

 $y' = 2 * y * \cot an x$

Explanation:

1 The first two job-control statements specify that the program is to be compiled, link-edited, and executed immediately. No other job-control statements are used; it is assumed that the VOL, DLAB, and XTENT statements for the two work files WORK1 and WORK2 are cataloged as permanent labels.

- 2 The COPTN statement is a compilercontrol statement. The LINK option is required so that the program can be link-edited and executed immediately. The option WORK2 specifies that two work files are to be used to achieve faster compilation. The option GODECK indicates that an executable object deck is to be provided by the compiler.
- 3 The PROCESS compiler-control statement signals that a PL/I source deck follows. The option DECK specifies that a compiled object deck is to be provided. The option SOURCE specifies that the source program is to be printed.
- 4 Comments in the form of headings are used in the program to document the requirements for the parameters as well as to indicate the main program steps.
- 5 Although the parameters X0, Y0, H and XN need not be declared explicitly since their attributes are the default attributes FLOAT DECIMAL (6), they are explicitly declared for documentation purposes. YPRIME is explicitly declared as an entry point by the RETURNS attribute.
- 6 PARAM is the file from which the parameters are read. In this case, it is one card read from a 2501 card reader assigned to SYSIPT. PARAM is by default a STREAM file. RESULT is the output file, which is printed on a 2203 printer assigned to SYSLST. It is a STREAM file, which is implied by the attribute PRINT.
- 7 As the first action, the parameters are read in.
- 8 Then, a heading is printed.
- 9 Following the heading, one line is left blank.
- 10 The step length divided by two is used within the loop that follows. To avoid repeated computation of this value (HH), it is computed once outside the loop. This saves execution time.

	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 42 45 46 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 42 45 46 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 42 45 46 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 42 45 46 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 42 45 46 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 42 45 46 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 42 45 46 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 42 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 42 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 42 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 42 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 42 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 42 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 42 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 42 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 40 61 45 56 57 58 59 40 61 45 56 57 58 59 40 61 45 56 57 58 59 40 61 45 56 57 58 59 40 61 45 56 57 58 59 40 61 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50	70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80
Ð		
2		
3		
4	1/ * THIS PROCEDURE HANDLES THE NUMERICAL INTEGRATION OF ORDINARY !!!	
	DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS USING THE METHOD OF RUNGE AND KUTTA.	*/
		┥╽┿╸╸┥┟╸╷╺╴╵
	LI AS A SEPERATE PROCEDURE. ITS NAME MUST BE YPRIME, ITS RETURN TYPE	╶┼┼┿┼┟┽┼ ╅╷╈┙
		*/
	/* THE PARAMETERS ARE READ FROM AN IBM 2501 CARD READER	╌╁╄╅╄┽┼┼┿┾┾┼
	THEY ARE THE PAIR OF STARTING VALUES XO AND YO, THE STEP-WIDTH H,	╺╉╉╂╋┽┥╋┿╽╋┥
	LAND THE UPPER LIZHIT XN IN THIS ORDER THE FORMAT OF THE PARAMETER	╺╀┨┟┼┼┼┼┾┼┼┾┤
		─₩/ /+++++++
ß		╶╁┽┼┼┽┼┊┿┊┼┥
ଓ		╶╅╎╃╅┽┼┼┼┾┊╆┥
		╶╅╄╄┽┽┼╄┼╄╇┩
ര		╶┽┽┟┽┼┼┼┾┾┤┥
0		╺╉┼╅╀┼┼┼┼┼┼┥
ക		╺╅┿┽┽┼┼┼┿┼┿┩
•	/* READ PARAMETER AND PRINT HEAD LINE */	+++++++++
Ø	GET FILE (PARAM) EDIT (XØ, YØ, H, XN) (4 E(12,5));	
8	PUT FILE (RESULT) EDIT ('X'), 'Y') (X(6), A(15), A);	
0		
0		
_	/* STEPPING LOOP FOR RUNGE-KUTTA'S METHOD */	
Q		<u> </u>
0	LIF XV >= XN THEN GO TO COMPLETE /* TEST FOR END_OF *//;	┽┊┥╾┊┊┽┅┊┿┥
A		╶┽┼┼┽┊┼┽╸╽┿┙
U		
		V/1/2//3//4//3//6////8//9/80



Figure 76. Programming Example for Scientific Application

- 11 The PUT statement that edits the values of the individual integration steps precedes the integration loop so that also the initial values of x0 and y0 are printed. Since the record length (28) specified in the ENVIRON-MENT attribute for the PRINT file is equal to the length of the two fields for x0 and y0 (12 and 15) plus one character for printer-carriage control, a new line is printed each time the PUT statement is encountered, even though no SKIP format item is specified.
- 12 A test for completion is made. > = is used instead of =, since round-off errors in floating-point arithmetic may prevent an equal compare.
- 13 The formulas used for the integration from the point (xi,yi) to

$$(x = x + h)$$
 are:
 $i+1$ i
 $k = f(x, y) * h$
1 i i
 $k_{2} = f(x + h/2, y + k/2) * h$
 $k_{3} = f(x + h/2, y + k/2) * h$
 $k_{4} = f(x + h, y + k) * h$
 $k_{4} = f(x + h, y + k) * h$
 $j_{1} = y + (k + 2k + 2k + k)/6$

Since the values of xi, yi are no longer needed when xi+1, yi+1 have been computed, the same variables used for the old values are used for the new values, i.e., there is no need to declare x and y as arrays. Since the argument xi + h/2 is used twice, namely in the computation of k2 and k3, xi is incremented once by h/2 before the computation of k2 and k3, thus avoiding duplicate computation of this expression. X0 itself can be replaced by X0+HH since the old value of X0 is no longer needed.

- 14 K2+K2 has been chosen instead of 2 * K2, since addition is normally faster than multiplication.
- 15 When the END statement of the main procedure is executed, all files are automatically closed and control is returned to the Monitor.
- 16 The RETURN statement is the only executable statement in the procedure YPRIME. Since YPRIME, X, and Y have default attributes, no DECLARE state-

ment and no RETURNS attribute are required. YPRIME uses the TAN builtin function. Note that $\tan(x) =$ $1/\cotan(x)$.

Example for Commercial Application

The programming example shown in Figure 78 is a simplified inventory problem. Different departments of a factory order different quantities of different parts (screws, nuts, nails, etc.) from a central store. If orders cannot be fulfilled because there are not enough parts available from the store or if, after fulfilling the order, less than the required minimum number of parts remains in the store, a purchase order is issued automatically.

The main file is an inventory file, called MASTER, residing on disk. It contains all information about the individual parts in the store, like part-number, number of parts currently in store, price, minimum number to be held in store, etc. This file may very well also be used by other inventory programs.

The orders coming in from the factory departments are on punched cards (DETAIL file). They are not sorted in ascending sequence by part number. Therefore, the MASTER file is accessed as an INDEXED DIRECT file, since the DETAIL records coming in in random order require random processing of the MASTER inventory file. (For rather large detail files it may be advisable to sort the detail file with the DPS Sort/Merge program and then process the sorted output against a SEQUENTIAL UPDATE INDEXED or CONSECUTIVE inventory file. However, this case is not handled in the sample program).

Records for parts that are no longer held in store are marked by a character code and deleted from the MASTER file when it is eventually reorganized.

The program produces three output files: (1) a transaction report file (REPORT), which is initially written on tape and is used later to produce a printed output report of the orders fulfilled, (2) a card file (REORDR) in the form of reorders to refill the store, and (3) an exception file (EXCEPT), which is printed immediately and contains detail records for which no MASTER records exist or for which the MASTER records have been marked for deletion, as well as any orders that cannot be fulfilled.

Since the printer is used for printing the EXCEPT file, the REPORT file is stored

208 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

intermediately on magnetic tape. The REPORT file might be used by other programs for the printing of orders or the computation of product costs, etc. Therefore, the REPORT file is labeled to make it easily identifiable. Figure 77 shows the configuration used for this example.



Figure 77. Configuration Used for Inventory Problem

Explanation:

Note that the numbers to the left of the programming example are used for reference purposes only. They are not part of the coding.

- 1 The first job-control statement specifies that the program is to be compiled, link-edited, and executed immediately.
- 2 NOINQ in the OPTN control statement specifies that the execution of this program must not be interrupted by any inquiry program. TES specifies that the tape error statistics are to be printed after program execution. NOINQ is used to ensure that the position of the tape and card file is not changed by an inquiry program.
- 3 When TES is specified, LOG must also be specified.
- 4 The 2311 disk drive, which holds the prime data extent of the MASTER file, is assigned the symbolic-device address SYS004 and the unit number 02.

- 5 The index area of the MASTER file is on the system disk pack with the symbolic device address SYS000.
- 6 MASTER INVENTORY FILE is the file identification. The numbers in columns 55 through 61 are the format (always coded as 1) and the file serial number which must correspond to the file serial number of the XTENT statement (the first in this example) for the cylinder index area of the MASTER file. The numbers in the continuation card are the volume sequence number (0000), the creation date (January 2nd, 1970), and the expiration date.
- 7 While the prime data extent is on an extra pack with the volume label INV002, the index area is on another pack, the system disk pack, to minimize disk-arm movement time when reading the cylinder index.
- 8 The tape used for intermediate storage of the REPORT file is a 9-track magnetic tape with a density of 1600 bytes per inch.
- 9 Label information for the REPORT file is the file identification INVENTORY REPORT (44-character field padded with blanks) followed by the file serial number (6 characters) the volume sequence number (4 characters), the file sequence number (4 characters), the generation number (4 characters) indicating that this is the first edition of the file, the version number (2 characters) indicating that this is the first version of the generation of this file, the creation date (Jan. 23rd, 1970), and the expiration date.
- 10 The COPTN compiler-control statement indicates that two work files are used (WORK2), that the source program is to be compiled and link-edited (LINK), and that the <u>executable</u> object deck is to be produced on the device assigned to SYSOPT (GODECK). No label control statements have been provided for the two work files. We assume that these labels are permanent.
- 11 The PROCESS compiler-control statement indicates that no <u>compiled</u> object deck is to be produced on SYSOPT (NODECK, specified for documentation purposes; it need not have been specified, since it is applied by default anyway). ATRO causes the printing of the offsets of labels and variables and the length of automatic storage. ATR causes the listing of all attributes of all variables, entry names, and file names.

- 12 Columns 73 to 80 are ignored by the compiler. In this case, they are used for sequential numbering of the cards, so that -- in case of accidental scattering -- they can easily be sorted again.
- 13 The main procedure of the program, that is, the procedure initially invoked by the system, must always have OPTIONS(MAIN) specified in the PROCE-DURE statement.
- 14 The MASTER file is declared to be an INDEXED DIRECT UPDATE file. Note that DIRECT and UPDATE are file attributes while INDEXED is an option of the ENVIRONMENT attribute. Since no new records are added to MASTER when it is updated, NOWRITE has been specified to cause loading of a smaller library routine, which saves main storage space.

The record length 41 is the number of bytes actually needed to hold all the information required for one part. It is the length of the structure MAST REC. The block size of 533 was chosen when the file was built so that a minimum of the disk extent (7 bytes per 2 sectors) is unused.

The key of each record has a length of eight bytes and starts in the second byte of each record (KEYLOC(2)). Two extents are used (see XTENT control statements), one for the prime data area, and one for the cylinder index. One track per cylinder is reserved for overflow records.

VERIFY is specified to ensure error detection when the updated records are rewritten onto disk.

- 15 The DETAIL file contains the orders coming in from the different factory departments. Only the first 25 bytes of each card are used.
- 16 Following are the structure declarations for the MASTER record, the DETAIL record, the REORDR record, and the REPORT record (TRANSACT). In order to have the individual data items of the TRANSACT record separated

by blanks when it is finally printed, "fillers" initialized to blanks, have been introduced in the record.

- 17 An invalid part number specified in the records of the file DETAIL will raise the KEY condition when the file MASTER is read. The raising of the KEY condition will result in a transfer of control to an error-handling routine. Note that, because internal names may be up to 31 characters in length, labels and variables may have explanatory names, like the labels END OF_JOB and NO_RECORD_FOUND.
- 18 The part number specified in each record of the file DETAIL is used to select the associated record from the file MASTER.
- 19 Even though building of the transaction-report record (TRANSACT) starts later -- with card STO0150 --OLD_SIZE and OLD_VALUE are assigned values here, since the appropriate variables are updated before TRANSACT is built.
- 20 The auxiliary variable WANTED has been introduced to minimize the number of conversions, saving space and execution time.
- 21 In the second format item (A(15)), a length of 15 has been specified to add three blank characters to the right of the output field. This specification is equivalent to the specification (A,X(3)).
- 22 The size of the purchase order (REORDER REC.SIZE) has been determined in either of two ways before: If the department order exceeds the number of pieces in store, the order size is computed with the formula shown card ST00121, otherwise the standard order size is taken (see card ST00126).
- 23 This statement is preceded by two label prefixes.
- 24 This is not an error message but merely a comment that the list is complete.

	Π	2	3	4	5	•	1	•	ī	01	ī	2	13	14	1r	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	23	76	27	28	29	30	31	32	33	34	3	3	37	31	31	-	4	1	2 4	3 4	4	5 4	6 4	7	10	19 5	50 5	51 5	52 5	53 5	14	55	16	75		99 (0	1	62	63	"	65	66	67	68	69	70	71	7	7	374	帀	57	6	7	78	77	80
n	1	7		1	2	э	T	T	F	2		1		rĺ	N	٧	Ε	N	т	0	R	У														Γ	Ĩ	Γ		T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	1	T	T		T	T	T	1	T	T	T	T	T	T									t	T	T	T	T	T	Í	Î	1	Î	Π	
ð	1	1		0	Þ.	TN	1	T		10	۶ľ,	1	4	a		т	E	5																	T	T	T	T	Г	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	1		T	T	1	T	1	T	1	Ť	T	T	1	1	1	1				-				T	T	T	t	Ť	1	İ	Î	1			
ত্র	1	1		L	2	3	T			1	T	T			1						Γ															1		T		T	T	T	T	T		T	T	T		1						1	T	T	T	T	T	1	1			1			-	-	T	Ì	Î	Î	Î	Î	1	Î	1			
ă	1	1		A	5	30	3	1	4	513	1	5	Ø	Ø	4	,	X	1	8	φ	2	,		Ь	3											Γ	Γ	Γ	T	T	T	T	T	t	T	T	T	T	1		T	1	t	1	T	1	T	T	T	1	T	1	1	1	1	- 1				Ì	t	t	ſ	t	Ì	1	ĺ	1	ĺ	Î	1	
Š	1	1		V	0			T	5	5	1	5	ø	ø	ø		м	A	s	T	ε	R	1														Γ		Γ	Ι	Τ	T	T	T	T	T	T	Τ	T		1	Τ	T	T	Ι	T	T	T	T	T	T	1									T	I	I	Ì	Ţ	Ī	Î	Ţ	1			
6	1	1	i	D	ц,	٨E	3		1	1	1/	1	5	т	E	R		I	N	٧	E	N	τ	0	R	У		F	I	L	E						Γ	Γ			Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι		Τ						Τ			ŀ	1	20	6	2	Ø.	20	6	1	,							Γ	Γ	C	Į	Ι	Ι	Ī	I				
-																ø	Ø	ф	φ		7	ø	Ø	Ø	2	,	7	ф	Ø	6	4						Ι	Ι												Ι								Ι			Γ			1								I		L				1			\cup	
Ø	L	1		X	тļ	Er	17		L	₫.	4	b	þ	1		ø	Ø	8	7	ø	Ø	Ø	,	Ø	Ø	8	7	Ø	Ø	ſ		1	2	ø	2	¢	2	¢	þ	<u> </u>	5		1	k	6	b	b																								L		L			L		1				
_	Ĺ	1		X	7	Ę١	ф		1	Ľ	4	Þ	Þ	2		Į	Ø	¢	4	Ø	Ø	ø		¢	Ø	9	9	φ	¢	9		,	I	N	V	¢	¢	2	1	Ľ	5	5	1	5		b	1											\downarrow														L		L	L							
8	Ľ	1		A	5	30	<u>، ا</u>	4	5	5 S	1	5	2		7	4	X	'	7	B	1	1		Τ	2		X	۱	С	Ø	1			L						ľ																		\downarrow																								
_	L	1		V	0				5	5	4	5		Ø	7	,	R	Ε	Ρ	0	R	Т				Ì					_		L													\downarrow												\downarrow				_							_		L		L	L			Ţ	1				-
0	L	1		T	Pļ	./	\ E	3	1	1	ŀ	٧	Vİ	E	N	T	0	R	Y		R	E	ρ	o	R	r		ø	ø	1	2	3	4	Ø	¢	Ø	1	¢	¢	¢		1	ÞQ	0	b 1	L	2	1	ľ	7	Ø	Ø.	2	3	ľ	7	Ø	Þ.	5	3	'	1	_		_		_							Ļ	1	1	Ţ	ļ			\square	h
~	L	1		E	K I	Ξļ				\downarrow	↓	4	_	_											Ц			_					L	L	L		Ļ		L				\downarrow	1	\downarrow			1		_							1	1			1														\downarrow	1	\downarrow			L	Ľ	
Q	Ł		4	C I	24	쾨	T N	4	V	Ч¢	ų	٩l	K	2		L	1	N	ĸ	ļ,	G	0	D	E	С	K		_						L	Ļ			Ļ	Ļ	1	1	1	\downarrow	1	1	4	_	4	\downarrow	4		\downarrow		\downarrow	4	_	_	4	4	4	4										Ļ	Ļ		Ļ	\downarrow	∔	\downarrow	\downarrow		\vdash	\sqcup	\square
O	ŧ		_	P	R	×	; E	ļ	ŝ	\$	ł	X.	2	D	E	С	ĸ	•	A	T	R	0	,	A	Т	R					_				Ļ	L	L	Ļ	L		1	1	\downarrow	+	1	4	+	-		_	_	4	_	_	4	_	4	4	4		4					_						Ļ			∔	∔	\downarrow	1		Ц	μ	\square
	L		-	_	4	+	\downarrow	+	1	∔		\downarrow	4	_		_									Ц		_	_	_	_	_			L	L	L	╞		Ļ		1	ļ	\downarrow	+	\downarrow	4	4	4	4	_	_	_		4	4	_	4	4	_	4	4		_	_		_		L		L		Ļ		Ļ	∔	↓	1	╡		\square	μ	Ц
	L	\square		_	4	╉	╀	\downarrow	+	+	4	4	4	_		_					┞				\square		_	_	_	_				L	Ļ	L	1.	1	1	1	1	1	4	1	+	╡	4	╡	_	_	_	\downarrow		\downarrow	4	_	4	4	_	_	_			_				-	ļ	ļ.	ļ.	ŧ.	ļ.	Ļ	ł		ļ	ļ	1			ļ
	H		-	_	\downarrow	∔	∔	+	∔	+	+	4	4		_	_	_						_					_		_				+	L	-	L	L	1	1	╀	╞	+	+	+	+	_	4	-	_	_	_	_	_	4	_	-	4	4		_	_				-			Į		Ļ	Ļ		ļ					ļ			ļ
	\vdash	\vdash		-	╡	+	╀	+	╀	+	+	+	+	-	\dashv		-	\vdash			\mid				μ		_		_	_,	_		-	-	╞		\downarrow	╀	╞	╀	+	╀	+	+	+	4	+	+	-	_	-	_	+	-	4	_	_	+	_		4	_						-		ļ	Ł	Ŧ		ł	+	+	ļ					
	\vdash	\vdash		+	+	+	╀	╀	+	╀	╀	-			_	_		┡			\vdash	-					_		_				\vdash	┡	┞	╞	┞	╀	╞	╀	+	∔	+	+	+	╇	+	+	+	_	-	-	-	-	+	-+	-+	+	-		-	-			L				1	ļ .	ł	ł	ł	ł	+	-	ļ	ļ				

	Ŀ	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	,	10	11	12	13	14	15	5	6 1	η	1	92	.0 2	12	2 2	3 2	4 2	24	27	28	21	30) 3	13	2 3	3	M 3	53	63	7	8 3	94	10	11	2 4	3	4	45	46	N,	48	49	50	51	52	53	54	55 5	6 5	7 5	59	60	61	62	63	"	65	"	0	68	69	70	71	72	173	74	75	76	77	70	77 1	10
_	L	1	*		S	т	0	С	κ		I	N	١v	ε		İΤ	- 0	7	2	1	F	'n	٥k	ble	; F	A	M		×	1	ľ													Ι															Ι	Ι	Γ	Γ		Γ		Γ	Γ	Γ	Π			Γ	S	Т	0	•	đ	0	4	
0		S	T	0	C	K	:		ρ	R	0	c	E	D	u	F	2 E		C)F	דוכ	· [1	C		IS		1	M	A	I	1	1		I											Ι											Τ	Τ	Т	Γ	Γ			Ι						П			Γ	S	Т	0	0	0	φŀ	2	
									D	c	L		1	*		F	h	: IL	÷		1	k	c	1		R	A	Т	1	c	,	٧Ś			1						Τ															Τ	Τ	Τ	Τ	Ι							Γ		[]				S	T	0	0	0	6	3	
ſ	Г	Γ			Γ							Γ	N	A	s	1	E	ΞF	2	7	=lı	L	. 6		R	E	c	6	F	2	,	1	J		2 le	Elc	: 1	r	,	4	ΞÌ	y le	- 1	5	T	u	P	D	A	T	ε		E	N	v		T	đ		1	L	H	1	s	Y	s	6	0	4		Î	Ĺ	S	T	0	6	d	σĺ	4	
(4)	Г	Γ	Τ	Γ	Γ									Ι	Г	Τ	Τ	Τ	Τ	Т	Τ	Τ	Τ	Т	2	3	1	1	1	Ī	1		1	DI	E		E	D	1	vk	٥h	N	2		r	F		F	1	5	3	3		4	1	T	ŀ	Ī	E	y	L	E	N	G	T	H	li	ß	5	r	ſ	ſ	S	Ī	0	6	ð.	Ø.	5	
\sim	Г	T	T	T	Γ	Π						I	ſ	I	T	T	T	T	t	T	T	Ť	T	T	K	E	V	ī	C		T	1		2	Ì	1		E	h		EI	v		1	u	M	в	E	R	1	2	ĩ	V.	E	R		-	ſ	0	F	Ē	T	R	Ā	Ċ	K	s	ſ	1	5	ĥ	İ.	İς	ĥ	n	0	0	6	Å.	-
ദ്	Т	T		T	T						Γ	Γ	D	E	7	•	J	i ı	T	1	F	L	. 6		R	E	c	0	F	2T	5	Ŀ	,	v	5	h	rľ	1	= r	J	v	1	1	1	E	D	I	u	M	1	s	Ý	Ś	1	P	r	2			1	5	Ē	F	1	2	5)	6		ľ	ľ	ľ	s	1	ŏ	6	ð	1	1	1
•	Γ	T	T	1	Γ								ε	X	C	Ε	ſ	5	-	Ī	-1	2	. Ε		P	R	r	N	7	·	E		1	1	1	1	1	EI		1	1	1	1	1	5	y	s	L	s	Ť	Ĩ	1	4	0	3	1	-	1	1	2	1)	5	ľ	Ē	Ē	t	ľ	r 1	-	1	t	S	T	0	0	6	b li	R	1
	F	T	T	T	Γ		Γ				Γ	T	R	F	0) r	1	5	Ť	=h		-		0	F	C	0		, r	Ţ	ľ	7	1	-t	5	h	r		Ţ	J,	,		1	Fh	n	T		м	1	s	v	5	0	p	Ŧ	1	c	12	6	Ī	ľ	F	ľ	4	1	h	5	H		İ	t	S	T	0		ð	j,	ăŤ.	1
		t	T	T	t	T				t-	T	T	R	E	F	k		21	Ì	Ť	Ē	1	Ē		R	F	c	ō	A	Ē	5	6	5	ł	rli	5	,h	r	F		١Ļ	7	1	1	E	D	I	u	м	7	S	¥	s	6	Ø	7		1		0	15	t	ľ	ľ	ŕ	F	ľ	Ë	۴ł		Ħ	t	Γ́ς	17	0	6	ð	1	óŤ	-
		t	t		T					T	Γ	t	T	T	T	t	Ť	Ť	t	Ť	Ť	T	T	T	F	1	F	ū	d	d		T	1	2	6	Ī			T	Ť	1	Ή	f	Ť	T	1			Ċ	Ľ	Ħ	Ĩ		•	-	1	T	T	T	ſ	ť	t	t	T	1	Ì	t	ľ	Ħ		İ.	t	Ϊš	F	0	6	ă Î	Ţ,	i	1
രി	T	T	T	T	T		Π		D	c	L	t	1	*	t	6	2 6	= (k	5	зĪт	5	8	2	Ē	Ā	T	A	T	ĩ	X	k	1	T		2	K	r li		5	N	5	1,	ŧ,	1	1										1	Ť	t	1	Î	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	ţ.	h	1	h	t	Γς	T	l.	6	6	2	6	1
Ŭ	T	T		T	ſ	Π	Π				Γ	t	1	Ť	M	1	1	3		Ţ		1	1	T	f	1	-	ľ	M					E	2	Ť	2	=	- 6	5	2 1	5	Ť,	Ţ	it	1				-						1	T	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	h	t	t	t	t 1		t	t	ς	İ	ñ	ð	Ø,	2	1	1
	Γ	Τ		Τ	Γ		Γ			1	Γ	T	Γ	T	2		1			Ī	≡ĥ	E	T	6			R		1	1	h	Ĩ.	T	T	1		1	F	5	1	۸ı		;ľ	Ť	1	7	D	1			F	F		R	F	r	16	5	1	1	G	t	h	F	I.	F	F	F	D	-		1	5	7	0		Ø.	2	2	1
	Γ	T	T	T		Π	Π					T		ſ	5		1	J.	,	-	ali		5	6	H		6	T	ľ	F	h	T	t	ľ	1	Ì	ľ	ĸ		1	- 1	1	: 1		5	f	_		5	Δ	0	T		N	u	1	į			İ.	Ī	T	ľ	F	F	Γ	ŕ		1		ſ	Ľ	S	ĥ	h		di.	2	2	1
		T	T	T	T	Γ	Π				F	t	t	T	5	1	Ī,	J.	1	4	=	ľ	1	k	H	A	lo	T	ľ	1	6		T	ť	1	t	Ť,	D		뉴	r	1		1	4	F			7	-	Ì	1		1	Ť	Ť	T	Ť	1	f	f	t	t	t	t	t		t	t I		t i	ţ	S	Ė	6			7	1	1
1		t	t	t	t	Γ	Π				F	t	t	t	5	;†	ľ	2	Ĵ	Ĵ	7	t	t	Ţ,	- 1	X	F	_	ľ	1		Ţ	,†	Ť	ľ	1	ť	1	Ť	Ť	b	o i	r le		=	٦	D	Ē	0	Η	D	T	F	c	F	t	1	t	-	t	f	t	t	f	t	t-	t-	ŀ	11		İ	t	Ē	÷	0			2	st.	1
	F	t	T	t	t	T	Η			t	t	t	t	t	2		ţ	đ	,	J.	r ,	1	t	ŀ	- 7	x	F	-	1			ť		j.		t	ť	1		ť	4	r				uİ	м	-	N	11	м	P		0			1	Ċ	7	F	ŀ	F	6	t	F	5	t	Q	E			t	2	Í.	5		d	5	s.	1
	T	t	t	t	t	T	Η			F	T	t	t	t	f	Ť	ť	Ť	ſ	Ŧ	Ť	1	t	ť	f	f		T	+	f	T	Ψ	1	Ή	Η	1	f	f	+	f	Τ	۲	T	ſ	Ŧ	Ť	4	-		-	H	0			ſ	7	+	f	ľ	ľ	٢		ľ	t	u	E	1,	n	F	×	1	ł	2	j,	5	Å		5	7	1
	F	t	t	t	t	t	Γ			F	T	t	t	t	2	1	1	5	2	5	T:	,	-	ļ	t	x	E	D	1	5		6	b†.	١Ť	1	1	t	7		t	24	5	5	-	5	1	s	г	7	F	H	•	7		1	╉	\dagger	t	t	1~	t	t	†-	F	Γ	ľ	ľ		11	~	ľ	t	ς	÷	n			21		1
	F	t	t	t	T	t	Π		-		T	t	t	t	5	Ť	ľ		r	7	Ì	1	┺	ľ	T	1x	E	h	Ľ	I.		7	5	t	1	T	ť	/	Ì	ľ			,	Ţ,	Ň	, İ	Ĭ	Ñ	, i	2	A	Ē	6					ţ,	Ē	F	F	c		Ŀ	1	1	┢╴		11			t	2	F	5		A.	7	á	1
	F	t	t	t	t	t	Ħ	F	F	t	t	t	t	t	0	5	Ī,		Ì.	1	Ū.		t	Ť,		· x	F	Т	t	t,	1	T	1	h	1	Ť	ť			ť			, ,	ľ	1		1	D	ц Ц	0	۲	-	7	1	4	1	ſ	ť	ſ	۴	Ē	٢	t	P	ľ	ţ.	ľ	1	11		1	† 1	5	T	5				1	1
	F	t	╈	t	t	t	Ħ			t	t	t	1		Ī	1	-	r.	Ì,		Ē		t	ľ	ť	ľ			F) E		r			H	4	5	t	Ì	, li	zh		1,		7	1	÷	-	-		H	ĥ	Ԡ	1	┫	╈	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	t		t-	┢╌		t t			•	ŝ	F	0		i.	Ť	1	1
	F	t	T	t	t	T	t	Ī.	F	t	t	t	f	Ť	2	5	T	J	,		RI	ľ	2	1		ÍA	R		Ī	E		Ĭ.	Ť	Ť	t	1	Ì	ſ	5		Þ.	Ť	ţ,	j,		M	R	F	0	Η		1	+		1	-	t	t	t		t	1	t		t -	ł	t		[]		1	ť	ζ	ŀ	n			1	0	1
	T	t	T	T	t	t	T		T	t	t	t	t	t	12		ľ	s	r	ź	Ε	Ť	Ì	Ţ,	2	1		1	Ľ	ţ.		T		a†	ſ	Ť	Ť	1	Ļ	Ï	5		, i	Ŧ	T	0	F		0	٥	n,	Ē	D			it	t	t	t	t	t	t.	1	┢╴		t	1-	t	i 1		1		c	F	ñ		Į,	4	à	1
l	-	T	T	T	T	T	t	T	T	T	t	t	t	T	2		k	2	zh	DI	ει	₅	T	Ċ	:				1	1	2	21)	Ĩ		T	T	Ţ	1	٤	1	2	2) F	-	P	Ť	N	n	н	A	F	ρ	Ţ		7	1	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	-	t	t	ŀ	11			t I	S	T	0		πÌ,	21	1	1
	F	1	t	t	t	t	T	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	f	Ť	Ť	Ť	1	Ŧ	Ť	1	T	T	Ť	Ť	T	T	ľ	T	1	ť	۲	Ħ	t	t	ť	Ť	1	f	Ť	1	1	Ť	1	ť	1	-	Η	۲			Ť	1	+	+	t	t	t		t	t		-	1-	h	1	r	i			1	ľ	1			Ť	f	4	1
	F	t	1	T	t	t	1	Γ	T	T	t	t	T	t	t	1	1	1	t	t	1	T	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	T	t	1	t	1	Ť	t	1	t	T	1	1	T	t	1	1			Η	Η	H	1	1	1	+	╋	t	t	t	T	t	t				h	t		T I			† 1	t-	ľ		f	t	t	t	1
	r	T	Ť	T	t	t	t	Γ	T	t	t	t	t	t	t	T	1	1	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	1	T	1	1	1	t	t	T	t	T	1	t	T	t	1	1	-			Η	H		1	┥	1	†	t	t	t		t	t	H		-	-	1-		ĩ Ì	-		11	t			Ì	t	t	t	1
	r	T	t	T	T	T	t	Γ	Γ	T	Ì	T	t	Ť	t	Ť	T	T	T	t	T	Ť	T	t	T	t	t	t	t	t	ľ	T	1	1	T	t	t	T	t	t	1	Ť	T	t	1	1	1				H	1	1	1	1	\dagger	1-	t	t		t	t	Ħ	-			t		í Í		ľ		1	ĺ		ĺ	1	Ť	t	1
	Ľ	1	2 3	4	5	6	,	•	,	10	n	1	2 1:	3 14	4 1:	5 1	6	17 1	•	19	20	11 2	2 2	3 2	42	52	27	2	2	3	93	n 3	2	13	M	63	6	7	0 3	7	0	n 4	24	34	4	45	*6	47	40	47	50	51	52	53	я	55	\$ 5	9	59	60	61	62	63	4	45	**	ø	48		70	n	72	73	74	75	76	7	17	Ť	1

Figure 78. Programming Example for Commercial Application, Part 1 of 3

1	2	3	4	5	6 7	•	,	10	n	12	113	1	41	5 1	6	17	18	19	20	21	22 2	32	4 2	52	6 2	72	18	19 3	0	31	32	33	34	35	36	37	38	39	10	41 4	(2)	13 4	44	15 4	64	7 44	45	50	51	52	53	я	55	56 5	7 9	59	60	61	62	43	4	56	"	7 4	•	"	07	17	2 7.	3 74	173	5 76	""	77	•
_	L						L				1		F	2	E	o	R	D	E	R	-	24	k		⊥		4	1	×		P	u	R	C	н	A	s	E	- (ol	R	Die	Ξŀ	2	F	۱E	c	0	R	D		×	/	_															S	T	0	¢	¢	ple	£
													12	2		N	u	М	в	E	R		1	C	1	1		2		d	8	1					1	×	1	P.	A	RÌ	r	ŀ	٩L	1	16	ЗE	R		×																	Ι	S	Т	·lo	¢		b	4
													1	2		N	A	M	E		T	Ι	I	C	:	-1/	A	2	d	1	6)					1	×	1	P	A	R	r		14	1	1 E		Τ		*	11			L							T		Τ	T	Τ	Τ	Τ	5	зT	C) (Ø	1	ų
	Ι		Π		Τ				I				12	2		5	I	z	E		Τ	Τ	Τ	1	p	tk	C	'	9	9	9	9	9	1	,		1	ŧ	-	5.	I.	z	E	1	5	-	R	2 E	0	R	Ð	E	R	,	e /						Τ	Τ	T	ſ	Τ		Т	Τ	S	jΤ	-0		blø	6	4
	Τ		Π		Τ	Τ		ŀ			Ι	Τ	1	2	Ι	F	r	L	L	EI	R	Τ	Τ	6	1	1	4	2		(2)		I	N	I	Т	T	ď	1	Τ	Τ	ī	T	T	Τ	Τ	Т	Τ	Γ		Π			Ţ	Т					Τ	Τ	Т		T	Ţ	Τ	Τ	4	T	-IC	2	10	bli	H
	Τ	Π	Π		Τ	T	Ţ	Ι	Ι	I	T		2	2	Τ	v	A		4	E	Τ	T	T	F	>)	: (c	•	5	*	×		×	×	9	٧		9	ġ	1		1		Ī	1	1L	.u	E		0	F	Π	Р	ul	20	н	A	s	ε	-	0		DE	R	2	Τ,		1	9	T	-10)a	10	5	4
	Τ	Τ	Π	T	Т	T	Γ	Ι	Γ		1		Ī	rie	R	A	N	5	A	cŀ	r	1	517	r /	1	rh			Τ	T	1	×		T	R	A	N	5	4	cŀ	T	1	DI	N	1	2 6	EC	0	R	Ь				EI		5	F	Ы		*	Τ	Τ	T	Τ	T	T	Т	Т	5	зhт	· c) 6	1	6	5
	Τ	T			T	T	Γ	Τ		Г	T		2	2		NI		4	в	E	2	T	T	6	2	-14	1	2	1	l	8)		T	1		1	×	1	P	A	R	r	1	VL	1	16	BE	R		×	1			T	Т	Γ	Π				T	T	Τ	T	T	T	T	5	T	-10	1	50	5	
	T		Π		T	T	Τ	Τ	T		Τ	Γ	12	2		F	I		L		1	T	T	1	:	-	4	2	1	1	4	ì	1	I	N	I	T	T	1	1	1	1)	ſ		ſ		T	T	T				1	1	Τ						Ť	T	T	T	T	T	T	C	5	rlr	h	10	b	ļ
	T		Π		T	T	T	t	T	t	t	Т	2			N	A	M	F	1		t	T	1		ų,			t	7	4	6	١	1	1	1	1		۲	P.	Δ		ŕľ	7	J.	1	4	∎	¥	1	t	H		1	T	1					1	1	1	T	t	T	T	T	6	1	rlc	1	đ	5	1
-	t	1	H		T	t	t	t	t	T	T	T	2		T	F	ī		,		2	t	t	1	2	J.			ľ	7	1	Ī	4	t	N	T	T	1	ſ	ī	Ť	ī	j	ľ	Ť	Ť	T	1	ľ	ľ	T				T	1	Π				1	1	t	T	t	t	1	T	C	h	ſ	1	d	j.	
	t	1	Ħ	Ħ	1	T	t	t	t	t	t	t	1	,	1		н		N	6	7	t	t	1				1	1	1		1	_	q	R	B	i	1	۲	1		ľ	- 1	5	٨,	ي اد		Jr.	T	1,	0	N		¥.	1	T		Π	Π		+	t	t	T	t	t	t	T	1	1	-Tr	1	d	Б	1
-	T	1	Ħ		1	t	T	T	t	T	f	T	1	ī	1	D	L	D		S	r	ZF		ľ		1	p	rla	c	1	1	z	z	z	z	9	B	51	ľ	Ť	1		1	2	1	Ť	Ť	i.	M	B	F	D		<u>n</u>	-	F	Δ	p	T	5			1	T	t	Ť	T	T	C	17	r lo	1	J.	j.	,
	T	1	Ħ		\dagger	T	t	t	t	t	t	t	Ī,	,	T	n	,	ĥ		V	<u>م ا</u>	Ţ	16		+	t			-	1	1					9	v		5	٥ľ	1		ť	/		1	5	5	Ţ	Ī	•	1		F	1	je		ρ	À	D	тİ			1	t	T	+	T	6	1-	Ť	1	1.	1	•
-	T	1	H		╈	T	t	t	t	t	t	t	1	5		F	7	Ĩ		1	2	T		╹	╈	ť	~ i	1		Ь	1	1	2	î	-	Ŧ	Ň	r h	r	ĭ	ī	4	ť	1	Ĩ	Ť	T	1	1	ľ	f	FI		7	╞	Ŧ		H			Ť	4	ť	Ť	t	1	+	t	Ĭ	H	1) Å	J.	5	
	t	t	H		+	t	t	\uparrow	t	t	t	t	6	5	ť					è	,	,		╈	$^{+}$	f		ľ	7	1	1	7	7	7	7	â	R	ï	Ή	٩ł	1		,		Ľ		h	1.	IM	e	F	D	-	0	ŧ	C	6	D	Ļ	c			1	t	t	t	+	╈	c	1	r la	1	Ľ	Ť	
-	+	t	Ħ		t	+	t	t	┢	t	t	┢	t	5	1	M	F		1	2				-	┥	ľ	Di			1	1	*	*		~	2	v			٥ľ	1	1	ť	/								ſ.		-		, E	ſ	6	Å	0	,				,†	ŀ	╈	+	6	1	Ť	1		۶Ť	•
-	1	1	H		╈	t	t	t	t	t	t	┢	1	5	ť	F	T		-	T.		ť	-16		╋	ť					1	î	ñ	ĩ	7	7 7	Ň	ŗ	r r	1	1	1	ť	1	ñt.	ť	Ŧ	-	1-	ľ	n	5	4	-	T	Ŧ	┢	-	٣	Б	Ť		ť	ť	t	+	╈	$^{+}$	6	Ŧ	Ť	17	14	5	1
	╈	t	H		+	+	t	t	+	t	t	t	6	1	1	n	Ď	ħ	F	0	┺╋	\dagger	+	╉	╈	ť	r	j,				1	1	2	1	-	1	1		ч				- 1	5	Η.		1	10		0	H		1	+	╋	┢				+	+	+	╈	t	+	╈	+		1	ď	14	t	í.	
	+	+-	Ħ		$^{+}$	+	t	\dagger	t	t	ϯ	╈	1		ť	F	T		-		5	╉	╉	+	+	ť				D		1	2	1	4	;	M		r	7	7	4			ì	ť	14	'r		F	r	Н	×.	+	+	+	┢	Η	Η		+	+	+	t	╉	╉	+	+	6	1	Ť		j,	51	l
	+	+	H	H	╈	╈	t	t	┢	╈	t	$^{+}$	1	,	1		Ê	-	2				╈	t	╈			7	-		2	1 U	<u>*</u>	4	-	1	7	1	+	4	+	+	+	+	ሞ	╋	╋	╈	+	+	+	+	-		+	+	┢		Η		+	╉	╉	+	╉	╉	+	÷	c	t	Ť	Ŧ	t	745 6	i
	+	╉	ŀ	\vdash	+	+		t	1,	╉	\mathbf{t}	1	1	닉	2	7		-	,	R	쎾		× ·				-				2	"	<u></u>	R	_	H	4	1	H	1	,			╈		1	t	+			Ļ	,	0		+	1	\vdash	Η	Η	\mathbf{H}	╉	╉	╉	+	╉	╉	+	+		#	ť	4	17	#	
-	+	+		$\left \right $	╈	+	۲	f	+	╀	ť	T,		1	╡	Ē		9	늵	뒤		1		ť	7	_	+		5		2		Ч	2	5	ע	+	백	4	×1	4		4	-	4	Ŧ	-	+	4	r	ť	H	Y		ľ	Ŧ	\vdash	$\left \right $	Η	Η	+	╉	+	+	+	+	+	+	ľ	#	t,	10	1	Æ	
	+	╈	H	$\left \right $	+	+	╉	+	+	┢	ľ	f	1	1	4		Ч	+	-	쒸	1	백	4	╉	μ	7	ł	4	4	Η	-		-				┥	+	╉	+	┥	┥	+	+	+	+	+	╉	+	+	\vdash	+	Η		+	╉			Η	H	╉	╉	+	+	╉	+	╉	+	P	Ψ	۴	Ή₹	μ v	4	•
	+	+-	+	┝╺╋	+	+	+	╋	+	╋	╋	+	╀	╉	+	-		-	+	-	+	╉	+	+	+	+	+	-+	-+	-	-		-		-		-	╉	-	+	-+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	╉	+	+	\vdash		4	+	+	-		H		-	-+	+	╋	+	+	+	╉	╉	+	+	+	╋	+	-

	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 58 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 7 48	69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80
	/ * PROGRAM ACTIVATION */	5700100
	OPEN FILE (REPORT), FILE (DETAIL), FILE (REDROR),	ST00101
	FILE (EXCEPT), FILE (MASTER);	ST00102
	ON ENDELLE (DETAIL) GO TO ENDOPE JOB	ST00103
\bigcirc		5700104
-	/* TRANSACTION HANDLING */	ST00110
Г	TRANSACTION-READ: READ FILE (DETAIL) INTO (DET-REC).	STOOL11
(18)	READ FILE (MASTER) INTO (MAST-REC) KEY (DET-REC. NUMBER):	ST00112
0-	IF DELETE - 'D' THEN GO TO RECORD DELETED:	ST00113
	RE-ORDER-INDIC = ''; /* RESET REORDERING INDICATOR */	ST00114
(1)	OLD-SIZE - MAST-REC.SIZE: OLD-VALUE - MAST-REC.VALUE;	ST00115
$(\widetilde{20})$	WANTED = DET-REC SIZE: /* CONVERT TO FIXED (5.0) */	ST 00 116
\cup	IF WANTED>MAST-REC. SIZE THEN DO ; /*NOT ENOUGH ITEMS AVAILAB	LE # / ST 00117
	PUT FILE (EXCEPT) EDIT (DET-REC. ORDER, 'ORDER SIZE GREAT	ER STOD118
	THAN INVENTORY. ONLY , HAST-REC. SIZE , PIECES DELIVERED)	ST00119
(21)	(S KIP, A (15), A, F (6), A)	ST00120
Ŭ	REORDER-REC.SIZE - WANTED + ORSIZE - MAST-REC.SIZE;	ST00121
	WANTED - MAST-REC.SIZE: MAST-REC.SIZE - 0;	ST 00122
	GO TO PURCHASE: END;	5T00123
	MAST-RECSIZE - MAST-RECSIZE - WANTED:	ST00124
	IF MAST-REC. SIZE - CHINIM THEN GO TO UPDATE-HASTER:	ST00125
	REORDER-RECISIZE = ORSIZE;	ST00126
	/* PUNCH A PURCHASE ORDER */	ST00127
(22)	PURCHASE: REORDER-RECONDER = DET-RECONDER;	ST 00 128
U	REORDER-REC. NAME - HAST-REC. NAME;"	ST00129
	REORDER-REC VALUE · REORDER REC SIZE * MAST REC PPP.	ST00130
	WRITE FILE (REORDR) FROM (REORDER REC);	5700131
	RE - ORDER - INDIC = (**);	ST00132
	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 17 20 21 22 22 24 25 24 27 28 29 30 31 22 33 24 25 34 37 39 20 4 1 22 34 25 34 37 39 20 4 1 24 24 4 25 40 47 40 45 50 51 52 53 54 55 55 53 54 55 55 55 54 54 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56 56	69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80

Figure 78. Programming Example for Commercial Application, Part 2 of 3

[I.	2 3	4	5	6	7	8 9	1	011	12	13	14	115	10	5 17	711	8 15	92	02	1 2	2 2	3 2	4 2	5 24	6 2	7 2	8 2	9 3	ò 3	31 :	32	33	34	35	36	37	38	39	40	41	42	43	4	45	46	47	48 4	9 5	0 51	52	53	54	55	56	57	58	59 6	6	1	26	3 6	1 6	5 6	•	7 6	6	,	07	i n	73	74	75	76	77	78	79	80
[Ι	Τ	Ι			Τ	7	ή,	ŧ	Ц	F		A	Т	E		1	14		i T	E	Ē	Σ	F	- 1	1	. 6	=	,	ŧ	/										ļ					Ι	Τ	Ι	Ι	Τ							Ι	Ι	Т	Τ	Τ	Τ	Т	T	T	T	Ţ	T	Τ	S	T	0	Ø	1	4	Ø	
	1	J F	ס	A	T	E	- ^	1	S	17	E	R	2		2	1A	s	1	•		۱		:].	V	1			1	-		=		М	A	s	r	_	R	E	c		s	T	z	εĮ		*	F	P	P	;	Γ					Ι		T	T	Τ	Ι	Ι	Τ	T	Γ	Τ	Τ	Γ	S	Т	0	Ø	1	4	1	
				Γ			R	? E	N	R	I	7	E		F	1	L	. ε		1	1	14	19	5	· E	Ē	2		1	F	R	0	М		(M	A	s	Г	_	R	E	c)]		ĸ	E)	y	1	Þ	Ē	т	_	R	Ε	c	. /	VL	1	16	3 6	R	2)			Ι	Ι	Ι	Γ	S	т	0	φ	1	4	2	
[1	+		E	1	II	L	Þ		7	F	2 4	I	15	5 A		:h	1	: 0	7	4	•	2 E	E	р	D	R	т		R	Е	c	o	R	D		*	1					<u> </u>								I						I	ľ					Γ	S	H	0	ø	1	5	Ó	
							7	ſ	A	N	s	A	c	7		IN	<u>l</u> L	1	1	36	E	2	=		I	DE	h	٢.		R	E	c		N	u)	H	В	E	R	;																							I						Γ	S	Т	0	Ó	1	5	1	
			1				T	F	2A	N	s	A	C	7	·	N	IA	4	1 E				3	•	h	1/		31	r.		R	E	С		N	A	H	E		1																	1												L	S	Т	0	φ	1	5	2	
							C	1		N	G	,			٧	VA	N	1	E	EI);							1											1																															S	Т	0	Ø	1	5	3	
					\square	_	N	I	۲	4-	S	ĮI	Z	E				ŀ	14	1	à T		<u> </u>	۱E	ΞC	:		5		z	E	;				_																																		S	Т	0	Ø	1	5	4	
	_					1	N	IE	Ľ	-	V	A	L	u	ε		2	1	1/	19	۶þ	·	. F	₹E	E C	ŀ	h	1	Į.	L	4	Ē	;			_		_			_		1														1	1			1		ļ.		L		1			s	Т	0	Ø	1	5	5	
		_			\square	4	7	F	2A	N	s	A	c	7		C	F	2I	ŻE	F	2	=		1	2E	:þ	•		<u>R</u>	E	c		Ó	R	D	E	R	i					1			_					L	L																	L	5	Т	0	Ø	1	5	6	
						\downarrow	M	IF	ĮI	T	E	Ĺ	F	I	L	.JE		4	F	۲E	F	p		γþ	1		F	F	20	2	4		1	τ	R	A	N	<u>s</u>	4	cţ	т)	4		_													1			1	1		∔	1	Ļ			\bot	5	Т	0	Φ	1	5'	7	
		1	_	-	\square	4	G	c		Į	0	1	T	R	A	1	IS	5 A	4	17	1		<u>) r</u>	4-	. r	2 6	1	4	2	il				_			_	\downarrow	_	_					_	_	·	\downarrow		\perp				L			1	1	1	1	1	1	Ļ	Ļ	1	1	1		L	s	T	0	Ø	1	5	8	
\sim	4	4	4	E	R	R(2	2	2	A	s	E	Ŀ		F	2	1 F	۶þ		h	1	1	16	3 E	F	2	1	1	2	r	_	oļ	N		M	A	<u>s</u> †	T	E	R	_	F	I	ц	E	-	0	2	F	E	L	E	Т	E	D		×	1	ļ	+	1	1	Ļ	Ļ	1	∔	1		\downarrow	S	Т	0	Ø	1	8	þ	
23)	1	40	<u>가</u>	R	E	c	DIF	۱	4-	F	p	ļu	In	D	4:	1	A	₹ļ£	Ę	: c	ļ	<u>s I</u>	<u>)</u> -	ļI		÷	4	印	<u>r</u> le	Ę	D	,	_	Р	ш	т		F	I	ьļ	Eļ	_	4	Eļ	X	cļ	EĮ	21	ψ	\downarrow	E	D	Ľ.	T		4	DĮ	Ξļ	rļ.	- 1	2 E	= c	ŀ	4) F	۲	¢	R	4	S	Т	0	Ø	1	8	1	_
ļ	+	+	+			-	ľ	F	A	R	T	1	N	lu	M	(E	3	F	2	1	49	ф	1	0	<u>1</u>	4	ŀ	44	1	5	T	E	R		F	I	L	Еļ	·	4	Q	R	DI	Εļ	R	_	c/	1	ιc	E	L	Ε	D	<u>'</u>	1	_	-	4	1	Ļ	1	1.	1	Ļ	Ļ	1	1	1	Ļ	s	T	0	Ø	1	Bļí	24	
	-	+		1	\square	+		4	S	K	1	P	4,	A	44	1	15	51)	4	¥4	1	Цį	1	+	+	1	+	+	+	4	-	4					_	4	-	-			+	+	4	4	_	_		+			-	L			+		-	+		+	\downarrow	1	\downarrow	+	+	+	∔	s	T	0	Ø	1	₿¦	3	
പ	+	+	+	+	H	+	G	0	4	Þ	0	4	7	F	A s	¥٢	45	54	4	:41	μ	ιþ	까	4-	<u> </u>	S E	ψ	ψ	4	i	-	╡		_	_	-	+			_	_	_	+	\downarrow	4	_	_	+	+	+	ļ	-	ļ	L	_		+	+	-	4		1	ļ.	+	Ļ	1.	+	+	∔	S	Т	0	Ø	1	8	4	
29	4	Eh	1	<u>-</u>	0	F.	- J	C	P	4:	_	P	ľ	17	-	F	1	ιļι	E	-	₽	E	¥	Ľ	E	Ŧ	2	-1)	4	4	E	D	I	Т	-	Ц	4	Εļ	N	D	-	0	F	-ŀ	J	0 1	B	μ	4	#	S	K	1	ρ		4	3	4	ł	4	4	1	Į.	+	Ŧ	+	+	+	+	S	T	0	Ø	1	94	4	
	4	EN	٧P	4	H	+	+	╀	+	┞	╞	╞	╀	+	╞	╀	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	╞	+	+	+	╇	+	+	-+	-	_		_	-	_	-	-	-	_	_	\downarrow	-+	-	+	+	+	+	+-	Ļ	-				_	÷	+	ł	+	+	╀	╀	∔	+	\downarrow	+	╋	╀	+			$\left \right $		+	4	
	/ [*	*	+	+	$\left \right $	4	+	+	+	╀	╀	╀	╀	+	╀	+	╀	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-			-	_	_	+	+	+	-	-	+	-	+	-	+	+	╀	+			╞			_	+	+	+	+	+	+	╀	+	+	+	+	+	╀			$\left \right $	$\left \right $		+	4	
	+	+	+	+	$\left \cdot \right $	+	+	+	╀	╀	╀	╀	+	╞	╉	╀	╀	+	+	╉	+	+	+	╀	╁	+	+	+	╉	+	-		_	_	-	-	-	+	-		-	-	+	+	-	-		+	╀	-	-			Ц	_		Ŧ	ł	+	+	+	+	ł	ł	+	+	+	+-	╀	+			\mathbb{H}	-	╉	+	
	+	+	+	╋	$\left \right $	+	+	╉	╀	╉	╀	╉	┝	╀	╀	╀	╉	+	+	╉	+	╀	+	╈	╉	╉	╉	╉	+	+	+	-	-	-	-	+	-	+	+	+	-	-	+	-	┥	+	+	+	╀	+-	┝	┝	-	H		-	+	+	+	╀	+		╀	+	+	+	+	╀	╀	-		$\left \right $	$ \cdot $	-	+	+	-
	+	+	╀	+	H	+	+	+	+	╉	╀	╀	╀	╀	+	+	╉	+	+	+	╉	╉	+	+	+	╉	+	╉	+	+	-	-	-	-	+	-	-	+	+	+		-	+	+	+	+	╉	+	╋	╋		+-	-				+	+	-+	+	+	╀	+	╀	ł	╀	+	╉	╀	┢			$\left + \right $	-	-+	+	
	+	+	╉	+	H	+	+	+	╀	╀	╀	╉	╀	╋	╀	╉	╉	╉	+	╉	╉	┢	+	╉	╉	+	╉	╉	╉	┥	┥		-	-	┥	+	+	+	┥	+	-		+	╉	+	+	+	+	╀	┢	┝	$\left[- \right]$	\vdash	Н		-	+	╉	Ŧ	╉	╉	╀	╀	╀	╉	╀	╉	╀	╀	┢	-	┝╶┥	\vdash	-	+	+	-
	+	+	╈	╋	+	-	+	╉	+	╋	╀	+	╀	+	╉	+	+	╉	+	╉	╉	+	+	╉	╉	+	╉	╀	╉	+	┥	+	+	+	-	┥	-	+	┥	+	-		╉	╉	+	+	╉	+	+	┢	-	\vdash		\vdash			+	ł	+	ł	╀	╀	╀	╉	╉	╉	╉	╉	╀	╀	-	$\left \right $	$\left \right $	+	+	╉	-
	+	+	+	╋	+	+	+	+	+	╉	+	+	╀	╀	╉	+	+	╉	╉	╉	╉	+	+	╋	╉	+	╉	╉	╉	+	┥	-	-	+	+	+	+	+	┥	+	+		+	+	-	+	+	+	┢	+-	\vdash	$\left \right $	\vdash	Η		-	ł	+	╈	╉	+	╉	╀	╉	╀	╀	╉	+	╀	┢	\vdash	\square	$\left \right $	+	+	+	-
	+	+	╋	+	+	+	+	+	╉	╉	+	+	╀	+	╉	+	╉	╉	+	╉	+	+	$^{+}$	╀	╋	+	╉	╉	╉	┥	+	+		-	-	+	ſ	╉	┫	+	+	┫	╉	+	+	╉	┽	╉	╀	╀╌		H	\vdash	Η		+	+	+	╉	╉	╀	+	+	╀	╀	╀	╉	+	+	\vdash	-	+	\vdash	+	+	+	-
	+	-+	+	+	H	-	+	+	+	╉	+	+	╀	+	+	+	+	╉	╋	+	$^{+}$	+	╉	+	╉	+	$^{+}$	╉	$^{+}$	┥	+	+	-		┥	1	+	┥	+	+	┥	+	+	+	╉	╉	+	╉	+	+	-	$\left \right $	$\left \right $	\vdash		+	+	+	t	+	╉	╋	+	+	+	+	╉	╈	+		Η	-	\vdash	+	+	+	-
	╉	+	+	+	+	$\left \right $	+	$^{+}$	\dagger	\dagger	$^+$	+	\dagger	$^{+}$	$^{+}$	\dagger	$^{+}$	$^{+}$	+	\dagger	\dagger	+	$^{+}$	$^{+}$	\dagger	+	\dagger	╈	+	┫		-			-	-	+	+	┫	+	+		╉	╉	+	+	╉	+	╈	┢		H		Η	-		+	t	t	+	+	+	╀	$^{+}$	t	╉	╉	+	+	+	Η	$\left \right $	\vdash	+	+	+	-
																									1	1	1	1		- 1	- 1	- 1	. 1	- 1	- 1	1	- 1	- 1	- 1	- 1	- (- 1		•		1						. 1	. 1										,			,						- 1	,		

Figure 78. Programming Example for Commercial Application, Part 3 of 3

Appendix A. Definition of Terms

<u>Absolute address</u>: (1) an address that is permanently assigned by the machine to a storage location. (2) a pattern of characters that identifies a unique storage location without further modification.

<u>access method</u>: any of the data management techniques available to the user for transferring data between main storage and an input/output device.

action specification: in an ON statement, the ON-unit or single keyword SYSTEM, either of which specifies the action to be taken whenever an interrupt results from the raising of the named condition.

<u>activation</u>: (1) initiation of execution of a procedure. A procedure is activated when it is invoked at its entry point; (2) opening of a file to access it.

<u>active</u>: the state in which a procedure or file is said to be after activation and before termination;

<u>actual device address</u>: address specified in the ASSGN job-control statement. Includes attachment point, unit, and I/O device type.

<u>additive_attributes</u>: file attributes for which there are no defaults and which, if required, must always be stated explicitly:

<u>address</u>: (1) a specific storage location at which a data item can be stored, (2) I/O device address.

<u>allocated_variable</u>: a variable with which storage has been associated.

<u>allocation</u>: the association of storage with a variable.

<u>alphabetic character</u>: any of the characters A through Z and the alphabetic extenders #, \$, and D.

alphameric character: an alphabetic character or a digit.

<u>alternative attributes</u>: file attributes that may be chosen from groups of two or more alternatives. If none is specified, a default is assumed.

<u>alternative drive</u>: when two drives are given for one multi-volume file, the first volume is mounted onto the primary drive and the second volume onto the alternative drive. If no alternative drive is given, all reels or packs must be read or written on the primary drive.

<u>ambiguous_reference</u>: name with insufficient qualification to make the name unique.

<u>argument</u>: an expression, a constant, or variable passed to an invoked procedure as part of the procedure or function reference.

<u>arithmetic data</u>: data that has the characteristics of base, scale, and precision. It includes coded arithmetic data and numeric character data.

<u>arithmetic operators</u>: any of the prefix operators, + and -, or the infix operators, +, -, *, /, and **.

<u>array</u>: a named, ordered collection of data elements, all of which have identical attributes. An array has dimensions, and elements that are identified by subscripts.

<u>Assembler</u>: a program which prepares an object program by producing absolute or relocatable machine code from a source program of statements containing symbolic operation codes and symbolic operands.

<u>attribute</u>: a descriptive property associated with a name or expression to describe a characteristic of a data item or a file that the name may represent.

<u>automatic storage</u>: storage that is allocated at the activation of a procedure and released at the termination of that procedure.

<u>base</u>: the number system in terms of which a written value is represented. Examples are the decimal base (ten), the binary base (two), and the hexadecimal base (sixteen). For Model 20 PL/I, the base is decimal.

<u>based_variable</u>: a variable declared to have the BASED (pointer-variable) attribute specification. The pointer variable associates the description with an allocation of storage.

<u>based storage</u>: storage that is allocated for based variables. This allocation is dependent upon the manipulation of a pointer variable.

214 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

<u>batch comtilation</u>: the processing of more than one procedure by the compiler in one job.

<u>batched-job processing</u>: a technique that permits multiple job definitions to be grouped (stacked) for presentation to the computing system, which automatically recognizes the jobs, and executes them one after the other.

<u>bit</u>: The smallest unit of information in System/360. It can have either of the two values: zero or one.

<u>block</u>: distinct physical grouping of data items within a file.

<u>blocked record</u>: logical record grouped together with other logical records to form a physical record (or block).

<u>blocking factor</u>: block size divided by record size. Applies to fixed-length records only.

<u>bound</u>: the upper or lower limit of an array dimension. The lower limit is always assumed to be 1.

<u>buffer</u>: an intermediate main-storage area, used in input/output operations, into which a record is read during input and from which a record is written during output.

<u>built-in function</u>: one of the PL/Idefined functions.

<u>byte</u>: The basic unit of information in IBM System/360. Every byte consists of 8 bits, each having a value of zero or one. (See Bit).

<u>call</u>: the invocation of a procedure by means of the CALL statement.

<u>cataloging</u>: insertion of an executable object program or program segments, or of label information as a temporary or permanent entry into the core-image library or the label information area, respectively.

<u>character</u>: An 8-bit (1-byte) code that can be manipulated in the main storage of the central processing unit.

<u>character set</u>: a collection of 48 or 60 characters used to write PL/I source programs.

<u>character string</u>: a string composed of one or more characters from the data character set. <u>closing (a file)</u>: de-activation of a file by means of a CLOSE statement for the associated file or by an END or RETURN statement of the main procedure of a program.

<u>coded_arithmetic_data</u>: internal representation of arithmetic data whose characteristics are given by the base, scale, and precision attributes. The types for Model 20 PL/I are packed decimal and short or long floating point form.

<u>collating sequence</u>: the relative order of alphameric characters upon which sorting or merging is based.

<u>comment</u>: a string of characters, used for documentation, which is preceded by /* and terminated by */.

comparison_operators: the operators 1<,
<, <=, 1=, =, >=, >, 1>.

<u>compilation</u>: translation of a PL/I source module into an object module (i.e., machine language).

<u>compiled_object_module</u>: the set of machine instructions produced by compilation.

<u>compile_time</u>: the time during which a source program is translated into an object module.

<u>compiler</u>: a translator that converts a PL/I source program into a compiled and/or executable object program.

<u>compiler control statement</u>: any one of the control statements in the input stream that defines the requirements and options of a job to the compiler.

<u>composite operator</u>: operator composed of two operator symbols (e.g., 1=).

<u>compound statement</u>: a statement that contains other statements. IF and ON are the only compound statements.

<u>concatenation</u>: the operation that connects two character strings in the order indicated, thus forming one string whose length is equal to the sum of the lengths of the two strings. It is specified by the operator ||.

<u>condition name</u>: a language keyword that represents an exceptional condition that might arise during execution of a program.

<u>condition prefix</u>: a parenthesized list of one or more condition names prefixed to a procedure statement by a colon and preceding the entry name. It determines whether or not the program is to be interrupted if

Appendix A. Definition of Terms 215

one of the specified conditions occurs within the scope of the prefix. Condition names within the list are separated by commas.

<u>consecutive file organization</u>: organization of records on the basis of their successive physical positions. Records of a consecutive file can be accessed only sequentially.

<u>constant</u>: (1) an arithmetic or character string data item that does not have a name, (2) a statement label.

<u>contextual declaration</u>: the appearance of an identifier to the left of an assignment symbol or in the data list of a GET statement, or as a built-in function name (except DATE).

<u>control_format_item</u>: description of page and spacing operations.

<u>control programs</u>: a set of system programs that control the execution of the compiler and of user-programs. They are the Monitor, the Job Control program, and the Initial Program Loader.

<u>control statement</u>: any of the statements in the input stream that define the requirements of the job, its options, or control its actions.

<u>control variable</u>: variable used to control the iterative execution of a DO-group.

<u>conversion</u>: the transformation of a value from one representation to another.

<u>Core-Image Library</u>: a disk area containing the Job Control program, other IBMsupplied programs (except the Monitor and the IPL), and user's problem programs. Permits retrieval of programs and/or segments by the Monitor.

<u>Core-Image Library Maintenance Program</u> (<u>CMAINT</u>): a DPS Service program. Updates the core-image library and directory. Is used to add and/or delete program segments.

<u>cylinder</u>: a group of ten vertically aligned tracks on a 1316 disk pack.

<u>cylinder index</u>: table containing the identification and the highest key associated with each cylinder occupied by an INDEXED file.

<u>cylinder overflow area</u>: overflow area designated for each cylinder of the prime data area of an INDEXED file. <u>data</u>: representation of information in the form of digits and characters that have certain characteristics called attributes.

<u>data character set</u>: all of those characters whose bit configuration is recognized by the computer in use.

<u>data file</u>: a collection of related records organized in a specific manner. For example, a payroll file (one record for each employee, showing his rate of pay, deductions, etc.) or an inventory file (one record for each inventory item, showing the cost, selling price, number in stock, etc.).

<u>data format_item</u>: description of data in the stream that specifies whether the data items are characters or arithmetic values in character form.

<u>data item</u>: a single unit of data; it is synonymous with "element".

<u>data_list</u>: a list of expressions used in a STREAM input/output specification that represent storage areas to which data items are to be assigned during input, and from which data items are to be written, during output. (On input, the list may contain only variables).

<u>data specification</u>: the portion of an edit-directed data transmission statement that specifies the mode of transmission (EDIT) and includes the data list and the format list.

<u>data transmission</u>: the transfer of data from an external storage medium to main storage and vice versa.

<u>deblocking (of records)</u>: segregating physical records into their logical parts. Deblocking is done automatically by the system so that a program deals only with logical records.

<u>decimal</u>: the number system based on the value 10.

<u>decimal fixed-point data item</u>: data item consisting of one or more decimal digits and an optional decimal point. If no decimal point appears, the point is assumed to be immediately to the right of the rightmost digit.

<u>decimal floating-point data item</u>: decimal number followed by an integer exponent. The exponent specifies the assumed position of the decimal point, relative to the position in which it actually appears. The data item is written as one or more digits, the mantissa, followed by the letter E, followed by the exponent.

216 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I
<u>declaration</u>: the association of attributes with an identifier explicitly, contextually, or implicitly.

<u>default</u>: the alternative assumed when an identifier has not been declared to have one of two or more alternative attributes.

<u>defined_item</u>: item having the DEFINED attribute.

<u>delimiter</u>: any valid special character or combination of special characters used to separate identifiers and constants, or statements from one another.

<u>device address</u>: see <u>symbolic device</u> <u>address</u> and <u>actual device address</u>.

<u>device independence</u>: the ability to request input/output operations without regard to the physical characteristics of the input/output devices.

<u>digit</u>: the ten decimal digits 0 through 9.

<u>dimensioning</u>: the number of bound specifications associated with an array. It cannot be greater than three.

<u>direct access</u>: random processing of the logical records of a file by use of a key.

<u>disabled (condition)</u>: the state in which the occurrence of a particular condition will not result in a program interrupt.

<u>disk-resident system</u>: contains the Monitor, the disk-resident portion of the IPL, and the Job Control program. May contain any IBM-supplied and/or userwritten programs and/or macro definitions as well as the relocatable area.

<u>DO-group</u>: a sequence of statements headed by a DO statement and closed by its corresponding END statement.

<u>DPS_Control_Programs</u>: a collective term used to refer to the Initial Program Loader, the Monitor program, and the Job Control program.

<u>DPS_Linkage_Editor</u>: a system service program. Relocates programs or phases and links separately assembled programs or phases. Cannot be used for Model 20 PL/I programs.

<u>drifting picture character</u>: multipally specified picture character (\$, S, or -) that causes leading zeros to be suppressed and a \$ symbol, a sign, or a blank to appear in the rightmost position of the suppressed field of the character-string value of an arithmetic data item. <u>dummy argument</u>: a compiler-assigned variable for an argument that has no programmer-assigned name.

<u>dump</u>: (1) print-out of total main storage or of parts of main storage, (2) print-out of disk areas.

<u>dynamic storage</u>: storage that is allocated when execution of a procedure begins and that is freed when execution of a procedure is terminated. See <u>automatic</u> <u>storage</u>.

<u>EBCDIC</u>: (Extended Binary Coded Decimal Interchange Code) a specific set of eightbit codes standard throughout System/360.

<u>edit-directed transmission</u>: STREAM transmission; both a data list and a format list are specified.

<u>editing character</u>: a picture character in a numeric-picture specification that causes the specified picture character to appear in the character-string value of the numeric-picture specification.

<u>element</u>: a single data item as opposed to a collection of data items, such as a structure or an array. (Sometimes called a "scalar item").

<u>element variable</u>: a variable that can represent only a single value.

<u>enabled (condition)</u>: that state in which the occurrence of a particular condition will result in a program interrupt.

entry_name: a label of a PROCEDURE
statement.

<u>entry point</u>: that point in a procedure at which it may be invoked by reference to the entry name. (For Model 20 PL/I only the PROCEDURE statement).

<u>epilogue</u>: those processes which occur at the termination of a procedure.

<u>established action</u>: any action specified to take place when an enabled condition arises and causes an interrupt.

<u>exceptional condition</u>: an occurrence, which can cause a program interrupt, or an unexpected situation, such as an overflow error, or an occurrence of an expected situation, such as an end of file, that occurs at an unpredictable time.

<u>executable object program</u>: the set of machine instructions produced by compilation and link-editing.

Appendix A. Definition of Terms 217

<u>execute-loader_function</u>: reading of executable object program and its execution.

<u>explicit declaration</u>: the assignment of attributes to an identifier by means of the DECLARE statement, the appearance of the identifier as a label, or the appearance of the identifier in a parameter list.

<u>explicit_file_opening</u>: opening of a file by means of an OPEN statement. RECORD files always have to be explicitly opened.

<u>exponent (of floating-point constant)</u>: a decimal integer constant specifying the power to which the base of the floating-point number is to be raised.

<u>expression</u>: the representation of a value; examples are variables and constants appearing alone or in combination with operators, and function references.

<u>extent</u>: area of a disk file specified by an upper limit and a lower limit; and reserved for or occupied by a particular file.

<u>external_declaration</u>: an explicit or implicit declaration of the EXTERNAL attribute for an identifier. Such an identifier is known in all other procedures <u>for_which_such_a_declaration_exists</u>.

<u>external name</u>: an identifier which has the EXTERNAL attribute.

<u>external_storage_medium</u>: the medium on which data may be stored; for example, cards, magnetic tape, or disk.

<u>external symbol</u>: a control section name, entry point name, or external reference; a symbol contained in the external symbol dictionary.

<u>factoring (of attributes)</u>: enclosing of names having the same attributes in paren theses. Following the parenthesized list is the set of attributes that apply, in order to eliminate repeated specification of the same attributes for more than one name.

<u>field (in the data stream</u>): that portion of the data stream whose width, in number of characters, is defined by a single data or spacing format item.

<u>file</u>: the collection of related records organized in a specific manner on an external storage medium.

<u>file_declaration</u>: the association of attributes with a filename in a program.

218 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

<u>file label</u>: label containing information applicable to a given data file or portion of a data file stored on a particular volume.

<u>filename</u>: the symbolic reference, within a program, to a file.

<u>file_reorganization</u>: a term used to describe the process of writing a new file from an indexed file, purging records that are tagged for deletion, and merging records in the overflow area in their sequential positions in the prime data area.

<u>fixed-length record</u>: a record having the same length as all other records with which it is logically or physically associated.

<u>fixed-point_data_item</u>: see <u>decimal_fixed-</u> point_data_item.

<u>floating-point_data_item</u>: see <u>decimal</u> <u>floating-point_data_item</u>.

<u>format_item</u>: a specification used in edit-directed transmission to describe the representation of a data item in the stream or to control the spacing and the format of a printed page.

<u>format list</u>: a list of format items required for an edit-directed data specification.

<u>fractional_digit</u>: digit to the right of the decimal point.

<u>function</u>: a procedure that is invoked by the appearance of its entry name in a function reference.

<u>function reference</u>: the appearance of an entry name in an expression, usually in conjunction with an argument list.

group: a DO group;

halfword: two adjacent bytes where the left byte is on a halfword boundary.

<u>halfword boundary</u>: even-numbered position in main storage.

<u>header label</u>: file label preceding a labeled tape file and defining it.

<u>hexadecimal</u>: a character representation for a set of four bits. The values 0 - 15are represented by the digits 0 - 9 and the alphabetic characters A - F.

<u>high-order_digit</u>: leftmost digit of a decimal number.

<u>identifier</u>: a string of alphameric and break characters, not contained in a comment or constant, preceded and followed by a delimiter and whose initial character is alphabetic.

<u>implicit declaration</u>: association of attributes with an identifier that is not explicitly or contextually declared.

<u>implicit file opening</u>: opening a file by means of a GET or PUT statement when no previous OPEN statement for that file has been executed. Only STREAM files can be implicitly opened.

<u>inactive procedure</u>: a procedure that has not been activated or that has been terminated.

<u>independent overflow area</u>: overflow area designated to supplement or replace cylinder-overflow areas.

index: see cylinder_index and track
index.

<u>indexed-file_organization</u>: organization of records in a disk file on the basis of keys that are associated with each logical record. Indexed files may be accessed sequentially as well as directly.

<u>infix operator</u>: an operator that defines an operation between two operands.

<u>initial procedure</u>: a procedure whose PRO-CEDURE statement has the OPTIONS (MAIN) attribute. Every PL/I program must have an initial procedure. It is invoked automatically as the first step in the execution of a program.

<u>Initial Program Loader (IPL)</u>. A DPS Control program. Loads Monitor into main storage. Is used to assign physical I/O device addresses to symbolic addresses SYSRES and SYSRDR. Required for the initialization of the disk-resident system.

<u>initial value</u>: value assigned to a variable at the time storage is allocated to it.

<u>inquiry programs</u>: inquiry programs are initiated by pressing the Request key on the printer-keyboard and typing in the name of the program. The mainline program is rolled out on the system disk pack; then the inquiry program is loaded and processed; after execution is completed, the mainline program is rolled back into main storage and resumes processing. Inquiry programs can be executed only under control of a Monitor that supports inquiry facilities. The execution of inquiry programs is not preceded by a Job Control run.

<u>input/output</u>: the transfer of data between an external storage medium and (main) storage.

<u>I/O time</u>: (1) the time interval between the instant at which data is called for from an external storage device and the instant delivery is completed i.e., the read time. (2) the time interval between the instant at which data is requested to be stored and the instant at which storage is completed, i.e., the write time.

insertion character (in numeric picture <u>specifications</u>): a picture character that causes a character to appear in the character-string value of a numeric character data item. There are three picture character in Model 20 PL/I: (.) causing a decimal point to be inserted; (.) causing a comma to be inserted and (B) causing a blank to be inserted.

<u>integer digit</u>: digit to the left of the decimal point.

<u>internal name</u>: an identifier that has the INTERNAL attribute.

<u>inter-record gap</u>: a blank space on magnetic tape that separates physical records.

<u>interrupt</u>: the suspension of normal program activities as the result of the occurrence of an enabled condition.

<u>invoke</u>: to activate a procedure at its entry point.

<u>invoked procedure</u>: a procedure that has been activated at its entry point.

<u>invoking procedure</u>: a procedure containing a statement that activates another procedure.

<u>iteration factor</u>: a constant that specifies (1) the number of consecutive elements of an array that are to be initialized with a given constant; (2) the number of times a given format item or list of format items is to be used in succession in a format list.

job: a unit of work for the programming system that is externally identified by one set of job-control statements.

<u>Job Control program</u>: a DPS Control program. Resides in main storage between jobs and provides for automatic job-to-job transition. Performs I/O device assignment. Causes Monitor to load next program. job-control statement: any one of the control statements read from the device assigned to SYSRDR that identifies a job or defines its requirements and options.

key: see source key and recorded key.

<u>keyword</u>: an identifier that is part of the language and which, when used in the proper context, has a specific meaning to the compiler.

<u>known</u>: a term that is used to indicate the scope of an identifier. For example, an identifier is always known in the procedure in which it has been declared.

Label: (1) a physical identification record on magnetic tape located either preceding or following a data file, or both. If a data file extends beyond a single reel of tape, a label can be placed preceding and following the data on each reel; (2) a physical identification record on disk which identifies the volume or file, (3) statement label.

label_constant: see statement_label.

<u>Label Information Area (LIA)</u>: an area on the system disk pack into which each disk file label information, as contained in the VOL, DLAB, and XTENT statements, is placed by the Job Control program. This information is used by the label processing routines.

<u>label_prefix</u>: an unparenthesized identifier prefixed to a statement by a colon.

<u>language_translator</u>: a general term for any assembler, compiler, or other routine that accepts statements in one language and produces equivalent statements in another language.

<u>leading zeros</u>: zeros that have no significance in the value of an arithmetic number; all zeros to the left of the first significant digit (1 through 9) of a number.

<u>level_number</u>: an unsigned decimal integer constant specifying the hierachy of a name in a structure. It appears to the left of the name and is separated from it by a blank.

<u>library-management programs</u>: collective term for four system service programs: Core-Image Maintenance, Macro Maintenance, Directory Service, and Library Allocation Organization programs.

<u>link-editing</u>: combining of compiled object module(s) with other compiled object module(s) and/or PL/I library routines into an executable object program. <u>load</u>: to read an executable object program into main storage preparatory to executing it.

logical record: see record.

<u>loop</u>: sequence of statements executed successively more than one time.

<u>Low-order digit</u>: rightmost digit of a decimal number.

<u>main procedure</u>: see <u>initial procedure</u>.

<u>main storage</u>: the internal storage area of the central processing unit (CPU) that controls all internal manipulation of data.

<u>mainline program</u>: program whose execution is interrupted by an inquiry program and whose execution is continued when the inquiry program has been processed.

<u>major_structure</u>: a structure whose name is declared with level number 1.

<u>major-structure name</u>: name used to refer to the entire structure must be declared with level number 1.

<u>minor_structure</u>: a structure whose name is declared with a level number greater than 1.

<u>module</u>: the input to, or output from, a single execution of an assembler or compiler; a source, object, or load module; hence, a program unit that is discrete and identifiable with respect to compiling, combining with other units, and loading.

<u>Monitor Program</u>. The main DPS control program. Resident in main storage throughout a system run. Loads programs into main storage and causes their execution.

<u>multi-extent disk file</u>: file stored on a disk pack defined by more than one extent.

<u>multi-file_volume</u>: volume that contains more than one file.

<u>multi-reel tape file</u>: a file stored on more than one tape reel.

<u>multi-volume_disk_file</u>: a disk file stored on more than one disk pack.

multi-volume_tape_file: see multi-reel
tape_file.

<u>multiple_declaration</u>: two or more declarations of the same identifier in the same procedure without different qualifications, or two or more EXTERNAL declarations of the same identifier as different

220 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

names within a single program. Multiple declaration is in error.

 $\underline{\texttt{name}}$: an identifier that has been declared.

<u>nesting</u>: 1. the occurrence of a DO-group within another DO-group. 2. the occurrence of an IF statement in a THEN clause or an ELSE clause. 3. the occurrence of a function reference as an argument of another function reference.

<u>null statement</u>: represented by a semicolon; indicates that no action is to be taken.

<u>numeric-character data</u>: arithmetic data described by a picture that is stored in character form. It has both an arithmetic value and a character-string value.

<u>object module</u>: the output of an assembler or a compiler. An object module consists of (1) one or more control sections in relocatable, though not executable, form or (2) one executable object program. See <u>compiled object module</u> and <u>executable</u> <u>object module</u>.

<u>on-line</u>: pertaining to equipment or devices under direct control of the central processing unit.

ON-unit: the action to be executed upon the occurrence of the ON-condition named in the containing ON statement.

<u>opening (a_file)</u>: activating a file by means of an OPEN or GET or PUT statement associated with that file.

<u>operand</u>: the representation of (1) information that must be supplied to define a selective function to the program, (2) selection of a value on which an operation is to be performed.

<u>operation</u>: a selective function to be performed by the program.

<u>operational expression</u>: expression containing operators.

<u>operator</u>: a symbol specifying an operation to be performed. See <u>arithmetic</u> <u>operators, comparison operators</u>, and <u>concatenation</u>.

<u>option</u>: a specification in a statement that may be used by the programmer to influence the execution of the statement.

organization_of_a_file: see consecutive file_organization and indexed_file organization. <u>overflow area</u>: tracks designated to accommodate records that are forced off the prime-data tracks by the insertion of new records.

<u>overlay</u>: to place a segment of an executable object program into main storage locations occupied by another program or segment that has already been processed.

<u>packed-decimal</u>: storage technique whereby two digits or one digit and a sign are stored per byte.

<u>parameter</u>: a name in an invoked procedure that is used to represent an argument passed to that procedure.

<u>permanent_disk_label</u>: disk label that has been cataloged as a permanent entry into the label information area.

<u>phase-encoded tape</u>: tape of the magnetic tape drive models 2415-4,-5,-6.

<u>physical record</u>: the block (or the unit) of data that is physically transmitted to and from a volume.

<u>picture</u>: a character-by-character specification describing the composition and attributes of numeric character data. It allows editing.

<u>point alignment</u>: alignment of arithmetic data in a variable depending upon the location of the decimal point as specified by the precision and scale attributes or the picture character V in a numericpicture specification.

<u>point of invocation</u>: the point in the invoking procedure at which the procedure reference to the invoked procedure appears.

<u>pointer variable</u>: a variable that identifies the storage to be used when referring to a based variable.

<u>precision</u>: the value range of an arithmetic variable expressed as the total number of digits allowed and, for fixed-point variables, the assumed location of the decimal point.

precompiled object module: module that has been compiled or assembled by the PL/I Compiler or Assembler, respectively, but not link-edited, and that is used again as compiler input to be link-edited.

<u>prefix</u>: (1) a label connected by a colon to the beginning of a statement; (2) a parenthesized list of condition names connected by a colon to the beginning of a procedure statement.

Appendix A. Definition of Terms 221

<u>prefix operator</u>: an operator that precedes, and is associated with, a single operand. The prefix operators are + and -.

prime_data_area: disk areas where the records of an INDEXED file are initially stored.

<u>problem_data</u>: character string or arithmetic data that is processed by a PL/I program.

<u>procedure</u>: a block of statements, headed by a PROCEDURE statement and ended by an END statement, that defines a program region and delimits the scope of names and that is activated by a reference to its name. It controls allocation and freeing of automatic storage declared in it. A procedure may contain any statement except another PROCEDURE statement.

<u>procedure reference</u>: the appearance of a procedure name in a CALL statement.

<u>program</u>: a set of one or more procedures, one of which must have the OPTIONS (MAIN) attribute in its PROCEDURE statement.

<u>program-control data</u>: data used in a PL/I program to affect the execution of the program. Label data and pointer data are the types of program control data.

<u>proloque</u>: those processes that occur at the activation of a procedure.

<u>pseudo-variable</u>: the built-in function SUBSTR that can be used as a receiving field.

<u>qualified name</u>: a sequence of names of structure members connected by periods, to uniquely identify a component of a structure.

random access: see direct access.

<u>receiving field</u>: any field to which a value may be assigned.

<u>record</u>: a general term for any unit of data that is distinct from all others when considered in a particular context.

record format: see fixed-length_record, variable-length_record, and undefinedlength_record.

<u>record-oriented I/O</u>: the transmission of collections of data, called records, one record at a time. The external representation of the data is an exact copy of the internal, and vice versa. <u>recorded key</u>: a character string recorded in a logical record of an INDEXED file to identify that record.

<u>relocatable area</u>: an area on the system disk pack to temporarily hold an object module, thus permitting the assembly or compilation and the execution of a program or program segment in one job.

<u>relocation</u>: the modification of address constants required for a change of origin of a module or control section.

<u>remote format item</u>: specification of a label of a separate statement that contains the format list to be used.

<u>repetition factor</u>: a parenthesized unsigned decimal integer constant preceding a string configuration as a shorthand representation of a string constant. The repetition factor specifies the number of occurrences that make up the actual constant. In picture specifications, the repetition factor specifies repetition of a single picture character.

<u>repetitive specification</u>: an element of a data list that specifies controlled iteration to transmit a list of data items, generally used in conjunction with arrays.

<u>Report Generator and Report Program</u> <u>Generator (RPG)</u>: A program which constructs reports or report-writing programs in accordance with input specifications of the data file and of the desired report.

<u>reserved word</u>: a keyword that has a specific meaning and may only be used in a specific context.

<u>returned value</u>: the value returned by a function to the point of invocation.

<u>root seqment</u>: segment containing the main procedure of a segmented program. Must remain in storage throughout execution of a program. Must be the 1st segment of the program.

<u>scale</u>: fixed-or floating-point representation of an arithmetic value.

<u>scale factor</u>: the number of digits to the right of the decimal point.

<u>scope (of a condition prefix)</u>: the range of a program throughout which a condition prefix applies.

<u>scope (of a name)</u>: the range of a program throughout which a name has a particular interpretation.

sector: one tenth of a track (270 bytes).

222 IBM System/360 Model 20 DPS PL/I

segment: the smallest addressable unit in the core-image library of a disk-resident system.

<u>sequential access (of a file)</u>: consecutive transfer of either the whole file or part of the file.

<u>service programs</u>: a group of programs that create and maintain the system libraries and the relocatable area.

<u>significant digit</u>: a digit that contributes to the accuracy or precision of a numeric value. The number of significant digits is counted beginning with the digit contributing the most value, called the most significant digit, and ending with the one contributing the least value, called the least significant value.

simple statement: see statement

<u>source key</u>: a character string or a numeric character data item referred to in a RECORD transmission statement that identifies a particular record within an INDEXED file. The source key is a character string to be compared with, or written as, a recorded key to identify the record.

<u>source_module</u>: a set of source statements forming a complete control section or procedure.

<u>source program</u>: the program that is translated and link-edited by the compiler.

<u>special character</u>: each non-alphameric character of the 60 or 48 character set.

stacked-job_processing: see batched-job
processing.

<u>standard system action</u>: action taken by the system when an interrupt occurs for which no other action has been specified.

<u>statement</u>: a basic element of a PL/I program that is used to delimit a portion of a program, to describe data used in the program, or to specify action to be taken.

<u>statement label</u>: an identifying name prefixed to any statement other than a PROCE-DURE statement.

<u>statement label variable</u>: a variable declared with the LABEL attribute and thus able to assume as its value a statement label.

<u>static storage</u>: storage that is allocated before execution of the program begins and that remains allocated for the duration of the program. <u>storage allocation</u>: Association of a storage area with a variable.

<u>stream</u>: data being transferred from or to an external medium represented as a continuous string of data items in character form.

stream-oriented input/output: transmission of data items as a continuous stream of characters that are, on input, automatically converted to conform to the attribute of the variables to which they are assigned and, on output, are automatically converted to character representation.

<u>string</u>: a connected sequence of characters that is treated as a single data item.

string operator: the string operator is
||, denoting concatenation of character
strings.

<u>structure</u>: a hierarchical set of names that refers to an aggregate of data items that may have different attributes.

<u>subfield</u>: the integer description portion or the fraction description portion of a picture specification field that describes a noninteger fixed-point data item. The subfields are divided by the picture character V.

<u>subscript</u>: expression enclosed in parentheses following an array variable. It specifies the relative position, within the array, of a particular data element.

<u>substructure</u>: structure declared one or more levels below the major-structure level.

<u>symbolic_device_address</u>: a symbol used in IBM-supplied and user-written programs to refer to an I/O device (e.g., SYSRES, SYS-IPT, SYS005).

<u>system-disk pack</u>: the disk pack on which the user's disk-resident system is stored.

<u>Tape Error Recovery routine (TER)</u>: a routine to control the execution of error recovery procedures in the case of magnetic tape I/O errors.

<u>Tape Error Statistics routine (TES)</u>. a routine to analyze the interrupts and magnetic tape I/O errors occurring during the execution of a program.

<u>tapemark</u>: a special record that can be read from, or written onto, magnetic tape. Used to distinguish the end of a file or file segment, and to separate labels from the data.

Appendix A. Definition of Terms 223

<u>termination</u>: cessation of execution of a procedure and the return of control to the activating procedure by means of a RETURN or END statement, or the transfer of control to the activating procedure or some other active procedure by means of a GO FO statement. A return of control to the programming system via a RETURN or END statement in the initial procedure. See <u>epiloque</u>.

<u>track</u>: concentric circle on a disk surface used for the storage of data. One track may accommodate 2,700 bytes of data.

<u>track index</u>: table containing the identification and the highest key associated with each track occupied by a file.

trailer label: file label following a file or part of tape file furnishing the information required to determine whether the end of file has been reached or whether the file is continued on another volume.

<u>truncation</u>: loss of digits to the right or left of a data item.

<u>undefined-length records</u>: records of varying length, where by each block consists of only one record. The system does not insert any length-specifying records into the block.

<u>Utility program(s)</u>: a program or a set of programs which assist in the operation of a computer, i.e., storage clearing, intermediate data transmission, dump program, file organization routines, etc.

variable: a name that represents data. Its attributes remain constant, but it can represent different values at different times. Variables fall into three categories: element, array, and structure variables. Variables may be subscripted and/or qualified.

variable-length_records: logical records whose number of bytes is not fixed, but may vary within prescribed limits. Variable-length logical records may be blocked into physical records. Deblocking is dependent upon length-specifying bytes at the beginning of each logical and each physical record. The length bytes are inserted automatically by the system.

<u>volume</u>: that portion of a single unit of storage media that is accessible to a single read/write mechanism. For example, a reel of magnetic tape for a 2415 magnetic tape drive, or one 1316 Disk Pack for an IBM 2311 Disk Storage Drive.

<u>volume label</u>: the volume label indentifies and protects the entire volume (disk pack or magnetic tape reel). It is fixed in length and format, and lies in a fixed location within the volume. The volume label contains the volume serial number. In addition, the disk volume label contains the address of the volume table of contents.

<u>Volume Table of Contents (VTOC)</u>: a number of records on a disk pack, composed of disk file labels, specifying the extents of, and identifying all files on the pack.

zero-suppression_character_(in_a_picture specification): picture character (Z or *) used to suppress leading zeros. (This appendix contains only preliminary information).

Source programs written in Model 20 PL/I are upward compatible to DOS/TOS PL/I and yield identical results on other System/360 models with the following exceptions:

- Floating-point arithmetic is implemented in Model 20 PL/I in decimal arithmetic. This means that internal precision and round-off errors are slightly different.
- The difference mentioned above causes a file incompatibility when using FLOAT variables in PL/I recordoriented I/O. This is due to the difference in the representation of data. A method for reading such files with a DOS/TOS PL/I program will be described

in the third part of this publication at a later date.

- 3. The IBM 2560 Multi-Function Card Machine, the 2203 Printer, and the 2152 Printer-Keyboard are not supported on other System/360 models. Minor changes in the ENVIRONMENT attribute are necessary to change to other devices.
- 4. In the MEDIUM option, the symbolicdevice address SYSOPT has been introduced for Model 20 DPS. Programs that are expected to run on both Model 20 and DOS/TOS PL/I should use SYSPCH instead of SYSOPT. SYSPCH and SYSOPT are synonymous in Model 20 PL/I.

Appendix C. Character Sets with EBCDIC and Card-Punch Codes

60-CHARACTER_SET

Character	Card-Punch	8-Bit Code
DIANK	12-9-3	0100 0000
•	12-8-4	0100 1100
ì	12-8-5	0100 1101
+	12-8-6	0100 1110
	12-8-7	0100 1111
1 8	12	0101 0000*
\$	11-8-3	0101 1011
↓ ★	11-8-4	0101 1100
N N	11-8-5	0101 1101
;	11-8-6	0101 1110
,	11-8-7	0101 1111
-	11	0110 0000
/	0-1	0110 0001
	0-8-3	0110 1011
Х	0-8-4	0110 1100*
	0 8-5	0110 1101
>	0-8-6	0110 1110
?	0-8-7	0110 1111*
;	8-2	0111 1010
#	8-3	0 111 1 011
9	8-4	0111 1100
1	8-5	0 111 11 01
=	8-6	0111 1110
А	12-1	1100 0001
В	12-2	1100 0010
С	12-3	1100 0011
D	12-4	1100 0100
E	12-5	1100 0101
\mathbf{F}	12-6	1100 0110
G	12-7	1100 0111
H	12-8	1100 1000
I	12-9	1100 1001
J	11-1	1101 0001
ĸ	11-2	1101 0010
L	11-3	1101 0011
M	11-4	1101 0100
N	11-5	1101 0101
Ö	11-6	
P	11-/	1101 0111
Q	11-8	1101 1000
R	11-9	1110 0010
5 m	0-2	1110 0010
T U	0-3	1110 0011
U	0-4	1110 0100
V 17	0-5	1110 0101
W	0-7	1110 0110
A V	0-9	1110 1000
17	0-0	1110 1000
4	0-3	

<u>Card-Punch</u>	<u>8-Bit_Code</u>
0	1111 0000
1	1111 0001
2	1111 0010
3	1111 0011
4	1111 0100
5	1111 0101
6	1111 0110
7	1111 0111
8	1111 1000
9	1111 1001
	<u>Card-Punch</u> 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Composite <u>Symbols</u>

bols	<u>Card_Punch</u>
<=	12-8-4, 8-6
11	12-8-7, 12-8-7
**	11-8-4, 11-8-4
1<	11-8-7, 12-8-4
· ·>	11-8-7, 0-8-6
, , =	11-8-7, 8-6
>=	0-8-6, 8-6
/*	0-1, 11-8-4
*/	11-8-4, 0-1
,	•

Note: When using the 60-character set the following rule should be observed: The composite symbols of the 48-character set (see <u>48-Character Set</u> in this Appendix) must not be used as keywords or delimiters with the 60-character set. The alphabetic character combinations would be interpreted as identifiers; the special character combinations would cause errors. Exceptions are the character combinations for comments. They are identical in both character sets.

* not used in Model 20 PL/I

48-CHARACTER_SET

<u>Character</u> blank	<u>Card-Punch</u> no punches	8-Bit_code 0100 0000
•	12-8-3	0100 1011
(12 - 8-5	0100 1101
+	12-8-6	0100 1110
\$	11- 8-3	0101 1011
*	11- 8-4	0101 1100
)	11 - 8-5	0101 1101
-	11	0110 0000
/	0-1	0110 0001
1	0-8-3	0110 1011
۲.	8-5	0111 1101
=	8-6	
A	12-1	1100 0001
B	12-2	1100 0010
	12-3	1100 0011
D F	12-4	1100 0100
ц Т	12-5	1100 0101
Ġ	12-7	1100 0110
н	12-8	1100 1000
Ĩ	12-9	1100 1001
J	11-1	1101 0001
K	11- 2	1101 0010
L	11-3	1101 0011
М	11-4	1101 0100
N	11-5	1101 0101
0	11-6	1101 0110
Р	11-7	1101 0111
Q	11-8	1101 1000
R	11-9	1101 1001
5	0-2	1110 0010
1	0-3	1110 0100
v	0-4	1110 0100
w	0-6	1110 0110
x	0-7	1110 0111
Ŷ	0-8	1110 1000
Z	0-9	1110 1001
0	0	1111 000 0
1	1	1111 0001
2	2	1111 0010
3	3	1111 0011
4	4	1111 0100
5	5	1111 0101
6	6	1111 0110
1	/	1111 0111
8	8	1111 1000
9	У	

		60-Character
Composite		Set
Symbols	<u>Card_Punch</u>	Equivalent
••	12-8-3, 12-8-3	:
LE	11-3, 12-5	<=
CAT	12-3, 12-1, 0-3	1.1
**	11-8-4, 11-8-4	**
NL	11-5, 11-3	1<
NG	11-5, 12-7	
NE	11-5, 12-5	1 =
<i>,</i> .	0-8-3, 12-8-3	;
AN D	12-1, 11-5, 12-4	3
GE	12-7, 12-5	>=
GT	12-7, 0-3	>
LT	11-3, 0-3	<
NOT	11-5, 11-6, 0-3	1
OR	11-6, 11-9	1
/*	0-1, 11-8-4	/*
*/	11-8-4, 0-1	*/

<u>Note</u>: When using the 48-character set, the following rules should be observed:

- 1. The sequence "comma period" represents a semicolon except when it occurs in a comment or character string, or when it is immediately followed by a digit.
- The composite symbols of the 48character set are reserved words in the 48-character set; i.e., these identifiers must not be used as variables, entry names, or filenames.

Appendix D. Model 20 PL/I Keywords

Keyword <u>Use_of_Keyword</u> ABS (x) built-in function ADDR (x) built-in function ATAN (x[, y]) built-in function AUTOMATIC attribute BACKWARDS attribute BASED (pointer-variable) attribute BUILTIN attribute ВΥ clause of DO statement CALL statement CEIL(x) built-in function built-in function CHAR(value[,size]) CHAR (length) attribute CHARACTER (length) attribute CLOSE statement CONVERSION condition built-in function COS(x) DATE built-in function DCL statement DECIMAL attribute DECLARE statement attribute DEF DEFINED attribute DIRECT attribute DISPLAY statement statement DO STREAM I/O transmission mode EDIT ELS E clause of IF statement statement END ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition attribute ENTRY ENV attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute condition ERROR built-in function EXP(x) EXT attribute EXTERNAL attribute FILE attribute option of GET and PUT, specification of RECORD I/O statement FILE(file-name) FIXED attribute FIX EDOVERFLOW condition FLOAT attribute FLOOR (x) built-in function FORMAT (format-list) statement option of REWRITE or WRITE statement FROM GET statement GO TO,GOTO statement HIGH (i) built-in function statement IF attribute INIT INITIAL attribute INPUT attribute INTERNAL attribute option of READ statement INTO (variable) condition KEY (file-name) option of READ and REWRITE statement KEY(x) attribute KEYED option of WRIFE and LOCATE statement KEYFROM (x) attribute LABEL statement LOCATE

<u>Keyword</u>

LOG (x) LOW (1) MAIN MAX (arguments) MIN (arguments) NOCONVERSION NOFIXEDOVERFLOW NOOV ERFLOW NOUNDERFLOW NOZERODIVIDE ON ONSYSLOG OPEN OPTIONS (list) OUTPUT OVERFLOW PAGE PAGESIZE (w) PIC PICTURE POINTER PRINT PROCEDURE PUT READ RECORD RECORD (file-name) REPLY (C) RETURN RETURNS REWRITE ROUND (x, n) SEQUENTIAL SET SIN (x) SKIP[(x)] SQRT(x) STATIC STREAM STRING (string-name) SUBSTR(string,i,j) SYSTEM TAN(x) TANH (x) THEN то TRANSMIT TRUNC (x) UNDERFLOW UPDATE WRTTE ZERODIVIDE

<u>Use_of_Keywords</u>

built-in function built-in function option of PROCEDURE statement built-in function built-in function condition prefix identifier, disables CONVERSION condition prefix identifier, disables FIXEDOVERFLOW condition prefix identifier, disables OVERFLOW condition prefix identifier, disables UNDERFLOW condition prefix identifier, disables ZERODIVIDE statement option of PROCEDURE statement statement option of PROCEDURE statement attribute condition format item, option of PUT statement option of the OPEN statement attribute attribute attribute attribute statement statement statement attribute condition option of DISPLAY statement statement attribute statement built-in function attribute option of READ and LOCATE statements built-in function format item, option of PUT statement built-in function attribute attribute option of GET and PUT statements built-in function, pseudo-variable action specification of the ON statement built-in function built-in function clause of IF statement clause of DO statement condition built-in function condition attribute statement condition

Appendix E. File Attributes and Options

		STREAM CRECORD																						
															:	5EQ U	ENTI/	AL.					DIRE	ст
		1	NPUT			OU	TPUT	1	0	PRIN	ЛТ T			с	ONSI	CUTI	VE				IN	DEXE	D	-
ļ				_!				1	l .	Phil S	' I			1	TAPE				s	DIS	ĸ			
	FILE ATTRIBUTES AND OPTIONS	ARD	APE	JISK	ARD	RINTER	APE)ISK	RINTER	APE	lisk	NPUT	JUTPUT	NP. FORW	NP. BACK	JUTPUT	NPUT	DUTPUT	PDATE	NPUT	วนายนา	PDATE	лри	PDATE
	LY	Ľ		لگ		•		Ľ		+	^	Ē	5	-	Ĺ	Ľ		Ľ	Ľ	_	<u> </u>	لت	لے	
- []	filename 1–6 characters	s	s	s	s	s	S	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s
	FILE	S	S	S	s	S	s	S	S	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	S	s	s	S	s
	RECORD		\square	\square		<u> </u>		\square	Ĺ			s	s	s	s	S	s	S	s	s	s	s	s	s
	STREAM	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D											Ľ	Ĺ	
÷	SEQUENTIAL		ĹĽ	\square							Ē	D	D	D	Dʻ	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	\Box'	
R	DIRECT		Ĺ	\Box			[]		ل_														S	s
iς	KEYED			\Box					Ē											s	s	s	s	s
T I	· INPUT	s I	S	s								s		S	S		S			S		\Box'	s	
E	OUTPUT		\square'	\square'	s	s	s	s	D	D	D		s			s		S			s		\Box'	\Box
s	UPDATE		\Box	\Box	\Box														S			s	\Box'	s
	PRINT	\Box	\Box	\Box					Ś	S	s												\Box	
	BACKWARDS														S							\Box	\Box	\Box
U U	ENVIRONMENT (s	s	s	s	s	S	S.	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	S	S	S	s	s	s	s	s	s
ſ	MEDIUM (s	S	s	s	s	s	S	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	S	S	s	s	s	s	s
	SYSIPT	c	c	c								с		c			с					\Box	\Box	
	SYSOPT/SYSPCH	\Box	\Box'	\Box	с	\Box	c	c					c			с		с					\Box	\Box
	SYSLST		\Box	\Box		с			с				c										\Box	
	SYSnnn (nnn = 000 - 019)	c	c	c	с	c_'	c	c	с	с	с	c	с	c	s	c	с	с	s	s	s	s	s	s
	2501/2520/2560P/2560S/2152	c	\Box	\Box								c											\Box	
	2520/2560P/2560S/1442		\Box	\square	с			\Box					с									\Box	\Box	\square
	1403/2203/2152		<u> </u>			c	\Box		с				с									\Box	\Box	
	2400		S	\square			s	\square	\Box	s				s	s	s						\Box	\Box	
	2311)		\Box	s				s	\Box		s				<u> </u>	<u>È</u>	s	S	S_	s	s	s	s	s
	CONSECUTIVE	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D			\Box		
	INDEXED		<u> </u>	\square					\square											s	s	s	s	s
o	KEYLENGTH		\square	\square																s	s	s	s	s
P	KEYLOC		\Box																	s	s	s	s	s
े र I	OFLTRACKS						\square		\Box												0	\Box		0
0	EXTENTNUMBER		\square				\square													s	s	s	s	s
s	U (maxblocksize)	T			т				Т	\square		т	т	c	с	с								H-
	F (blocksize)	s	S	s	s	S	s	S	s	s	s	s	s	с	с	с	с	с	с	с	с	c	C	с
	F (blocksize, recsize)								\square					c	с	с	с	с	с	с	c	c	lc [†]	c
	V (maxblocksize)													c		c							Ē	
	BUFFERS (1)	0	0	10	6	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	ō	0	0	0	0	0	6	5	D
	BUFFERS (2)	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D	D		Ē	M
	LEAVE		0				0			0				0	0	0				-		<u> </u>	\square	
	NOLABEL		0				0		[]	0				0	0	0							\square	
	VERIFY							0			0							0	0		0	0	\square	0
	NOTAPEMK		\square				0		[]	0						0								
	ALTTAPE		0			 	0			0				0		0							\square	
	CTLASA								[0			_							\square	
l	NOWRITE)			+																				0
Ì								-																
	Symbols used: D = Default at O = Optional C = Choice m T = For 2152 Ne entry in p	must b ttribute attribu ust be U mus	e spec e, if i ute.Sp made t be u	cified not sp lecify amon ised ir	ecifie if app ig the istead	ed plicat se atti of F	ole ribute	\$																

Appendix F. Valid I/O Statements

		1					R	ECOR	RD.			
		s	TREAN	Ν		SEC		TIAL			DIRE	СТ
				_	CON	ISECU	JTIVE		IN	DEXE	D	
STATEMENT FORMATS			DT PRINT	ИТ								
	APPLICABLE ON-CONDITIONS	INPUT	OUTPUT N	OUTPUT PR	INPUT	OUTPUT	UPDATE	INPUT	OUTPUT	UPDATE	INPUT	UPDATE
OPEN	FILE (filename)	0	0	0	м	м	м	м	м	м	м	м
	FILE (filename) PAGESIZE (n)			0		_						
CLOSE	FILE (filename)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
GET	FILE (filename) EDIT (data) (format)	0										
	FILE (filename) EDIT (data) (format)		0	0								
	FILE (filename) PAGE			0								
PUT	FILE (filename) SKIP (n)			0								
	FILE (filename) PAGE EDIT (data) (format)			0								
	FILE (filename) SKIP (n) EDIT (data) (format)			0								
	FILE (filename) INTO (variable)				0	_	0	0		0		
READ	FILE (filename) SET (pointer)				0		0					
	FILE (filename) INTO (variable) KEY (expression)							0		0	0	0
	FILE (filename)						0					
REWRITE	FILE (filename) FROM (variable)						0			0		
	FILE (filename) FROM (variable) KEY (expression)									0	0	
LOCATE	variable FILE (filename) SET (pointer)					0						
WDITE	FILE (filename) FROM (variable)					0						
WKITE	FILE (filename) FROM (variable) KEYFROM (expression)								0			0
	CONVERSION	0										
	ENDFILE (filename)	0			0		0	0		0		
ON-CONDITIONS	ENDPAGE (filename)			0								
WHICH MAY OCCUR	KEY (filename)							0	0	0	0	0
Γ	RECORD (filename)				0							
	TRANSMIT	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Symbols used: M = Use of t O = For I/O	his statement is mandatory statements: Use of this statement format is optional			<u> </u>	Ŭ	0					U	<u> </u>

For ON conditions: This condition may occur

INDEX

A data-format item
general description and examples 62
ABS built-in function
Access
of a consecutive file 172
of an indexed file 180
Activation of a procedure 19
Actual device address 149
Addition
attributes of result of
of records to an indexed file
(example)
Additive file attribute
ADDR built-in function
general description and examples 85
syntax and rules 109
Alignment of data items in storage 204
Alphabetic character 15
Alphameric character
Alternative file attribute 55
ALTTAPE option
example of its use
general rules
Ambiguous reference 53
Argument 75
Argument list 75
Arguments and parameters
in Assembler procedures 201
general description and examples of 75
tupos of
Arithmetic huilt-in function 105
Arithmetic data
base of
precision of 21
scale of 20
values of 21,22
Arithmetic operation
conversion of operands in
rogult of
Arithmetic operator 16
list of arithmetic operators 16
Arithmetic value
of numeric-character variable
Array
assignment 124
bound of 26
dimension of
extent OI
storage mapping of
subscript
expression as array subscript 26
variable
ASA control character 170
Assembler 200
procedure linked with PL/I
procedures 203

ASSGN job-control statement 14	7
Assignment	
array 12	4
element variable 124	4
expression 12	4
label array	4
label constant 12	'n
label constant	4
label variable	4
of alternate tape unit	0
pointer 12	4
by stream-oriented I/O 7	0
by using the STRING option in the	
GET and PUT statements	1
Assignment statement	•
formate and content wales 12	4
formats and syntax rules	4
general description and examples 4	U
asterisk picture character	2
ATAN built-in function 10	7
ATR option 15	8
ATRO option	8
Attribute	č
Accurace algorithm of attailuter 11	r
alphabetic list of attributes If	6
table of file attributes and options 23	0
Automatic storage 43	8
AUTOMATIC storage-class attribute 11	6
BACKWARDS file-description attribute	
brekwakbo iiie description attribute	1
example of its use	1
general description	7
rules and format 110	6
Base identifier 117,2	9
Based storage	6
BASED storage-class attribute	-
general description and examples	6
general description and examples	c c
rules and format IN	b
Based variable	
general description and examples 8	4
Batch compilation 153	3
Blank	
picture character 9	h
ugo of blanks in DI/T statement	7
use of blanks in PL/1 Statement	'
BLOCK	
ON-block 20	1
record block 54	4
Blocking	
of records 51	4
summary of block sizes permitted 10	- -
Denvil a Communication of the sizes permitted	2
Bound of array 20	b
Break character 1	7
Buffer 55	5
BUFFERS option	
example of its use	7
conoral rulog	'n
PUTTOTN alteriate (11)	<u>د</u>
BUILTIN attribute II	'
Built-in function	
general description	2
list of built-in functions 103	3
CALL DYNDIMP statement 20	h
CALL OVEDIAN statement 40	7
CALL OVERLAI SLAUEMENT	د م
Call routine PLISCA	1

CALL statement format and rules 126 general description and examples .. 43,76 Card-punch codes for character sets 226 CATAL control statement examples of its use 197 format and rules 196 Cataloging disk labels 193 programs from relocatable area 197 CEIL built-in function 105 CHAR built-in function 103 CHAR character-string data attribute .. 117 CHARACTER character-string data attribute 117 Character set card-punch codes for 60-character set 226 using the 16 48-character set 16 60-character set 15 Character-string data 23 altering the length of 70 general description and examples 24 maximum length allowed 24 Character-string handling 70 built-in functions for 74 Character-string value of numeric-character variable 72 CHAR48 option 158 CHAR60 option 158 CLOSE statement format and rules 127 general description 39,57 Closing a file 57 CMAINT operand 196 Comma picture character 93 Comments in job-control statements 144 in PL/I statements 17 algebraic 34 character 34 in IF statement 131,34 pointer 34 Comparison operators 16,33 Compatibility 225 Compilation of PL/I source modules 154 and linkage 154 ,linkage, and execution 154 ,linkage, and cataloging 154 ,linkage, and execution of source modules and precompiled object modules 156 Compiled object module 156 Compiler 153,142 input to 153 output from 156,159 Compiler control statement 157 Compound statement 18 Computational built-in functions 103 Computational conditions 110

Condition computational conditions 111 conditions always enabled 92 enabling and disabling of conditions . 81 exceptional conditions 110 general description and examples 81 input/output conditions 112 system-action condition 113 Condition name 18 Condition prefix 18 Consecutive file accessing of 172 attributes and options 169 creation of 169 input/output devices 169 record formats 169 CONSECUTIVE option general rules 180 Constant 20 Control format item general description and examples 63 Control program 141 Control variable in DO statement 42,128 Conversion of fixed-point operand 31 of floating-point operand 31 CONVERSION condition 111 COPTN compiler-control statement format and rules 157 options 158 COPY control statement 155,156 COS built-in function 107 Creation of consecutive file 169 of indexed file 177 CR picture character 96 Credit picture character 96 CTLASA option example of its use 170 general rules 183 Currency symbol picture character 95 Cylinder 172 Cylinder index 175 Cylinder overflow area 175

Data format item	
general description and examples	62
table of data format items	98
Data list	
general description and examples	60
repetitive specification in	60
Data-movement and computational	
statements	40
Data organization	25
array	25
structure	27
Data storage mapping	
of arrays 2	04
of structures 2	04

Index 233

Data types
problem data 20
arithmetic data 20
character-string data
program-control data
label data 25
pointer data
DATE built-in function 109
DATE job-control statement 145
DB picture character 96
DCL statement 127
Debit picture character
DECIMAL arithmetic-data attribute 117
Decimal point alignment
in numeric-character variable
Decimal point picture character
Decimal point specifier V
DECLARE statement
examples 170,171,177
general description 38
DECK option 159
DECK Option $\cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot$
Def under according
of final naint data
of fixed-point data
of floating-point data 22
DEFINED attribute
general description and examples 28
rules and format 117
Defined item 29
Defined variable 117
Defining of data 117,29
simple 118
string-overlay 118
Definition of terms 214
DELET control statement
example 198
format and rules 197
Deletion of records
Deletion of records from indexed file 175
Deletion of records from indexed file

attributes of result of	
	. 34
DLAB control statement	188
DO-group	. 19
DO statement	
format and rules	128
general description and examples	. 42
Drifting character	• • •
in picture specification	. 95
DSPLY control statement	194
Dummy argument	. 79
DUMP option	158
Dynamic storage allocation	. 48
automatic storage	. 48
based storage	• 40 48
Dynamic storage area	201
DYNDUMP routine	204
DINDOM TOUCHNE	207
E data format item	
general description and examples	. 62
rules and syntax	99
E exponent specifier	. 97
E picture character	97
FBCDIC codes for	•)/
18-character set	227
40 character set	221
Du Chaldelei Sel	220
Edition	• 55
halting	70
by assignment	• 70
Rumeric-Character data	1 2
Element assignment	124
ELSE Clause	120
in if statement	130
Enabled condition	• 81
END Statement	
format and rules	129
format and rules general description and examples 4	129 3,77
format and rules general description and examples 4 ENDFILE condition	129 3,77 112
format and rules	129 3,77 112 112
format and rules	129 3,77 112 112
format and rules	129 3,77 112 112 . 79
format and rules	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118
format and rules	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19
format and rules	129 3,77 112 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119
format and rules	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119
format and rules	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 ,119
format and rules	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 119 . 50
format and rules	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 119 . 50 112
format and rules general description and examples . 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 119 . 50 112 158
format and rules general description and examples . 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 19 . 119 . 50 112 158
format and rules general description and examples . 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options ERROR condition ERROR option Errors detected with declarations	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 119 . 50 112 158 159
format and rules general description and examples . 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 10 . 119 . 50 . 112 158 . 159 159
format and rules general description and examples . 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 10 112 158 159 . 81
format and rules general description and examples . 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 10 112 158 159 . 81 147
format and rules	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 50 112 158 159 . 81 147 157
format and rules	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 . 19 . 19 . 50 112 158 . 159 . 81 . 159 . 81 . 147 . 44
<pre>format and rules general description and examples 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options</pre>	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 . 19 . 50 112 158 . 159 . 81 147 . 44
<pre>format and rules general description and examples 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options</pre>	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 . 119 . 50 112 159 . 51 . 147 . 51
<pre>format and rules general description and examples 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options</pre>	129 3,77 112 112 .79 118 .19 .119 .50 112 159 .51 .59 .81 157 .447 .51 .97
<pre>format and rules general description and examples 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options</pre>	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 109 . 119 . 119 . 120 . 158 . 159 . 81 . 147 . 517 . 44 107 . 517 . 97
<pre>format and rules general description and examples 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options</pre>	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 109 . 119 . 119 . 119 . 120 . 159 . 159 . 81 147 157 . 44 107 . 51 . 97 . 32
<pre>format and rules general description and examples 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options</pre>	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 109 . 119 . 119 . 119 . 120 . 158 . 159 . 81 147 . 51 . 51 . 97 . 324
<pre>format and rules general description and examples 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options</pre>	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 107 . 159 . 81 147 157 . 44 107 . 51 . 97 . 32 . 34
<pre>format and rules</pre>	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 19 . 19 . 19 . 19 . 19 . 19
<pre>format and rules</pre>	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 107 . 12 158 159 . 81 147 157 . 44 107 . 51 . 32 . 34 . 30 . 30
<pre>format and rules general description and examples 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options</pre>	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 119 . 10 119 . 50 112 158 159 . 81 147 . 51 . 32 . 34 . 30 . 30 . 30
<pre>format and rules general description and examples 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options</pre>	129 3,77 112 112 . 79 118 . 19 . 119 . 50 112 158 159 . 81 147 . 51 . 32 . 34 . 30 . 300 . 333
<pre>format and rules general description and examples 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options</pre>	1297 3,77 112 112 .799 118 .199 .119 .119 .120 .121 .158 .159 .159 .159 .159 .157 .51 .51 .51 .51 .51 .51 .51 .51 .51 .51
<pre>format and rules general description and examples 4 ENDFILE condition ENDPAGE condition ENTRY attribute general description and examples rules and format Entry name ENV file-description attribute ENVIRONMENT attribute and its options</pre>	1297 3,77 112 112 .799 118 .199 .119 .119 .120 .158 .159 .159 .159 .81 .147 .551 .57 .32 .34 .300 .300 .330 .336 .36

$\mathbf{E}\mathbf{x}$	tent	2																			
	of a	rra	v.																	:	26
	of f	110				•••						•••	•••	•		•••		•		1	7 2
	OT T	TTE	••	••	• •	••	• :	•••	•••	••	•	••	•••	• •	••	•••	•	•	•		15
ΕX	TERN	AL	sco	\mathbf{pe}	а	tt	rı	bu	ite	• •	•	• •	• •	• •	• •	• •	•	•	•		19
Ex	tens	ion																			
	of i	nđe	xed	f	i 1	e													_	1	75
τıν		INTINA	nea	-	~				•••	•••	•	••	•••	•	••	•••	•	•	•	•	
ΕX	TENT	NOM	BER	0	ρτ	10	n														
	exam	ple	••	• •	• •	• •	• •	•••	• •	• •	•	• •	• •	•	• •	• •	•	•	•	1	78
	rule	s.												•						18	35
τv	יחבים	דאז	800		- -	++	ri	h	1+0									-	•		
Ŀл	LERN	инц цнц	sco	pe	a	LL	τī	.Du	i Le	2											
	gene	ra⊥	de	SC:	ri	pt	ic	n	• •	• •	•	• •	• •	• •	• •	• •	•	•	• •		52
	rule	s a	nd	svi	nt	ax					•			•				•		1	19
FΥ	ידעסיד	on	+ 10	. n										, T			•	-	-	10	5.8
ĽιΛ	TURE	ОÞ	CTO	11	• •	•••	• •	•••	•••	••	•	••	•••	• •	• •	•••	•	•	•		10
\mathbf{F}	data	-fo	rma	t :	it	em															
-	aona		20	e	ri		ic	ⁿ	22	A	~	~ ~	mr	<u>،</u> ۲	~~						ເວ
	gene	tar	ue	SÇ.	<u> </u>	pι	τc	ш	a	u	e.	xa	mΕ	τe	35	•	•	•	•••	. '	
	rule	s a	nd	syı	nt	ax	•	• •	•••	••	•	• •	• •	•	• •	• •	•	•	•	11	00
F-	form	at	opt	io	n																
_	aono	r = 1	211	10	c															19	2 1
	yene	:LaL	u	TC	3	• •	• •	•••	•••	••	•	• •	•••	• •	••	•••		•	•		
	exam	ıp⊥e	S	• •	• •	• •	• •	• •	• •		•	••	• •	•	• •	•	1	11	υ,	1	11
Fi	eld	wid	th																		
	of F	fo	rma	+ •	i +	~m														(aa
		10	r ma	с.	ТC	em	•	•••	•••	•••	•	••	••	• •	••	••	•	•	• •		
	ot F	' fo	rma	t :	it	em					•	• •	• •	•	• •	• •	•	•	•	1(00
	of X	fo	rma	t :	it.	em												_		10)2
τ÷	10													•		•••		•	•	Ċ	5 /
тт	те •	• • •	•••	••	••	••	• •	•••	•••	• •	•	••	•••	•	• •	•••	•	•	• •	•	54
FI	LE a	ttr	ibu	te																	
	gene	ral	de	SC:	ri	pt	ic	on	• •	• •				•							55
	+=h1	0	f f	÷ 1.	~		+ 2	- 1 2	11+	0		an	A	~	- -+-	10	n.	- -		2.	30
			<u>т</u> т	<u></u> ,	Ç	ac	L 1		Jui	.e.	, ,	an	u	0	20	тc	11	0		2.	
Ŀл	Te d	ect	ara	ti	on	•	• •	•••	•••	••	•	• •	• •	• •	• •	• •	٠	•	• •		55
Fi	le 1	abe	1.	• •		• •	• •	••	•••	••	•			•				•	•	11	85
FΤ	T.E O	nti	on																	6	56
	1	PCT					•••	•••	•••	•••	•	•••	•••	• •	•	•••	•	•	••	1	60
FГ	те о	rga	nız	aτ.	10	n	• •	•••	•••	••	•	• •	• •	•	• •	• •	•	•	•	11	00
	cons	ecu	tiv	e		• •	• •	• •	• •		•	• •	• •	•		• •		•	•	10	59
	indo																				7
		xed																		1	1.5
	lone	exea	••	••	••	••	• •	•••	•••	••	•	••	••	•	• •	•••	•	٠	•	1	1.0 5.11
Fi	lena	.me	•••	•••	••	••	•••	•••	•	•••	•	••	••	•	•••	•••	•	•	•	1	7.5 54
Fi FI	lena LES	.me .con	 tro	••• ••	•• •• st	 at	••• en	ner	nt.	•••	•	••	•••	•	•••	•••	•	•	•	1	7.5 54
Fi FI	lena LES exam	exea .me con con	tro	1	st	at	en	ner	nt	•••	•	••	•••	•	•••	•••	•	•	•	1	25 54 92
Fi FI	lena LES exam	exea .me con aple	tro	1	st	at	en	ner	nt	•••	•	••	•••	•	•••	•••	•	•	•	1	25 54 92
Fi FI	lena LES exam form	xed .me con ple at	tro and	l :	st ul	at es	en	ner	nt	•••	•	•••	•••	•	•••	•••	•	•	• • • •	1 1 1 1	92 50
Fi FI FI	lena LES exam form XED	xed .me con ple at ari	tro and	l r	st ul	at es	en at	ner	nt at	tı		••• •• ••	••• •• ••	•••	•••	•••		•	• • • •	1 1 1 1 1	92 50 19
Fi FI FI	lena LES exam form XED xed-	xed me con ple at ari len	tro and thm	l ri et:	st ul ic	at es -d	en at	ner a	nt at	tr		bu	••• ••• ••	•	•••	•••		•	•	1 1 1 1 1	92 50 19 66
Fi FI FI Fi	lena LES exam form XED xed-	me con ple at ari len	tro and thm gth	l r et	st ul ic	at es -d	en at	ner a	at	tr		bu	••• ••• te		•••	• • • • • •		• • • •	•	1 1 1 1 1 1	92 54 92 50 19 66
Fi FI FI Fi	lena LES exam form XED xed- xed-	me con ple at ari len poi	tro and thm gth	l r et r da	st ul ic ta	at es -d or	en at d	ner za	at	tr		bu	••• ••• •••		•••	· · ·	•	• • • • • • •	•	1 1 1 1 1 1	25 54 92 50 19 50 19 50
Fi FI Fi Fi	lena LES exam form XED xed- xed- defa	me con ple ari len poi ult	tro and thm gth nt	l r et da	•• st •• ul ic ec ta	at es dor io	en at d te	ner a em	at			bu	••• ••• •••		· · ·	· · ·		•	•	1 1 1 1 1	25 54 92 50 19 50 19 50 19 50 19 50 19 50
Fi FI Fi Fi	lena LES exam form XED xed- xed- defa form	me con ple at len poi ult	tro and thm gth nt of	l r et da ec	st ul ic ta is	at es or io	en at d te	ner a em of	at			bu	••• ••• •••			· · ·		• • • • •	•	1:	254 9259 509 509 509 509 509 509 509 509 509 5
Fi FI Fi Fi	lena LES exam form XED xed- xed- defa form	me con ple at len poi ult	tro and thm gth nt of	l r et da ec	st.ulccas.	at esdor io	en at d	ner a of	at				••• ••• •••		· · ·	· · ·		• • • • •	• • • • • • •	1 1! 1! 1!	75 54 92 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50
Fi FI Fi Fi	lena LES exam form XED xed- xed- defa form	me con ple at len poi ult at	tro and thm gth nt of 1 f	l r et da ec	st ulcca is	at es -d or io of	en at d te	ner za	at			bu	••• ••• •••					• • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • •	1:	754 9250 509 509 509 509 509 509 509 509 509 5
Fi FI Fi Fi	lena LES exam form XED xed- defa form inte rang	me con ple ari len poi ult int e o	••• •tro and thm gth ntr of f v	l r et da ec	st ulccatas mue	at es or io of s	en at d t e	ner ca of	at				••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••					• • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • •	1:	754 9250 1950 219 21 21 21
Fi FI Fi Fi	lena LES exam form XED xed- defa form inte rang xed-	me con ple ari len ult rna poi rna poi	••• •tro and thm gth pt ff nt	l i et da ec ori	••• st ulccas •• uer	•• at •s or io •of s an	at d d f d	ner em of	at			bu	••• ••• •••					• • • • • • • • •	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1:	754 92095096219221221221222
Fi FI Fi Fi	lena LES exam form XED xed- xed- defa form inte rang xed- addi	me con ple ari len ult rna poi e oi	••• •tro and and thh n of f v n n and and and and and and an	orrian open	••• st.ulccasis.muers	••• at ••s or io ••f s an	at d te	ner ca of					••• ••• •••					• • • • • • • •	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1:	754 92095095196219221 22122232
Fi FI Fi Fi	lena LES exam form XED xed- defa form inte rang xed- addi	me con ple ati len poi ult arna e o poi tio	••• •tro and and thm of f v f n and and of f n and and and and and and and	l rt da ec orn al op nd	•••st.ulccasis.muers	at es or io of s an ub	en at d t en of	ner ca of	at	-tr			••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	111111111111111111111111111111111111111	754 9259 509 509 509 509 509 509 509 509 509 5
Fi FI Fi Fi	linde lena LES exam form XED xed- defa form inte rang xed- addi conv	me mon ari len lei ari ult rna poi tio ers	••• ••• and stro • and stro and and and and and and and and	l and a contract of the second	•••s •ulccas •muers	••• at •es or io •of san ub	en at d t e n	ner ca of	at	-tr		bu 	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••					• • • • • • • • • •	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1	754 920 509 509 509 509 509 509 509 509 509 50
Fi FI Fi Fi	linde lena LES exam form XED xed- defa form inte rang xed- addi conv divi	me me no pole aleni lo it aleni re oi oi sio	•••• tro and thm gth of f v n t of f v n t on n on o n o	l : iet: da: orn alco ond of	•••t uiccas••muers•f••	••• at •es or io •of san ub	at d d t d t	em of		-tr			••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1	754 92096216221 22122232333 333
Fi FI Fi Fi	liena LES exam form XED xed- xed- adefa form inte rang xed- addi conv divi	me me plt aleoit aleoit aleoit re oio seo ne	•••• andthm gth of fv n an of fv n an on tio	l : riet: da: ori alco ond of tio	•••st.ulccas.euers	at es or io of s an ub	at at a f		at				•••••••••••••••••							1	754 950961962112222333333333
Fi FI Fi Fi	liena LES form XED xed- defa form inte rang xed- addi conv divi expo	me con ple ari poi ari poi ers o noi	••••• and the stro athm f t t t t t t t t t t t t t t t t t t	···· ··· ··· ··· ··· ··· ··· ··	•••st.ulccas.exection	at esdor io of anub 	adtn odtr	ner ca of	at				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •							1	754 200 950 960 160 210 221 210 233 233 333 333
FI FI Fi Fi	liena LES exam form XED xed- defa form inte rang xed- addi conv divi expo mult	me ne ne ne ne ne ne ne ne ne ne ne ne ne	•••• •••• and thr of for n of for n on of tian tian of tian of tian of tian tian of tian	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	•••st•ulccas••muersf••oon	<pre>at .esd or io.of anub.oo oo oo oo oo oo oo oo oo oo oo oo oo</pre>	adtn off	ner ca of					••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1	754 200 950 960 160 100
FI FI FI FI FI	liena LES form XED xed- xed- defa form inte rang addi conv divi expo XED	exed me cone arin polt arin oilt erna oilt erna oilt erson sion ipl VVER	••••• andthm gt pr ff v n n on o o a n tica FLO	<pre></pre>	•••t •uiccas••muers •••nooco	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	e adtn odt ffit						••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••					• • • • • • • • • • • • •			7.54 90 950 96 96 16 97 17 97 17 97 17 97 17 97 17 97 17 97 17 97 17 97 17 97 17 97 17 97 17 97 17 <tr td=""> 17</tr>
FI FI Fi Fi Fi	liena LES form XED xed- xed- defa form inte rang xed- addi conv divi expo mult XEDC	me cole at len pole ari len pole ari e o poi o so so no l v E ri o so no l v V E ri so ari	••••• andmpt athmh of fv ano of fv ano of fv ano of fr ano fr ano of fr ano fr a f o o fr a o f a f a a f a f a f a	<pre></pre>	•••t •uiccas • mue f •oocci	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• e • adtn • odt • ffit		at									• • • • • • • • • • • • •			7.54 200961211222133332119
FI FI Fi Fi Fi	liena lena LES exam XED xed- xed- defa form inte rang xed- addi conv divi expo Mult XED XED	me constant matin ari lenit intra opio tions opio sion ipl VERI ari	••••• andmhth n pf fv nn on oia ac FLD hm	• · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	•••t•·liccas•• ers ••••oocid	• .at .esdrio .os aub .o odd	• e • adtn • odt • ffia?		at			bu bu						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			7.54 2009612112221333321191
FI FI Fi Fi Fi	liena LES exam XED xed- defa form inte rang addi convi expo mult XEDC QAT	me cone ple ari len polt arna polt rrna polt cerso sion ipl VER ari ng-	.tr andmht pr f v and o a a data for a data	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	•••t •uiccas • mue f •onocid	• .at .esdrio.sauo oddt	e e adtn e odt e ffiaa	ner of of	at at												7.54 200 950 960 221 212 233 333 211 212 233 333 211 212 233 333 201 212 211 212 223 233 233 333 211 212
FI FI Fi Fi Fi	liena LES form XED xed- defa form inte rang addi conv divi expo mult XEDC OAT oati form	me no pole ariano pole ariano pole ariano pole reso siendariano verso ariano at	.tr adult of for an original of the second s	••• de •oaon fttie	•••t •uiccas • mue f •oocid •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	e adtn odt offita		at at										· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		7.54 200 950 960 221 212 221 222 233 333 191 22
FI FI Fi Fi Fi	liena LES form XED defa form inte rang addi conv divi exupt Coati form XED Oati defa	me no state to the	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	•••t•liccas•• mue f••oocid•s	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• e • adtn • odt • ffiaa • n		at				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		7.54 200961162211222333332191222 8.50 9.50 9.51 9.50 9.51 9.50 9.52 2.11 9.53 3.33 9.51 9.50 9.52 2.21 9.53 3.33 9.50 9.50 <
FI FI Fi Fi Fi	liena LES form XED xed- adform addivi expo XED divi convi co	me on plating are of the second secon	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	•••t•lccas•• ers •••noccid••s	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• e • adtn • odt • ffiaa • n	it of	at				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •								7.5 90961162211222233333219122222 8.5 9162211122222
FI FI FI FI FI	liena LES form XED xed- defa form inte rang addi convi emult XED OAT oati form defa	me no pole ari pole ari pole ari pole ari pole reso sient vVER ari ari ault aria	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	•••t•lccas• ers •nnocd•s	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	e adtn odt ffiaa n	it of	at				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •								7.5 90961162211122222333332191222223
FI FI FI FI FI	liena LES exam XED xed- defa form integ addi convi exupto XED OAT defa integ addi convi exupto XED OAT	me no since the second	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	••• I •• rtr de • oraond of tite went • condo al	••• s • uieti • mue f • oocci • i mue	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• e • adtn • odt • ffiaa • n of	ner of cacional cacio	at				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •								7.5 950961162211222222 7.5 9509611622121222222 7.5 95096116222222
FI FI FI FI FI	liena LES form XED xed- deform inng- aconvi deform deform xeddi vi convi convi convi convi convi conva divi conva	med are cole arilent put are oile put are oile sionent ver arg arg ard ult arg arg arg arg arg arg arg arg arg arg	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	••s•uieti•mue f•oocid•s esimui	•••t•sdrio•fsnb••ooddt•of	• e • adtn • odt • ffiaa • n on	ner of of ica	at				••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		7.5 9509611622112222222 7.5 9509611622121222222 7.5 950961162222222 7.5 95096116222222
FI FI FI FI FI FI	liena LES form XED xed- derme xed- adforme rand convi	me on the second	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	••s•uieti•mue f•oocid•s eso	•••t•sdrio•fsnb••ooddt•ofsip	• e • adtn • odt • ffiaa • n onr	a of ic ic ic ic ic ic ic ic ic ic ic ic ic	at												7.5 9516611122222222222222222222222222222222
FI FI FI FI FI FI	liena LES form XED xed- defa form integ addi convi expo XED OAT form defa integ addi convi form addi convi form addi convi	me n ple ari lpoit arna o o poito sine poito sine poito sine poito sine poito sine poito arra o mutarna o mut	• to add of the set of	• • • · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	••s•uieti•mue f•ooci •imui e	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• e • adtn • odt • ffiaa • n of r	it of	at				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •								7.5 9516611122222222222222222222222222222222
FI FI FI FI FI FI	liena LES form XED xed- deform aconvi emulto OAT inng aconvi emulto OAT inng defae maxii conv	me cole arial cole ari	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	••• I • rtrac: • oraond of itie the correct of the	••s•uieti•mue f•ooci •imui f	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• e • adtn • odt • ffiaa • n onr •	emer of ca ca ca cic ca cic ca cic ca	at at a state of the state of t				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •								7.5 951622212222333321912222222333
FI FI FI FI FI FI	liena LES form XED xed- adforme raddiv deforme raddiv convi exponent XED OAT inte raddiv COAT inte raddiv Coatim defa maxii conv	me on the second	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	••• a contraction of the second of the secon	••s•uiccas• ers •nnocci •imui f	•••t•sau••ooddt•of un	• e • adtn • odt • ffiaa • n onr • ct		at at on				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		7.5 95162211122223333211912222222315
FI FI FI FI FI FI FI	liena lena LES exam XED xed- adorme rang adorvio emulto OAT integ xed- integ xed- adorvio convio convio convio convio conv	me one contraction of the second seco	• to add add a set of the set of	••• e de •oaono ftttwen •eoaeno i •	••s•uieti•mue f•oocid•s mui f••	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• e • adtn • odt • ffiaa • n onr • c •						• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		7.5 9.5 9.5 1.6 2.2
FI FI FI FI FI FI FI FI	liena LES eform XED xed- defrm addivi exulto OAT integrad- aconvi exulto OAT integrad- integrad- aconvi convi form xED convi c	med are ople	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	••• a contraction of the contrac	• st election use for solution of the second second second second second for the second secon	•••t•sdrio.f nb••ooddt.of oe•n	• e • adtn • odt • ffiaa • n onr • c •	ic of ic	at at on at				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •								7.5 9516221111222133332191222222221590
FI FI FI FI FI FI FI FI	liena LES form XED xed-a forme raddivide convi convi convi conv conv conv conv conv conv conv conv	me on the second	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	••• a e • o a o n d e • o a e n • e o a e	••s•uieti•mue f•ooci •imui f••	•••t•sdrio•f nb••ooddt•of oe•n••	e adtne odte ffiaaen onrecee	em of the second	at at on at				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •								20 95 162 22 <t< td=""></t<>
FI FI FI FI FI FI FI FI	liena lesa forme xed-a forme derme adort xed- forme adort xed- a convio coart inne convio coart inne convio coart inne convio coart adort convio coart adort convio coart adort convio coart adort convio coart adort convio coart adort convio coart adort convio coart adort convio coart convio coart convio coart convio coart convio coart convio coart convio coart convio coart convio coart co	me on the second	• to add add a set of the set of	•••• de •oaono fttwen •eoaenoi •••	••s•uieti•mue f•ooci •imui f •••	•••t•sdrio•f nb••ooddt•of oe•n•••	• e • adtn • odt • ffiaa • n onr • c • • •						• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •								7.5 951622222222223333219122222223159999
FI FI FI FI FI FI FI FC	liena LES eform XED xed- afortega addivi emulto OAT intega intega addivi emulto OAT intega intega convi fortega convi coatin coa	med are oplet all oplet are oplet and oplet are oplet and oplet an	• to add the set of th	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• s • uieti • mue f • ooci • imui f • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• e • adtn • odt • ffiaa • n onr • c • • •	em of ic ic ic ic ic ic ic ic ic ic ic ic ic	at				••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••								7.5 95162222222333331122222223355555555555555
FI FI FI FI FI FI FI FI	liena LES forme xed-ame forme raddivi convictor convictor definance convictor convictor definance convictor convictor definance convictor convicto	me cole time to the second sec	•t anther off nnintifthoo lf pointe ••nd	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• s • uieti • mue f • ooci • imui f • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• e • adtn • odt • ffiaa • n onr • c • • •	ic a contract of the second se	at at on at				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •								7.5 9.5 1.5 2.2
FI FI FI FI FI FI	liena LES form XED xed-a forme raddive derme adonvi convious to forma in ng adorme emulto OAT in ng adorwe emulto OAT in ng convious forma adorwe convious forma adorwe convious forma rang convious forma convious fo convious fo conv	me cole transformed to the second sec	• to add of the set of	••• action of the second of th	• s • uieti • mue f • ooci • imui f • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	•••t•sdrio.f nb••oddt•of oe•n••*	• e • adtn • odt • ffiaa • n onr • c • • •	it of	at												209611111222133321912222223335555598

FORMAT statement
general description and examples 76 Function reference expression containing
GET statement format and rules 129
<pre>general description and examples 40,77 GODECK option</pre>
format and rules
Header label 180 HIGH built-in function 101
IBM 1316 Disk Pack 17 IBM 2152 Printer-Keyboard 19 Identifier 10 length of 17
IF statement format and rules
Indexed file 180 accessing an 181 attributes and options of 177 creation of 177 deletion of records from 177 direct retrieval of 177 insertion of new records into 177 insertion of new records into 177 record formats and keys of 176 sequential retrieval of 177 Indexed file organization 177 INDEXED option 187
index 175 track index 175 Infix operator 175 INIT data attribute (see INITIAL) 30 INITIAL data 45
INITIAL data attribute general description and examples 29 rules and format
general description
cutive files
statements 23' Inquiry program 199

Insertion character examples and rules
INTERNAL scope attribute general description
Internal form of fixed-point data items
INTO option
Iteration factor compared with repetition factor 29 Iteration specification
in INITIAL attribute 120
Job control
Job-control statement comments in
format
Key
KEY option
general description
example
example
alphabetic list
Label file
Label assignment
Label information for disk files
Label-information processing 150 Label-control statement
LABEL program-control data attribute 121 Language translator
example
of identifier
Length (character-string attribute) 121

Level of a structure 27
Level number
Linkage
and execution 156
LINK option
Linking PL/I procedures
with Assembler procedures 200
rules and restrictions
LIST option 158
Loading a segment 163
LOCATE statement
format and rules 131
general description and options 66,85
LOG built-in function
LOG JOD-CONTROL Statement
Logical record
Long floating-point form
LOW DUIL-IN IGNECTON
LOOKI OPLION
MAIN option 133
Main procedure 47
Mainline program 199
Major-structure name
Mathematical built in function
summary
MAX built-in function
MEDIUM option
examples 179,177
general rules 182
MIN built-in function 106
Minus sign
in numeric-character data
Module 153
Monitor program 141
Multi-file volume
disk 192
tape 192
Multi-volume file
disk 193
tape 192
Multiple declaration
Multiplication
attributes of result of
of fixed-point operand
Namo 51
contextual declaration of 51
explicit declaration of 51
implicit declaration of
length of
recognition of
scope of
Negative scale factor
Nesting
of DO statement
of IF statement 42
of iteration specification 29
of repetition specification 29
NO condition prefix 81
NOATR option 158
NOATRO option 158
NODECK option 158
NODUMP option 158
NOEXTREF option 159
NOGODECK option 158

of ODEN control statement 1/16
NOLABEL option
example
NOLINK option
NOLIST option 158
NOLOG job-control statement 147
NOLSORT option 158
Non-iterative DO statement 43
NOOFFSET option 159
NOSOURCE option 158
NOSTMT option
NOTAPEMK Option 171
deneral rules 18/
NOWRITE option
example 211
general rules 184
NOXREF option 158
Null statement 132
Numeric-character variable
credit, debit, and overpunched signs
in
currency symbol in
drifting character in
insertion characters in 93
picture characters in
purpose of
signs in
static character in
values of
zero-suppression characters in 92
OFFECTER ontion 150
OFLERACKS option
OFLTRACKS option
OFLTRACKS option example
OFLTRACKS option example 177 general rules 185 On-block 201 ON-condition 201 ON-condition 132 general description and examples 132 general description and examples 82 ON-unit 82 ONSSLOG option 133
OFLTRACKS option 177 general rules 185 On-block 201 ON-condition 201 ON-condition 132 general description and examples 44 scope of 82 ON-unit 82 OPEN statement 133
OFLTRACKS option example 177 general rules 185 On-block 201 ON-condition 201 ON-condition 132 general and rules 132 general description and examples 44 scope of 82 ON-unit 82 ONSYSLOG option 133 OPEN statement 132
OFLTRACKS option example 177 general rules 185 On-block 201 ON-condition 201 ON-condition 132 general description and examples 132 general description and examples 82 ON-unit 82 ONSYSLOG option 133 OPEN statement 132 format and rules 133 OPEN statement 39,57
OFLTRACKS option example177 general rulesOn-block185On-block201ON-condition (see condition)132 general description and examplesON statement format and rules132 general descriptionON-unit82ON-unit82ONSYSLOG option133 OPEN statement format and rulesformat and rules132 general descriptionOption133OPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionSopening a file57
OFLTRACKS option example177 general rulesOn-block185On-condition (see condition)201ON statement format and rules132 general description and examplesMark scope of82ON-unit82ONSYSLOG option133OPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionOPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionOPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionOpening a file57Operand57
OFLTRACKS option example177 general rulesON-condition (see condition)201ON-condition (see condition)132 general description and examplesON-unit132 general descriptionON-unit82ONSYSLOG option133OPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionOpenit99,57Opening a file57Operand expression30
OFLTRACKS option example177 general rulesON-condition (see condition)185ON-condition (see condition)132 general description and examplesON-unit132 general descriptionON-unit82ONSYSLOG option133OPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionOpening a file57Operand expression30 fixed-point
OFLTRACKS option example177 general rulesOn-block185On-block201ON-condition (see condition)201ON statement format and rules132 general description and examplesScope of82ON-unit82ONSYSLOG option133OPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionGeneral description39,57Opening a file57Operand expression30 fixed-pointfloating-point32floating-point32
OFLTRACKS optionexampleexamplen-blockON-condition(see condition)ON statementformat and rulesformat and rulesscope of0N-unit0Nstatementformat and rules132general description and examples44scope of82ON-unit0NSYSLOG option133OPEN statementformat and rules132general description39,57Opening a fileoperandexpressionfloating-point32of control statementsdual control statements
OFLTRACKS option example177 general rulesON-condition (see condition)185ON-condition (see condition)132 general description and examplesON statement format and rules132 general description and examplesON-unit82ON-unit82ONSYSLOG option133OPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionOPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionOpening a file57Operand expression30 fixed-pointfixed-point32 of control statements (see individual control statements)Operational expression30
OFLTRACKS option example177 general rulesON-condition (see condition)185ON-condition (see condition)132 general description and examplesON statement format and rules132 general descriptionON-unit82ON-unit82ONSYSLOG option133OPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionOPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionOpening a file57Operand expression30 fixed-pointGontrol statements (see indivi- dual control statements)30 OperatorOperator30Operator30
OFLTRACKS option example177 general rulesON-condition (see condition)185ON-condition (see condition)132 general description and examplesON statement format and rules132 general description and examplesON-unit82ON-unit82ONSYSLOG option133OPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionOPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionOpening a file57Operand expression30 fixed-pointfixed-point32 of control statements (see individual control statements) Operator priority of operators30
OFLTRACKS option example177 general rulesON-condition (see condition)185ON-condition (see condition)132 general description and examplesON statement format and rules132 general descriptionON-unit82ON-unit82ONSYSLOG option133OPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionOpening a file132 general descriptionOperand expression132 general descriptionStatement format and rules132 general descriptionOperand expression30 fixed-pointOperand dual control statements (see indivi- dual control statements)30 Operator generatorOperator priority of operators36 Option
OFLTRACKS option example177 general rulesON-condition (see condition)201ON-condition (see condition)132 general description and examplesON statement format and rules132 general descriptionON-unit82ON-unit82ONSYSLOG option133OPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionformat and rules132 general descriptionOPEN statement format and rules132 general descriptionOpening a file57Operand expression30 fixed-pointfloating-point32 of control statements (see indivi- dual control statements)Operator priority of operators30Option36Option options of ENVIRONMENT attribute
OFLTRACKS optionexampleexamplen-blockON-condition(see condition)ON statementformat and rulesformat and rulesscope of0N-unit0Nstatementformat and rules132general description and examples44scope of82ON-unit0NSYSLOG option133OPEN statementformat and rulesformat and rules132general description39,57Opening a fileoperandexpressionfloating-point32of control statementsoperatorpriority of operators36Optionoptions of ENVIRONMENT attribute(see ENVIRONMENT attribute)
OFLTRACKS optionexampleexamplen-blockON-condition(see condition)ON statementformat and rulesformat and rulesscope of0N-unit0NSYSLOG option0PEN statementformat and rulesformat and rules132general description and examples44scope of82ON-unit0NSYSLOG option133OPEN statementformat and rulesformat and rules132general description39,57Opening a file0perandexpression30fixed-point32of control statements (see indivi-dual control statements)Operatorpriority of operators0ptionoptions of ENVIRONMENT attribute(see ENVIRONMENT attribute)options of statements
OFLTRACKS optionexampleexamplen-blockON-condition(see condition)ON statementformat and rulesformat and rulesscope ofON-unitONSYSLOG optionOPEN statementformat and rulesformat and rules132general description and examples44scope of82ON-unitONSYSLOG option133OPEN statementformat and rulesformat and rules132general description39,57Operandexpressiona fileof control statements (see indivi-dual control statements)Operatorpriority of operatorsoptions of ENVIRONMENT attribute(see ENVIRONMENT attribute)options of statements(see individual statements)OPTIONUS (MALN attribute)options of statements(see individual statements)
OFLIRACKS option 177 general rules 185 On-block 201 ON-condition 201 ON-condition 132 general description and examples 132 general description and examples 44 scope of 82 ON-unit 82 ONSYSLOG option 133 OPEN statement 132 format and rules 132 general description 39,57 Opening a file 57 Operand 57 operand 32 of control statements (see individual control statements) 30 Operator 30 options of ENVIRONMENT attribute 36 options of statements 36 Option 9 36 Option 9 37 Option 30 30 Option 30 30 Options of statements 36 Options of statements 36 Options of statements 37 OPTIONS (MAIN) attribute 47

Output
from compiler 156
general description
rules 121
Overflow area
Overlay
Overpunched sign 96
Packed decimal 21
Page layout for print files
general description and examples 63
rules and syntax 101
Parameter
Parameter list
PAUSE job-control statement 147
Permanent device assignment
cataloging of 193
deletion of
Displayment of
PIC data attribute (see PICTURE)
Picture character
general description
PICTURE data attribute
examples
general rules 121 Picture specification
general description and examples 71
maximum length of 23
picture characters
Point
of invocation
Point alignment
in numeric-character variable
Pointer assignment 124
Pointer data
Pointer manipulation
Pointer value
assignment of
restrictions on
values of
Positioning of multi-file volume
disk file 192
labeled tape file 191
unlabeled tape file 191 Precompiled object module
Precision (arithmetic-data attribute) . 122
Prefix
condition prefix
Prefix operator
Prime data area
general description attribute
rules 122
Printed listings 159

rincer carriage concror
character codes
for RECORD files
for RECORD files
for STREAM files 171
Printer-keyboard 199
Priority of operators
Problem data 20
arithmetic data 20
character-string data
Procedure 47,19
activation of 47
invocation of 47
main
termination of 47,76
Procedure reference
general description and examples /6,19
PROCEDURE Statement
round and fulles
PROCESS compiler-control statement
format and rules
options 158
Program
Segments
termination
Program-control data
label data
pointer data
Program-flow control statement 41
Program-name
in job-control statements 145
Program structure 18
Prologue 49
Punch card 15
reserved columns of 15
PUT statement
format and rules 133
general description and examples 40,71
general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement
general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement
general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement
general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement
general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement
general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement
general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement
<pre>general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
<pre>general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
<pre>general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
<pre>general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
<pre>general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
<pre>general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
<pre>general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
<pre>general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
<pre>general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
general description and examples . 40,71 PUT STRING statement
general description and examples . 40,71 PUT STRING statement
general description and examples . 40,71 PUT STRING statement
<pre>general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
<pre>general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
<pre>general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
<pre>general description and examples 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
<pre>general description and examples . 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
<pre>general description and examples . 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
<pre>general description and examples . 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>
<pre>general description and examples . 40,71 PUT STRING statement</pre>

Re	pet	it	:i	on	L :	fā	۱C	to	or			• •	•	•	•	• •		•	•			•	•	• •		•		•	2	2
	com	ipa	ar	eđ	1	wi	.t	h	i	t	e	ra	at	i	0	n	f	a	C1	tc	or		•	• •	•	•	•	•	2	9
Re	pet	it	:i	ve		sĮ	pe	c	Ĺf	i	C	at	:i	0	n														~	~
. .	in	a	d	at	a	٦	11	St	t_	•	•	• •	•	•	•	• •	• •	٠	•	• •	•	٠	•	• •	•	•	•	•	6	0
ке	рта	C C	∋m	en + -		с ~ ~ ~	n	ai	ca	C	τ	er	-	•	•	• •	• •	•	•	•	•	•	•	• •	•	•	•	•	'	3
RL	for	.IN ma	5 +	Ld	. ເ ກ	a a	r	11) 111	ل ا د	S																		-	וז	5
	aen	61 61	ra	1	d.	പ	т С	r	ir	;-5 ;+	i	•••	• •	à	• n	đ	6	v	a i	n r	-1	è	ŝ	• •		•	<u>и</u>	3.	. 7	7
RE	TUR	NS	5	- en	t	rv	7-	na	am	ie	- - -	at	t	r	i	bι	ıt	e	~	t			0				'	~	· ·	
	qen	eı	ca	1	đ	es	sc	r	ίr	t	i	or	ı	a	n	đ	e	x	aı	nr	21	e	s						7	8
	rul	es	3	• •	•	• •	•	•		•	•	• •		•	•	• •		•	•		•	•	•	• •		•	•	-	12	3
RE	WRI	ΤI	3	st	a	te	em	eı	nt																					
	for	ma	at	a	n	d	r	u.	Lε	s		• •	•	•	•	•	• •	•	•	•	• •	•	•	• •	•	•	•		13	5
- -	gen	e	ca	1	d	es	SC	r:	ιp	ot	ŀ	or	l	a	n	d	0	p	t:	10	on	s		•	• •	•	٠	•	6	6
RO	OU	Se	eg∶	m∈ ;₁	n +	t i	•	•	• •	•	•	••	•	•	•	• •	• •	•	•	• •	••	•	•	• •	•	•	•		10	5
RU		יבו	ju io	τ± ~	. L'	- 1 76	-11 10	r	Lu	11	C	5	LO	11		•	•••	•	•	• •	••	•	•	• •		•	•		20	1
πO	vv 11		JO		0	тC	ie	-	•	•	•	• •	•	•	•	•	••	•	•	•	••	•	•	•		•	•	1	20	-
Sc	ope		of	a		na	ım	е				• •				• •			•					• •					5	1
	ext	er	nd	in	g	t	:h	ē		•		• •				•			•				•	•			•	•	7	5
	EXT	ΈF	RN.	AI	,	• •	•	•		•	•	• •	• •	•		•		•	•	• •		•	•	•		•	•	•	5	2
	INT	ΈI	RN	AI	\$	• •	•	•	• •	•	•	• •	•	•	•	•	• •	•	•	• •	• •	•	•	•		•	•	•	5	2
Se	cto	r	٠	••	•	••	•	•	• •	•	•	• •	•	•	•	•	• •	٠	•	•	• •	٠	•	•	• •	•	•	1	17	3
Se	gme	nt.	-	_	_	£																							• 6	r
	109	.a:	Ln Sf	g ¢	0	I 1 /		•	•••		•	• •	•••	•	•	•	••	÷.	•	•••	••	•	•	•••	•••	• •	•		10	3
<u>S</u> ਵ	CMF	י ע יואי	ЭТ. Г	т СС	1 m	1e ni	1	ہ د	a1.	iu . c	0	sı nt	- r		1	ς,	≈ +≈	。 に ・ コ	۰. +	L d D r	nc	n	+	11	1	•	•		16	3
SE	OUF	N	гΤ	AI		р- at	+	r	i r)11	t.	e			-		50		0	-1	ii C		5			•	•			5
	aen	e	ra	1	d	es	5C	r	ir)t	i	or	ſ							•				•					5	6
	rul	e	5			• •		•				• •				•		•	•	•				•			•		11	8
Se	que	nt	:i	al		re	et	r:	iε	v	а	1	С	f		iı	٦đ	le	x	Эċ	E	f	i	10	€	•	•		17	5
	е	Xð	am	pl	.e	•	•	• •	• •	•	•	• •	•	•	•	•	••	•	•	• •	• •	•	•	•	• •	•	•		17	9
Se	rvi	Ce	€.	pr	0	gr	a	m	•	•	•	• •	• •	•	•	•	••	•	•	•	••	•	•	•	• •	•	•		14	1
SE	T O	pτ	1	on or		•••	•	•	•••	•	•	• •	• •	•	٠	•	• •	•	•	•	••	•	•	•	•	•	٠	• .	ט 1 ה	0
Sh	ort	تت. ا	F1.	pu oa	- <u></u>	i r	1 1			• • •	• n	•••	• -		÷	• • m	••	•	•	•	••	•	•	•	• •	•	•		2	2
Si	ans			υa	L L		īġ	1	-	·	11	L	-	.0	τ.	u	•	•	•	•	••	•	•	•		••	•	•	2	2
<u> </u>	in	'nι	ım	er	i	c-	٠c	ha	ar	a	с	te	er	•	đ	a۱	ca	L		•				•					9	5
Si	mpl	.e	d	ef	i	nj	ln	q				• •	, .		•	•		•	•	•			•	•		2	9	,	11	8
Si	$m\bar{p}$ 1	е	S	ta	t	en	ne	nt	t	•	•	• •		•	•	•	• •	•	•	•		•	•	•			•	•	1	8
SI	N Ł	u	i 1	t-	·i	n	f	u	nc	:t	i	oı	נ	•	•	•	• •	٠	•	•	••	•	•	•		•	•		10	7
SK	ΙP	f	or	ma	t	j	Lt	er	n							_													_	_
	gen	e	ra	1	d	es	SC	r:	ĹĔ)t	i	or	J	a	n	d	e	x	aı	nĮ	żΤ	.e	S		• •	•	٠	•	6	3
Co	rui	.es	5 1-	an au	ia	5	зy	n	сa	١X		• •	• •	•	•	•	• •	•	•	•	••	•	•	•	•	•	•		10	7
30 50	urc		к m	ey od	111	12	••	•	•••	•	•	• •	•••	•	•	•	•••	•	•	• •	••	•	•	•		•	•	•	15	2
so	URC	E	0	pt	i	\overline{or}	'n				:				:								:				:		15	8
Sp	eci	a	1	ch	a	ra	ac	te	er	•	•	• •			•	•				•		•		•			•	•	1	5
_	lis	t	0	f	S	pe	ec	ið	a1		С	ha	ar	a	С	te	er	s		•	• •	•	•	•		•	•	•	1	5
SQ	RT	b١	ıi	1t	-	ir	J.	f١	ır	lC	t	i¢	or:	1	•	•	• •	•	•	•	• •	•	•	•	• •	•	•	1	10	8
St	ack	e	ç _	se	1	ec	ct	i	on	L	•	•	• •	•	٠	•	••	•	•	•	• •	•	•	•	• •	•	•		17	9
St	and	a	rd	S 	Y	st	e a	m	a . 1	lC	t	10	or.	1	-	:.	~~	. ~	、											
S+	(se	ee	1	nc +	11	v	La	u	11	•	С	OI	10	11	τ	10	JI.	15)											
SL	ale	h	en a h	ເ 6†	i	c	1	i :	s †		0	f	0	:+	а	+ 4	⊃ກ	າຄ	'n	+ <	3	_	_			_	_		12	4
	COL	m	il	er	-	cc	5n	t	rc	51	Č	-							•			:	:	•			:	1	15	7
	con	ipo	ou	nđ	l	••																	:						1	8
	dat	a	-m	ov	'e	me	en	t	a	ın	d	¢	cc	m	ıр	u	ta	ιt	i	21	na	1		•			•	•	4	0
	des	C	ri	pt	i	ve	9	•	• •	•	•	• •		•	•	•	• •	•	•	•		•	•	•		•	•	•	3	8
	exc	e	pt	ic	'n	- (0	nt	tr	0	1		• •	•	•	•	••	•	•	•	• •	•	•	•		•	•	٠	4	4
	for	ma	at	C	f	E	٢L	/:	Ľ	S	t	at	ce	em	le	n	t	•	•	•	••	•	•	•	• •	•	•	•	1	5
	inp	u	ε/ 20	0U 2+	ιτ	pu	١t		••	•	•	• •	• •	•	•	•	••	•	•	•	• •	٠	•	•	•	•	•	• ,	ر ۱۳	8
	ייםא גייםא) (,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	u sr	nt A	. Ľ	ι,	L.	•	••	•	•	• •	• •	•	•	•	••	•	•	•	••	•	•	•	•	•	•		14 1	4 Q
	nul	1	<u>ــر</u>	u • -	•	• •	•	•	••	•	•	• •		•	•	•	••	•	•	•	••	•	•	•		•	•	•	1	8
			ra.		f	10	οw		- • cc	'n	t	r		•	•	• •	•		-			Ĭ	Ì			•	•	•	'n	1
	PTC	ų.	ᄂᄔ		-	_	_		_		_		בר		•	• •		•	•	•			•	•			٠	•	_	
	prc	g1	ra	m-	s	tı	:u	C	tυ	ır	e	± (••	•	:	•			:	•			:	•		••	:	:	4	5

Statement label constant 24
Statement prefix 18
Static character
In picture specification
general description and example 49
in segments
STATIC storage-class attribute 116
Sterling currency processing 203
STMT option 158
Storage allocation 48
dynamic allocation 48
Static allocation 49
Storage mapping
of structure
STREAM file-description attribute
general description
rules 123
Stream-oriented data transmission 54,59
Stream I/O transfer statements 39
String-handling built-in functions 103
String operator 16
STRING option
String-overlay defining 29,118
element 27
general description and examples 27
level
name
storage mapping of
Structure assignment 124
Subscript 25
SUBSTR built-in function 104
SUBSTR pseudo-variable 109
Subtraction
attributes of result of
Sumbolic device address 183 149
Symbolic device address
SYSIPT (symbolic device address) 143
SYSLOG (symbolic device address) 143
SYSLST (symbolic device address) 143
SYSOPT (symbolic device address) 143
SYSRDR (symbolic device address) 143
System action condition ERROR 112
SYS000-019 (symbolic device addresses) 143
System configuration of DPS
minimum 139
SVSTEM keyword
Sister Reguera for the former of
T picture character
TAN built-in function 108
TANH built-in function 108
Tape IILES 180
Termination
of a procedure

.

of a program
of OPTN control statement 146
in IF statement
Undefined-length record 167,199 U-format option
Updating an indexed file 178
V-format option general description
of numeric-character data
functions
general description
VERIFY Option example 178 rules 184 VOL control statement 187 Volume 54 Volume 1861 185
WARNING option 158 WRITE statement
format and rules 136 general description and options 66 WORK1 option of COPTN control
statement
statement
X spacing format item general description and examples 63 rules and syntax 102 XREF option 158 XTENT control statement 189
ZERODIVIDE condition 111 Zero-suppression character 92

REA	DER'S CO	MMENT	FORM			
IBM System/360 Model 20 Disk Programming System PL/I						Form C33-6007-1
• How did you use this publicat	ion?					
As a reference source As a classroom text As a self-study text						
• Based on your own experience	e, rate this	publicatio	n			
As a reference source:	Very Good	Good	Fair	Poor	Very Poor	
As a text:	Very Good	Good	Fair	Poor	Very Poor	

- What is your occupation?
- We would appreciate your other comments; please give specific page and line references where appropriate. If you wish a reply, be sure to include your name and address.

••••••

YOUR COMMENTS, PLEASE

This SRL manual is part of a library that serves as a reference source for systems analysts, programmers and operators of IBM systems. Your answers to the questions on the back of this form, together with your comments, will help us produce better publications for your use. Each reply will be carefully reviewed by the persons responsible for writing and publishing this material. All comments and suggestions become the property of IBM.

Please note: Requests for copies of publications and for assistance in utilizing your IBM system should be directed to your IBM representative or to the IBM sales office serving your locality.

Fold

BUSINESS REPLY MAIL NO POSTAGE NECESSARY IF MAILED IN THE UNITED STATES

POSTAGE WILL BE PAID BY . . .

IBM Corporation

112 East Post Road White Plains, N. Y. 10601

Attention: Department 813 BP

Fold

CUT ALONG THIS LINE

Fold

FIRST CLASS PERMIT NO. 1359 WHITE PLAINS, N. Y.

Fold



International Business Machines Corporation Data Processing Division 112 East Post Road, White Plains, N.Y. 10601 [USA Only]

IBM World Trade Corporation 821 United Nations Plaza, New York, New York 10017 [International]



International Business Machines Corporation Data Processing Division 112 East Post Road, White Plains, N.Y. 10601 [USA Only]

IBM World Trade Corporation 821 United Nations Plaza, New York, New York 10017 [International]